
































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
To the Members of NSEIT Limited
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of NSEIT Limited
(“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2021, the
Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Loss), the Statement of
Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended on that date, and
a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information
(hereinafter referred to as “the standalone financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required
by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and
fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section
133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as
amended, (“"Ind AS") and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the
state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2021, the profit and total comprehensive
income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our
responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the
independence requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial
statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the
ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the standalone financial
statements.
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Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor’s
Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other
information. The other information comprises the information included in the
Management Discussion & Analysis and Board’s Report including Annexures to Board’s
Report, but does not include the standalone financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information
and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is
to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge
obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the
Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5)
of the Act with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that
give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, total
comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance
with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeqguarding the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of
the standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for
assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section
143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether
the Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the
operating effectiveness of such controls.

¢ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.
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Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements
that, individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a
reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. We
consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our
audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of
any identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’'s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued
by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of
the Companies Act, 2013, we give in the Annexure ‘A’, a statement on the
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by
the Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other
Comprehensive Loss, Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of
Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books
of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the
Ind AS specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on
March 31, 2021 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the
directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2021 from being appointed as a
director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.
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f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls,
refer to our separate Report in Annexure ‘B’. Our report expresses an
unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the
Company'’s internal financial controls over financial reporting.

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’'s Report in
accordance with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its
directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of
the Act.

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as
amended in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at March
31, 2021 on its financial position in its standalone financial statements -
Refer Note 42 to the standalone financial statements.

ii. The Company did not have any long term contracts including derivatives
contracts as at March 31, 2021 for which there were any material
foreseeable losses - Refer Note 44 to the standalone financial statements.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company during the year
ended March 31, 2021 - Refer Note 45 to the standalone financial
statements.

For Khandelwal Jain & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number:105049W

Sd/-

Narendra Jain

Partner

Membership Number: 048725
UDIN: 21048725AAAABL4374

Place: Mumbai
Date: April 21, 2021
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Annexure A to Independent Auditors’ Report

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report to the Members of NSEIT Limited of even date)

(a) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation, of fixed assets.

(b) The fixed assets are physically verified by the Management according to a
phased programme designed to cover all the items over a period of two years
which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company
and the nature of its assets. Pursuant to the programme, a portion of the fixed
assets has been physically verified by the Management during the year and we
have been informed that no material discrepancies have been noticed on such
verification.

(c) The Company does not have any immovable property and accordingly the
provisions of Clause 3(i)(c) of the said Order are not applicable to the Company.

The Company is in the business of providing software and IT enabled services and
does not have any physical inventories. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3 (ii) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has granted unsecured loans to a company covered in the register
maintained under Section 189 of the Act and with respect to the same:

a) Based on the information and explanations and in our opinion, the terms and
conditions of grant of such loans are not, prima facie, prejudicial to the
Company’s interest;

b) The schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest has been
stipulated and repayments or receipts of principal amounts and interest have
been regular as per stipulations; and

c) There is no overdue amount remaining outstanding as at the year-end.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has complied with the provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the Act in
respect of grant of loans, making investments and providing guarantees and
securities, as applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not accepted any deposits from the public within the meaning of
Sections 73, 74, 75 and 76 of the Act and the Rules framed there under to the
extent notified.
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Vi.

The maintenance of cost records has not been specified by the Central Government
under section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 for the business activities carried
out by the Company. Thus reporting under clause 3(vi) of the order is not applicable
to the Company.

vii (@) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the

Company examined by us, in our opinion, the Company is generally regular in
depositing the undisputed statutory dues, including provident fund, employees’
state insurance, income tax, service tax, goods and service tax (GST) and other
material statutory dues, as applicable, with the appropriate authorities. According
to the records of the Company, there were no undisputed amounts payable in
respect of provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, service-tax,
GST, duty of custom, duty of excise, value added tax and other statutory dues in
arrears as at March 31, 2021 for a period of more than six months from the date
they became payable.

(b) According to the information and explanation given to us, there are no dues in

viii.

respect of sales tax, value added tax, GST, income tax, duty of customs, wealth
tax and duty of excise including cess which have not been deposited with the
appropriate authorities on account of any dispute, except the following:

Name of the Nature of the Dues Amount Period to Forum where
Statute (Rs.) which the dispute is
amount pending
relates

Income Tax Income Tax-Demand Rs. 12.24 AY 2016-17 Assessing Officer

Act, 1961 u/s 143(1)(a) Lakhs
Income Tax Income Tax-Demand Rs. 1.05 AY 2019-20 Company is in
Act, 1961 u/s 143(1)(B) Lakhs process of filing

rectification
before Assessing
Officer

As the Company does not have any loans or borrowings from any financial
institution or bank or Government, nor has it issued any debentures as at the
balance sheet date, the provisions of Clause 3(viii) of the Order are not applicable
to the Company.

The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer, further
public offer (including debt instruments) and term loans. Accordingly, the
provisions of Clause 3(ix) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company,
carried out in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India,
and according to the information and explanations given to us, we have neither
come across any instance of material fraud by the Company or on the Company
by its officers or employees, noticed or reported during the year, nor have we
been informed of any such case by the Management.
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Xi.

Xii.

xiii.

Xiv.

XV.

XVi.

The Company has paid / provided for managerial remuneration in accordance
with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of Section 197 read with
Schedule V to the Act.

As the Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not
applicable to it, the provisions of Clause 3(xii) of the Order are not applicable to
the Company.

The Company has entered into transactions with related parties in compliance
with the provisions of Sections 177 and 188 of the Act. The details of such related
party transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required
under Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 24, Related Party Disclosures
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014.

The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of
shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year under review.
Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(xiv) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company.

The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or
persons connected with him. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(xv) of the
Order are not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve
Bank of India Act, 1934. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(xvi) of the Order
are not applicable to the Company.

For Khandelwal Jain & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number:105049W

Sd/-

Narendra Jain

Partner

Membership Number: 048725
UDIN: 21048725AAAABL4374

Place: Mumbai
Date: April 21, 2021
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Annexure B to Independent Auditors’ Report

(Referred to in paragraph 2(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report to the Members of NSEIT Limited of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of
Section 143 of the Act

1.

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of NSEIT
Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2021 in conjunction with our audit of the
standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

2.

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly
and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

3.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial
controls over financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing deemed to
be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act to the extent applicable to an audit
of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of internal financial controls
and both issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over
financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
adequacy of the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their
operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial
reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over
financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing
and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on
the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.
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5.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls
system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

6.

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and
the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over
financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles,
and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and
(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have
a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

7.

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial
reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of
controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be
detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over
financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial
control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

Opinion

8.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls
over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2021, based on
the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Khandelwal Jain & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number:105049W

Sd/-

Narendra Jain

Partner

Membership Number: 048725
UDIN: 21048725AAAABL4374

Place: Mumbai
Date: April 21, 2021
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NSEIT Limited
(Formerly known as NSE.IT LIMITED)

BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2021

(Rs in Lakhs )

Particulars Notes As at 31.03.2021 As at 31.03.2020
(Audited) (Audited)
ASSETS
Non-current assets
a Property, Plant and Equipment 2 549.66 676.25
b Capital work-in-progress 21 - 102.25
c Intangible assets under development 2.2 46.91 118.51
d Right Of Use Asset 2.3 1,371.85 1,898.51
e Other Intangible assets 2 884.74 608.99
f Financial Assets
i Investments 3 9,954.00 9,383.69
ii Other Financials assets
- Non-Current Bank Balances 4 2,057.95 236.05
- Loans 4 1,901.93 2,161.49
- Others 4 3.26 0.39
g Deferred Tax Assets (net) 15 419.83 432.28
h Income Tax Assets (net) 16 912.87 701.58
i Other assets 5 117.01 90.64
Total Non-current assets 18,220.01 16,410.63
Current assets
a Inventories - -
b Financial Assets
i Investments 3 2,188.06 5,321.96
ii Trade receivable 6 7,859.39 5,283.14
iii Unbilled receivables 7 2,139.47 587.99
iv Cash and Cash equivalents 8a 2,346.63 3,320.99
% Bank balances other than (iv) above 8b 3,684.94 2,926.94
vi Loans 4 556.87 638.56
vii Other Financial assets 4 31.16 173.09
c Other assets 5 561.76 839.02
Total Current assets 19,368.28 19,091.69
TOTAL ASSETS 37,588.29 35,502.32




(Rs in Lakhs )

Particulars Notes As at 31.03.2021 As at 31.03.2020
(Audited) (Audited)

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

EQUITY

Equity Share capital 9 1,000.00 1,000.00

Other Equity 10 18,819.18 16,731.53

Total Equity 19,819.18 17,731.53

LIABILITIES

Non-current liabilities
Financial Liabilities

Borrowings 11 10,000.00 10,000.00

Other financial liabilities 13 527.49 976.30
Provisions 14 263.37 24410
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 15 - -
Other liabilities 17 - -
Total Non-current liabilities 10,790.86 11,220.40

Current liabilities
Financial Liabilities

Trade Payables 12

- Total Outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 19.34 33.40

- Total Outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and

small enterprises ° P 2472.38 2,167.14

Other financial liabilities 13 1,620.87 2,068.75
Provisions 14 852.29 1,187.35
Income Tax Liabilities (net) 16 97.68 40.36
Other liabilities 17 1,915.69 1,053.39
Total Current liabilities 6,978.25 6,550.39
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 37,588.29 35,502.32

Summary of significant accounting policies 1

Notes refer to above form an integral part of Balance Sheet

This is the Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date

As per our report of even date attached

For Khandelwal Jain & Co. For and on behalf of Board of Directors

Chartered Accountants
(Reg No : 105049W)

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-

Prof. S. SADAGOPAN N. MURALIDARAN M.S.SUNDRA RAJAN
Sd/- Chairman Managing Director & CEO Director
NARENDRA JAIN DIN No. 00118285 DIN No. 06567029 DIN No. 00169775
Partner
Membership No.048725

Sd/- Sd/-
Place : Mumbai M. N. HARIHARAN VAIBHHAV KULKARNI

Date : April 21, 2021 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary



NSEIT LIMITED

(Formerly known as NSE.IT LIMITED))

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

(Rs in Lakhs )

Particulars Notes For the year ended For the year ended
31.03.2021 31.03.2020
(Audited ) (Audited )
Income
Revenue from operations 18 25,537.09 27,290.23
Other income 19 1,698.80 898.83
Total Income 27,235.88 28,189.06
Expenses
Employee benefits expense 20 9,923.02 8,993.57
Technical & Sub Contract Charges 22 2,519.74 3,000.12
Finance Cost 21 909.17 953.05
Depreciation and amortisation expense 2 1,904.61 1,483.75
Other expenses 22 8,624.62 10,994.78
Total Expenses 23,881.16 25,425.27
Profit before tax 3,354.73 2,763.79
Less : Income Tax expense 15
- Current tax 1,022.00 941.00
- Short / (excess) Tax for earlier years 14.82 39.78
- Deferred tax 42.10 (50.73)
Total tax expenses 1,078.92 930.05
Profit after tax (A) 2,275.81 1,833.74
Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
- Remeasurements of post-employment benefit obligations (117.82) (94.36)
Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
- Remeasurements of post-employment benefit obligations 29.65 23.75
Total Other Comprehensive Income, net of tax (B) (88.17) (70.61)
Total Comprehensive Income (A+B) 2,187.64 1,763.13
Earnings per equity share ( FV X 10 each)
- Basic (%) 23 22.76 18.34
- Diluted (%) 22.76 18.34

Summary of significant accounting policies

Notes refer to above form an integral part of the Statement of Profit & Loss
This is the Statement of Profit & Loss referred to in our report of even date
As per our report of even date attached
For Khandelwal Jain & Co.

Chartered Accountants

(Reg No : 105049W)

Sd/-
Sd/- Prof. S. SADAGOPAN
NARENDRA JAIN Chairman
Partner DIN No. 00118285

Membership No.048725

Place : Mumbai
Date : April 21, 2021

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sd/-
M. N. HARIHARAN

Chief Financial Officer

N. MURALIDARAN

Managing Director & CEO
DIN No. 06567029

M.S. SUNDARA RAJAN

DIN No. 00169775

VAIBHHAV KULKARNI
Company Secretary



NSEIT Limited

(Formerly known as NSE.IT LIMITED)
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY MARCH 31, 2021

(Rs in Lakhs)

(A) Equity Share Capital
Balance at the beginning of the reporting Changes in equity share Balance at the end of the
period capital during the year reporting period
1,000.00 - 1,000.00
(B) Other Equity
Particulars General reserve Retained Earnings Total
Bal.ance at the beginning of the reporting 5,436.06 11,295.47 16,731.53
period
Profit for the year - 2,275.81 2,275.81
Other Comprehensive Income for the year (88.17) (88.17)
Dividends (100.00) (100.00)
Dividend Tax - -
Total Other Equity 5,436.06 13,383.12 18,819.18
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY MARCH 31, 2020
(A) Equity Share Capital
Balance at the beginning of the reporting Changes in equity share Balance at the end of the
period capital during the year reporting period
1,000.00 - 1,000.00
(B) Other Equity
Particulars General reserve Retained Earnings Total
pBear:zr(;ce at the beginning of the reporting 5,436.06 9,652.90 15,088.96
Profit for the year 1,833.74 1,833.74
Other Comprehensive Income for the year (70.61) (70.61)
Dividends (100.00) (100.00)
Dividend Tax (20.56) (20.56)
Total Other Equity 5,436.06 11,295.47 16,731.53
This is the statement of changes in equity refered to in our report of even date
For Khandelwal Jain & Co.
Chartered Accountants For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
(Reg No : 105049W)
Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
Sd/- Prof. S. SADAGOPAN N. MURALIDARAN M.S. SUNDARA RAJAN
NARENDRA JAIN Chairman Managing Director & CEO Director
Partner DIN No. 00118285 DIN No. 06567029 DIN No. 00169775

Membership No.048725

Place : Mumbai
Date : April 21, 2021

Sd/-
M. N. HARIHARAN
Chief Financial Officer

Sd/-
VAIBHAV KULKARNI
Company Secretary




NSEIT Limited
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021
(Formerly known as NSE.IT LIMITED))
(Rs in Lakhs )

2020-21 2019-20
A) CASHFLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
PROFIT BEFORE TAX 3,354.73 2,763.79
Add : Adjustments for:
- Depreciation and amortisation expense 1,904.61 1,483.75
- Bad Debts written off - 103.35
- Provision for Doubtful Debts 257.01 94.48
- Interest on Lease 156.24 190.36
Less: Adjustments for:
- Interest income on Bank deposits (299.69) (340.72)
- Interest income on Others (137.64) (150.74)
Net gain on sale of mutual funds mandatorily measured at fair value through Profit and Loss (105.26) (97.88)
- Net gain on mutual funds mandatorily measured at fair value through Profit and Loss (137.52) (177.38)
- Net Loss on disposal of property,plant and equipment 4.68 0.02
- Dividend and other cost for issue of peference shares 715.91 717.40
- Exchange difference on items grouped under financing/investing activities - 83.12
- Extinguishment of lease liabilities due rent concession (62.82) -
- Reversal of lease liabilities on account of closer of certain lease (11.76) (1.01)
- Excess provision written back (826.28) -
- Sundry Balance W/ Back (72.55) (41.06)
Change in Operating Assets and Liabilities
- Trade Receivable and Unbilled Receivable (4,384.74) 461.35
- Trade Payable and Provisions 502.65 (580.40)
- Other Financial & Non-Financial Assets 310.83 692.58
- Other Financial & Non-Financial Liabilities 1,116.05 (2,226.33)
CASH GENERATED / (USED) FROM OPERATIONS 2,284.44 2,974.69
- Income Taxes paid (Net of Refunds) (1,190.79) (1,790.44)
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES - Total (A) 1,093.65 1,184.25
B) CASHFLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
- Payment for Property Plant, Equipment (716.64) (1,012.15)
- Sale Proceed from Property Plant, Equipment -
- Increase in Foreign Currency Translation Reserve - -
- Interest received 577.04 396.96
- Payment from fixed deposits / Bank Balances other than cash & cash equivalents (Net) (2,579.91) 523.24
- Payment for investment (1,992.51) (5,100.00)
- Sale Proceeds from investment 5,369.20 6,325.67
- Investment in Aujas Networks Pvt. Ltd. (941.88) (18.42)
- Loan given to Subsidairies (net) 259.56 (337.30)

NET CASH FROM (USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES - Total (B) (25.14) 777.99




C) CASHFLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

- Dividend paid on Equity Shares (100.00) (100.00)
- Dividend paid on Preference Shares (700.00) (23.01)
- Dividend distribution tax paid on Equity & Prefenece Shares - (25.29)
- Payments towards lease obligation (1,242.87) (1,050.92)
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) FINANCING ACTIVITIES - Total (C) (2,042.87) (1,199.22)
NET INCREASE / (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (A+B+C) (974.36) 763.02
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS : OPENING BALANCE 3,320.99 2,561.88
CLOSING CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS : CLOSING BALANCE 2,346.63 3,320.99
TOTAL CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AS PER BALANCE SHEET (974.36) 759.11
- Add: Unrealised exchange (gain)/loss on cash and cash equivalents - (3.91)
NET INCREASE / (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT (974.36) 763.02

Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents as per the cash flow statement
Cash and cash equivalents as per above comprise of the following

- Cash and cash equivalents 2,346.63 3,320.99
- Bank overdrafts - -
Balance as per statement of cash flows 2,346.63 3,320.99

Notes :

1 The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the "Indirect Method" as set out in the Ind AS-7 on Statement of Cash Flow as notified under
Compaines (Accounts) Rules, 2015.
2 Previous years figures have been regrouped, rearranged and reclassified wherever necessary to confirm to the current year classifications

The above statement of cash flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

As per our report of even date attached

For Khandelwal Jain & Co. For and on behalf of Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants

(Reg No : 105049W)

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
NARENDRA JAIN Prof. S. SADAGOPAN N. MURALIDARAN M.S. SUNDARA RAJAN
Partner Chairman Managing Director & CEO  Director
Membership No.048725 DIN No. 00118285 DIN No. 06567029 DIN No. 00169775
Sd/- Sd/-
M. N. HARIHARAN VAIBHAV KULKARNI
Place : Mumbai Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Date : April 21, 2021



NSEIT LIMITED

Notes forming integral part of the financial statements

a)

b)

c)

Summary of significant accounting policies :

Company Overview

The NSEIT Limited ("the Company") is a Step-down Subsidiary of the National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE), the world's second largest stock exchange by trade volume. NSEIT is a global
technology firm with a focus on the financial services industry. The Company is a vertical specialist organization with deep domain expertise and technology focus aligned to the needs of financial institutions
and offering end-to-end technology solutions covering the entire gamut of Application Services, Testing Center of Excellence, Infrastructure Services, Integrated Security Response Center, Analytics as a
Service and IT Enabled Services (e-Assessments and e-Auctions) for BFSI segment.

The Financial Statements are approved for issue by the Company's Board of Directors on April 21, 2021.

Basis of preparation of Financial Statements

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the historical cost basis, except for certain financial instruments which are measured at fair value, and are drawn up in accordance with the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind AS”) notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) [Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015],
Companies ( Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016 and other relevant provisions of the Act.

i) Historical cost convention

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following:

« certain financial instruments that is measured at fair value, and

» defined benefit plans - plan assets measured at fair value.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is
directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability which market
participants would take into account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the
significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the measurement date;

Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

Use of estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make estimates, judgments and assumptions. These estimates, judgments and assumptions affect the
application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and reported amounts of revenues
and expenses during the period. Although these estimate are based on management’s best knowledge of current events and actions, uncertainity about the assumption and estimates could result in the
outcome requiring material adjustment to the carrying amount of asset and liabilities.

Investments and other financial assets

(i) Classification
The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:

those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income, or through profit or loss), and
those measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded in profit or loss or other comprehensive income. For investments in debt instruments, this will depend on the business model in
which the investment is held. For investments in equity instruments, this will depend on whether the Company has made an irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition to account for the equity
investment at fair value through other comprehensive income. The Company reclassifies debt investments when and only when its business model for managing those assets changes.



(i) Measurement

At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss.

Debt instruments :-

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Company’s business model for managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are three measurement categories into
which the Company classifies its debt instruments:

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest are measured at amortised cost. A gain or loss on
a debt investment that is subsequently measured at amortised cost and is not part of a hedging relationship is recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised or impaired. Interest income from
these financial assets is included in finance income using the effective interest rate method.

Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI): Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest, are measured at FVOCI. Movements in the carrying amount are taken through OCI, except for the recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest revenue and foreign
exchange gains and losses which are recognised in profit and loss. When the financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in Other Comphrensive Income (OCI) is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss and recognised in net gain on sale of financial assets measured at FVOCI under other income. Interest income from these financial assets is included in other income
using the effective interest rate method.

Fair value through profit or loss: Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at fair value through profit or loss. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is
subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss is recognised in profit or loss and presented net in the statement of profit and loss in Net fair value gain / (loss) on financial assets mandatorily
measured at FVPL under other income in the period in which it arises. Interest income from these financial assets is included in other income.

Equity investments (other than investments in subsidiary, associates and joint venture) :-

The Company subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value. Where the Company’s management has elected to present fair value gains and losses on equity investments in other
comprehensive income, there is no subsequent reclassification of fair value gains and losses to profit or loss. Dividends from such investments continue to be recognised in profit or loss as other income when
the Company'’s right to receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are recognised in other gain/ (losses) in the statement of profit and loss. Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment losses)
on equity investments measured at FVOCI are not reported separately from other changes in fair value.

Equity Investments (in subsidiaries, associates and joint venture)

Investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint venture are carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any. Where an indication of impairment exists, the carrying amount of the investment is
assessed and written down immediately to its recoverable amount. The accounting policy on impairment of non-financial assets is disclosed in Note (m) below. On disposal of investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint venture, the difference between net disposal proceeds and the carrying amounts are recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

Acquisition-related costs are costs the acquirer incurs to effect a business combination. Those costs include finder’s fees; advisory, legal, accounting, valuation and other professional or consulting fees;
general administrative costs, including the costs of maintaining an internal acquisitions department. The company accounts for acquisition-related costs as expenses in the periods in which the costs are
incurred and the services are received.

(iii) Impairment of financial assets :-

The Company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its assets carried at amortised cost and FVOCI debt instruments. The impairment methodology applied depends
on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables only, the Company applies the simplified approach permitted by Ind AS 109, which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial recognition of the receivables.

De-recognition of financial assets :-
A financial asset is de-recognised only when

The Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset or

retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but assumes a contractual obligation to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients.
Where the Company has transferred an asset, it evaluates whether it has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset. In such cases, the financial asset is de-recognised.
Where the Company has not transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is not de-recognised.
Where the Company has neither transferred a financial asset nor retains substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is de-recognised if the Company has not
retained control of the financial asset. Where the Company retains control of the financial asset, the asset is continued to be recognised to the extent of continuing involvement in the financial asset.
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(iv) Income recognition

Interest income :-

Interest income from debt instruments is recognised using the effective interest rate method. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life
of the financial assets to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of
the financial instrument but does not consider the expected credit losses.

Dividends :-
Dividends are recognised in profit and loss only when the right to receive payment is established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the Company, and the
amount of the dividend can be reliably measured.

Financial liabilities

(i) Classification as debt or equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.

(ii) Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial liabilities are initially measured at the amortised cost unless at initial
recognition, they are classified as fair value through profit and loss.

(iii) Subsequent measurement

Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. Financial liabilities carried at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair value with all
changes in fair value recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

(iv) Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expires.

Transaction costs

Transaction costs are “Incremental costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, issue or disposal of a financial asset or financial liability. An incremental cost is one that would not have been incurred if
the entity had not acquired, issued or disposed of the financial instrument. Transaction costs include fees and commission paid to agents, advisers, brokers and dealers, levies by regulatory agencies and
security exchanges, and transfer taxes and duties. Under effective interest method, Company amortises transaction costs over the expected life of the financial instrument.

Derivatives
Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured to their fair value at the end of each reporting period.

Leases
Effective April 1, 2019, the Company has adopted Ind AS 116 “Leases” and applied to all lease contracts existing on April 1, 2019 using the simplified approach.

As alessee

The Company’s lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for land and buildings. The Company assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of the contract. Ind AS 116 defines a lease as
a contract, or a part of a contract, that convey as the right of use an asset (the underlying asset) for a period of time in exchange of consideration. To assess whether as contract conveys the right to control
the use of an identified asset, the Company assesses whether: (i) the contract involves the use of an identified asset (ii) the Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset
through the period of the lease and (iii) the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset and a corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term of
twelve months or less (short term leases) and low value leases. For these short-term and low value leases, the Company recognizes the lease payments as an operating expenses on a straight line basis
over the term of the lease.

The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease plus
any initial direct costs less any lease incentives. They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the
commencement date on straight line basis over the shorter of the lease term and useful life of the underlying assets.

As alessor
Lease for which the Company is a lessor is classified as finance or operating lease. Whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee, the contract is
classified as a finance lease. All other leases are classified as operating leases. For operating leases, rental income is recognized on straight line basis over the term of the relevant lease.



(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)
(viii)

(ix)

Revenue Recognition

The Company earns revenue primarily from providing end-to-end technology solutions covering the entire gamut of Application Services, Testing Center of Excellence, Infrastructure Services, Integrated
Security Response Center, Analytics as a Service and IT Enabled Services (e-Assessments and e-Auctions) for BFSI segment.

Revenue is recognised upon transfer of control of promised products or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration which the Company expects to receive in exchange for those
products or services.

Revenue from time and material and job contracts is recognised on output basis measured by units delivered, efforts expended, number of transactions processed, etc.

Revenue related to fixed price maintenance and support services contracts where the Company is standing ready to provide services is recognised based on time elapsed mode and revenue is straight lined
over the period of performance.

In respect of other fixed-price contracts, revenue is recognised using percentage-of-completion method (‘POC method’) of accounting with contract costs incurred determining the degree of completion of the
performance obligation. The contract costs used in computing the revenues include cost of fulfilling warranty obligations.

Revenue from Online examination services are recognized on the basis of exams conducted and in cases where there are multiple performance obligation, revenue is recognised using expected cost plus a
margin approach where company forecast its expected costs of satisfying a performance obligation and then add an appropriate margin for that good or service.

Revenue from the sale of distinct third party hardware is recognised at the point in time when control is transferred to the customer.

The solutions offered by the Company may include supply of third-party equipment or software. In such cases, revenue for supply of such third party products are recorded at gross or net basis depending on
whether the Company is acting as the principal or as an agent of the customer. The Company recognises revenue in the gross amount of consideration when it is acting as a principal and at net amount of
consideration when it is acting as an agent.

Insurance claims are accounted on accrual basis when the claims become due and receivable.

Revenue is measured based on the transaction price, which is the consideration, adjusted for volume discounts, service level credits, performance bonuses, price concessions and incentives, if any, as
specified in the contract with the customer. Revenue also excludes taxes collected from customers

Contract assets are recognised when there is excess of revenue earned over billings on contracts. Contract assets are classified as unbilled receivables (only act of invoicing is pending) when there is
unconditional right to receive cash, and only passage of time is required, as per contractual terms

Unearned and deferred revenue (“contract liability”) is recognised when there is billings in excess of revenues.

In accordance with Ind AS 37, the Company recognises an onerous contract provision when the unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations under a contract exceed the economic benefits to be received

Contracts are subject to modification to account for changes in contract specification and requirements. The Company reviews modification to contract in conjunction with the original contract, basis which the
transaction price could be allocated to a new performance obligation, or transaction price of an existing obligation could undergo a change. In the event transaction price is revised for existing obligation, a
cumulative adjustment is accounted for.

The Company disaggregates revenue from contracts with customers by contract type, geography and nature of services.

Use of significant judgements in revenue recognition

The Company’s contracts with customers could include promises to transfer multiple products and services to a customer. The Company assesses the products / services promised in a contract and identifies
distinct performance obligations in the contract. Identification of distinct performance obligation involves judgement to determine the deliverables and the ability of the customer to benefit independently from
such deliverables.

Judgement is also required to determine the transaction price for the contract. The transaction price could be either a fixed amount of customer consideration or variable consideration with elements such as
volume discounts, service level credits, performance bonuses, price concessions and incentives. The transaction price is also adjusted for the effects of the time value of money if the contract includes a
significant financing component. Any consideration payable to the customer is adjusted to the transaction price, unless it is a payment for a distinct product or service from the customer. The estimated
amount of variable consideration is adjusted in the transaction price only to the extent that it is highly probable that a significant reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur and is
reassessed at the end of each reporting period. The Company allocates the elements of variable considerations to all the performance obligations of the contract unless there is observable evidence that they
pertain to one or more distinct performance obligations.



k)

The Company uses judgement to determine an appropriate standalone selling price for a performance obligation. The Company allocates the transaction price to each performance obligation on the basis of
the relative standalone selling price of each distinct product or service promised in the contract. Where standalone selling price is not observable, the Company uses the expected cost plus margin approach
to allocate the transaction price to each distinct performance obligation.

The Company exercises judgement in determining whether the performance obligation is satisfied at a point in time or over a period of time. The Company considers indicators such as how customer
consumes benefits as services are rendered or who controls the asset as it is being created or existence of enforceable right to payment for performance to date and alternate use of such product or service,
transfer of significant risks and rewards to the customer, acceptance of delivery by the customer, etc.

Revenue for fixed-price contract is recognised using percentage-of-completion method. The Company uses judgement to estimate the future cost-to-completion of the contracts which is used to determine the
degree of completion of the performance obligation

Contract fulfilment costs are generally expensed as incurred except for certain software licence costs which meet the criteria for capitalisation. The assessment of this criteria requires the application of
judgement, in particular when considering if costs generate or enhance resources to be used to satisfy future performance obligations and whether costs are expected to be recovered.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost of acquisition less accumulated depreciation/amortization and impairment loss, if any. The cost is inclusive of freight, installation cost, duties, taxes, borrowing
cost and other incidental expenses for bringing the asset to its working conditions for its intended use but net of Input Tax Credits, wherever input credit is claimed.

When significant parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced in intervals, the Company recognizes such parts as separate component of assets with specific useful lives and provides
depreciation over their useful life.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the
Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

All other repair and maintenance costs are recognized in Income statement as incurred.

Depreciation

Depreciation on tangible fixed assets is provided on Straight Line Method as per the useful life and in the manner prescribed in Schedule Il to Companies Act, 2013. Fixed Furniture and fixtures, Electrical
installation and Office equipment including civil improvements at lease hold premises are depreciated over the lease period.

The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at each year end, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.
Depreciation on assets purchased / disposed off during the year is provided on pro rata basis with reference to the date of additions / deductions.

The gain or loss arising on disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amounts of the asset and is
recognised in profit or loss.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets comprising of software are recorded at acquisition cost and are amortized over the estimated useful life on straight line basis. Software products/ licenses purchased/ acquired for internal use
of the Company which have expected longer life are capitalised and depreciated over a period of 3 years on Straight Line Method.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the statement
of profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.Costs associated with maintaining software programs are recognised as an expense as and when incurred.

Development costs

Development expenditures on an individual project are recognised as an intangible asset when the Company can demonstrate:

- The technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that the asset will be available for use

- Its intention to complete and its ability and intention to use the asset

- How the asset will generate future economic benefits

- The ability to measure reliably the expenditure during development

- Availability of adequate, financial and other resources to complete the development and to use / sell the intangible asset

- Adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the development and to use or sell the software are available

The costs which can be capitalized include the cost of material, direct labour, overhead costs that are directly attributable for preparing the asset for its intended use.

Following initial recognition of the development expenditure as an asset, the asset is carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation of the asset begins
when development is complete and the asset is available for use. It is amortised over the period of expected future benefit. Amortisation expense is recognised in the statement of profit and loss unless such
expenditure forms part of carrying value of another asset.

During the period of development, the asset is tested for impairment annually.



Impairment of tangible and intangible assets excluding goodwill

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for impairment, or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that they might be
impaired. Other assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by
which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets (cash-
generating units). Non-financial assets that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at the end of each reporting period.

Inventory :
The Inventory is valued at cost or net realizable value whichever is lower.

Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of cash flows

Cash and Cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held at call with financial institutions, other short-term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignifican risk of changes in value. These do not include bank balances earmarked/restricted for specific purposes.

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit for the period is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash
receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash flows. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated.

Foreign currency transactions and translation

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of the Company are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates (‘the functional currency’). The financial
statements are presented in Indian currency (INR), which is the Company’s functional and presentation currency.

Transactions and translations

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the period end exchange rates are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined. Translation differences on assets and
liabilities carried at fair value are reported as part of the fair value gain or loss. For example, translation differences on non-monetary assets and liabilities such as equity instruments held at fair value through
profit or loss are recognised in profit or loss as part of the fair value gain or loss and translation differences on non-monetary assets such as equity investments classified as FVOCI are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

Effective April 1, 2018 the company has adopted Appendix B to Ind AS 21- Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration which clarifies the date of transaction for the purpose of determining the
exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the related asset, expense or income when an entity has received or paid advance consideration in a foreign currency. The effect on account of adoption of this
amendment was insignificant.

Employee benefits

Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service are the
amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. Short term employee benefits are recognised in statement of profit and loss in the period in which the related service is rendered. The liabilities are
presented as current employee benefit obligations in the balance sheet.

Other long-term employee benefit obligations

The liabilities for earned leave are not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service. They are therefore measured as the present
value of expected future payments to be made in respect of services provided by employees up to the end of the reporting period using the projected unit credit method. The benefits are discounted using the
market yields at the end of the reporting period that have terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation. Remeasurements as a result of experience adjustments and changes in actuarial
assumptions are recognised in profit or loss. The obligations are presented as current liabilities in the balance sheet since the company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement for at least
twelve months after the reporting period, regardless of when the actual settlement is expected to occur.
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Post-employment obligations

The Company operates the following post-employment schemes:

(a) Defined benefit plans such as gratuity, and

(b) Defined contribution plans such as provident fund and superannuation

Gratuity obligations

The Company has maintained a Group Gratuity Cum Life Assurance Scheme with the Life Insurance Corporation of India (LIC) towards which it annually contributes a sum determined by LIC. The liability or
asset recognised in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit gratuity plans is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair value of plan assets. The
defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by actuaries using the projected unit credit method. The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future cash
outflows by reference to yields on government securities at the end of the reporting period that have terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation. The net interest cost is calculated by applying
the discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets. This cost is included in employee benefit expense in the statement of profit and loss.

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in the period in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive income. They
are included in retained earnings in the statement of changes in equity and in the balance sheet.
Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan amendments or curtailments are recognised immediately in profit or loss as past service cost.

Defined contribution plans

Superannuation

Superannuation benefit for employees designated as managers and above is covered by Group Superannuation Scheme with the Life Insurance Corporation of India towards which it annually contributes a
sum based on a specified percentage of each covered employees’ salary. The contribution paid for the year on the Group Superannuation Scheme is charged to revenue.

Provident Fund

W.e.f. 1st August 2010, the Company had transferred the corpus balance of the NSEIT Ltd. Employees Provident Fund Trust to the Regional Provident Fund Office, Kandivali, Mumbai. As per the applicable
rule the Company contributes 12% of the employee’s basic salary to the said recognized provident fund and the same is charged to revenue.

Bonus plans
The Company recognises a liability and an expense for bonuses. The Company recognises a provision where contractually obliged or where there is a past practice that has created a constructive obligation.

Income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period’s taxable income based on the applicable income tax rate adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities
attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax losses, if any.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns
with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements.
Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period and are expected to apply when the related deferred income
tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and are recognised only if it is probable that future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those temporary
differences and losses.

Deferred tax assets are not recognised for temporary differences between the carrying amount and tax bases of investments in subsidiaries, associates and interest in joint arrangements where it is not
probable that the differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will not be available against which the temporary difference can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority. Current
tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Dividend distribution tax paid on the dividends is recognised consistently with the presentation of the transaction that creates the income tax consequence. Dividend distribution tax is charged to statement of
profit and loss if the dividend itself is charged to statement of profit and loss. If the dividend is recognised in equity, the presentation of dividend distribution tax is recognised in equity.



s)

v)

Contributed equity
Equity shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Provisions, Contingent liabilities and Contingent assets

A provision is recognised when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past event and it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, in respect of which reliable
estimate can be made. Provisions (excluding retirement benefits) are discounted to its present value and are determined based on best estimate required to settle the obligation at the balance sheet date.
These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates. Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the financial statements. Contingent liabilities are not disclosed in
case the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote. A contingent asset is neither recognised nor disclosed in the financial statements.

Trade and other payables
These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to the end of financial period which are unpaid. Trade and other payables are presented as current liabilities unless
payment is not due within 12 months after the reporting period. They are recognised initially at their fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification.

An asset is treated as current when it is:

- Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

- Held primarily for the purpose of trading

- Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

- Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period
All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:

- It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

- Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading

- Itis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

- There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period

all other liabilities as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

Dividends

Final dividends on shares are recorded as a liability on the date of approval by shareholders and interim dividends are recorded as a liability on the date of declaration by the Company’s Board of Directors.

Trade receivables
Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less provision for impairment.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet where there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a
net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the
event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company or the counterparty.
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aa)

ab)

ac)

Earnings per share

Basic and diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit attributable to equity shareholders for the year, by weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.
(i) Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:

« the profit attributable to owners of the company

* by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year, adjusted for bonus elements in equity shares issued during the year.

(ii) Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per share to take into account:

« the after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive potential equity shares, and

« the weighted average number of additional equity shares that would have been outstanding assuming the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Critical accounting estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements requires the use of accounting estimates which, by definition, will seldom equal the actual results. This note provides an overview of the areas that involved a higher
degree of judgment or complexity, and of items which are more likely to be materially adjusted due to estimates and assumptions turning out to be different than those originally assessed. Detailed information
about each of these estimates and judgments is included in relevant notes together with information about the basis of calculation for each affected line item in the financial statements.

The areas involving critical estimates or judgements are:

Use of significant judgements in revenue recognition

Estimation of useful life of tangible asset and intangible asset (Note 2)

Recognition of deferred tax assets [Note 15(D)]

Estimation of defined benefit obligation (Note 24)

Estimation of contingent liabilities and commitments (Note 26 & 27)

Impairment of Assets (Note 1 (m))

Recoverability of Trade Receivables [Note 37 (C)]

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated. They are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that may have a financial impact on the
Company and that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

Recent Pronouncement:

On March 24, 2021, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") through a notification, amended Schedule IIl of the Companies Act, 2013. The amendments revise Division I, Il and Ill of Schedule IIl and are
applicable from April 1, 2021. Key amendments relating to Division Il which relate to companies whose financial statements are required to comply with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015
are:

Balance Sheet:

* Lease liabilities should be separately disclosed under the head ‘financial liabilities’, duly distinguished as current or non-current.

+ Certain additional disclosures in the statement of changes in equity such as changes in equity share capital due to prior period errors and restated balances at the beginning of the current reporting period.
« Specified format for disclosure of shareholding of promoters.

« Specified format for ageing schedule of trade receivables, trade payables, capital work-in-progress and intangible asset under development.

* If a company has not used funds for the specific purpose for which it was borrowed from banks and financial institutions, then disclosure of details of where it has been used.

+ Specific disclosure under ‘additional regulatory requirement’ such as compliance with approved schemes of arrangements, compliance with number of layers of companies, title deeds of immovable
property not held in name of company, loans and advances to promoters, directors, key managerial personnel (KMP) and related parties, details of benami property held etc.

Statement of profit and loss:

« Additional disclosures relating to Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR), undisclosed income and crypto or virtual currency specified under the head ‘additional information’ in the notes forming part of the
standalone financial statements.

The amendments are extensive and the Company will evaluate the same to give effect to them as required by law.

Rounding of amounts
All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest lakhs as per the requirement of Schedule Ill, unless otherwise stated.



2: Property, Plant & Equipment and Intangible Assets

(Rs in Lakhs )

GROSS CARRYING AMOUNT ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION NET CARRYING AMOUNT
Sr No. Category As on . . As on As on . As on As on As on
1-Apr-20 Additions Deductions 31-Mar-21 1-Apr-20 For the year Deductions 31-Mar-21 31-Mar-21 1-Apr-20
A [Tangible Assets
| |Computer Hardware and 2,131.67 46.98 443 2,174.22 1,575.04 300.19 4.41 1,870.81 303.40 556.63
Servers & Networks
2 |Office Equipment 631.64 117.31 5.40 743.54 527.15 59.61 5.40 581.36 162.18 104.49
3 |Furniture & Fixtures 288.00 14.79 11.25 291.54 272.86 10.23 6.55 276.53 15.00 15.14
4 |Building - Civil Work 105.53 103.46 - 208.99 105.53 34.39 - 139.92 69.07 0.00
3,156.83 282.54 21.08 3,418.29 2,480.58 404.42 16.37 2,868.63 549.66 676.25
B |Intangible Assets
1 |Computer Software * 1,585.00 609.28 - 2,194.29 976.02 333.53 - 1,309.55 884.74 608.99
2 |Software copyrights 259.06 - - 259.06 259.06 - - 259.06 0.00 0.00
1,844.07 609.28 - 2,453.35 1,235.08 333.53 - 1,568.61 884.74 608.99
GRAND TOTAL 5,000.90 891.82 21.08 5,871.64 3,715.66 737.95 16.37 4,437.24 1,434.40 1,285.24
PREVIOUS YEAR 4,306.60 785.69 91.39 5,000.90 3,252.16 554.87 91.37 3,715.66 1,285.24
GROSS CARRYING AMOUNT ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION NET CARRYING AMOUNT
Sr No. Category As on . . As on As on . As on As on As on
1-Apr-19 Additions Deductions 31-Mar-20 1-Apr-19 For the year Deductions 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-20 1-Apr-19
A [Tangible Assets
j  |Computer Hardware and 1,988.61 186.72 43.65 2,131.67 1,274.34 344.36 43.65 1,575.04 556.63 714.27
Servers & Networks
2 |Office Equipment 621.62 47.96 37.95 631.64 534.71 30.37 37.93 527.15 104.49 86.91
3 |Furniture & Fixtures 286.33 11.45 9.79 288.00 277.92 4.72 9.79 272.86 15.14 8.41
4 |Building - Civil Work 105.53 105.53 105.53 105.53 0.00 0.00
3,002.09 246.13 91.39 3,156.83 2,192.50 379.45 91.37 2,480.58 676.25 809.59
B |Intangible Assets
1 |Computer Software 1,045.45 539.56 1,585.00 800.60 175.41 976.02 608.99 244.84
2 |Software copyrights 259.06 259.06 259.06 259.06 0.00 0.00
1,304.51 539.56 - 1,844.07 1,059.67 175.41 - 1,235.08 608.99 244.84
GRAND TOTAL 4,306.60 785.69 91.39 5,000.90 3,252.16 554.87 91.37 3,715.66 1,285.24 1,054.44
PREVIOUS YEAR 3,927.32 585.07 205.80 4,306.60 2,983.28 472.73 203.85 3,252.16 1,054.44

* During the year, the Company has carried out development / enhancement of various software for rendering its existing business services. Since these software will generate future economic benefits, the company has capitalised the
development/ enhancement cost of Rs. 490.71 Lakhs. The estimated useful life of these software is 3 years and are amortised over the said period.
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2.2

Capital Work In Progress

(Rs in Lakhs )

Particulars 31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20
Opening Balance - Carrying amount 102.25 8.10
Additions 186.40 389.13
Disposals - -
Transfers 288.65 294.98
Closing Balance - Carrying amount - 102.25
Intangible assets under development -

Particulars 31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20
Opening Balance - Carrying amount 118.51 -
Additions 531.57 609.21
Disposals - N
Transfers 603.17 490.71
Closing Balance - Carrying amount 46.91 118.51

*As at 31.03.2021, a sum of Rs. 46.91 Lakhs (previous year Rs. 118.51 Lakhs) has been shown as Intangible Assets Under
Development. These are towards various software under development which will enhance the existing business services as well
offering new products in the market.



2.3 : Right to Use
Notes : Right to Use

Following are the changes in the carrying value of right of use assets:

Category of ROU asset

Particulars As at 31 March 2021 As at 31 March 2020
Building Building

Balance as at biginning 1,898.51 -
Reclassified on account of adoption of Ind AS 116 - -
Additions 786.20 2,851.26
Deletion (146.20) (23.87)
Depreciation (1,166.66) (928.88)
Balance as at end 1,371.85 1,898.51

The aggregate depreciation expense on ROU assets is included under depreciation and amortization expense in the statement of Profit and Loss.

The following is the break-up of current and non-current lease liabilities.

Particulars As at 31 March 2021 As at 31 March 2020
Current lease liabilities 917.13 989.52
Non-current lease liabilitie 527.49 976.30
Total 1,444.62 1,965.82

The following is the movement in lease liabilities during the year ended 31 March 2021:

Particulars As at 31 March 2021 As at 31 March 2020
Balance at the beginning 1,965.82 -
Additions 786.20 2,851.26
Finance cost accrued during the year 156.24 190.36
Deletions (157.96) (24.88)
Payment / accrual of lease liabilities (1,242.87) (1,050.92)
Extinguishment of lease liabilities (refer note 43) (62.82) -
Balance at the end 1,444.61 1,965.82

The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of lease liabilities on an undiscounted basis:

Particulars As at 31 March 2021 As at 31 March 2020
Less than one year 1,147.91 1,137.83
One to five years 388.91 1,017.83
More than five years - -
Total 1,536.82 2,155.65

The Company does not face a significant liquidity risk with regard to its lease liabilities as the current assets are sufficient to meet the obligations

related to lease liabilities as and when they fall due.

Rental expense recorded for short-term leases was Rs 42.85 Lakhs for the year ended 31 March 2021 (Rs 217.48 Lakhs for the year ended 31 March

2020)

The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of lease liabilities as at 31 March 2021 on an undiscounted basis:

Particulars

As at
31 March 2021

As at
31 March 2020

Less than one year

10.95

56.72




Investments

Investments in subsidiaries

Investment in Equity Instrument (fully paid up)

Unquoted Equity Instrument (at cost)

NSEIT(US) Inc. (refer Note 41)

[1000000 Equity share of $ 1 each fully paid]
Ownership interest 100% (previous year 100%)

Aujas Cybersecurity Limited

(Formerly known as Aujas Networks Limited /Aujas Networks Private Limited)

(Refer Note 32)

[ 2010 (previous year 2010) Series A Equity shares of Rs. 1 each fully paid ]

[ 1000 (previous year 1000) Series B Equity shares of Rs. 1 each fully paid ]

[ 26,73,34,100 (previous year 25,93,41,400) Equity shares of Rs. 1 each fully paid ]
Ownership interest 99.29% (previous year 96.84%)

"Series A Equity Shares" of face value of Rs 1/- carry differential voting rights which entitle the
owner thereof to 57,732 votes for such equity share

"Series B Equity Shares" of face value of Rs 1/- carry differential voting rights which entitle the
owner thereof to 77,121 votes for such equity share

Unquoted Equity instrument
NSE Foundation *

[ 1000 Equity share of Rs. 10 each fully paid ]

Investments in Mutual Funds

Unquoted Investment in Mutual funds at FVPL (Refer Note 34)

* NSE Foundation is incorporated under section 8 of the Companies Act, 2013 and intends to
apply its profits, if any, or other income in promoting its objects and any payment of dividend to

its members is prohibited.

Other Financial Assets

Non-Current Bank Balances

Fixed deposits with maturity for more than 12 months
Earmarked fixed deposits with maturity for more than 12 months *

Loans

Security deposit (unsecured, considered good)

Loans to related parties (Subsidiaries)
(unsecured, considered good)

NSEIT(US) Inc. ( USD 9,55,000) (previous year USD 12,75,528) (refer note 41)

Aujas Cybersecurity Limited
Total

Non-current Current
31.03.2021 31.03.2020 31.03.2021 31.03.2020
(Rs in Lakhs ) (Rs in Lakhs )
533.69 533.69 - -
0.06 0.06 - -
0.03 0.03 - -
9,420.21 8,849.90 - -
0.00 0.00 - -
- - 2,188.06 5,321.96
9,954.00 9,383.69 2,188.06 5,321.96
Non-current Current
31.03.2021 31.03.2020 31.03.2021 31.03.2020
(Rs in Lakhs ) (Rs in Lakhs )
31.43 - - -
2,026.52 236.05 - -
2,057.95 236.05 - -
- - 556.87 638.56
701.93 961.49 - -
1,200.00 1,200.00 - -
1,901.93 2,161.49 556.87 638.56




6.1

Others

Interest accrued on Bank deposits

Interest accrued on Loans (unsecured, considered good)
Other advances (unsecured, considered good)

Total

* Earmarked deposits are restricted. These deposits are earmarked against forward contracts /

performance guarantee

Other assets

Advance to Creditors (unsecured, considered good)

Advance to Related Party (unsecured, considered good) (refer note 25)
Advance to Staff for Expenses (unsecured, considered good)

Capital Advance

Salary Advance (unsecured, considered good)

Prepaid expenses

Deferred Transaction Cost

Trade receivables
Particulars

Trade Receivables
Less : Loss Allowances

Breakup of security details

Trade Receivables considered good -Secured

Trade Receivables considered good -Unsecured

Trade Receivables which have significant increase in credit risk
Trade Receivables credit impaired (Refer note 6.1)

Total

Loss allowances

Total Trade Receivables

3.26 0.39 30.50 68.60

- - - 104.49

- - 0.66 -

3.26 0.39 31.16 173.09
3,963.14 2,397.93 31.16 173.09
Non-current Current
31.03.2021 31.03.2020 31.03.2021 31.03.2020
(Rs in Lakhs ) (Rs in Lakhs )

- - 157.14 312.27

- - - 57.70

- - 88.57 332.72

8.60 13.81 - -

- - - 1.84
61.85 15.71 301.49 118.58
46.56 61.12 14.55 15.91

117.01 90.64 561.76 839.02

Current
31.03.2021 31.03.2020
(Rs in Lakhs )

8,601.76 5,768.50
(742.37) (485.36)
7,859.39 5,283.14
7,859.39 5,283.14
742.37 485.36
8,601.76 5,768.50
(742.37) (485.36)
7,859.39 5,283.14

This includes an amount of Rs.583.00 Lakhs for Provision for Doubtful Debts (Previous year Rs. 408.94 Lakhs) and Rs.159.38 Lakhs for Provison for Expected Credit Loss (Previous Year Rs.

76.42 Lakhs).

Unbilled Receivables

Unbilled Receivables

Non-current

Current

31.03.2021 31.03.2020

31.03.2021 31.03.2020
(Rs in Lakhs )

2,139.47 587.99
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a Cash and Cash equivalents

Balances with banks
- In Current Accounts
- In Flexi Deposits

Fund in transit

Cash on hand

b Bank Balances other than Cash and cash equivalents
Fixed deposits
- with original maturity for more than 3 months but less than 12 months

- with original maturity for more than 12 months

Earmarked fixed / flexi deposits *

- with original maturity for more than 3 months but less than 12 months
- with original maturity for more than 12 months

Escrow Account with ICICI Bank **

Total -

* Earmarked deposits are restricted. These deposits are earmarked against forward contracts / performance guarantee

** Amount of previous year represents part of the deferred consideration payable towards investment in subsidiary (Aujas Cybersecurity Limited ).

A Equity Share Capital

Authorised
15,000,000 (Previous Year 15,000,000 ) Equity Shares of Rs 10 each.

Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up

Non-current Current
31.03.2021 31.03.2020 31.03.2021 31.03.2020
- (Rs in Lakhs )
284.77 311.39
2,052.75 3,009.47
9.10 -
- 0.13
- - 2,346.63 3,320.99
- 674.40
3,684.94 1,880.97
- 371.57
- - 3,684.94 2,926.94
- 6,031.57 6,247.93
31.03.2021 31.03.2020
(Rs in Lakhs )
1,500.00 1,500.00
1,000.00 1,000.00

10,000,010 (Previous year 10,000,010) Equity shares of Rs.10 each fully paid up.

There is no movement either in the number of shares or in amount between previous year and current year.

Terms and rights attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10/- per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. The dividend proposed by the
Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled
to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

The Board of Directors in the meeting on April 21 2021 , have proposed a final dividend of Rs. 150.00 lakhs for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2021. The proposal is subject to approval
of the shareholders at the ensuing annual general meeting to be held and if approved would result in a cash outflow of approximately Rs. 150.00 lakhs.

The Board of Directors, in their meeting on June 20,2020, proposed a final dividend of Rs 1 /- per equity share which has been approved by the shareholders at the Annual General Meeting

held on July 15, 2020. The total dividend paid during the year ended March 31, 2021 amounts to Rs.100 Lakhs.
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Details of shareholders holding more than 5% equity shares in the Company

31.03.2021 31.03.2020
No. % holding No. % holding
Equity shares of Rs 10/- each fully paid 1,00,00,010 100% 1,00,00,010 100%
NSE Investments Limited (Holding Company)
Preference Share Capital 31.03.2021 31.03.2020
(Rs in Lakhs )
Authorised, Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Preference capital 10,000.00 10,000.00
Details of shareholders holding more than 5% cumulative redeemable preference shares in the Company
31.03.2021 31.03.2020
No. % holding No. % holding
Cumulative redeemable preference shares of Rs. 100 each 1,00,00,000 100% 1,00,00,000 100%
NSE Investments Limited (Holding Company)
10,000,000 (March 31, 2020: 10,000,000) cumulative redeemable preference shares of Rs. 100 each 10,000.00 10,000.00
Other Equity 31.03.2021 31.03.2020
(Rs in Lakhs )
General reserve
As per last balance sheet 5,436.06 5,436.06
Add : Transferred from surplus balance in the Statement of Profit & Loss - -
5,436.06 5,436.06

Retained Earnings - Surplus/(deficit) in the statement of profit and loss
As per last balance sheet 11,295.47 9,652.90
Add : Profit / (Loss) for the year 2,275.81 1,833.74
Add : Other Comprehensive Income (88.17) (70.61)
Less : Equity Dividend Paid 100.00 100.00
Less : Tax on equity dividend paid - 20.56

13,383.12 11,295.47
Total Other Equity 18,819.18 16,731.53
Borrowings
Unsecured
7%, Seven Years, Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares (CRPS) 10,000.00 10,000.00

10,000,000 (Previous year 10,000,000 ) Preference shares of Rs.100 each fully paid up

Terms and conditions for issue of Preference shares

Rate of Dividend : Dividend rate will be 7% p.a. (on the face value) which will remain fixed over the tenure of the CRPS

Cumulative: The CRPS will carry Cumulative Dividend Right.

Priority with Respect to payment of dividend or repayment of captial : The CRPS will carry a preferential right vis-a-vis equity shares of

the Company with respect to the payment of dividend and repayment of capital during winding up.
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15

(A)

Tenure & conversion / Redemptions Terms : The amount subscribed/paid on each CRPS shall be redeemed after 7 years from the date of

allotment of the CRPS. Each CRPS shall be redeemed at the same price as received at the time of subscription i.e. Face Value.

Conversion: CRPS shall not be convertible into equity shares

Voting rights : CRPS shall carry voting rights as per the provisions of Section 47(2) of the Companies Act 2013
Redemption: All the CRPS shall be redeemed at the end of 7 years from the date of allotment i.e. 20th March 2019.

Trade Payables

Non-current Current
31.03.2021 31.03.2020 31.03.2021 31.03.2020
(Rs in Lakhs ) (Rs in Lakhs )
Trade payables - - 2,295.34 2,053.10
Trade payables to MSME (Refer note 28) - - 19.34 33.40
Trade payables to related Party (refer note 25) - - 177.04 114.04
- - 2,491.72 2,200.54
Other Financial Liabilities
Creditors for Investment - - - 371.57
Creditors for Capital Expenditure - - 3.75 7.66
Lease Liablility 527.49 976.30 917.12 989.53
Dividend payable on preference shares 700.00 700.00
527.49 976.30 1,620.87 2,068.75
Provisions
Non-current Current
31.03.2021 31.03.2020 31.03.2021 31.03.2020
(Rs in Lakhs ) (Rs in Lakhs )
Employee benefits obligation
Provision for Gratuity (Ref. Note 24) - 97.69 103.77 169.21
Provision for Leave Encashment (Ref. Note 24) 197.99 114.98 75.26 53.74
Provision for variable pay and incentives 65.38 31.43 673.26 964.40
Total 263.37 244.10 852.29 1,187.35
Income Taxes
The major components of income tax expense are as follows:
Profit or loss section
Particulars 31.03.2021 . 31.03.2020
(Rs in Lakhs )
Current taxes 1,022.00 941.00
Short / Excess Tax for earlier years 14.82 39.78
Deferred taxes movement of Asset 42.10 (50.73)
Deferred taxes movement of Liability - -
Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit or loss 1,078.92 930.05




(B)

OCl section
Deferred tax related to items recognised in OCI during in the year:

Particulars 31.03.2021 . 31.03.2020
(Rs in Lakhs )
Re-measurement of the defined benefit liability / asset 29.65 23.75
Equity instruments through Other Comprehensive Income - -
Income tax charged to Other Comprehensive Income 29.65 23.75
Reconciliation of the Income Tax provision to the amount computed by applying the statutory income tax rate to the income before income taxes
Particulars Year ended Year ended
31.03.2021 31.03.2020
Profit before income tax expense 3,354.73 2,763.79
Tax at the Indian Tax Rate of 25.168% (PY 25.168% ) 25.168% 25.168%
Computed expected tax expenses 844.32 695.59
Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible (taxable) in calculating taxable income
- Disallowance due to contribution to NSE Foundation and 80G benefit (net) 18.19 8.95
- Expenditure not allowable 16.22 -
- Dividend & other cost for issue of Preference shares 180.18 180.55
- Short / (excess) Tax for earlier years 14.82 39.78
- Other Impacts 5.18 5.17
Current Income Tax for the year 1,078.92 930.05
The movement in the current income tax asset/ (liability) is as follows:
. 31.03.2021 | 31.03.2020
Particulars -
(Rs in Lakhs )
Net current income tax asset/(liability) at the beginning 661.22 (148.43)
Income tax Paid / (Refund) 1,190.79 1,790.43
Current income tax expense (1,022.00) (941.00)
Short / Excess Tax for earlier years (14.82) (39.78)
Net current income tax asset/(liability) at the end 815.19 661.22
The tax effects of significant temporary differences that resulted in deferred income tax assets and liabilities are as follows:
i 31.03.2021 | 31.03.2020
Particulars
(Rs in Lakhs )
Deferred income tax assets
Impact of difference between depreciation /amortization charged for the financial reporting and tax depreciation 97.48 70.64
Impact of difference arising on account of impairment of intangible asset and tax depreciation, 1.51 2.02
Impact of Gratuity , Leave Encashment & Perfomance Bonus disallow u/s 43 B 164.90 276.13
Imapct of Provision for Doubtful Debts 186.84 122.16
Impact on account of Lease obligation 18.31 17.19
Total deferred income tax assets 469.05 488.14
Deferred income tax liabilities
Impact of fair value on Investment in Mutual Funds 49.22 55.86
Total deferred income tax liabilities 49.22 55.86
Deferred income tax asset after set off 419.83 432.28




(B)

Movement in Deferred Tax Assets

Depreciation on

Amortization on

Provision for Gratuity,

Disallowance u/s 40

Provision for Doubtful

Actuarial Gain / (Loss)
through OCI for

Particulars Tangible Assets Intangible Assets Le::;frr::::::::t & | (a)ia) N:fr]rg;ductlon Debts Gratuity & Leave Total
Y Encashment

At 1st April 2019 79.15 3.1 161.41 - 113.83 21.38 378.88
Charged / (Credited)

- to profit or loss (8.51) (1.09) 69.59 17.19 8.33 85.52
- to other comprehensive income - - 23.75 23.75
- to retained earning - -

At 31st March 2020 70.64 2.02 231.00 17.19 122.16 45.13 488.14
Charged / (Credited)

- to profit or loss 26.84 (0.51) (140.88) 1.12 64.68 (48.75)
- to other comprehensive income - 29.65 29.65
- to retained earning - -

At 31st March 2021 97.48 1.51 90.12 18.31 186.84 74.78 469.05

(F) Movement in Deferred Tax Liabilities
N N Financial Assets at
. Depreciation on Amortization on .
Particulars . . Fair Value through Total
Tangible Assets Intangible Assets profit and Loss

At 1st April 2019 - - 21.07 21.07

Charged / (Credited)

- to profit or loss - - 34.79 34.79

- to other comprehensive income - -

- to retained earning - -
At 31st March 2020 - - 55.86 55.86

Charged / (Credited)

- to profit or loss - - (6.64) (6.64)

- to other comprehensive income - -

- to retained earning - -
At 31st March 2021 - - 49.22 49.22
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Income Tax Liabilities / Assets

Income Tax Assets (net)
Income Tax Liabilities (net)

Other liabilities

Statutory dues payable
Advance received from customers
Income received in advance

Total

Revenue from operations

Operating revenues
Sale of Products :

- Software Products
- Traded Goods

Sale of Services :
- Software Product Revenues

- Application Development & Maintenance Services

- Infrastructure Management Services
- ITES - Assessment Services
- Customer Care Services

Total

Disaggregate revenue information

Non-current Current
31.03.2021 31.03.2020 31.03.2021 31.03.2020
(Rs in Lakhs ) (Rs in Lakhs )
912.87 701.58 - -
- - 97.68 40.36
912.87 701.58 97.68 40.36
Non-current Current
31.03.2021 31.03.2020 31.03.2021 31.03.2020
(Rs in Lakhs ) (Rs in Lakhs )
- - 1,013.03 555.70
- - 705.37 474.40
- - 197.30 23.29
- - 1,915.69 1,053.39
Year ended Year ended
31.03.2021 31.03.2020
(Rs in Lakhs )
13.62 2.05
72.54 37.08
86.16 39.13
719.67 420.57
7,826.01 7,580.20
4,345.72 3,444.65
12,048.27 15,192.73
511.26 612.96
25,450.92 27,251.10
25,537.09 27,290.23

The table below presents disaggregated revenues from contracts with customers for the year ended March 31, 2021 by contract-type .The Company believe that this disaggregation best

depicts how the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of our revenues and cashflows are affected by industry, market and other economic factors.

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31.03.2021 31.03.2020
Revenues by contract type
Fixed Price 19,676.39 22,915.48
Time & Materials 5,860.70 4,374.76
Total 25,537.09 27,290.23

Performance obligations and remaining performance obligations

The remaining performance obligation disclosure provides the aggregate amount of the transaction price yet to be recognized as at the end of the reporting period and an explanation as to
when the Company expects to recognize these amounts in revenue. Applying the practical expedient as given in Ind AS 115, the Company has not disclosed the remaining performance
obligation related disclosures for contracts where the revenue recognized corresponds directly with the value to the customer of the entity's performance completed to date, typically those
contracts where invoicing is on time and material basis. Remaining performance obligation estimates are subject to change and are affected by several factors, including terminations,
changes in the scope of contracts, periodic revalidations, adjustment for revenue that has not materialized and adjustments for currency.
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The aggregate value of performance obligations that are completely or partially unsatisfied as at March 31, 2021, other than those meeting the exclusion criteria mentioned above, is Rs.
894.61 Lakhs ( Pevious year Rs. 497.69 lakhs). The Company expects to recognize entire revenue within the next one year. This includes contracts that can be terminated for convenience

without a substantive penalty since, based on current assessment, the occurrence of the same is expected to be remote.

Revenue disaggregation by geography is as follows:

Geography Year ended Year ended
31.03.2021 31.03.2020
India 24,752.70 25,495.94
Singapore 65.29 71.76
Sweden 241.44 1,160.36
UK - 9.68
Brunei Darussalam 179.71 353.72
Muscat ( Oman ) - 11.48
us 297.95 187.29
Total 25,537.09 27,290.23

Information about major customers:

Company's significant revenue of 0.09 % (previous year 15.35%) being Rs. 22.35 lakhs (previous year Rs. 4189.73 lakhs) is derived from a customer under ITES-Assessement Services
Segment. Also, the Company's significant revenue of 35.11% (previous year 29.60%) is derived from a group of entities under common control, the total Operating Revenue from such
entities amounted to Rs. 8966.82 lakhs in FY 2020-21 ( End to End Solutions Rs. 8537.67 lakhs and ITES-Assessment Service Rs 429.15 lakhs) and Rs. 8076.72 lakhs in FY 2019-20 ( End
to End Solutions Rs. 7451.87 lakhs and ITES-Assessment Service Rs 624.85 lakhs). No other single customer contributed 10% or more to the Company's revenue for FY 2020-21 and FY

2019-20.
Changes in Contract assets (Unbilled receivable) are as follows: 31.03.2021 31.03.2020
Balance at the beginning of the year 587.99 1,884.53
Invoices raised during the year (587.99) (1,883.03)
Contract assets reversed for financial year 2019-20 - (1.50)
Revenue recognised during the year 2,139.47 587.99
Balance at the end of the year 2,139.47 587.99
Changes in advance received from customer are as follows: 31.03.2021 31.03.2020
Balance at the beginning of the year (474.40) (372.74)
Increase due to invoicing during the year, excluding amounts recognised as revenue during the year - -
Advance adjusted against trade receivables 474.40 372.74
Advance received during the year (705.37) (474.40)
Balance at the end of the year (705.37) (474.40)
Other income Year ended Year ended
31.03.2021 31.03.2020
(Rs in Lakhs )
Interest Income
- On Bank Deposits 299.69 340.72
- Interest Others 137.64 150.74
Net gain on sale of mutual funds mandatorily measured at fair value through Profit and Loss 105.26 97.88
Net gain on mutual funds mandatorily measured at fair value through Profit and Loss 137.52 177.38
Gain on foreign currency transaction (net) - 73.55
Excess provision written back (*) 826.28 -
Sundry Balance Written Back (net) 72.55 41.06
Extinguishment of lease liabilities due rent concession (refer note 43) 62.82 -
Miscellaneous Income 57.03 17.51
Total 1,698.80 898.83

(*) Includes a sum of Rs. 681.16 Lakhs, being amount of employee performance pay/ variable pay of earlier years no longer payable.
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Employee benefits expenses

Salaries and wages

Contribution to provident and other funds
Gratuity (Refer Note 24)

Contribution to Superannuation Scheme
Staff welfare expenses

Total

Finance Cost

Bank Charges

Interest on lease liability

Interest Expense (Others)

Dividend and other cost for issue of peference shares

Technical & Sub Contract Charges

Other expenses

Power and fuel

Rent

Insurance

Repairs to machinery

Rates and taxes, excluding taxes on income
Travelling expenses

Project Related Purchases

Professional Fees

Conveyance

Telephone & Internet Expenses

Security Services Charges

Fees & Subscription

Payment to Auditors (refer note below)
Directors' Sitting Fees

Office Expenses

Contribution to NSE Foundation towards CSR (Refer Note 40)
Loss on foreign currency transaction (net)
Bad Debts Written Off

Provision for Doubtful Debts / Expected Credit Loss model
Miscellaneous expenses

Total

Year ended Year ended
31.03.2021 31.03.2020
(Rs in Lakhs )
9,456.34 8,325.35
399.74 429.47
6.67 85.22
0.30 2.59
59.97 150.93
9,923.02 8,993.57
Year ended Year ended
31.03.2021 31.03.2020
(Rs in Lakhs )
28.96 28.72
156.24 190.36
8.06 16.57
715.91 717.40
909.17 953.05
2,519.74 3,000.12
238.76 316.49
2,219.96 2,380.55
177.51 165.18
76.52 95.10
22.90 36.74
300.18 808.67
2,795.90 4,406.47
287.09 180.44
223.63 252.34
294.55 299.26
155.79 187.90
682.57 763.78
65.02 43.21
69.75 55.50
267.72 191.64
72.27 71.11
32.89 -
- 103.35
257.01 94.48
384.61 542.57
8,624.62 10,994.78
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(b)
i)

Note :

Payment to Auditors
As Auditors :

Audit Fees

Limited Review

Tax Audit Fees

In Other Capacities
Taxation matters

GST Audit for earlier years
Certification matters
Out of pocket expenses
Total

In accordance with Indian Accounting Standard - 33 “Earning per Share

Earning per share

23.00 16.00
9.00 6.00
3.50 3.50
4.50 4.50

15.00 7.50
9.25 5.30
0.77 0.41

65.02 43.21

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31.03.2021 31.03.2020

Net Profit attributable to Shareholders
Profit after tax (Rs. In Lakhs) 2,275.81 1,833.74
Weighted Average number of equity shares issued ( in nos) 1,00,00,010 1,00,00,010
Basic earnings per share of ¥ 10/- each (in %)
Basic 22.76 18.34
Diluted 22.76 18.34

The Company does not have any outstanding dilutive potential equity shares. Consequently, the basic and diluted earning per share of the Company remain the same.

Disclosure Under Indian Accounting Standard 19 (Ind AS 19) On Employee Benéefits:

Defined Contribution Plan

The Company’s contribution towards Provident Fund and ESIC during the year ended March 31, 2021 amounting to Rs 399.74 Lakhs (31.03.2020 : Rs 429.47 Lakhs) and superannuation
fund during the year ended March 31, 2021 amounting to Rs. 0.30 Lakhs (31.03.2020: Rs. 2.59 Lakhs) has been charged to Statement of Profit & Loss.

Perfomance Pay & Leave Encashment

Provision for Employee Benefit : Performance Pay

(Rs in Lakhs )

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31.03.2021 31.03.2020
Carrying amount at the beginning of the year 995.84 792.27
Amounts paid during the year (521.66) (607.14)
Amounts written back during the year (681.16) (2.86)
Provisions made during the year 945.63 813.57
Carrying amount at the end of the year 738.65 995.84




if)

(c)

U]

(ii)

(iii)

Provision for Employee Benefit : Leave Encashment

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31.03.2021 31.03.2020
Carrying amount at the beginning of the year 168.72 136.15
Amounts paid during the year (65.28) (38.65)
Amounts transferred during the year (3.65) -
Provisions made during the year 173.47 71.22
Carrying amount at the end of the year 273.26 168.72

Gratuity: Company has charged the Gratuity expense to Profit & Loss account based on the actuarial valuation of gratuity liability at the end of the year. The projected unit credit method used

to show the position as at the reporting date is as under.

Assumptions:

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31.03.2021 31.03.2020
Discount Rate 6.48% 6.56%
Rate of Return on Plan Assets 6.48% 6.56%
Salary Escalation 8.00% 8.00%

Attrition Rate

For Service 4 years
and below 30.00%
p.a. and for service 5
years and above

For Service 4 years
and below 30.00%
p.a. and for service
5 years and above

3.00% p.a. 3.00% p.a.
Change in defined benefit obligation:
Particulars Year ended Year ended

31.03.2021 31.03.2020
Liability at the beginning of the year 647.92 459.32
Interest cost 42.50 34.86
Current Service Cost 105.65 75.98
Past Service Cost (116.49)
Liability transferred out (6.21) -
Benefits Paid (45.98) (14.60)
Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Obligations - Due to Change in Demographic Assumptions - -
Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Obligations - Due to Change in Financial Assumptions 7.96 75.25
Actuarial (Gains)/Losses - Due to Experience Adjustments 121.86 17.12
Liability at the end of the year 757.21 647.92
Fair value of plan assets:
Particulars Year ended Year ended

31.03.2021 31.03.2020
Fair Value of plan assets at the beginning of the year 381.02 337.47
Interest Income 25.00 25.61
Expected return on plan assets - -
Contributions 281.41 34.53
Transfer from other company - -
Benefits paid (45.98) (14.60)
Expected return on plan assets 11.99 (1.99)
Fair Value of plan assets at the end of the year 653.43 381.02




(iv)

v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

Amount recognised in the Balance Sheet

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31.03.2021 31.03.2020
Fair value of plan assets as at the end of the year 653.43 381.02
Liability as at the end of the year 757.21 647.92
Net (liability) / asset disclosed in the Balance Sheet (103.77) (266.90)
Net Interest Cost for Current Period
Particulars Year ended Year ended
31.03.2021 31.03.2020
Interest Cost 42.50 34.86
Interest Income 25.00 25.61
Net Interest Cost for Current Period 17.51 9.25
Expenses recognised in the Statement of Profit & Loss
Particulars Year ended Year ended
31.03.2021 31.03.2020
Current Service cost 105.65 75.98
Net Interest Cost 17.51 9.24
Past Service cost (116.49) -
Expenses recognised in the Statement of Profit & Loss 6.67 85.22
Expenses recognised in the Other Comprehensive Income
Particulars Year ended Year ended
31.03.2021 31.03.2020
Expected return on plan assets (11.99) 1.99
Actuarial (Gain) or Loss 129.81 92.36
Net (Income)/Expense for the Period Recognized in OCI 117.82 94.35
Balance Sheet Reconciliation
Particulars Year ended Year ended
31.03.2021 31.03.2020
Opening Net Liability 266.90 121.85
Expenses Recognized in Statement of Profit or Loss 6.67 85.22
Expenses Recognized in OCI 117.82 94.35
Net (Liability)/Asset Transfer out (6.21) -
Employers Contribution (281.41) (34.53)
Amount recognised in the Balance Sheet 103.77 266.90
Category of Assets
Particulars Year ended Year ended
31.03.2021 31.03.2020
Insurer Managed Funds (Rs) 653.43 381.02
% of Insurer Managed Funds 100% 100%
Total 653.43 381.02




(x)

Maturity Analysis of the Benefit Payments : From the Fund

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31.03.2021 31.03.2020
1st Following Year 69.86 42.09
2nd Following Year 22.31 37.85
3rd Following Year 29.30 24.51
4th Following Year 26.93 29.83
5th Following Year 21.95 25.52
Sum of Years 6 To 10 151.58 151.43
Sum of Years 11 and above 1,844.30 1,451.63
(xi) Sensitivity Analysis
Particulars Year ended Year ended
31.03.2021 31.03.2020
Project Benefit Obligation on Current Assumptions 757.21 647.92
Delta Effect of + 1% Change in Rate of Discounting (91.04) (73.25)
Delta Effect of - 1% Change in Rate of Discounting 110.98 88.53
Delta Effect of + 1% Change in Rate of Salary Increase 108.15 86.35
Delta Effect of - 1% Change in Rate of Salary Increase (90.64) (72.98)
Delta Effect of + 1% Change in Rate of Employer Turnover (17.38) (12.85)
Delta Effect of - 1% Change in Rate of Employer Turnover 19.82 14.57
25 In compliance with Ind AS 24 - “Related Party Disclosures”, as notified under Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies ( Indian Accounting
Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016, the required disclosures are given in the table below :
(a) Names of the related parties and related party relationship
Sr. Related Party Nature of Relationship
No.
1 |National Stock Exchange of India Limited Ultimate Holding Company
NSE Investments Limited (formerly known as NSE Strategic Investment Holding Company
2 Corporation Limited)
3 NSE Clearing Limited (formerly known as National Securities Clearing Holding Company's Fellow Subsidiary
Corporation Limited)
4 |NSE IFSC Limited Holding Company's Fellow Subsidiary
5 [National Securities Depository Limited Ultimate Holding Company's Associate
6 |NSDL Database Management Limited Ultimate Holding Co.'s Associate Co's Subsidiary
7 |NSDL e-Governance Infrastructure Limited Holding Company's Associate Company
g |Power Exchange India Limited Holding Company's Associate Company
9 NSE Data & Analytics Limited (formerly known as DotEx International Fellow Subsidiary
Limited)
10 [NSE Infotech Services Limited Fellow Subsidiary
11 NSE Indices Limited (formerly known as India Index Services & Products Fellow Subsidiary
Limited)




12 [NSE Academy Limited Fellow Subsidiary
13 [NSE IFSC CLEARING Corporation Limited Subsidiary of Holding Company's Fellow Subsidiary
14 |TalentSprint Private Limited (w.e.f. 10th November 2020) Fellow Subsidiary's Subsidiary Company
15 |Cogencis Information Services Limited (w.e.f. 21st January 2021) Fellow Subsidiary's Subsidiary Company
16 |Indian Gas Exchange Limited (w.e.f. 16th March 2021) Holding Company's Associate Company
17 |Capital Quant Solutions Private Limited (w.e.f. 3rd March 2021) Fellow Subsidiary's Associate Company
18 [National Stock Exchange Investor Protection Fund Trust Ultimate Holding Co.'s Trust
19 [NSE Foundation Holding Company's Fellow Subsidiary
20 [NSEIT (US) Inc. Subsidiary Company
21 Auqu Cybersecurity. Limited (Formerly known as Aujas Networks Limited Subsidiary Company
/ Aujas Networks Private Ltd)
22 |Dr. N. Muralidaran - Managing Director & CEO Key Management Personnel
23 |Mr. Nilesh Shivji Vikamsey Key Management Personnel
24 |Mr. Sowmyanarayanan Sadagopan Key Management Personnel
25 |Mr. Swaminathan Sundara Rajan Mittur Key Management Personnel
26 |Mr. Ram Narayanan Colathur (upto 29th March 2020) Key Management Personnel
27 |Mr. Vikram Mukund Limaye Key Management Personnel
28 |Mr. Suryakant B Mainak (upto 15th February 2020) Key Management Personnel
29 |Mr. Yatrik Rushikesh Vin Key Management Personnel
30 |Dr Gulshan Rai Key Management Personnel
31 |Ms. Poornima Shenoy Key Management Personnel
32 |Mr. Chandrasekaran Ramakrishnan (w.e.f. 20th June 2020) Key Management Personnel

(b)

Details of transactions (including GST/service tax wherever levied) with related parties are as follows :

Year ended Year ended
Name of the Related Party Nature of Transactions 31.03.2021 31.03.2020
Infrastructure Management Services 3,372.67 2,561.26
Application Development and Maintenance Services 2,319.95 2,176.42
Software Product Revenues - -
ITES - Assessment Services - 1.18
Customer Care Services 360.69 341.10
Integrated Security 248.71 247.74
National Stock Exchange of India Limited Robotic Process Automation - 76.83
Analytics - 7.20
Taxes recovered 1,134.36 974.11
CTCL empanelment fee paid 2.50 10.00
Usage Charges paid - STP Central HUB & other 0.16 0.31
Reimbursement paid for other expenses incurred - 15.23
Closing Balance - Dr./ (Cr.) (Net) 1,623.42 848.94




Application Development and Maintenance Services 846.12 846.83
Infrastructure Management Services 29.61 27.82
Customer Care Services 56.72 54.91
NSE Clearing Limited (formerly known as National Integrated Security - 7.20
Securities Clearing Corporation Limited) Taxes recovered 167.84 194.49
Reimbursement of expenses received - 143.74
Closing Balance - Dr./ (Cr.) 369.69 396.70
Closing Balance - Provision for Doubtful Debts 8.02 -
. ) Provision for Doubtful Debts - -
?:Jt:znal Stock Exchange Investor Protection Fund Closing Balance - Dr./ (Cr.) 23.00 23.00
Closing Balance - Provision for Doubtful Debts 23.00 23.00
ITES - Assessment Services 421.70 579.46
Application Development and Maintenance Services 27.60 2.15
- Customer Care Services 5.46 13.99
NSE Academy Limited Taxes recovered 81.86 107.21
Reimbursement paid for other expenses incurred - 0.50
Closing Balance - Dr./ (Cr.) 110.77 58.54
Application Development and Maintenance Services (1.26) 106.50
Integrated Security - 34.16
NSE Data & Analytics Limited Customer Care Services - 97.04
( Formerly known as DotEx International Limited ) Infrastructure Management Services 19.67 25.98
Taxes recovered 3.31 47.46
Closing Balance - Dr./ (Cr.) - 71.32
Application Development and Maintenance Services 16.52 44.62
Power Exchange India Limited Taxes recovered 2.97 8.03
Closing Balance - Dr./ (Cr.) 5.05 5.79
Application Development and Maintenance Services 25.00 26.48
Infrastructure Management Services - -
National Securities Depository Limited Taxes recovered 4.50 4.77
Closing Balance - Dr./ (Cr.) 12.74 13.17
Closinig Balance - Provision For Doubtful Debts 5.86 -
Application Development and Maintenance Services 43.28 52.80
o Taxes recovered 7.79 8.87
NSDL e-Governance Infrastructure Limited Closing Balance - Dr/ (Cr) 2611 57 34
Closinig Balance - Provision For Doubtful Debts 17.65 -
Application Development and Maintenance Services 66.73 100.60
NSDL Database Management Limited Taxes recovered 12.01 17.69
Closing Balance - Dr./ (Cr.) 30.38 70.24
Closinig Balance - Provision For Doubtful Debts 2.69 -
Application Development and Maintenance Services 131.46 73.61
. . - Infrastructure Management Services 9.71 -
NSE IFSC Clearing Corporation Limited Integrated Security - 1248
Closing Balance - Dr./ (Cr.) 60.87 24.65




Application Development and Maintenance Services 521.07 425.25
Infrastructure Management Services 132.44 113.96
L Integrated Security - 3.12
NSE IFSC Limited Customer Care Services 10.11 -
Taxes recovered 3.52 -
Closing Balance - Dr./ (Cr.) 304.84 404.69
NSE Indices Limited (formerly known as India Index Application Development and Maintenance Services 69.17 53.25
Services & Products Limited) Taxgs recovered 1245 9.58
Closing Balance - Dr./ (Cr.) 81.62 62.13
. Contribution towards CSR 72.27 71.11
NSE Foundation Closing Investment 0.10 0.10
Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares (Borrowings) - -
NSE Investments Limited (formerly known as NSE Div?dend paid to equity sharsholders 100.00 100.00
Strategic Investment Corporation Limited) D!v!dend pa}./able to preference shareholders 700.00 700.00
Dividend Paid on Prefrence share for FY-2019-20 - 23.01
Closing Borrowings -Preference shares 10,000.00 10,000.00
Application Development and Maintenance Services 290.50 143.07
ITES - Assessment Services 7.45 44.22
Taxes recovered 1.34 7.96
Interest on Loan 46.63 66.23
Loan repaid USD 3,20,528 (Previous year USD 7,24,472) 232.69 512.64
NSEIT(US) Inc. Interest on Loan repaid 74.93 53.44
Closing Balance - Loan given including interest accrued 701.93 989.81
Closing Balance - Unbilled Revenue 59.34
Closing Balance - Investment 533.69 533.69
Closing Balance - Dr./ (Cr.) 281.66 179.70
Closing Balance - Provision for Doubtful Debts 152.46 152.46
Loan given - 680.00
Interest on Loan 90.65 84.12
GRC & Prof Fee Service towards ISRC 265.70 202.63
ISRC /Project related Income 39.20 -
Taxes recovered 15.48 -
Business Support Charges recovered 48.08 -
Aujas Cybersecurity Limited (Formerly known as Aujas |Investment in Equity Shares 570.31 441.84
Networks Limitd to Aujas Networks Private Ltd) Closing Balance -Trade Receivable 30.54 -
Closing Balance -Trade Payable 63.12 21.60
Closing Balance - Unbilled Revenue 1.27 -
Closing Balance - Provision for Expenses 12.18 -
Closing advance paid - 57.70
Closing Balance - Investment in Equity Shares 9,420.31 8,850.00
Closing Balance - Loan given including interest accrued 1,200.00 1,276.17
(a) short-term employee benefits includes Rs 3.68 Lakhs (Previous year Rs. 2.17 Lakhs) 228.90 239.87
Key Management Personnel - Dr N.Muralidaran - MD |towards leave encashment
& CEO (b) post-employment benefits # 12.43 11.50
(c) other long-term benefits 33.95 -
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[Mr. Ram Narayanan Colathur [ Director Sitting Fees | -] 10.50 |
[Mr. Swaminathan Sundara Rajan Mittur [Director Sitting Fees || 15.75 | 13.75 |
[Mr. Nilesh Shivji Vikamsey [ Director Sitting Fees | 13.50 | 9.25 |
[Mr. Sowmyanarayanan Sadagopan [ Director Sitting Fees || 12.00 | 10.00 |
[Mr. Suryakant B Mainak [ Director Sitting Fees | -] 5.50 |
[Dr Guishan Rai [ Director Sitting Fees | [ 8.25 | 3.75 |
[Ms. Poornima Shenoy [ Director Sitting Fees | 12.00 | 2.75 |
[Mr. R Chandrasekaran [ Director Sitting Fees | [ 8.25 | -]

# As the liabilities for defined benefit plan are provided on actuarial basis for the Company as a whole, the amount pertaining to key managerial persons are not included.

All related parties transaction entered during the year were in ordinary course of business. Outstanding balances as at the year end are unsecured and settlement occurs in cash. There have been
no guarantee provided or received for any related parties receivables or payables as of March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020.

(@)

Capital and other commitments

. Year ended Year ended
Particulars 31.03.2021 31.03.2020
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for 47.59 164.19
Commitment towards acquisition of 19,23,520 (Previous year 84,59,626) equity shares of Rs. 1/4 147 50 648.69
each of Aujas Cybersecurity Ltd, Subsidiary Company ' '
Commitment towards acquisition equity shares of Aujas Cybersecurity Limited, Subsidiary 139.61 251 31
Company, by way of rights issue ' '
Contingent liability:

. Year ended Year ended
Particulars 31.03.2021 31.03.2020
On Account of Income Tax Demand 13.29 41.40
On Account of GST Demand 26.81 -
On Account of Bank Guarantees 4,645.01 1,290.49

(b) The Company has been providing Straight Through Processing (STP) services to its customers based on an approval granted by Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) since June
2004. During the course of time there has been certain key managerial function changes within the Company and as a consequence of which the renewal which was required was missed out
inadvertently though the Company continued to render the STP services. The Company thereafter applied for renewal of the approval in December 2019, which was processed by SEBI and
an approval was granted on 5th February, 2021 which is valid for a period of 3 years from the date of issuance.

Subsequently the Company is in receipt of a Show Cause Notice (SCN) dated 26th March 2021 from SEBI, wherein it has been alleged that the Company has been providing services of STP
as a service provider as specified in the STP guidelines, however the Company has not obtained renewal of approval from SEBI within the stipulated time. The Company is in the process of
filing of the settlement application under the SEBI Settlement Regulations. The Company’s management reasonably expects that the impact of this SCN, when ultimately concluded and

determined, will not have material impact on the Company’s financial statements.
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Details of dues to micro and small, medium enterprises as defined under the MSMED Act, 2006

The Ministry of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises has issued an Office Memorandum dated 26 August 2008 which recommends that the Micro and Small Enterprises should mention in their
correspondence with its customers the Entrepreneurs Memorandum Number as allocated after filing of the Memorandum. Accordingly, the disclosure in respect of the amounts payable to such
enterprises as at 31 March 2021 (31 March 2020) has been made in the financial statements based on information received and available with the Company. The Company has not received
any claim for interest from any supplier under the said Act. Further in view of the Management, the impact of interest, if any, that may be payable in accordance with the provisions of the Act is

not expected to be material.

(Rs in Lakhs )

] Year ended Year ended
Particulars 31.03.2021 31.03.2020
(a) The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of each accounting year;
(i) Principal 19.34 33.40
(ii) Interest 0.07 -
(b) The amount of interest paid by the Company in terms of Section 16 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006,
along with the amounts of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during the year*;
(i) Principal - -
(ii) Interest - -
(c) The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed day - -
during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006
(d) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the year 0.07 -

(e) The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues above are
actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance of a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the Micro, Small and
Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006

Expenditure in foreign currency (accrual basis)

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31.03.2021 31.03.2020
Travelling expenses - 25.24
Direct Fees & Subscription 4.69 5.58
Subcontract / Technical Fees 1,039.31 1,295.27
Software Licenses 436.91 156.31
Earnings in foreign currency (accrual basis) :
Particulars Year ended Year ended
31.03.2021 31.03.2020
Application Development and Maintenance Services 810.68 1,623.78
ITES - Assessment Services 7.45 53.91

In the opinion of the Board, current assets, loans and advances are approximately of the value stated, if realised in the ordinary course of business.

Acquisition of Aujas Cybersecurity Ltd. (Aujas), Subsidiary Company

On November 28, 2018, the Company had entered into a Share Purchase and Shareholder's Agreement (“SPSHA”) for acquisition of Aujas Cybersecurity Limited (formerly known as Aujas
Networks Private Limited), (“Aujas”) for a total consideration of Rs.9750 lakhs (Rs.9345.16 lakhs for acquisition of 100% equity shareholding and Rs.404.84 lakhs by way of rights issue). In
terms of the said SPSHA, on March 22, 2019, the Company acquired 95.39% of equity shareholding of Aujas for a consideration aggregating to Rs.8408.06 lakhs. During the financial year
2019-20, the Company paid a sum of Rs. 288.31 Lakhs to the ex-promoters of Aujas for purchase of 37,59,833 equity shares of Aujas of Re 1 each and invested a sum of Rs. 153.53 Lakhs
for 26,68,705 shares by way of subscription to the rights issue. Further during the current year, the Company paid a sum of Rs. 458.62 Lakhs to the ex-promoters of Aujas for purchase of
65,36,106 equity shares of Aujas of Re 1 and invested a sum of Rs. 111.69 lakhs for 14,56,594 shares by way of subscription to the rights issue, taking the total investment in Aujas to Rs.

9420.21 lakhs. As on March 31, 2021, the Company holds 99.29% of equity shareholding of Aujas.



33 Segment Reporting:

a Description of segments and principal activities

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Chief Operating Decision Maker (“CODM”) of the Company. The CODM, who is responsible for
allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments, has been identified as the Managing Director and CEO of the Company. The Company has identified two segments
i.e. “End to End solutions” and “ITES - Assessment Services” as reporting segments based on the information reviewed by CODM.

Reportable business segment viz. offering “End to End solutions” includes revenues from sale and maintenance of software products, software consultancy services, custom software
development, information technology infrastructure services provided predominantly to market participants in the securities and commodity markets and “ITES - Assessment Services” includes
sale and maintenance of ITES-Assessment Services software products, online education and examination services and other incidental services as its primary segments. This takes into
consideration the commonality in the risks and rewards of the products/ solutions and related services offered nature of services, type / class of customers for the products / services, management
structure and system of financial reporting. Accordingly, the results of the said segments have been disclosed hereunder.

The above business segments have been identified considering :
a) the nature of products and services

b) the differing risks

c) the internal organisation and management structure, and

d) the internal financial reporting systems.

The segment information presented is in accordance with the accounting policies adopted for preparing the consolidated financial statements of the Company. Segment revenues, expenses and
results include inter-segment transfers. Such transfers are undertaken either at competitive market prices charged to unaffiliated customers for similar goods or at contracted rates. These
transfers are eliminated on consolidation.

b Segment Revenue :
Segment revenue is measured in the same way as in the statement of profit or loss. Revenue and expenses which relate to the enterprise as a whole and are not allocable to a segment on
reasonable basis have been disclosed as Unallocable.Transactions between segments are eliminated on consolidation. The CODM primarily uses a measure of profit before tax to assess the
performance of the operating segments.

(Rs in Lakhs )

Particulars 2020-21 2019-20

Segment Revenue

End to End Solution 13,488.81 12,097.50

ITES - Assessment Services 12,048.27 15,192.73
25,537.09 27,290.23

Inter-segment revenue
End to End Solution - -
ITES - Assessment Services - -

Revenue from external customers

End to End Solution 13,488.81 12,097.50
ITES - Assessment Services 12,048.27 15,192.73
Total 25,537.09 27,290.23
Segment Results

End to End Solution 3,835.27 3,176.16
ITES - Assessment Services 1,691.41 2,169.24
Total 5,526.68 5,345.41
Less: Unallocable Expenses (Net of income) 1,700.11 2,120.03
Less: Finance Cost 909.17 953.05
Add: Interest income 437.33 491.45

Profit before Tax 3,354.73 2,763.79




Less : Income Tax expense
- Current tax 1,022.00 941.00
- Short / Excess Tax for earlier years 14.82 39.78
- Deferred tax 42.10 (50.74)
Total Tax Expenses 1,078.92 930.04
Net profit after tax 2,275.81 1,833.74
Revenue From External Customers based on geographies
The Parent company is domiciled in India. The amount of Company revenue from external customers broken down by location of customers.
Particulars 31.03.2021 31.03.2020
India 24,752.70 25,495.94
Outside India 784.39 1,794.29
Total 25,537.09 27,290.23
Segment Assets
Segment assets are measured in the same way as in the balance sheet. These assets are allocated based on the operations of the segment.
Segments 31.03.2021 31.03.2020
End to End Solution 4,894.92 5,331.14
ITES - Assessment Services 7,533.81 3,298.01
Total Segment Assets 12,428.73 8,629.16
Unallocable Assets 25,159.56 26,873.16
Total Assets 37,588.29 35,502.32
There are no non current assets situated outside the domicile of India.
Segment Liabilities
Segment Liablities are measured in the same way as in the financial statements. These Liabilites are allocated based on the operations of the segment.
Segments 31.03.2021 31.03.2020
End to End Solution 1,174.01 554.72
ITES - Assessment Services 3,695.84 2,590.80
Total Segment Liabilities 4,869.85 3,145.52
Unallocable Liabilities 12,899.26 14,625.27
Total Liabilities 17,769.11 17,770.79
Segment Capital Expenditure
Segments 31.03.2021 31.03.2020
End to End Solution 49.39 697.78
ITES - Assessment Services 1,192.66 77.53
Total Segment Capital Expenditure 1,242.05 775.31
Add: Unallocable Capital Expenditure 256.91 223.04
Total Capital Expenditure 1,498.97 998.35
Segment Depreciation / Amortisation
Segments 31.03.2021 31.03.2020
End to End Solution 21.40 52.20
ITES - Assessment Services 1,074.94 806.46
Total Segment Depreciation / Amortisation 1,096.34 858.66
Add: Unallocable Depreciation / Amortisation 808.27 625.09
Total Depreciation / Amortisation 1,904.61 1,483.75

Note :
Information about major customers

Company's significant revenue of 0.09 % (previous year 15.35%) being Rs. 22.35 lakhs (previous year Rs. 4189.73 lakhs) is derived from a customer under ITES-Assessement Services Segment.
Also, the Company's significant revenue of 35.11% (previous year 29.60%) is derived from a group of entities under common control, the total Operating Revenue from such entities amounted to
Rs. 8966.82 lakhs in FY 2020-21 ( End to End Solutions Rs. 8537.67 lakhs and ITES-Assessment Service Rs 429.15 lakhs) and Rs. 8076.72 lakhs in FY 2019-20 ( End to End Solutions Rs.
7451.87 lakhs and ITES-Assessment Service Rs 624.85 lakhs). No other single customer contributed 10% or more to the Company's revenue for FY 2020-21 and FY 2019-20.




34 Unquoted Mutual funds at FVPL

(Rs in Lakhs )

. Mkt as at . Mkt as at

Mutual Funds No.of Units 31.03.2021 No.of Units 31.03.2020
Kotak Treasury Advantage Fund - Dir - Growth 7,33,065.28 240.84
ICICI Prudential Money Market Fund - Dir- Growth 60,957.22 179.99 60,957.22 170.23
Invesco India Money Market Fund-Direct -Growth 12,018.07 278.17
Invesco India Liquid Fund - Direct Plan Growth 9,357.08 255.29
UTI Liquid Cash Plan - Direct Growth Plan 32,711.38 1,063.59
Tata Liquid Fund Direct Plan - Growth 8,164.97 255.73
Kotak Money Market Scheme - Dir - Growth 15,448.29 511.81
HDFC Low Duration fund-Dir-Growth 11,62,196.09 552.91 11,62,196.09 513.78
ICICI Prudential Savings Fund - Dir - Growth 1,31,297.42 551.04 1,31,297.42 512.55
SBI Savings Fund - Dir - Growth 10,71,915.53 366.55 30,98,252.15 1,002.81
SBI Savings Fund - Dir - Growth 31,294.69 10.13
HDFC Money Market Fund - Dir - Growth 12,015.53 537.57 12,015.53 507.04

Total of Investments 2,188.06 5,321.96
|Aggregate Book value - Quoted Investments - -
|Aggregate Book Value - Unquoted Investments 2,188.06 5,321.96

|Aggregate Market Value of Quoted Investments
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Fair Value Measurements

Financial Instruments by category

(Rs in Lakhs )

31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20
Particulars FVPL FVOCI | Amortised Cost FVPL FVOCI | Amortised Cost
Financial Assets
Investments
- Mutual Funds 2,188.06 - - 5,321.96 - -
Trade receivables - - 7,859.39 - - 5,283.14
Unbilled receivable - - 2,139.47 - - 587.99
Cash and Cash equivalents - - 2,346.63 - - 3,320.99
Ban.k balances other than Cash and Cash 3.684.94 2.926.94
equivalents - - - -
- Non-Current Bank Balances - - 2,057.95 236.05
- Others - - 3.26 - - 0.39
Loans 2,458.80 2,800.05
Other Financial assets - - 31.16 - - 173.09
Total 2,188.06 - 20,581.60 5,321.96 - 15,328.64
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings 10,000.00 10,000.00
Trade Payables - - 2,491.72 - - 2,200.54
Other financial liabilities - Non current 527.49 976.30
Other financial liabilities - Current - - 1,620.87 - - 2,068.75
Total - - 14,640.08 - - 15,245.59




36 Fair Value Measurements

a Fair value of the Company’s financial assets that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis

Some of the Company’s financial assets are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period. The following table gives information about how
the fair values of these financial assets are determined.

(Rs in Lakhs)

Financial assets/
financial liabilities

Fair value as at

31-Mar-21

31-Mar-20

Fair value hierarchy

Valuation technique(s) and key input(s)

Investment in mutual
funds

2,188.06

5,321.96

Level 1

NAV declared by respective Asset Management
Companies.

b  Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities that are not measured at fair value (but fair value disclosures are required)
Management considers that the carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recognized in the financial statements except as per note a

above approximate their fair values.




37 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company’s business activities expose it to a variety of financial risks, namely liquidity risk, market risks and credit risk. The Company’s senior management has the overall responsibility for
the establishment and oversight of the Company’s risk management framework

The Company has developed a Risk Management Policy in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. It establishes various levels of accountability and overview within the
Company, while vesting identified managers with responsibility for each significant risk. Risk Management policy has been formulated with an aim to (a) Overseeing the Company's risk
management process and controls, risk tolerance (b) Setting strategic plans and objectives for risk management and review of risk assessment of the Company (c) Review the Company's risk
appetite and strategy relating to key risks, including credit risk, liquidity and funding risk, market risk, product risk and reputational risk as well as the guidelines, policies and processes for
monitoring and mitigating such risks.

Apart from this, the core business & operational risk is managed through cross functional involvement and communication across businesses and as part of the same, various functional heads
submit a compliance certificate covering respective areas of operations to the Company Secretary or Managing Director and CEO who in turn submits a compliance certificate quarterly to the
Audit Committee and the Board of Directors.

The Treasury department activities are designed to:

- protect the Company’s financial results and position from financial risks

- maintain market risks within acceptable parameters, while optimising returns; and

- protect the Company’s financial investments, while maximising returns.

The Treasury department is responsible to maximise the return on companies internally generated funds.

A. MANAGEMENT OF LIQUIDITY RISK
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will face in meeting its obligations associated with its financial liabilities. The Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure that it will have
sufficient funds to meet its liabilities when due without incurring unacceptable losses. In doing this, management considers both normal and stressed conditions.

The Company’s treasury department regularly monitors the rolling forecasts to ensure it has sufficient cash on an on-going basis to meet operational needs. Any short term surplus cash generated
by the operating entities, over and above the amount required for working capital management and other operational requirements, is retained as cash and cash equivalents (to the extent
required) and any excess is invested in mutual funds to optimise the cash returns on investments while ensuring sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities.

(Rs in Lakhs )

Particulars Carrying amount Less than 12 months More than 12months Total
amount

As at 31st March 2021

Borrowings 10,000.00 - 10,000.00 10,000.00
Trade payables 2,491.72 2,491.72 - 2,491.72
Other financial liabilities-Non Current 527.49 - 527.49 527.49
Other financial liabilities-Current 1,620.87 1,620.87 - 1,620.87
As at 31st March 2020

Borrowings 10,000.00 10,000.00 10,000.00
Trade payables 2,200.54 2,200.54 - 2,200.54
Other financial liabilities-Current 2,068.75 2,068.75 - 2,068.75




B MANAGEMENT OF MARKET RISK

The Company’s size and operations result in it being exposed to the following market risks that arise from its use of financial instruments:

* price risk;

The Company’s exposure to, and management of, these risks is explained below.

POTENTIAL IMPACT OF RISK

MANAGEMENT POLICY

SENSITIVITY TO RISK

1. PRICE RISK

The Company is mainly exposed to the price risk due to its investment in mutual funds
and investments in equity instruments. The price risk arises due to uncertainties about the
future market values of these investments. At 31st March 2021, the exposure to price risk
due to investment in mutual funds amounted to Rs. 2188.06 Lakhs (March 31, 2020 : Rs
5321.96 lakhs)

In order to manage its price risk arising
from investments in mutual funds, the

Company diversifies its portfolio in

accordance with the investments limits set

as par the Board resolution passed

As an estimation of the approximate impact of price risk,
with respect to mutual funds and investments in equity
instruments, the Company has calculated the impact as
follows. For mutual funds, a 0.25% increase in prices would
have led to approximately Rs. 5.47 Lakhs (Previous year
Rs 13.30 Lakhs) gain in the Statement of Profit and Loss. A
0.25% decrease in prices. would have led to an equal but
opposite effect.

C : MANAGEMENT OF CREDIT RISK

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counter-party fails to meet its contractual obligations.

Concentrations of credit risk with respect to trade receivables are limited, due to the Company’s customer base being large and diverse

Trade receivables

The Company provides for expected credit loss on trade receivables based on a provision matrix. This matrix is a simpified basis of recognition of expected credit losses in case of trade

receivables.The model uses historical credit loss experience for trade receivables.

Reconciliation of loss allowance (ECL) provision for Trade Receivables

Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Balance as at the beginning of the year 76.42 41.48
Add: Provision on trade receivables based on Expected credit loss model 82.96 34.94
Balance at end of the year 159.38 76.42
Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Balance as at the beginning of the year 408.94 349.40
Add: Provision for Doubtful Debts 174.06 59.54
Balance at end of the year 583.00 408.94

Other financial assets

The Company maintains exposure in cash and cash equivalents, term deposits with banks, securities, investments in mutual funds. The Company has diversified portfolio of investment with
various number of counter-parties which have secure credit ratings hence the risk is reduced. Individual risk limits are set for each counter-party based on financial position, credit rating and past

experience. Credit limits and concentration of exposures are actively monitored

Derivative Instruments - Forward Contracts

The Company uses foreign currency forward contracts to hedge its risks associated with foreign currency fluctuations relating to certain payments in foreign currency. The use of foreign currency
forward contracts is governed by the Company’s strategy. The Company does not use forward contracts for speculative purposes. There were no outstanding Hedging Contracts as at March 31,

2021.
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Impact of COVID 19 (Global Pandemic) :

The Coronavirus (COVID-19) outbreak is an unprecedented global situation. World Health Organization (WHO) has declared the COVID-19 virus a ‘Pandemic’. The Government of India and
various state governments had put in place several measures including instituting a complete lockdown w.e.f March 25, 2020 to combat the spread and transmission of the virus. Effective
June 8, 2020 the said lockdown has being partially lifted in a phased manner. Post unlock advisory issued by the Government, COVID-19 continued to impact the business operations and
revenue of the Company in respect of ITES-Assessment Services (On-Line Examination Services).

The Company has taken into account the possible impacts of COVID-19 in preparation of the standalone financial statements including but not limited to its assessment of impact on
revenues, operating costs and impact on leases. Based on the current indicators of future economic conditions and the impact of COVID-19 on its operations, the Company has also made an
assessment of its liquidity position, recoverability and carrying values of its assets and ability to pay its liabilities as they become due and is of the view that there is no material impact or
adjustments required to be made in these financial results. The impact assessment of COVID-19 may be different from that presently estimated and the Company will continue to evaluate
any significant changes to its operations and its resultant impact on the financial performance.

The Code on Social Security, 2020 (Code) relating to employee benefits during employment and post-employment benefits has received Presidential assent on 28th September 2020. The
Code has been published in the Gazette of India. However, the date on which the Code comes into effect has not been notified. The Company will assess the impact of the Code when it
comes into effect and will record any related impact in the period the Code becomes effective.

Amounts Paid / Contribution to NSE Foundation towards CSR :

As per the provisions of Companies Act 2013, Gross amount required to be spent by the Company on CSR activities during the financial year ended March 31, 2021 is Rs. 72.27 Lakhs
(Previous Year Rs 71.11 Lakhs).

Amount spent during the year on:

Particulars In Cash Yet to be paid in Cash Total

Construction / acquisition of any asset Current Year - - -

Previous Year - - -

i |Contribution to NSE Foundation towards CSR Current Year 72.27 - 72.27
Previous Year 71.11 - 71.11
i |On purposes other than (i) & (ii) above Current Year # - - -

Previous Year # - - -

* During the year, the Company has contributed Rs 72.27 lakhs (previous year Rs.71.11 lakhs) to NSE Foundation to be spent on activities as stated in the Group CSR policy which has been
adopted by the Company as Company’s CSR policy.The amount unspent by NSE Foundation as on March 31, 2021 is Rs. 72.27 lakhs (as on March 31, 2020 Rs. 71.11 lakhs).

The Company holds an investment of Rs.533.69 lakhs (USD 1,000,000) and has given a unsecured loan amounting to Rs. 701.93 lakhs (USD 955,000) to NSEIT (US) Inc., a wholly owned
subsidiary company. The said subsidiary company has incurred losses during the year amounting to Rs. 6.11 lakhs (USD 8,698), it has accumulated losses of Rs.1159.86 lakhs (USD 1,851,900)
and has negative net worth of Rs. 626.17 lakhs (USD 851,900) as at March 31, 2021. Considering long term and strategic nature of the investments and future business plans, no provision for
impairment has been made in the value of investment and loan given to the said subsidiary company.

The Company’s pending litigations comprise of proceedings pending with Tax Authorities. The Company has reviewed all its pending litigations and proceedings and has made adequate
provisions, wherever required and disclosed the contingent liabilities, wherever applicable, in its financial statements. The Company does not expect the outcome of these proceedings to have a
material impact on its financial position (Refer note no. 27 for details on contingent liabilities).
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During the year ended March 31, 2021, the Company has negotiated with various landlords on the rent reduction / wavier due to COVID 19 pandemic. The Management believes that such
reduction/ waiver in rent is short term in nature and also meets the other conditions specified in the notification issued by the Central Government in consultation with National Financial Reporting
Authority dated July 24, 2020 as Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2020 with effect from April 1, 2020. Thus, in accordance with the said notification, the Company
has elected to apply the exemption, as the reduction/ waiver does not necessitate a lease modification as envisaged in the Standard by recording the same in the "Other income". Accordingly,
during the year, the Company has recognised % 62.82 Lakhs as an extinguishment of lease liability being lease rent concession on account of COVID 19 pandemic and the same has been
disclosed as 'Other Income' in the Statement of Profit and Loss.).

In accordance with the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company did not have any long term contracts as of March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020 including derivatives contracts
for which there were any material foreseeable losses. The Company did not have any derivative contracts as at March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020.

For the year ended March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020, the Company is not required to transfer any amount into the Investor Education & Protection Fund as required under relevant provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013.

Previous years figures have been regrouped, rearranged and reclassified wherever necessary to confirm to the current year / period classifications.

As per our report of even date attached

For Khandelwal Jain & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
(Reg No : 105049W)

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-

Prof. S. SADAGOPAN N. MURALIDARAN M.S. SUNDARA RAJAN
Sd/- Chairman Managing Director & CEO Director
NARENDRA JAIN DIN No. 00118285 DIN No. 06567029 DIN No. 00169775
Partner
Membership No.048725

Sd/- Sd/-

M. N. HARIHARAN VAIBHHAV KULKARNI
Place : Mumbai Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Date : April 21, 2021



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF NSEIT Limited
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of NSEIT Limited
(“the Holding Company”) and its subsidiaries, (Holding Company and its subsidiaries together
referred to as “the Group”) which comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31,
2021, and the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, the Consolidated Statement of
Changes in Equity and the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information prepared based on the relevant
records, (hereinafter referred to as “the consolidated financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information required by the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in
conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated
state of affairs of the Group as at March 31, 2021, of consolidated total comprehensive
income (comprising profit and other comprehensive loss), consolidated changes in equity and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of
our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the ethical requirements that
are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements in India in terms of the Code
of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“"ICAI”) and the relevant
provisions of the Act, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit
evidence obtained by the other auditors in terms of their report referred to in ‘Other Matter’
paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other
information. The other information comprises the information included in the Management
Discussion and Analysis, Board’s Report including Annexures to Board’s Report, but does not
include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and
we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to
read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained
during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed and the report of the other auditors as furnished to
us [refer ‘Other Matter’ paragraph below], we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation
of these consolidated financial statements in term of the requirements of the Act that give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance
and consolidated cash flows, and changes in equity of the Group in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards
specified under section 133 of the Act. The respective Board of Directors of the companies
included in the Group are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Group and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the
consolidated financial statements by the Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the
companies included in the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for
overseeing the financial reporting process of the Group.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:
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Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act,
we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Holding Company has
adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the
Group to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the
entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of
the audit of the financial statements of such entities included in the consolidated financial
statements of which we are the independent auditors. For the other entities included in
the consolidated financial statements, which have been audited by other auditors, such
other auditors remain responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
audits carried out by them. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the consolidated financial statements that,
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative
materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating
the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the
financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other
entities included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent
auditors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.
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We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

Other Matter

We did not audit the financial statements of a subsidiary whose financial statements reflect
total assets of Rs. 7,609.00 lakhs and net assets of Rs 2,802.73 lakhs as at March 31, 2021,
total revenue of Rs. 14,661.19 lakhs, total comprehensive income of Rs. 404.77 lakhs
(comprising of profit of Rs. 335.77 lakhs and other comprehensive income of Rs. 69.00 lakhs)
and net cash inflows amounting to Rs. 312.44 lakhs for the year ended on that date, as
considered in the consolidated financial statements. This financial statements have been
audited by other auditors whose report have been furnished to us by the Management, and
our opinion on the consolidated financial statements insofar as it relates to the amounts and
disclosures included in respect of this subsidiary and our report in terms of sub-section (3) of
Section 143 of the Act including report on Other information insofar as it relates to the
aforesaid subsidiary is based solely on the report of the other auditors.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on other legal and
regulatory requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matter with respect to
our reliance on the work done and the report of the other auditors.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, based on our audit we report, to the extent
applicable, that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best
of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the
aforesaid consolidated financial statements.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of
the aforesaid consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears
from our examination of those books and the reports of the other auditors.

(c) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, the
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the Consolidated Statement of Cash
Flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account
and records maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial
statements.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act.

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding
Company as on March 31, 2021 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the
Holding Company and the reports of the statutory auditors of its subsidiary company
incorporated in India, none of the directors of the Group company incorporated in
India is disqualified as on March 31, 2021 from being appointed as a director in terms
of Section 164(2) of the Act.
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(f) With respect to the adequacy of internal financial controls with reference to
consolidated financial statements of the Group and the operating effectiveness of
such controls, refer to our separate report in Annexure ‘A’.

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, the remuneration paid by the Holding Company to its directors during the
year is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act.

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditor’s) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and
based on the consideration of the report of the other auditors on separate financial
statements of the subsidiary, as noted in the Other Matter paragraph:

(i) The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact, if any, of pending
litigations on the consolidated financial position of the Group - refer Note 50 to
the consolidated financial statements.

(i) The Group did not have any long term contracts including derivatives contracts as
at March 31, 2021 for which there were any material foreseeable losses - refer
Note 51 to the consolidated financial statements

(iii) During the year ended March 31, 2021, there were no amounts which were
required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the
Holding Company and its subsidiary company incorporated in India - refer Note
52 to the consolidated financial statements

For Khandelwal Jain & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No. 105049W

Sd/-

Narendra Jain

Partner

Membership No. 048725
UDIN: 21048725AAAABH8616

Place: Mumbai
Date: April 21, 2021
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report

(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report on consolidated financial statements to the Members
of NSEIT Limited of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of
Section 143 of the Act

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Holding Company
as of and for the year ended March 31, 2021, we have audited the internal financial controls
with reference to consolidated financial statements of NSEIT Limited (hereinafter referred to
as “the Holding Company”) and its subsidiary companies which are companies incorporated in
India, as of that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the Holding company, its subsidiary companies, to whom
reporting under clause (i) of sub section 3 of Section 143 of the Act in respect of the
adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting is applicable, which are
companies incorporated in India, are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”). These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence
to the respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and
the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Holding Company’s internal financial
controls with reference to consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the ICAI and the Standards on Auditing
deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of internal
financial controls and both issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to
consolidated financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls
operated effectively in all material respects.
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Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system with reference to consolidated financial statements and their
operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated
financial statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with
reference to consolidated financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’'s judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the
other auditors in terms of their reports referred to in the Other matter paragraph below, is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Holding Company’s
internal financial controls system with reference to consolidated financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial control with reference to consolidated financial statements is a
process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial control with reference
to consolidated financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to
the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures
of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or
timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that
could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated
financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override
of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected.
Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to
consolidated financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal
financial control with reference to consolidated financial statements may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies, which are companies
incorporated in India, have, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system with reference to consolidated financial statements and such internal financial
controls with reference to consolidated financial statements were operating effectively as at
March 31, 2021, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by
the Holding Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.
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Other Matter

Our aforesaid reports under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating
effectiveness of the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements insofar as it relates to a subsidiary company, which is company incorporated in
India, is based on the corresponding report of the auditors of such company incorporated in
India.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

For Khandelwal Jain & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No. 105049W

Sd/-

Narendra Jain

Partner

Membership No. 048725
UDIN: 21048725AAAABH8616

Place: Mumbai
Date: April 21, 2021
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(Formerly known as NSE.IT LIMITED)

NSEIT Limited

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2021

(Rs in Lakhs )

As at As at
Particulars Notes 31.03.2021 31.03.2020
ASSETS
1 Non-current assets
a Property, Plant and Equipment 2a 804.46 847.92
b  Capital work-in-progress 2b 24 .97 102.25
¢ Intangible assets under development 2.c 46.91 118.51
d Right of Use Asset 2d 1,854.20 2,430.67
e Other Intangible assets 2.a 884.74 608.99
f  Goodwill 42.a 6,524.05 6,121.51
g Financial Assets
i Investments 3 0.00 0.00
ii Other Financials assets
- Non-Current Bank Balances 4 2,064.95 376.71
- Loans 4 65.07 66.26
- Others 4 3.26 0.39
h  Deferred Tax Assets (net) 21 424.83 437.28
i Income Tax Assets (net) 5 1,229.41 1,770.18
j  Other assets 6 117.01 90.64
Total Non-current assets 14,043.86 12,971.31
2 Current assets
a Financial Assets
i Investments 7 2,273.06 5,321.96
ii Trade receivable 8 11,917.45 8,058.28
iii Unbilled receivables 9 3,305.96 1,296.95
iv Cash and Cash equivalents 10.a 2,948.15 3,891.68
v Bank balances other than (iv) above 10.b 3,867.93 2,950.47
Vi Loans 11 577.94 669.66
vii Other Financial assets 1 82.20 98.82
b  Other assets 12 842.55 1,018.42
Total Current assets 25,815.24 23,306.24
TOTAL ASSETS 39,859.10 36,277.55
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
(A) EQUITY
a Equity Share capital 13 1,000.00 1,000.00
b  Other Equity 14 17,532.78 15,034.75
Equity attributable to owners of NSEIT Limited 18,532.78 16,034.75
Non controlling Interest 42.b 20.02 72.25
Total Equity 18,552.80 16,107.00
(B) LIABILITIES
1 Non-current liabilities
a Financial Liabilities
i Borrowings 15 10,000.00 10,000.00
ii Other financial liabilities 16 971.93 1,466.00
b  Provisions 17 483.79 399.58
Total Non-current liabilities 11,455.72 11,865.58



Q0T

Current liabilities
Financial Liabilities

Trade Payables 18
- Total Outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small 40.92 33.40
enterprises
- Total Outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises 4,107.92 3,221.94
and small enterprises

Other financial liabilities 19 1,817.57 2,176.36
Provisions 20 1,189.82 1,464.70
Income Tax Liabilities (net) 22 100.60 42.47
Other liabilities 23 2,593.75 1,366.10
Total Current liabilities 9,850.58 8,304.97
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 39,859.10 36,277.55
Summary of significant accounting policies 1

Notes refer to above form an integral part of Consolidated Balance Sheet

This is the Consolidated Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date
As per our report of even date attached

For Khandelwal Jain & Co.
Chartered Accountants
(Reg No : 105049W)

Sd/-
NARENDRA JAIN

Partner
Membership No.048725

Place : Mumbai
Date : April 21, 2021

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sd/- Sd/-

Prof. S. SADAGOPAN N. MURALIDARAN
Chairman Managing Director & CEO
DIN No. 00118285 DIN No. 06567029

Sd/- Sd/-

M. N. HARIHARAN VAIBHHAV KULKARNI
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Sd/-

M.S. SUNDARA RAJAN
Director
DIN No. 00169775



NSEIT Limited
(Formerly known as NSE.IT LIMITED)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

(Rs in Lakhs)

Year ended Year ended

Particulars Notes
31.03.2021  31.03.2020
Income
Revenue from operations 24 39,778.99 37,629.00
Other income 25 1,674.93 910.82
Total Income 41,453.92 38,539.82
Expenses
Employee benefits expense 26 20,100.16 16,623.19
Purchases of Stock-in-Trade 28 1,054.00 335.86
Technical & Sub Contract Charges 29 2,519.73 3,729.04
Finance Cost 27 976.81 1,031.32
Depreciation and amortisation expense 2a & 2d 2,132.40 1,667.80
Other expenses 29 10,768.73 12,991.59
Total Expenses 37,551.83 36,378.80
Profit before tax 3,902.09 2,161.02
Less : Income Tax expense 15
- Current tax 1,136.01 941.00
- Foreign tax 103.67 1.80
- Short / (excess) Tax for earlier years 14.82 39.78
- Deferred tax 42.10 (50.73)
Total tax expenses 1,296.60 931.85
Profit after tax (A) 2,605.49 1,229.17
Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
- Equity Instruments through Other Comprehensive Income
(i) Remeasurements of post-employment benefit obligations (48.82) (68.62)
- Deferred Tax 29.65 23.75
Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss
- Changes in foreign currancy translation reserve 15.55 (50.80)
Total Other Comprehensive Income, net of tax (B) (3.62) (95.67)
Total Comprehensive Income (A+B) 2,601.87 1,133.50
Profit for the year attributable to:
-Owners of the company 2,602.14 1,254.73
-Non controlling interest 3.35 (25.56)
2,605.49 1,229.17
Other comprehensive income for the year
-Owners of the company (4.11) (96.48)
-Non controlling interest 0.49 0.81
(3.62) (95.67)
Total comprehensive income for the year
-Owners of the company 2,598.03 1,158.25
-Non controlling interest 3.84 (24.74)
2,601.87 1,133.50
Earnings per equity share ( FV Rs 10 each) 30
- Basic (Rs.) 26.02 12.55
- Diluted ( Rs.) 26.02 12.55
Summary of significant accounting policies 1
Notes refer to above form an integral part of the Consolidated Statement of Profit & Loss
This is the Consolidated Statement of Profit & Loss referred to in our report of even date
As per our report of even date attached
For Khandelwal Jain & Co.
Chartered Accountants For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
(Reg No : 105049W)
Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
Sd/-
NARENDRA JAIN Prof. S. SADAGOPAN N. MURALIDARAN M.S. SUNDARA RAJAN
Partner Chairman Managing Director & CEO  Director
Membership No.048725 DIN No. 00118285 DIN No. 06567029 DIN No. 00169775
Sd/- Sd/-
Place : Mumbai M. N. HARIHARAN VAIBHHAV KULKARNI

Date : April 21, 2021 Chief Financial Officer

Company Secretary



NSEIT Limited
(Formerly known as NSE.IT LIMITED)
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY MARCH 31, 2021

(A)

Equity Share Capital

(Rs in Lakhs )

Balance at the beginning of the reporting

Changes during the

Balance at the end of the

year year reporting year
1,000.00 - 1,000.00
(B) Other Equity
Particulars General Retained Foreign Equity
reserve | Earnings | Currency | attributable to N°"_
Translation owners controlling | Total (a+b)
Reserve (a) Interest (b)
5:::"“ at the beginning of the reporting 5436.06 | 9,591.61 7.08 15,034.75 72.25 | 15,107.00
Profit / (Loss) for the year - 2,602.14 2,602.14 3.35 2,605.49
Other Comprehensive Income /(Loss) (19.66) 15.55 (4.11) 0.49 (3.62)
Dividends (100.00) (100.00) (100.00)
Revergal on rgductlon in Shgreho@ng of Non- (56.07) (56.07)
controling parties and share in equity
Total Other Equity 5,436.06 12,074.09 22.63 17,5632.78 20.02 17,552.80
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY MARCH 31, 2020
(A) Equity Share Capital
Balance at the beginning of the reporting Changes during the Balance at the end of the
year year reporting year
1,000.00 - 1,000.00
(B) Other Equity
Foreign Equity Non
. General Retained Currency | attributable to .
Particulars . . controlling | Total (a+b)
reserve Earnings | Translation owners
Interest (b)
Reserve (a)
yiz'f"ce at the beginning of the reporting 5436.06 | 8,503.12 57.88 13,997.06 124.00 | 14,121.06
Profit / (Loss) for the year - 1,254.73 1,254.73 (25.56) 1,229.17
Other Comprehensive Income /(Loss) - (45.68) (50.80) (96.48) 0.81 (95.67)
Dividends - (100.00) (100.00) (100.00)
Dividend Tax - (20.56) (20.56) (20.56)
Revergal on rgduchon in Shgreholc?mg of Non- ) ) (27.01) (27.01)
controling parties and share in equity
Total Other Equity 5,436.06 9,591.61 7.08 15,034.75 72.25 15,107.00
Notes refer to above form an integral part of the Consolidated statement of changes in equity
This is the Consolidated statement of changes in equity refered to in our report of even date
For Khandelwal Jain & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
(Reg No : 105049W)
Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
Sd/-
NARENDRA JAIN Prof. S. SADAGOPAN N. MURALIDARAN M.S. SUNDARA RAJAN
Partner Chairman Managing Director & CEO Director

Membership No.048725

Place : Mumbai
Date : April 21, 2021

DIN No. 00118285

Sd/-

M. N. HARIHARAN
Chief Financial Officer

DIN No. 06567029

Sd/-

VAIBHAV KULKARNI
Company Secretary

DIN No. 00169775




NSEIT Limited
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASHFLOW FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021
(Rs in Lakhs )

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
A) [CASHFLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
PROFIT BEFORE TAX 3,902.09 2,161.02
Add Adjustments for :
- Depreciation and amortisation expense 2,132.40 1,667.80
- Bad Debts written off - 103.35
- Provision for Doubtful Debts 342.14 154.68
- Interest on lease obiligation 208.88 247.68
- Extinguishment of lease liabilities due rent concession (62.82) -
- Reversal of lease liabilities on account of closer of certain lease (16.62) (1.01)
- Interest income on Bank deposits (316.31) (356.10)
- Interest income on Others (0.38) (6.80)
- Interest on Income tax refund (61.02) (28.46)
- Interest expense 8.07 22.13
- Net gain on sale of mutual funds mandatorily measured at fair value through P&L (105.26) (97.88)
- Net gain on mutual funds mandatorily measured at fair value through P&L (140.71) (177.38)
- Gain on disposal of property,plant and equipment (4.86)
- Loss on disposal of property,plant and equipment 4.68 0.02
- Excess provision written back (826.28) -
- Dividend, DDT and other cost for issue of peference shares 715.91 717.40
- Sundry Balance W/ Back (72.55) (41.06)
- Foreign Currency Translation Reserve 15.55 (50.80)
- Gain on foreign currency transaction (net) - 3.91
Change in Operating Assets and Liabilities
- Trade Receivable and Unbilled Receivable net of Unearned Liability (6,210.32) (405.91)
- Trade Payable and Provisions 1,552.84 (483.59)
- Other Financial & Non-Financial Assets 211.59 761.02
- Other Financial & Non-Financial Liabilities incl NCI 816.63 (1,170.32)
CASH GENERATED / (USED) FROM OPERATIONS 2,093.63 3,019.70
- Income Taxes paid (Net of Refunds) (655.60) (1,896.40)
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES - Total (A) 1,438.03 1,123.30
B) |CASHFLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
- Payment for Property Plant, Equipment (866.49) (1,127.63)
- Sale Proceed from Property Plant, Equipment 5.25 -
- Proceeds/(Payment) from sale/purchase of current investment 3,294.88 1,235.67
- Proceeds from fixed deposits/Bank Balances other than cash & cash equivalents (2,605.70) 524.96
(Net)
- Payment to NCI for acquisition of additional stake in subsidiary over net assets (402.54) (268.98)
- Interest received 401.15 386.25
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES - Total (B) (173.45) 750.27
C) |CASHFLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
- Proceeds from / (repayment of) borrowings (8.38) (8.38)
- Dividend Equity shares (100.00) (100.00)
- Dividend Preference shares (700.00) (23.01)
- Dividend distrubusion tax paid - (25.29)
- Interest paid (8.07) (22.18)
- Repayment of lease liability (1,391.67) (1,178.29)
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) FINANCING ACTIVITIES - Total (C) (2,208.12) (1,357.15)
NET INCREASE / (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (A+B+C) (943.53) 516.42
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS : OPENING BALANCE 3,891.68 3,379.17
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS : CLOSING BALANCE 2,948.15 3,891.68
TOTAL CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AS PER BALANCE SHEET (943.53) 512.51
- Add: Unrealised exchange (gain)/loss on cash and cash equivalents - 3.91
NET INCREASE / (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT (943.53) 516.42
Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents as per the cash flow statement
Cash and cash equivalents as per above comprise of the following
- Cash and cash equivalents 2,948.15 3,891.68
- Bank overdrafts - -
Balance as per statement of cash flows 2,948.15 3,891.68
Notes :

1 The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the "Indirect Method" as set out in the Ind AS-7 on Statement of Cash Flow as
notified under Compaines (Accounts) Rules, 2015.

2 Previous years figures have been regrouped, rearranged and reclassified wherever necessary to confirm to the current year classifications

The above statement of cash flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

As per our report of even date attached

For Khandelwal Jain & Co.

Chartered Accountants For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
(Reg No : 105049W)

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
NARENDRA JAIN Prof. S. SADAGOPAN N. MURALIDARAN M.S. SUNDARA RAJAN
Partner Chairman Managing Director & CEO  Director
Membership No.048725 DIN No. 00118285 DIN No. 06567029 DIN No. 00169775
Sd/- Sd/-
Place : Mumbai M. N. HARIHARAN VAIBHHAV KULKARNI

Date : April 21, 2021 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary




NSEIT Limited

Notes to the Consolidated financial statements

a)

b)

i

ii)

i)

Summary of significant accounting policies :
Group Overview

The NSEIT Limited ("the Group") is a Step-down Subsidiary of the National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE), the
world's second largest stock exchange by trade volume. NSEIT is a global technology firm with a focus on the financial
services industry. The Group is a vertical specialist organization with deep domain expertise and technology focus aligned to
the needs of financial institutions and offering end-to-end technology solutions covering the entire gamut of Application
Services, Testing Center of Excellence, Infrastructure Services, Integrated Security Response Center, Analytics as a Service
and IT Enabled Services (e-Assessments and e-Auctions) for BFSI segment.

The consolidated financial statements relates to the Parent Group, its subsidiary companies (collectively referred to as "the
Group")
The Consolidated Financial Statements are approved for issue by the Group's Board of Directors on April 21, 2021

Basis of preparation of Financial Statements

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the historical cost basis, except for certain
financial instruments which are measured at fair value, and are drawn up in accordance with the provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013 and Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind AS”) notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act)
[Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015], Companies ( Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules,
2016 and other relevant provisions of the Act.

Historical cost convention

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following:

« certain financial instruments that is measured at fair value, and

+ defined benefit plans - plan assets measured at fair value.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability which market participants would take into account when pricing the asset or liability at
the measurement date.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree
to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at
the measurement date;

Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly or indirectly; and

Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

Principles of consolidation and equity accounting

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the group has control. The group control an entity when the group is exposed to or has
right to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affact those returns though its power to direct
the relevant activities of the entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transfered to the group.
They are deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for business combinations by the group.

The group combines the financial statements of the parents and its subsidiaries line by line adding toghether like items of
assets, liabilities, equity, income and expenses. InterGroup transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions
between group companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of
an impairment of the transferred asset. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the group.

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of subsidiaries are shown separately in the consolidated statement of profit
and loss, consolidated statement of changes in equity and balance sheet respectively.

Associates

Associates are all entities over which the group has significant influence but not control or joint control. This is generally the
case where the group holds between 20% and 50% of the voting rights. Investments in associates are accounted for using the
equity method of accounting (see (iv) below), after initially being recognised at cost

Joint Arrangements

Under Ind AS 111 Joint Arrangements, investments in joint arrangements are classified as either joint operations or joint
ventures. The classification depends on the contractual rights and obligations of each investor, rather than the legal structure
of the joint arrangement.

Interests in joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method (see (iv) below), after initially being recognised at cost in
the consolidated balance sheet.
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Equity Method

Under the equity method of accounting, the investments are initially recognised at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise
the group’s share of the post - acquisition profits or losses of the investee in profit and loss, and the group’s share of other
comprehensive income of the investee in other comprehensive income. Dividends received or receivable from associates and
joint ventures are recognised as a reduction in the carrying amount of the investment.

When the group’s share of losses in an equity accounted investment equals or exceeds its interest in the entity, including any
other unsecured long-term receivables, the group does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or
made payments on behalf of the other entity.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the group and its associates and joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of the
group’s interest in these entities. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of equity accounted investees have been changed where necessary
to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the group.

The carrying amount of equity accounted investments are tested for impairment in accordance with the policy described in
note (n) below.

Changes in ownership interests

The group treats transactions with non-controlling interests that do not result in a loss of control as transactions with equity
owners of the group. A change in ownership interest results in an adjustment between the carrying amounts of the controlling
and non-controlling interests to reflect their relative interests in the subsidiary. Any difference between the amount of the
adjustment to non-controlling interests and any consideration paid or received is recognised within equity.

When the group ceases to consolidate or equity account for an investment because of a loss of control, joint control or
significant influence, any retained interest in the entity is remeasured to its fair value with the change in carrying amount
recognised in profit or loss. This fair value becomes the initial carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently accounting for
the retained interest as an associate, joint venture or financial asset. In addition, any amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in respect of that entity are accounted for as if the group had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities. This may mean that amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified to statement of
profit or loss.

If the ownership interest in a joint venture or an associate is reduced but joint control or significant influence is retained, only a
proportionate share of the amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss
where appropriate

Use of estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make estimates, judgments and
assumptions. These estimates, judgments and assumptions affect the application of accounting policies and the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the period. Although these estimate are based on management’s best
knowledge of current events and actions, uncertainity about the assumption and estimates could result in the outcome
requiring material adjustment to the carrying amount of asset and liabilities.

Investments and other financial assets

(i) Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:

- those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income, or through profit or loss), and
- those measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the
cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded in profit or loss or other comprehensive income.
For investments in debt instruments, this will depend on the business model in which the investment is held. For investments
in equity instruments, this will depend on whether the Group has made an irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition
to account for the equity investment at fair value through other comprehensive income. The Group reclassifies debt
investments when and only when its business model for managing those assets changes.



(ii) Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value
through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs
of financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss.

Debt instruments :-

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Group’s business model for managing the asset and the cash
flow characteristics of the asset. There are three measurement categories into which the Group classifies its debt instruments:

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest are measured at amortised cost. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently
measured at amortised cost and is not part of a hedging relationship is recognised in profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised or impaired. Interest income from these financial assets is included in finance income using the effective
interest rate method.

Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI): Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows
and for selling the financial assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, are
measured at FVOCI. Movements in the carrying amount are taken through OCI, except for the recognition of impairment gains
or losses, interest revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses which are recognised in profit and loss. When the financial
asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in Other Comphrensive Income (OCI) is reclassified
from equity to profit or loss and recognised in net gain on sale of financial assets measured at FVOCI under other income.
Interest income from these financial assets is included in other income using the effective interest rate method.

Fair value through profit or loss: Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at fair
value through profit or loss. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently measured at fair value through profit or
loss is recognised in profit or loss and presented net in the statement of profit and loss in Net fair value gain / (loss) on
financial assets mandatorily measured at FVPL under other income in the period in which it arises. Interest income from these
financial assets is included in other income.

Equity investments (other than investments in subsidiary, associates and joint venture) :-

The Group's subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value. Where the Group's management has elected to
present fair value gains and losses on equity investments in other comprehensive income, there is no subsequent
reclassification of fair value gains and losses to profit or loss. Dividends from such investments continue to be recognised in
profit or loss as other income when the Group’s right to receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are recognised in other gain/ (losses) in the
statement of profit and loss. Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment losses) on equity investments measured at FVOCI
are not reported separately from other changes in fair value.

Equity Investments (in subsidiaries, associates and joint venture)

Investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint venture are carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any.
Where an indication of impairment exists, the carrying amount of the investment is assessed and written down immediately to
its recoverable amount. The accounting policy on impairment of non-financial assets is disclosed in Note (I) below. On
disposal of investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint venture, the difference between net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amounts are recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

Acquisition-related costs are costs the acquirer incurs to effect a business combination. Those costs include finder’s fees;
advisory, legal, accounting, valuation and other professional or consulting fees; general administrative costs, including the
costs of maintaining an internal acquisitions department. The Group accounts for acquisition-related costs as expenses in the
periods in which the costs are incurred and the services are received.

(iii) Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its assets carried at amortised cost
and FVOCI debt instruments. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has been a significant increase
in credit risk.

For trade receivables only, the Group applies the simplified approach permitted by Ind AS 109, which requires expected
lifetime losses to be recognised from initial recognition of the receivables.

De-recognition of financial assets :-
A financial asset is de-recognised only when

The Group has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset or

retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but assumes a contractual obligation to pay
the cash flows to one or more recipients.

Where the Group has transferred an asset, it evaluates whether it has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial asset. In such cases, the financial asset is de-recognised. Where the Group has not transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is not de-recognised.

Where the Group has neither transferred a financial asset nor retains substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the
financial asset, the financial asset is de-recognised if the Group has not retained control of the financial asset. Where the
Group retains control of the financial asset, the asset is continued to be recognised to the extent of continuing involvement in
the financial asset.
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(iv) Income recognition

Interest income :-

Interest income from debt instruments is recognised using the effective interest rate method. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial assets to the gross carrying
amount of a financial asset. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Group estimates the expected cash flows by
considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument but does not consider the expected credit losses.

Dividends :-

Dividends are recognised in profit and loss only when the right to receive payment is established, it is probable that the
economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the Group, and the amount of the dividend can be reliably
measured.

Financial liabilities
(i) Classification as debt or equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Group are classified according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

(ii) Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are recognised when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial
liabilities are initially measured at the amortised cost unless at initial recognition, they are classified as fair value through profit
and loss.

(iii) Subsequent measurement

Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. Financial liabilities
carried at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair value with all changes in fair value recognised in the statement
of profit and loss.

(iv) Derecognition
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expires.

Transaction costs

Transaction costs are “Incremental costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, issue or disposal of a financial asset or
financial liability. An incremental cost is one that would not have been incurred if the entity had not acquired, issued or
disposed of the financial instrument. Transaction costs include fees and commission paid to agents, advisers, brokers and
dealers, levies by regulatory agencies and security exchanges, and transfer taxes and duties. Under effective interest method,
Group amortises transaction costs over the expected life of the financial instrument.

Derivatives

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-
measured to their fair value at the end of each reporting period.

Lease
Effective April 1, 2019, the Group has adopted Ind AS 116 “Leases” and applied to all lease contracts existing on April 1,
2019 using the simplified approach.

As a lessee

The Group’s lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for land and buildings. The Company assesses whether a
contract contains a lease, at inception of the contract. Ind AS 116 defines a lease as a contract, or a part of a contract, that
convey as the right of use an asset (the underlying asset) for a period of time in exchange of consideration. To assess
whether as contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Group assesses whether: (i) the contract
involves the use of an identified asset (ii) the Group has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset
through the period of the lease and (iii) the Group has the right to direct the use of the asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Group recognizes a right-of-use asset and a corresponding lease liability for
all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term of twelve months or less (short term leases) and
low value leases. For these short-term and low value leases, the Group recognizes the lease payments as an operating
expenses on a straight line basis over the term of the lease.

The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for
any lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease plus any initial direct costs less any lease
incentives. They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Right-of-use
assets are depreciated from the commencement date on straight line basis over the shorter of the lease term and useful life
of the underlying assets.
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As a lessor:

Lease for which the Group is a lessor is classified as finance or operating lease. Whenever the terms of the lease transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee, the contract is classified as a finance lease. All other
leases are classified as operating leases. For operating leases, rental income is recognized on straight line basis over the
term of the relevant lease.

Revenue Recognition

The Group earns revenue primarily from providing end-to-end technology solutions covering the entire gamut of Application
Services, Testing Center of Excellence, Infrastructure Services, Integrated Security Response Center, Analytics as a Service
and IT Enabled Services (e-Assessments and e-Auctions) for BFSI segment.

Revenue is recognised upon transfer of control of promised products or services to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration which the Group expects to receive in exchange for those products or services.

Revenue from time and material and job contracts is recognised on output basis measured by units delivered, efforts
expended, number of transactions processed, etc.

Revenue related to fixed price maintenance and support services contracts where the Group is standing ready to provide
services is recognised based on time elapsed mode and revenue is straight lined over the period of performance.

In respect of other fixed-price contracts, revenue is recognised using percentage-of-completion method (‘POC method’) of
accounting with contract costs incurred determining the degree of completion of the performance obligation. The contract
costs used in computing the revenues include cost of fulfilling warranty obligations.

Revenue from Online examination services are recognized on the basis of exams conducted and in cases where there are
multiple performance obligation, revenue is recognised using expected cost plus a margin approach where Group forecast its
expected costs of satisfying a performance obligation and then add an appropriate margin for that good or service.

Revenue from the sale of distinct third party hardware is recognised at the point in time when control is transferred to the
customer.

The solutions offered by the Group may include supply of third-party equipment or software. In such cases, revenue for supply
of such third party products are recorded at gross or net basis depending on whether the Group is acting as the principal or as
an agent of the customer. The Group recognises revenue in the gross amount of consideration when it is acting as a principal
and at net amount of consideration when it is acting as an agent.

Insurance claims are accounted on accrual basis when the claims become due and receivable.

Revenue is measured based on the transaction price, which is the consideration, adjusted for volume discounts, service level
credits, performance bonuses, price concessions and incentives, if any, as specified in the contract with the customer.
Revenue also excludes taxes collected from customers

Contract assets are recognised when there is excess of revenue earned over billings on contracts. Contract assets are
classified as unbilled receivables (only act of invoicing is pending) when there is unconditional right to receive cash, and only
passage of time is required, as per contractual terms

Unearned and deferred revenue (“contract liability”) is recognised when there is billings in excess of revenues.

In accordance with Ind AS 37, the Group recognises an onerous contract provision when the unavoidable costs of meeting the
obligations under a contract exceed the economic benefits to be received

Contracts are subject to modification to account for changes in contract specification and requirements. The Group reviews
modification to contract in conjunction with the original contract, basis which the transaction price could be allocated to a new
performance obligation, or transaction price of an existing obligation could undergo a change. In the event transaction price is
revised for existing obligation, a cumulative adjustment is accounted for.

The Group disaggregates revenue from contracts with customers by contract type, geography and nature of services.

Use of significant judgements in revenue recognition

The Group’s contracts with customers could include promises to transfer multiple products and services to a customer. The
Group assesses the products / services promised in a contract and identifies distinct performance obligations in the contract.
Identification of distinct performance obligation involves judgement to determine the deliverables and the ability of the
customer to benefit independently from such deliverables.
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Judgement is also required to determine the transaction price for the contract. The transaction price could be either a fixed
amount of customer consideration or variable consideration with elements such as volume discounts, service level credits,
performance bonuses, price concessions and incentives. The transaction price is also adjusted for the effects of the time
value of money if the contract includes a significant financing component. Any consideration payable to the customer is
adjusted to the transaction price, unless it is a payment for a distinct product or service from the customer. The estimated
amount of variable consideration is adjusted in the transaction price only to the extent that it is highly probable that a
significant reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur and is reassessed at the end of each
reporting period. The Group allocates the elements of variable considerations to all the performance obligations of the
contract unless there is observable evidence that they pertain to one or more distinct performance obligations.

The Group uses judgement to determine an appropriate standalone selling price for a performance obligation. The Group
allocates the transaction price to each performance obligation on the basis of the relative standalone selling price of each
distinct product or service promised in the contract. Where standalone selling price is not observable, the Group uses the
expected cost plus margin approach to allocate the transaction price to each distinct performance obligation.

The Group exercises judgement in determining whether the performance obligation is satisfied at a point in time or over a
period of time. The Group considers indicators such as how customer consumes benefits as services are rendered or who
controls the asset as it is being created or existence of enforceable right to payment for performance to date and alternate use
of such product or service, transfer of significant risks and rewards to the customer, acceptance of delivery by the customer,
etc.

Revenue for fixed-price contract is recognised using percentage-of-completion method. The Group uses judgement to
estimate the future cost-to-completion of the contracts which is used to determine the degree of completion of the
performance obligation

Contract fulfilment costs are generally expensed as incurred except for certain software licence costs which meet the criteria
for capitalisation. The assessment of this criteria requires the application of judgement, in particular when considering if costs
generate or enhance resources to be used to satisfy future performance obligations and whether costs are expected to be
recovered.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost of acquisition less accumulated depreciation/amortization and impairment
loss, if any. The cost is inclusive of freight, installation cost, duties, taxes, borrowing cost and other incidental expenses for
bringing the asset to its working conditions for its intended use but net of Input Tax Credits, wherever input credit is claimed.
When significant parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced in intervals, the Group recognizes such
parts as separate component of assets with specific useful lives and provides depreciation over their useful life.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it
is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably.

All other repair and maintenance costs are recognized in Income statement as incurred.

Depreciation

Depreciation on tangible fixed assets is provided on Straight Line Method as per the useful life and in the manner prescribed
in Schedule Il to Companies Act, 2013 except in case of Aujas Cybersecurity Limited office equipment at 3 years as per
management estimation. Fixed Furniture and fixtures, Electrical installation and Office equipment including civil improvements
at lease hold premises are depreciated over the lease period.

The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at each year end, with the effect of any
changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

Depreciation on assets purchased / disposed off during the year is provided on pro rata basis with reference to the date of
additions / deductions.

The gain or loss arising on disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amounts of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Intangible assets

Goodwill:

Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidiaries is included in intangible assets. Goodwill is not amortised but it is tested for
impairment annually, or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that it might be impaired, and is carried
at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Gains and losses on the disposal of an entity include the carrying amount of
goodwill relating to the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the purpose of impairment testing. The allocation is made to those
cashgenerating units or groups of cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the business combination in which
the goodwill arose. The units or groups of units are identified at the lowest level at which goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes, which in our case are the operating segments
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Other intangible assets:

Intangible assets comprising of software are recorded at acquisition cost and are amortized over the estimated useful life on
straight line basis. Software products/ licenses purchased/ acquired for internal use of the Group which have expected longer
life are capitalised and depreciated over a period of 3 years on Straight Line Method.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised.Costs associated with maintaining software programs are recognised as an expense as and when incurred.

Development costs

Development expenditures on an individual project are recognised as an intangible asset when the Group can demonstrate:

- The technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that the asset will be available for use

- Its intention to complete and its ability and intention to use the asset

- How the asset will generate future economic benefits

- The ability to measure reliably the expenditure during development

- Availability of adequate, financial and other resources to complete the development and to use / sell the intangible asset

- Adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the development and to use or sell the software are available

The costs which can be capitalized include the cost of material, direct labour, overhead costs that are directly attributable for
preparing the asset for its intended use.

Following initial recognition of the development expenditure as an asset, the asset is carried at cost less any accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation of the asset begins when development is complete and the
asset is available for use. It is amortised over the period of expected future benefit. Amortisation expense is recognised in the
statement of profit and loss unless such expenditure forms part of carrying value of another asset.

During the period of development, the asset is tested for impairment annually.

Impairment of assets

Goodwill and intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for
impairment, or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that they might be impaired. Other assets are
tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. For the
purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash
inflows which are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets (cash-generating units). Non-
financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at the
end of each reporting period.

Inventory :
The Inventory is valued at cost or net realizable value whichever is lower.

Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of cash flows

Cash and Cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held at call with financial institutions, other short-term, highly
liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignifican risk of changes in value. These do not include bank balances earmarked/restricted for
specific purposes.

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit for the period is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a
non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments and item of income or
expenses associated with investing or financing cash flows. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities
of the Group are segregated.

Foreign currency transactions and translation

Functional and presentation currency

Iltems included in the financial statements of the Group are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates (‘the functional currency’). The financial statements are presented in Indian currency (INR), which
is the Group’s functional and presentation currency.

Transactions and translations

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates at the dates of the
transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the period end exchange rates are recognised in profit or
loss.



Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date
when the fair value was determined. Translation differences on assets and liabilities carried at fair value are reported as part
of the fair value gain or loss. For example, translation differences on non-monetary assets and liabilities such as equity
instruments held at fair value through profit or loss are recognised in profit or loss as part of the fair value gain or loss and
translation differences on non-monetary assets such as equity investments classified as FVOCI are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

Group Companies

The results and financial position of foreign operations that have a functional currency different from the presentation currency
are translated into the presentation currency as follows:

« assets and liabilities are translated at the closing rate at the date of that balance sheet;

* income and expenses are translated at average exchange rates (unless this is not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case income and expenses are translated at the
dates of the transactions); and

« all resulting exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the translation of any net investment in foreign entities are recognised in
other comprehensive income. When a foreign operation is sold, the associated exchange differences are reclassified to
statement of profit or loss, as part of the gain or loss on sale

Employee benefits

Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months
after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service are the amounts expected to be paid when the
liabilities are settled. Short term employee benefits are recognised in statement of profit and loss in the period in which the
related service is rendered. The liabilities are presented as current employee benefit obligations in the balance sheet.

Other long-term employee benefit obligations

The liabilities for earned leave are not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in which the
employees render the related service. They are therefore measured as the present value of expected future payments to be
made in respect of services provided by employees up to the end of the reporting period using the projected unit credit
method. The benefits are discounted using the market yields at the end of the reporting period that have terms approximating
to the terms of the related obligation. Remeasurements as a result of experience adjustments and changes in actuarial
assumptions are recognised in profit or loss. The obligations are presented as current liabilities in the balance sheet since the
Group does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement for at least twelve months after the reporting period, regardless
of when the actual settlement is expected to occur.

Post-employment obligations

The Group operates the following post-employment schemes:

(a) defined benefit plans such as gratuity, and

(b) Defined contribution plans such as provident fund and superannuation

Gratuity obligations

The Group has maintained a Group Gratuity Cum Life Assurance Scheme with the Life Insurance Corporation of India (LIC)
towards which it annually contributes a sum determined by LIC. The liability or asset recognised in the balance sheet in
respect of defined benefit gratuity plans is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period
less the fair value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by actuaries using the projected unit
credit method. The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future cash
outflows by reference to yields on government securities at the end of the reporting period that have terms approximating to
the terms of the related obligation. The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the
defined benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets. This cost is included in employee benefit expense in the statement
of profit and loss.

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised
in the period in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive income. They are included in retained earnings in the
statement of changes in equity and in the balance sheet.

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan amendments or curtailments are recognised
immediately in profit or loss as past service cost.

Defined contribution plans

Superannuation

Superannuation benefit for employees designated as managers and above is covered by Group Superannuation Scheme with
the Life Insurance Corporation of India towards which it annually contributes a sum based on a specified percentage of each
covered employees’ salary. The contribution paid for the year on the Group Superannuation Scheme is charged to revenue.
Provident Fund

W.e.f. 1st August 2010, the Group had transferred the corpus balance of the NSEIT Ltd. Employees Provident Fund Trust to
the Regional Provident Fund Office, Kandivali, Mumbai. As per the applicable rule the Group contributes 12% of the
employee’s basic salary to the said recognized provident fund and the same is charged to revenue.
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Bonus plans
The Group recognises a liability and an expense for bonuses. The Group recognises a provision where contractually obliged
or where there is a past practice that has created a constructive obligation.

Business Combinations
The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for all business combinations, regardless of whether equity
instruments or other assets are acquired. The consideration transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary comprises:

« the fair values of the assets transferred;

« liabilities incurred to the former owners of the acquired business;

* equity interests issued by the Group; an

« fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are, with limited
exceptions, measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date. The Group recognizes any non-controlling interest in
the acquired entity on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate
share of the acquired entity’s net identifiable assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

The excess of the

« consideration transferred;

» amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquired entity, an

* acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest in the acquired entit

over the fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If those amounts are less than the fair value
of the net identifiable assets of the business acquired, the difference is recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity as capital reserve provided there is clear evidence of the underlying reasons for classifying the
business combination as a bargain purchase. In other cases, the bargain purchase gain is recognised directly in equity as
capital reserve

Where settlement of any part of cash consideration is deferred, the amounts payable in the future are discounted to their
present value as at the date of exchange. The discount rate used is the entity’s incremental borrowing rate, being the rate at
which a similar borrowing could be obtained from an independent financier under comparable terms and conditions.

Contingent consideration is classified either as equity or a financial liability. Amounts classified as a financial liability are
subsequently remeasured to fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

If the business consideration is achieved in stages, the acquisition date carrying value of the acquirers previously held equity
interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date. Any gains or losses arising from such
remeasurement are recognised in profit or loss or other comprehensive income, as appropriate.

Income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period’s taxable income based on the
applicable income tax rate adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to temporary differences and
to unused tax losses, if any.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the
reporting period. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts
expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates
(and laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period and are expected to apply when
the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and are recognised only if it is
probable that future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax assets are not recognised for temporary differences between the carrying amount and tax bases of investments
in subsidiaries, associates and interest in joint arrangements where it is not probable that the differences will reverse in the
foreseeable future and taxable profit will not be available against which the temporary difference can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and liabilities
and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where
the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle
the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity, respectively.

Dividend distribution tax paid on the dividends is recognised consistently with the presentation of the transaction that creates
the income tax consequence. Dividend distribution tax is charged to statement of profit and loss if the dividend itself is
charged to statement of profit and loss. If the dividend is recognised in equity, the presentation of dividend distribution tax is
recognised in equity.
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Contributed equity
Equity shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown
in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Provisions, Contingent liabilities and Contingent assets

A provision is recognised when the Group has a present obligation as a result of past event and it is probable that an outflow
of resources will be required to settle the obligation, in respect of which reliable estimate can be made. Provisions (excluding
retirement benefits) are discounted to its present value and are determined based on best estimate required to settle the
obligation at the balance sheet date. These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best
estimates. Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the financial statements. Contingent liabilities are not disclosed in case
the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote. A contingent asset is neither recognised nor
disclosed in the financial statements.

Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Group prior to the end of financial period which are
unpaid. Trade and other payables are presented as current liabilities unless payment is not due within 12 months after the
reporting period. They are recognised initially at their fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

Current versus non-current classification

The Group presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification.

An asset is treated as current when it is:

- Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

- Held primarily for the purpose of trading

- Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

- Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after
the reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:

- Itis expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

- Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading

- Itis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

- There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period
all other liabilities as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash
equivalents. The Group has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

Dividends
Final dividends on shares are recorded as a liability on the date of approval by shareholders and interim dividends are
recorded as a liability on the date of declaration by the Group’s Board of Directors.

Trade receivables
Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less provision for impairment.

Group financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet where there is a legally
enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be
enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Group or the
counterparty.

Earnings per share

Basic and diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit attributable to equity shareholders for the year, by
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

(i) Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:

« the profit attributable to owners of the Group

* by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year, adjusted for bonus elements in
equity shares issued during the year.

(ii) Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per share to take into account:

« the after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive potential equity shares, and

+ the weighted average number of additional equity shares that would have been outstanding assuming the conversion of all
dilutive potential equity shares.
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Critical accounting estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements requires the use of accounting estimates which, by definition, will seldom equal the
actual results. This note provides an overview of the areas that involved a higher degree of judgment or complexity, and of
items which are more likely to be materially adjusted due to estimates and assumptions turning out to be different than those
originally assessed. Detailed information about each of these estimates and judgments is included in relevant notes together
with information about the basis of calculation for each affected line item in the financial statements.

The areas involving critical estimates or judgements are:

Use of significant judgements in revenue recognition

Estimation of useful life of tangible asset and intangible asset (Note 2)

Recognition of deferred tax assets [(Note 21(D)]

Estimation of defined benefit obligation (Note 31)

Estimation of contingent liabilities and commitments (Note 33 & 34)

Impairment of Assets [Note 1(n)]

Recoverability of Trade Receivables [Note 43 (C)]

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated. They are based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that may have a financial impact on the Group and that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

Recent Pronouncement:

On March 24, 2021, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") through a notification, amended Schedule Il of the Companies
Act, 2013. The amendments revise Division |, Il and Ill of Schedule Il and are applicable from April 1, 2021. Key amendments
relating to Division Il which relate to companies whose financial statements are required to comply with Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules 2015 are:

Balance Sheet:

* Lease liabilities should be separately disclosed under the head ‘financial liabilities’, duly distinguished as current or non-
current.

« Certain additional disclosures in the statement of changes in equity such as changes in equity share capital due to prior
period errors and restated balances at the beginning of the current reporting period.
+ Specified format for disclosure of shareholding of promoters.

» Specified format for ageing schedule of trade receivables, trade payables, capital work-in-progress and intangible asset
under development.

* If a company has not used funds for the specific purpose for which it was borrowed from banks and financial institutions,
then disclosure of details of where it has been used.

« Specific disclosure under ‘additional regulatory requirement’ such as compliance with approved schemes of arrangements,
compliance with number of layers of companies, title deeds of immovable property not held in name of company, loans and
advances to promoters, directors, key managerial personnel (KMP) and related parties, details of benami property held etc.

Statement of profit and loss:
+ Additional disclosures relating to Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR), undisclosed income and crypto or virtual currency
specified under the head ‘additional information’ in the notes forming part of the standalone financial statements.

The amendments are extensive and the Company will evaluate the same to give effect to them as required by law.

Rounding of amounts
All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest lakhs as per the
requirement of Schedule lll, unless otherwise stated.
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Notes to the Consolidated financial statements

2a: Property, Plant & Equipment and Intangible Assets (Rs in Lakhs)
GROSS CARRYING AMOUNT ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION NET CARRYING AMOUNT
Sr No. Category As on . . As on As on . As on As on As on
1-Apr-20 Additions Deductions 31-Mar-21 1-Apr-20 For the year | Deductions 31-Mar-21 31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20

a Tangible Assets
Computer Hardware and Servers &

1 Networks 2,476.16 234.22 145.88 2,564.49 1,758.96 399.05 145.51 2,012.50 551.99 717.20
2 Office Equipment 650.56 121.20 5.40 766.35 535.27 68.39 5.40 598.26 168.09 115.29
3 Furniture & Fixtures 288.39 14.79 11.25 291.93 272.95 10.23 6.55 276.62 15.30 15.44
4 Vehicles - - - - - - - - - -
5 Building - Civil Work 105.53 103.46 - 208.99 105.53 34.39 - 139.92 69.07 0.00
3,520.63 473.67 162.54 3,831.76 2,672.71 512.06 157.47 3,027.30 804.46 847.93
b Intangible Assets
1 Computer Software 1,585.00 609.28 - 2,194.29 976.02 333.53 - 1,309.55 884.74 608.99
2 Software copyrights 259.06 - - 259.06 259.06 - - 259.06 0.00 0.00
1,844.07 609.28 - 2,453.35 1,235.08 333.53 - 1,568.61 884.74 608.99
GRAND TOTAL 5,364.70 1,082.95 162.54 6,285.11 3,907.79 845.59 157.47 4,595.91 1,689.20 1,456.91
PREVIOUS YEAR 4,566.55 889.64 91.50 5,364.69 3,368.03 631.23 91.48 3,907.79 1,456.91
GROSS CARRYING AMOUNT ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION NET CARRYING AMOUNT
Sr No. Category As on . . As on As on . As on As on As on
1-Apr-19 Additions | Deductions | 54\ 59 1-Apr-19 | Fortheyear| Deductions | .4 o 50 | 31-Mar-20 | 31-Mar-19
a Tangible Assets
1 EZR‘V‘;‘::: Hardware and Servers & 2,235.22 284.59 43.65 2,476.16 1,381.89 420.72 43.65 1,758.96 717.20 853.33
2 Office Equipment 634.57 54.04 38.06 650.56 542.94 30.37 38.04 535.27 115.28 91.63
3 Furniture & Fixtures 286.72 11.45 9.79 288.39 278.01 4.72 9.79 272.95 15.44 8.71
4 Vehicles - - - - - - - - - -
5 Building - Civil Work 105.53 - - 105.53 105.53 - - 105.53 0.00 0.00
3,262.04 350.09 91.50 3,520.63 2,308.37 455.82 91.48 2,672.71 847.92 953.67
b Intangible Assets
1 Computer Software 1,045.45 539.56 - 1,585.00 800.60 175.41 - 976.02 608.99 244.84
2 Software copyrights 259.06 - - 259.06 259.06 - - 259.06 0.00 0.00
1,304.51 539.56 - 1,844.07 1,059.67 175.41 - 1,235.08 608.99 244.84
GRAND TOTAL 4,566.55 889.64 91.50 5,364.69 3,368.03 631.23 91.48 3,907.79 1,456.91 1,198.52
PREVIOUS YEAR 3,927.32 585.07 226.40 4,566.55 2,983.28 472.73 212.35 3,368.03 1,198.52

* During the year, the Company has carried out development / enhancement of various software for rendering its existing business services. Since these software will generate future economic benefits, the
company has capitalised the development/ enhancement cost of Rs. 490.71 Lakhs. The estimated useful life of these software is 3 years and are amortised over the said period




NSEIT Limited

Notes to the Consolidated financial statements

2.b : Capital Work In Progress

(Rs in Lakhs )

As at As at

Particulars 31-03-2021 31-03-2020
Opening Balance - Carrying amount 102.25 8.10
Additions 211.36 389.13
Disposals - -
Transfers 288.65 294.98
Closing Balance - Carrying amount 24.97 102.25
2.c : Intangible assets under development

Particulars 31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20
Opening Balance - Carrying amount 118.51 -
Additions 531.57 609.21
Disposals - -
Transfers 603.17 490.71
Closing Balance - Carrying amount 46.91 118.51

*As at 31.03.2021, a sum of Rs. 46.91 Lakhs (previous year Rs. 118.51 Lakhs) has been shown as Intangible Assets
Under Development. These are towards various software under development which will enhance the existing

business services as well offering new products in the market.

2.d : Right to Use

Following are the changes in the carrying value of right of use assets for the year ended 31 March 2021:

Particulars Category of ROU asset
As at 31 March | As at 31 March
2021 2020
Building Building
Balance as at begining 2,430.67 -
Additions 923.55 3,491.11
Deletion (213.22) (23.87)
Depreciation (1,286.80) (1,036.57)
Balance as at end 1,854.20 2,430.67

The aggregate depreciation expense on ROU assets is included under depreciation and amortization expense in the

statement of Profit and Loss.




The following is the break-up of current and non-current lease liabilities as at 31 March 2021

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2021 | 31 March 2020
Current lease liabilities 1,029.42 1,070.62
Non-current lease liabilitie 971.93 1,466.00
Total 2,001.35 2,536.62
The following is the movement in lease liabilities during the year ended 31 March 2021:
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2021 | 31 March 2020
Balance at the beginning 2,536.62 -
Additions 923.54 3,491.11
Finance cost accrued during the year 208.87 247.67
Deletions (229.84) (24.88)
Payment of lease liabilities (1,375.05) (1,177.28)
Extinguishment of lease liabilities (refer note 54) (62.82)
Balance at the end 2,001.32 2,536.62

The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of lease liabilities as at 31 March 2021 on an

undiscounted basis:

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2021 | 31 March 2020
Less than one year 1,246.67 1,269.14
One to five years 856.03 1,614.59
More than five years - 20.17
Total 2,102.70 2,903.90

The Company does not face a significant liquidity risk with regard to its lease liabilities as the current assets are
sufficient to meet the obligations related to lease liabilities as and when they fall due.

Rental expense recorded for short-term leases was Rs 193.09 Lakhs for the year ended 31 March 2021 (Rs 298.37

Lakhs for the year ended 31 March 2020)

The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of lease liabilities as at 31 March 2021 on an

undiscounted basis:

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2021 | 31 March 2020
Less than one year 147.56 209.78
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Non-current Investments As at As at
31.03.2021 31.03.2020
(Rs in Lakhs )

A Unquoted Equity instrument

NSE Foundation * 0.00 0.00
[ 1000 Equity share of Rs. 10 each fully paid ]

0.00 0.00

* NSE Foundation is incorporated under section 8 of the Companies Act, 2013 and intends to apply its profits, if
any, or other income in promoting its objects and any payment of dividend to its members is prohibited.

Other Financial Assets (Non-current) As at As at
31.03.2021 31.03.2020

(Rs in Lakhs )

Non-Current Bank Balances

Fixed deposits with maturity for more than 12 months 38.43 7.00
Earmarked fixed deposits with maturity for more than 12 months * 2,026.52 369.71
2,064.95 376.71

Loans
Security deposit (unsecured, considered good) 65.07 66.26
65.07 66.26

Others
Interest accrued on Bank deposits 3.26 0.39
3.26 0.39
Total 2,133.28 443.36

* Earnmarked deposits are restricted. These deposits are earnmarked against forward contracts /performance
guarantee

Income Tax Assets (net) (Non-current) As at As at
31.03.2021 31.03.2020
(Rs in Lakhs )
Income Tax Assets (net) 1,229.41 1,770.18
Income Tax Liabilities (net) - -
Total 1,229.41 1,770.18
Other assets (Non-current) As at As at
31.03.2021 31.03.2020
(Rs in Lakhs )
Capital Advance 8.60 13.81
Prepaid expenses 61.85 15.71
Deferred Transaction Cost 46.56 61.12
Total 117.01 90.64
Current Investments As at As at
31.03.2021 31.03.2020

(Rs in Lakhs )

Investments in Mutual Funds
Unquoted Investment in Mutual funds at FVPL (Refer Note 41) 2,273.06 5,321.96

Total 2,273.06 5,321.96
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Trade receivables As at As at
31.03.2021 31.03.2020

(Rs in Lakhs )

Trade Receivables 12,840.78 8,639.47
Less : Loss Allowances (Refer Note 43) (923.33) (581.19)
11,917.45 8,058.28

Breakup of security details

Trade Receivables considered good -Secured - -
Trade Receivables considered good -Unsecured 11,917.45 8,058.28
Trade Receivables which have significant increase in credit risk - -

Trade Receivables credit impaired * 923.33 581.19
Total 12,840.78 8,639.47
Loss allowances (Refer Note 43) (923.33) (581.19)
Total 11,917.45 8,058.28

* This includes an amount of Rs.582.99 Lakhs for Provision for Doubtful Debts (Previous year Rs. 408.94 Lakhs)
and Rs.340.34 Lakhs for Provison for Expected Credit Loss (Previous Year Rs. 172.25 Lakhs).

Unbilled Receivables As at As at
31.03.2021 31.03.2020
(Rs in Lakhs )
Unbilled Receivables 3,305.96 1,296.95
Total 3,305.96 1,296.95
Cash and Cash equivalents As at As at
31.03.2021 31.03.2020
(Rs in Lakhs )
Balances with banks
- In Current Accounts 883.17 878.87
- In Savings Accounts 2.94 3.01
- In Flexi Deposits 2,052.75 3,009.47
Fund in transit 9.10 -
Cash on hand 0.19 0.33
2,948.15 3,891.68
Bank Balances other than Cash and cash equivalents
Fixed deposits
- with original maturity for more than 3 months but less than 12 - -
months
- with original maturity for more than 12 months 45.99 694.53
Earmarked fixed / flexi deposits *
- with original maturity for more than 3 months but less than 12 - -
months
- with original maturity for more than 12 months 3,821.94 1,884.37
Escrow Account with ICICI Bank** - 371.57
3,867.93 2,950.47
Total 6,816.08 6,842.15

* Earmarked deposits are restricted. These deposits are earmarked against forward contracts / performance
guarantee

** Previous year amount represent the part of deferred consideration payable to ex-promoters towards investment
in subsidiary (Aujas Cybersecurity Limited).
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Other Financial Assets (Current)

Loans
Security deposit (unsecured, considered good)

Others

Interest accrued on Bank deposits

Loan to Employee (unsecured, considered good)
Other advances (unsecured, considered good)

Total

Other Current assets

Advance to Creditors (unsecured, considered good)
Advance to Staff for Expenses (unsecured, considered good)
Salary Advance (unsecured, considered good)

Prepaid expenses

Deferred Transaction Cost

Balance with GST Authorities

Total

As at As at
31.03.2021 31.03.2020
(Rs in Lakhs )

577.94 669.66
577.94 669.66
48.34 74.65
33.20 2417
0.66 -
82.20 98.82
660.14 768.48
As at As at
31.03.2021 31.03.2020

(Rs in Lakhs )

163.61 319.23
88.57 332.72
- 1.84
575.82 328.91
14.55 15.91
- 19.81
842.55 1,018.42
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A Equity Share Capital As at As at
31.03.2021 31.03.2020
(Rs in Lakhs )
Authorised
15,000,000 (Previous Year 15,000,000 ) Equity Shares of Rs 10 1,500.00 1,500.00
each.

Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up

10,000,010 (Previous year 10,000,010) Equity shares of Rs.10 each 1,000.00 1,000.00
fully paid up.

There is no movement either in the number of shares or in amount between previous year and current year.

Terms and rights attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10/- per share. Each holder of equity
shares is entitled to one vote per share. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the
approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. In the event of liquidation of the Company,
the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all
preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the
shareholders.

The Board of Directors in the meeting on April 21, 2021, have proposed a final dividend of Rs. 150.00 lakhs for
the Financial Year ended March 31, 2021. The proposal is subject to approval of the shareholders at the ensuing
annual general meeting to be held and if approved would result in a cash outflow of approximately Rs. 150.00
lakhs.

The Board of Directors in the meeting on June 20, 2020, have proposed a final dividend of Rs.100.00 lakhs for
the Financial Year ended March 31, 2020. The proposal is subject to approval of the shareholders at the ensuing
annual general meeting to be held and if approved would result in a cash outflow of approximately Rs.100.00
lakhs.

Details of shareholders holding more than 5% share in the As at 31.03.2021
Company

No. % holding
Equity shares of Rs 10/- each fully paid 1,00,00,010 100%

NSE Investments Limited (Holding Company)

As at 31.03.2020

No. % holding
Equity shares of Rs 10/- each fully paid 1,00,00,010 100%
NSE Investments Limited (Holding Company)
Preference Share Capital As at As at

31.03.2021 31.03.2020

Authorised, Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Preference capital (Rs in Lakhs )
10,000,000 (March 31, 2020:10,000,000) cumulative redeemable 10,000.00 10,000.00
preference shares of Rs. 100 each
Details of shareholders holding more than 5% As at 31.03.2021

No. % holding
Cumulative redeemable preference shares of Rs. 100 each 1,00,00,000 100%

NSE Investments Limited (Holding Company)

As at 31.03.2020

No. % holding

Cumulative redeemable preference shares of Rs. 100 each 1,00,00,000 100%
NSE Investments Limited (Holding Company)
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Other Equity As at As at
31.03.2021 31.03.2020
General reserve
As per last balance sheet 5,436.06 5,436.06
Add : Transferred from surplus balance in the Statement of Profit & - -
Loss
5,436.06 5,436.06
Retained Earnings - Surplus/(deficit) in the statement of profit and loss
As per last balance sheet 9,591.61 8,503.12
Add : Profit / (Loss) for the year 2,602.14 1,254.73
Less : Other Comprehensive Income (19.66) (45.68)
Less : Equity Dividend Paid (100.00) (100.00)
Less : Tax on equity dividend paid - (20.56)
12,074.09 9,591.61

Foreign Currency Translation Reserve
As per last balance sheet 7.08 57.88
Add : Transferred from Statement of Profit & Loss 15.55 (50.80)

22.63 7.08
Total Other Equity 17,532.78 15,034.75
Borrowings As at As at

31.03.2021 31.03.2020

(Rs in Lakhs )
Unsecured
7%, Seven Years, Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares (CRPS) 10,000.00 10,000.00
10,000,000 (Previous year 10,000,000) Preference shares of Rs.100
each fully paid up

10,000.00 10,000.00

Terms and conditions for issue of Preference shares

Rate of Dividend : Dividend rate will be 7% p.a. (on the face value) which will remain fixed over the tenure of the

CRPS
Cumulative: The CRPS will carry Cumulative Dividend Right.

Priority with Respect to payment of dividend or repayment of captial : The CRPS will carry a preferential
right vis-a-vis equity shares of the Company with respect to the payment of dividend and repayment of capital
during winding up.

Tenure & conversion / Redemptions Terms : The amount subscribed/paid on each CRPS shall be redeemed
after 7 years from the date of allotment of the CRPS. Each CRPS shall be redeemed at the same price as
received at the time of subscription i.e. Face Value.

Conversion: CRPS shall not be convertible into equity shares
Voting rights : CRPS shall carry voting rights as per the provisions of Section 47(2) of the Companies Act 2013

Redemption: All the CRPS shall be redeemed at the end of 7 years from the date of allotment i.e. 20th March
2019.
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Other Financial Liabilities (Non-current)

Lease Liablility
Total

Provisions (Non-current)

Employee benefits obligation

Provision for Gratuity (Ref. Note 31)

Provision for Leave Encashment (Ref. Note 31)
Provision for variable pay and incentives

Total

Trade Payables (Current)

Trade payables
Trade payables to MSME (Refer note 35)
Trade payables to related Party (refer note 32)

Total

Other Financial Liabilities (Current)

Creditors for Investment

Creditors for Capital Expenditure

Current maturities of Term Loan (Secured)*
Lease Liablility

Dividend payable on preference shares
Total

As at As at
31.03.2021 31.03.2020
(Rs in Lakhs )
971.93 1,466.00
971.93 1,466.00
As at As at
31.03.2021 31.03.2020

(Rs in Lakhs )

220.42 253.17
197.99 114.98
65.38 31.43
483.79 399.58
As at As at
31.03.2021 31.03.2020
(Rs in Lakhs )
3,994.00 3,117.69
40.92 33.40
113.92 104.25
4,148.84 3,255.34
As at As at
31.03.2021 31.03.2020
(Rs in Lakhs )
- 371.57
88.17 25.80
- 8.38
1,029.41 1,070.62
700.00 700.00
1,817.57 2,176.36

* Term loan from kotak Mahindra Bank Limited : Rs. 30 lakhs taken during the previous year. It is repayable in 24

monthly instalments ; interest 16% p.a Secured by lien on fixed deposit.
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Provisions (Current) As at As at
31.03.2021 31.03.2020
(Rs in Lakhs )
Employee benefits obligation
Provision for Gratuity (Ref. Note 31) 169.55 221.32
Provision for Leave Encashment (Ref. Note 31) 317.02 248.98
Provision for variable pay and incentives 703.26 994.41
Total 1,189.82 1,464.70
Income Taxes
The major components of income tax expense are as follows:
Profit or loss section
As at As at
Particulars 31.03.2021 31.03.2020
(Rs in Lakhs )
Current tax 1,136.01 942.80
Short / Excess Tax for earlier years 14.82 39.78
Deferred taxes movement of Asset 42.10 (50.73)
Foreign tax 103.67 -
Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit or loss 1,296.60 931.85
OClI section
Deferred tax related to items recognised in OCI during in the year:
Particulars As at As at
31.03.2021 31.03.2020
(Rs in Lakhs )
Re-measurement of the defined benefit liability / asset 29.65 23.75
Equity instruments through Other Comprehensive Income - -
Income tax gain/(charged) to Other Comprehensive Income 29.65 23.75

Reconciliation of the Income Tax provision to the amount computed by applying the statutory income tax rate to

the income before income taxes

. Year ended Year ended
Particulars 31.03.2021 31.03.2020
Profit before income tax expense 3,902.09 2,161.02
Applicable tax rate 25.168% 25.168%
Computed expected tax expenses 983.26 543.89
-Losses on which deferred tax assets not created by a subsidiary - 134.36
- Disallowance due to contribution to NSE 18.19 8.95
- Income taxable on issue of equity shares 9.62 -

- Expenditure not allowable 16.22 -
-Brought forward Losses set-off during the year (107.69) -

- Dividend & other cost for issue of Preference shares 180.18 180.55

- Tax effect on temporary differences not recognized as deferred 55.78 -
taxes

- Short / (excess) Tax for earlier years 14.82 39.78

- Foreign tax 103.67 1.80
- Other Impacts 22.54 22.52
Current Income Tax for the year 1,296.60 931.86
The movement in the current income tax asset/ (liability) is as follows:

As at As at
Particulars 31.03.2021 31.03.2020
(Rs in Lakhs )

Net current income tax asset/(liability) at the beginning 1,727.71 813.89
Income tax Paid / (Refund) 655.60 1,896.40
Current / Foreign income tax expense (1,239.68) (942.80)
Short / Excess Tax for earlier years (14.82) (39.77)
Net current income tax asset/(liability) at the end 1,128.81 1,727.71
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Notes to the Consolidated financial statements

(D) The tax effects of significant temporary differences that resulted in deferred income tax assets and liabilities are as follows:

(E)

As at As at
Particulars 31.03.2021 31.03.2020
(Rs in Lakhs )

Deferred income tax assets

Impact of difference between depreciation /amortization charged for the 97.48 70.64

financial reporting and tax depreciation

Impact of difference arising on account of impairment of intangible asset and 1.51 2.02

tax depreciation,

Impact of Gratuity , Leave Encashment & Perfomance Bonus 169.90 281.13

Imapct of Provision for Doubtful Debts 186.84 122.16

Impact on account of Lease obligation 18.31 17.19

Total deferred income tax assets 474.05 493.14

Deferred income tax liabilities

Impact of fair value on Investment in Mutual Funds 49.22 55.86

Total deferred income tax liabilities 49.22 55.86

Deferred income tax asset after set off 424.83 437.28

Movement in Deferred Tax Assets

Provision Actuarial
. .__| for Gratuity, | Disallowance Gain/ (Loss)
Deprecia|Amortiza . -
tion on | tion on Leave uls 40 (a)(ia) | Provision through
Particulars . .. .|Encashment Non for Doubtful OCl for Total
Tangible | Intangibl . .
Assets |e Assets & Deduction of Debts Gratuity &
Performanc TDS Leave
e Pay Encashment

At 1st April 2019 79.15 3.1 166.41 - 113.83 21.38 | 383.87
Charged / (Credited) - - - - - - -

- to profit or loss (8.51) (1.09) 69.59 17.19 8.33 - 85.52
- to other comprehensive income - - - - - 23.75 23.75
- to retained earning - - - - - - -

- Adjustment of Business combination -
At 31st March 2020 70.64 2.02 236.00 1719 122.16 45.13 | 493.14
Charged / (Credited)

- to profit or loss 26.84 (0.51) (140.88) 1.12 64.68 - (48.75)
- to other comprehensive income 29.65 29.65
- to retained earning - - - - - -
At 31st March 2021 97.48 1.51 95.12 18.31 186.84 74.78 | 474.04




(F) Movement in Deferred Tax Liabilities

Financial
Deprecia|Amortiza| Assets at
. tion on | tionon | Fair Value
Particulars Tangible [Intangibl| through Total
Assets |e Assets| profit and
Loss

At 1st April 2019 - - 21.07 21.07
Charged / (Credited)

- to profit or loss - - 34.79 34.79

- to other comprehensive income - - - -

- to retained earning - - - -
At 31st March 2020 - - 55.86 55.86
Charged / (Credited)

- to profit or loss - - (6.64) (6.64)
- to other comprehensive income - - - -

- to retained earning - - - -
At 31st March 2021 - - 49.22 49.22

(9) In case of Aujas Cybersecurity Limited
i) Brought forward losses

The Subsidiary Company had brought forward losses of X 427 lakhs (31 March 2020 : % 306 lakhs) which the Subsidiary Company has set-off
against the taxable income of the current year.

ii) Recognised deferred taxes

Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the deductible temporary

differences and carry forward losses can be utilized. Due to lack of convincing evidence, the Subsidiary Company has not recorded deferred tax
assets on deductible temporary differences.

ii) The Subsidiary Company has non-current tax assets of ¥ 316.54 lakhs and % 1,068.60 lakhs as at 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020 respectively.
These assets relate to tax deducted at source which are recoverable from the Government.
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Income Tax Liabilities (net) (Current)

Income Tax Assets (net)
Income Tax Liabilities (net)
Total

Other liabilities (Current)

Statutory dues payable
Advance received from customers
Income received in advance

Total

As at As at
31.03.2021 31.03.2020
(Rs in Lakhs )

100.60 42.47
100.60 42.47
As at As at
31.03.2021 31.03.2020
(Rs in Lakhs )
1,274.37 705.32
709.58 505.29
609.79 155.50
2,593.75 1,366.10
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Revenue from operations Year ended Year ended
31.03.2021 31.03.2020

(Rs in Lakhs )

Operating revenues
Sale of Products :

- Software Products 13.62 2.05
- Traded Goods 1,597.79 531.94
1,611.41 533.99

Sale of Services :
- Software Product Revenues 719.67 599.41
- Application Development & Maintenance Services 20,628.08 17,234.21
- Infrastructure Management Services 4,297.64 3,444.65
- ITES - Assessment Services 12,010.94 15,203.79
- Customer Care Services 511.25 612.96
38,167.57 37,095.01
Total 39,778.99 37,629.00

Disaggregate revenue information

The table below presents disaggregated revenues from contracts with customers for the year ended March 31,
2021 by contract-type .The Company believe that this disaggregation best depicts how the nature, amount, timing
and uncertainty of our revenues and cashflows are affected by industry, market and other economic factors.

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31.03.2021 31.03.2020
Revenues by contract type
Fixed Price 22,469.22 25,266.00
Time & Materials 17,309.77 12,363.00
Total 39,778.99 37,629.00

Performance obligations and remaining performance obligations

The remaining performance obligation disclosure provides the aggregate amount of the transaction price yet to be
recognized as at the end of the reporting period and an explanation as to when the Group expects to recognize
these amounts in revenue. Applying the practical expedient as given in Ind AS 115, the Group has not disclosed
the remaining performance obligation related disclosures for contracts where the revenue recognized corresponds
directly with the value to the customer of the entity's performance completed to date, typically those contracts
where invoicing is on time and material basis. Remaining performance obligation estimates are subject to change
and are affected by several factors, including terminations, changes in the scope of contracts, periodic
revalidations, adjustment for revenue that has not materialized and adjustments for currency.

The aggregate value of performance obligations that are completely or partially unsatisfied as at March 31, 2021,
other than those meeting the exclusion criteria mentioned above, is Rs. 1319.37 Lakhs ( Pevious year Rs. 660.79
lakhs). The Company expects to recognize entire revenue within the next one year. This includes contracts that
can be terminated for convenience without a substantive penalty since, based on current assessment, the
occurrence of the same is expected to be remote.
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Revenue disaggregation by geography is as follows:

Geography Year ended Year ended
31.03.2021 31.03.2020
India 31,364.55 29,778.00
Singapore 65.29 72.00
Sweden 241.44 1,160.00
UK - 10.00
Brunei Darussalam 179.71 354.00
Muscat (Oman) - 11.00
Middle East (MEA) 3,751.56 2,388.00
us 4,176.44 3,856.00
Total 39,778.99 37,629.00

Information about major customers:

Company's significant revenue of 0.06 % (previous year 11.13%) being Rs. 22.35 lakhs (previous year Rs.
4189.73 lakhs) is derived from a customer under ITES-Assessement Services Segment. Also, the Company's
significant revenue of 24.72% (previous year 21.84%) is derived from a group of entities under common control,
the total Operating Revenue from such entities amounted to Rs. 9,835.25 lakhs in FY 2020-21 ( End to End
Solutions Rs. 9,413.55 lakhs and ITES-Assessment Service Rs 421.70 lakhs) and Rs. 7889.43 lakhs in FY 2019-
20 ( End to End Solutions Rs. 7308.08 lakhs and ITES-Assessment Service Rs 580.63 lakhs). No other single

customer contributed 10% or more to the Company's revenue for FY 2020-21 and FY 2019-20.

Year ended Year ended
Changes in Contract assets (Unbilled receivable) are as follows: 31.03.2021 31.03.2020
Balance at the beginning of the year 1,296.95 2,992.14
Invoices raised during the year (1,296.95) (8,779.25)
Contract assets reversed - 6,496.06
Revenue recognised during the year 3,305.96 587.99
Balance at the end of the year 3,305.96 1,296.95

Year ended Year ended
Changes in advance received from customer are as follows: 31.03.2021 31.03.2020
Balance at the beginning of the year (505.29) (374.02)
Increase due to invoicing during the year, excluding amounts 8.61 22.29
recognised as revenue during the year
Advance adjusted against trade receivables 786.80 372.74
Advance received during the year (999.71) (526.30)
Balance at the end of the year (709.59) (505.29)
Other income Year ended Year ended

31.03.2021 31.03.2020

Interest Income

- On Bank Deposits

- Interest Others

Net gain on sale of mutual funds mandatorily measured at fair value
through Profit and Loss

Net gain on mutual funds mandatorily measured at fair value through
Profit and Loss

Gain on foreign currency transaction (net)

Gain on derecognition of right-of-use asset and lease liability
Excess provision written back(*)

Interest income on refund of income tax

Sundry Balance W/ Back

Extinguishment of lease liabilities due rent concession (refer note 53)
Miscellaneous Income

Total

(Rs in Lakhs )

316.31 356.10
0.38 6.80
105.26 97.88
140.71 177.38
- 185.09
4.86 -
826.28 -
61.02 28.46
72.55 41.06
62.82 -
84.73 18.06
1,674.93 910.82

(*) Includes a sum of Rs. 681.16 Lakhs, being amount of employee performance pay/ variable pay of earlier years

no longer payable.




26 Employee benefits expenses

Salaries and wages

Contribution to provident and other funds
Gratuity (Refer Note 31)

Contribution to Superannuation Scheme
Staff welfare expenses

Total

27 Finance Cost

Bank Charges

Interest on lease liability

Interest Expense (Others)

Dividend, DDT and other cost for issue of peference shares
Total

28 Purchases of Stock-in-Trade

Year ended Year ended

31.03.2021 31.03.2020
(Rs in Lakhs )
18,793.64 15,368.26
788.63 728.00
182.01 145.50
0.30 2.59
335.58 378.82
20,100.16 16,623.19
Year ended Year ended
31.03.2021 31.03.2020
(Rs in Lakhs )
43.95 4412
208.88 247.68
8.07 22.13
715.91 717.40
976.81 1,031.32
Year ended Year ended
31.03.2021 31.03.2020
(Rs in Lakhs )
1,054.00 335.86
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Technical & Sub Contract Charges

Other expenses

Power and fuel

Rent

Insurance

Repairs to machinery

Rates and taxes, excluding taxes on income
Travelling expenses

Project Related Purchases
Professional Fees

Conveyance

Telephone & Internet Expenses
Security Services Charges

Fees & Subscription

Payment to Auditors (refer note below)
Directors' Sitting Fees

Office Expenses

Contribution to NSE Foundation towards CSR (Refer Note 36)

Loss on foreign currency transaction (net)
Bad Debts Written Off

Provision for Doubtful Debts / Expected Credit Loss model

Miscellaneous expenses

Total

Note :

Payment to Auditors
As Auditors :

Audit Fees

Limited Review

Tax Audit Fees

In Other Capacities
Taxation matters

GST Audit for earlier years
Certification matters
Out of pocket expenses
Total

Year ended Year ended
31.03.2021 31.03.2020
(Rs in Lakhs )
2,519.73 3,729.04
257.47 340.93
2,371.25 2,481.39
246.47 208.92
80.65 95.10
65.61 144.00
673.07 1,541.92
3,387.20 4,406.47
537.61 423.31
259.20 434.42
368.07 371.72
155.79 187.90
696.25 775.64
99.48 79.18
69.75 55.50
352.97 269.23
72.27 71.11
141.74 -

- 103.35
342.14 154.68
591.75 846.83

10,768.73 12,991.59
54.50 49.00
9.00 6.00

5.50 5.50

4.50 4.50
15.00 7.50
9.25 5.30

1.73 1.38
99.48 79.18
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30 In accordance with Indian Accounting Standard - 33 “Earning per Share’

Earning per share

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31.03.2021 31.03.2020

Net Profit attributable to Shareholders
Profit after tax (Rs. In Lakhs) 2,602.14 1,254.73
Weighted Average number of equity shares issued ( in nos) 1,00,00,010 1,00,00,010
Basic earnings per share of Rs 10/- each (in Rs)
Basic 26.02 12.55
Diluted 26.02 12.55

The Company does not have any outstanding dilutive potential equity shares. Consequently, the basic and diluted earning per share of the

Group remain the same.

31 Disclosure Under Indian Accounting Standard 19 (Ind As 19) on Employee Benefits:

(a) Defined Contribution Plan

The Group's contribution towards Provident Fund and ESIC and superannuation fund during the year has been charged to Statement of

Consolidated Profit & Loss as follows.

(b)

Year ended Year ended
31.03.2021 31.03.2020
Provident Fund and ESIC 788.63 728.00
superannuation fund 0.30 2.59
788.93 730.59
i) Provision for Employee Benefit : Performance Pay - Holding Company
(Rs in Lakhs )
Particulars Year ended Year ended
31.03.2021 31.03.2020
Carrying amount at the beginning of the year 995.84 792.27
Amounts paid during the year (521.66) (607.14)
Amounts reversed during the year (681.16) (2.86)
Provisions made during the year 945.63 813.57
Carrying amount at the end of the year 738.65 995.84
i) Provision for Employee Benefit : Leave Encashment - Holding Company
Particulars Year ended Year ended
31.03.2021 31.03.2020
Carrying amount at the beginning of the year 168.72 136.15
Amounts paid during the year (65.28) (38.65)
Amounts reversed during the year (3.65) -
Provisions made during the year 173.47 71.22
Carrying amount at the end of the year 273.26 168.72

(c) Gratuity: Group has charged the Gratuity expense to Profit & Loss account based on the actuarial valuation of gratuity liability at the end of

the year. The projected unit credit method used to show the position as at the reporting date is as under.

(i) |Assumptions:

Parent Company

Subsidiary Company

Particulars Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
31.03.2021 31.03.2020 31.03.2021 31.03.2020
Discount Rate 6.48% 6.56% 3% to 5.50% 4% t0 6.15%
Rate of Return on Plan Assets 6.48% 6.56% - -
Salary Escalation 8.00% 8.00% 3% to 6% 3% to 5%

For Service 4 years and
below 30.00% p.a. and for

Attrition Rate service 5 years and above

For Service 4 years
and below 30.00%
p.a. and for service 5

26.00%

26.00%

3.00% p.a. years and above
3.00% p.a.
Mortality rate IALM (2006-08) IALM (2006-08) IALM (2012-14) | IALM (2012-14)
ultimate ultimate ultimate ultimate




(i)

(iif)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

Change in defined benefit obligation:

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31.03.2021 31.03.2020
Liability at the beginning of the year 855.50 661.98
Interest cost 52.56 45.37
Current Service Cost 270.94 125.75
Past Service Cost (116.49)
Liability transferred out (6.21) -
Benefits Paid (73.69) (44.23)
Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Obligations - Due to Change in Demographic Assumptions - (29.28)
Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Obligations - Due to Change in Financial Assumptions (7.91) 75.23
Actuarial (Gains)/Losses - Due to Experience Adjustments 68.73 20.68
Liability at the end of the year 1,043.42 855.50
Fair value of plan assets:
Particulars Year ended Year ended
31.03.2021 31.03.2020
Fair Value of plan assets at the beginning of the year 381.02 337.47
Interest Income 25.00 25.61
Expected return on plan assets - -
Contributions 281.41 34.53
Transfer from other Group - -
Benefits paid (45.98) (14.60)
Expected return on plan assets 11.99 (1.99)
Fair Value of plan assets at the end of the year 653.43 381.02
Amount recognised in the Balance Sheet
Particulars Year ended Year ended
31.03.2021 31.03.2020
Fair value of plan assets as at the end of the year 653.43 381.02
Liability as at the end of the year 1,043.42 855.50
Net (liability) / asset disclosed in the Balance Sheet (389.99) (474.48)
Net Interest Cost for Current Period
Particulars Year ended Year ended
31.03.2021 31.03.2020
Interest Cost 52.56 45.37
Interest Income 25.00 25.61
Net Interest Cost for Current Period 27.56 19.76
Expenses recognised in the Statement of Profit & Loss
Particulars Year ended Year ended
31.03.2021 31.03.2020
Current Service cost 270.94 125.75
Net Interest Cost 27.57 19.75
Past Service cost (116.50) -
Expenses recognised in the Statement of Profit & Loss 182.01 145.50




(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

()

(i)

Expenses recognised in the Other Comprehensive Income

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31.03.2021 31.03.2020
Expected return on plan assets (11.99) 1.99
Actuarial (Gain) or Loss 60.81 66.62
Net (Income)/Expense for the Period Recognized in OCI 48.82 68.61
Balance Sheet Reconciliation
Particulars Year ended Year ended
31.03.2021 31.03.2020
Opening Net Liability 474.47 324.51
Expenses Recognized in Statement of Profit or Loss 182.02 145.51
Expenses Recognized in OCI 48.82 68.62
Net (Liability)/Asset Transfer out (6.21) -
Employers Contribution / Benefit paid (309.12) (64.16)
Amount recognised in the Balance Sheet 389.99 474.47
Category of Assets
Particulars Year ended Year ended
31.03.2021 31.03.2020
Insurer Managed Funds (Rs) 653.43 381.02
% of Insurer Managed Funds 100% 100%
Total 653.43 381.02
Maturity Analysis of the Benefit Payments : From the Fund
Particulars Year ended Year ended
31.03.2021 31.03.2020
1st Following Year 129.44 94.20
2nd Following Year 79.64 80.26
3rd Following Year 79.39 60.13
4th Following Year 74.15 64.22
5th Following Year 64.53 50.17
Sum of Years 6 To 10 273.19 211.47
Sum of Years 11 and above 1,844.30 1,451.63
Sensitivity Analysis
Particulars Year ended Year ended
31.03.2021 31.03.2020
Project Benefit Obligation on Current Assumptions 1,037.21 855.50
Delta Effect of + 1% Change in Rate of Discounting (100.76) (79.61)
Delta Effect of - 1% Change in Rate of Discounting 121.44 95.33
Delta Effect of + 1% Change in Rate of Salary Increase 118.14 92.40
Delta Effect of - 1% Change in Rate of Salary Increase (109.37) (77.59)
Delta Effect of + 1% Change in Rate of Employer Turnover (17.38) (12.85)
Delta Effect of - 1% Change in Rate of Employer Turnover 19.82 14.57
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In compliance with Ind AS 24 - “Related Party Disclosures”, as notified under Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,

2015 and Companies ( Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016, the required disclosures are given in the table below :

Names of the related parties and related party relationship

Sr.

No.

Related Party

Nature of Relationship

National Stock Exchange of India Limited

Ultimate Holding Company

NSE Investments Limited (formerly known as NSE Strategic Investment

Holding Company

2 Corporation Limited)

3 NSE CIegring_Li_mited (formerly known as National Securities Clearing Holding Company's Fellow Subsidiary
Corporation Limited)

4 |NSE IFSC Limited Holding Company's Fellow Subsidiary

5 |National Securities Depository Limited Ultimate Holding Company's Associate

6 |NSDL Database Management Limited Ultimate Holding Co.'s Associate Co's Subsidiary

7 |NSDL e-Governance Infrastructure Limited Holding Company's Associate Company

g |Power Exchange India Limited Holding Company's Associate Company

9 NSE Data & Analytics Limited (formerly known as DotEx International Limited) Fellow Subsidiary

10 |NSE Infotech Services Limited Fellow Subsidiary

1 NSE Indices Limited (formerly known as India Index Services & Products Fellow Subsidiary
Limited)

12 |NSE Academy Limited Fellow Subsidiary

13 |NSE IFSC CLEARING Corporation Limited Subsidiary of Holding Company's Fellow Subsidiary

14 |TalentSprint Private Limited (w.e.f. 10th November 2020) Fellow Subsidiary's Subsidiary Company

15 |Cogencis Information Services Limited (w.e.f. 21st January 2021) Fellow Subsidiary's Subsidiary Company

16 |Indian Gas Exchange Limited (w.e.f. 16th March 2021) Holding Company's Associate Company

17 |Capital Quant Solutions Private Limited (w.e.f. 3rd March 2021) Fellow Subsidiary's Associate Company

18 |National Stock Exchange Investor Protection Fund Trust Ultimate Holding Co.'s Trust

19 |NSE Foundation Holding Company's Fellow Subsidiary

20 |Dr. N. Muralidaran - Managing Director & CEO Key Management Personnel

21 |Mr. Nilesh Shivji Vikamsey Key Management Personnel

22 |Mr. Sowmyanarayanan Sadagopan Key Management Personnel

23 |Mr. Swaminathan Sundara Rajan Mittur Key Management Personnel

24 |Mr. Ram Narayanan Colathur (upto 29th March 2020) Key Management Personnel

25 |Mr. Vikram Mukund Limaye Key Management Personnel

26 |Mr. Suryakant B Mainak (upto 15th February 2020) Key Management Personnel

27 |Mr. Yatrik Rushikesh Vin Key Management Personnel

28 |Dr Gulshan Rai Key Management Personnel

29 |Ms. Poornima Shenoy Key Management Personnel

30 |Mr. Chandrasekaran Ramakrishnan (Effective from 20th June 2020) Key Management Personnel

31 |Pattamadai Sundaram Suriyanarayanan ( Resigned on 19 June 2020) Key Management Personnel of Subsidiary Company

32 |Mr. Sameer Shelke (Effective from 19 June 2020) Key Management Personnel of Subsidiary Company

33 |Mr. Navinkumar S Kotian (Effective from 19 June 2020) Key Management Personnel of Subsidiary Company

34 |Mr. Srinivas Rao M (Resigned on 30 June 2020) Key Management Personnel of Subsidiary Company

35 |Mr. Saket Verma Key Management Personnel of Subsidiary Company

Aujas ESOP Trust (dissolved during the previous year)

Post Employment benefit entities




(b) Details of transactions (including GST/service tax wherever levied) with related parties are as follows :

(Rs in Lakhs)

Nature of Transactions Year ended Year ended

N f the Related Part

ame of the Related Farty 31.03.2021 31.03.2020

Infrastructure Management Services 3,372.67 2,561.26
Application Development and Maintenance 3,548.14 2,176.42
Services
ITES - Assessment Services - 1.18
Customer Care Services 360.69 341.10
Integrated Security 248.71 247.74
Robotic Process Automation - 76.83

National Stock Exchange of India Limited Analytics - 7.20
Taxes recovered 1,134.36 97411
CTCL empanelment fee paid 2.50 10.00
Usage Charges paid - STP Central HUB & other 0.16 0.31
Reimbursement of expenses received - 15.23
Closing Balance - Dr./ (Cr.) Unbilled 80.24 -
Closing Balance - Dr./ (Cr.) (Net) 1,972.36 848.94
Application Development and Maintenance Servicg| 850.44 846.83
Infrastructure Management Services 29.61 27.82
Customer Care Services 56.72 54.91
Int ted S it - 7.20

NSE Clearing Limited (formerly known as National ;aig;ar:covzcr::g Y 167 .64 194.49

Securities Clearing Corporation Limited) Reimbursement of expenses received - 143.74
Closing Balance - Dr./ (Cr.) 369.69 396.70
Closing Balance - Provision for Doubtful Debts 8.02 -
Closing Balance - Unbilled Revenue 4.31 -
Provision for Doubtful Debts - -

National Stock Exchange Investor Protection Fund Trust Clos!ng Balance - Dr/ (,C,r') 23.00 23.00
Closing Balance - Provision for Doubtful Debts 23.00 23.00
ITES - Assessment Services 421.70 579.46
Application Development and Maintenance 27.60 215
Services

NSE Academy Limited Customer Care Services 5.46 13.99
Taxes recovered 81.86 107.21
Reimbursement paid for other expenses incurred - 0.50
Closing Balance - Dr./ (Cr.) 110.77 58.54
Application Development and Maintenance 19.90 106.50
Services

. L Software Product Revenues - 34.16

NSE Data & An?IW'CS !—"?’"ed Customer Care Services - 97.04

( DotEx International Limited ) Infrastructure Management Services 19.67 25.98
Taxes recovered 3.31 47.46
Closing Balance - Dr./ (Cr.) 9.43 71.32
Application Development and Maintenance 16.52 44.62
Senvi

Power Exchange India Limited ervices
Taxes recovered 2.97 8.03
Closing Balance - Dr./ (Cr.) 5.05 5.79
Application Development and Maintenance 25.00 26.48
Infrastructure Management Services - -

National Securities Depository Limited Taxes recovered 4.50 4.77
Closing Balance - Dr./ (Cr.) 12.74 13.17
Closinig Balance - Provision For Doubtful Debts 5.86 -
Application Development and Maintenance 43.28 52.80

NSDL e-Governance Infrastructure Limited Taxes recovered 7.79 8.87
Closing Balance - Dr./ (Cr.) 26.11 27.34
Closinig Balance - Provision For Doubtful Debts 17.65 -
Application Development and Maintenance 66.73 100.60
Services

NSDL Database Management Limited Taxes recovered 12.01 17.69
Closing Balance - Dr./ (Cr.) 30.38 70.24
Closinig Balance - Provision For Doubtful Debts 2.69 -
Application Development and Maintenance 131.46 73.61
Services

NSE IFSC Clearing Corporation Limited Infrastructure Management Services 9.71 -
Integrated Security - 12.48
Closing Balance - Dr./ (Cr.) 60.87 24.65




Application Development and Maintenance 521.07 425.25

Services

Infrastructure Management Services 132.44 113.96
NSE IFSC Limited Integrated Security - 3.12

Customer Care Services 10.11 -

Taxes recovered 3.52 -

Closing Balance - Dr./ (Cr.) 304.84 404.69

Application Development and Maintenance 69.17 53.25
NSE Indices Limited (formerly known as India Index Services
Services & Products Limited) Taxes recovered 12.45 9.58

Closing Balance - Dr./ (Cr.) 81.62 62.13
NSE Foundation Cont.ribution towards CSR 72.27 71.11

Closing Investment 0.10 0.10

Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares - -

(Borrowings)

Dividend paid to equity shareholders 100.00 100.00
NSE Investments Limited (formerly known as NSE Dividend to payable to preference shareholders 700.00 700.00
Strategic Investment Corporation Limited)

Dividend Paid on Prefrence share for FY-2018-19 - 23.01

Closing Borrowings -Preference shares 10,000.00 10,000.00
Key Management Personnel - Dr N.Muralidaran - MD & ((a) short-term employee benefits includes Rs 3.68 228.90 239.87
CEO Lakhs (Previous year Rs. 2.17 Lakhs) towards

leave encashment

(b) post-employment benefits # 12.43 11.50

(c) other long-term benefits 33.95 -
[Mr. Ram Narayanan Colathur Director Sitting Fees -] 10.50 |
[Mr. Swaminathan Sundara Rajan Mittur Director Sitting Fees 15.75 | 13.75 |
[Mr. Nilesh Shivji Vikamsey Director Sitting Fees 13.50 | 9.25 |
|Mr. Sowmyanarayanan Sadagopan Director Sitting Fees 12.00 | 10.00 |
[Mr. Suryakant B Mainak Director Sitting Fees -] 5.50 |
[Dr Guishan Rai [Director Sitting Fees | 20.00 | 8.25 |
[Ms. Poornima Shenoy [ Director Sitting Fees | 12.00 | 2.75]
[Chandrasekaran Ramakrishnan [ Director Sitting Fees | 20.00 | 2.50 |
[Sameer Shelke [Rent paid | 46.52 | 4.43]
|Pattamadai Sundaram Suriyanarayanan [Remuneration to key managerial personnel | 45.79 | 49.31]
[Sameer Shelke [Remuneration to key managerial personnel | 259.14 | 150.05 |
[NavinKumar S Kotian [Remuneration to key managerial personnel | 59.09 | 47.65 |
[Srinivas Rao M [Remuneration to key managerial personnel [ 37.74 | 84.73 |
[Saket Verma [Remuneration to key managerial personnel | 127.51 | 10.44 |

# As the liabilities for defined benefit plan are provided on actuarial basis for the Group as a whole, the amount pertaining to key managerial

persons are not included.

All related parties transaction entered during the year were in ordinary course of business. Outstanding balances as at the year end are unsecured
and settlement occurs in cash. There have been no guarantee provided or received for any related parties receivables or payables as of March 31,

2021 and March 31, 2020.
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34

35

(b)

Capital and other commitments

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31.03.2021 31.03.2020
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for 84.92 164.19
Contingent liability:
Particulars Year ended Year ended
31.03.2021 31.03.2020
On Account of Income Tax Demand 13.29 41.40
On Account of GST Demand 26.81 -
On Account of Bank Guarantees 4.,645.01 1,290.49

The Holding Company has been providing Straight Through Processing (STP) services to its customers based on an approval granted by
Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) since June 2004. During the course of time there has been certain key managerial function
changes within the Company and as a consequence of which the renewal which was required was missed out inadvertently though the
Company continued to render the STP services. The Holding Company thereafter applied for renewal of the approval in December 2019,
which was processed by SEBI and an approval was granted on 5th February, 2021 which is valid for a period of 3 years from the date of

issuance.

Subsequently the Holding Company is in receipt of a Show Cause Notice (SCN) dated 26th March 2021 from SEBI, wherein it has been
alleged that the Holding Company has been providing services of STP as a service provider as specified in the STP guidelines, however the
Holding Company has not obtained renewal of approval from SEBI within the stipulated time. The Holding Company is in the process of filing
of the settlement application under the SEBI Settlement Regulations. The Holding Company’s management reasonably expects that the
impact of this SCN, when ultimately concluded and determined, will not have material impact on the Group financial statements.

Details of dues to micro and small, medium enterprises as defined under the MSMED Act, 2006

Total outstanding dues to Micro, Small & Medium Enterprises have been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the

basis of information available with the Group.

(Rs in Lakhs )

Particulars

Year ended
31.03.2021

Year ended
31.03.2020

The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of
each accounting year
-Principal amount due to micro, small and medium enterprises

40.92

33.40

-Interest

0.07

(b) The amount of interest paid by the Company in terms of Section 16 of the Micro, Small and
Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, along with the amounts of the payment made to the
supplier beyond the appointed day during the year*;

(i) Payment

(ii) Interest

(c) The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have
been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified
under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006

(d) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the year

0.07

(e) The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such
date when the interest dues above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of
disallowance of a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprises Development Act, 2006




36 Amounts Paid / Contribution to NSE Foundation towards CSR :
a As per the provisions of Companies Act 2013, Gross amount required to be spent by the Holding Company on CSR activities during the
financial year ended March 31, 2021 is Rs. 72.27 Lakhs (Previous Year Rs 71.11 Lakhs).
b Amount spent during the year on: (Rs in Lakhs)
Particulars In Cash Yet to be paid in Total
Cash
i |Construction / acquisition of any asset Current Year - - -
Previous Year - - -
i |Contribution to NSE Foundation towards CSR Current Year 72.27 - 72.27
Previous Year 71.11 - 71.11
i |On purposes other than (i) & (ii) above Current Year # - - -
Previous Year # - - -

* During the year, the Holding Company has contributed Rs 72.27 lakhs (previous year Rs.71.11 lakhs) to NSE Foundation to be spent on activities
as stated in the Group CSR policy which has been adopted by the Company as Company’s CSR policy.The amount unspent by NSE Foundation

as on March 31, 2021 is Rs.72.27 lakhs (as on March 31, 2020 Rs. 71.11 lakhs).

37 In the opinion of the Board, current assets, loans and advances are approximately of the value stated, if realised in the ordinary course of
38 Expenditure in foreign currency (accrual basis)
Particulars Year ended Year ended
31.03.2021 31.03.2020
Cost of traded products
Travelling expenses 86.87 45.58
Direct Fees & Subscription 4.69 2.41
Subcontract / Technical Fees 1,039.31 1,5675.91
Software Licenses 436.91 56.16
Project expenses 145.28 -
Office expenses- Recruitment 12.00 -
Office expenses - Advertising and sales promotion 11.32
39 Earnings in foreign currency (accrual basis) :
Particulars Year ended Year ended
31.03.2021 31.03.2020
Application Development and Maintenance Services 964.10 341.00
ITES - Assessment Services 7.45 52.15
Sale of traded products - -
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40 Segment Reporting:

a Description of segments and principal activities

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Chief
Operating Decision Maker (“CODM”) of the Group. The CODM, who is responsible for allocating resources and
assessing performance of the operating segments, has been identified as the Managing Director and CEO of the
Group. The Group has identified two segments i.e. “End to End solutions” and “ITES - Assessment Services” as
reporting segments based on the information reviewed by CODM.

Reportable business segment viz. offering “End to End solutions” includes revenues from sale and maintenance of
software products, software consultancy services, custom software development, information technology
infrastructure services provided predominantly to market participants in the securities and commodity markets and
“ITES - Assessment Services” includes sale and maintenance of ITES-Assessment Services software products,
online education and examination services and other incidental services as its primary segments. This takes into
consideration the commonality in the risks and rewards of the products/ solutions and related services offered
nature of services, type / class of customers for the products / services, management structure and system of
financial reporting. Accordingly, the results of the said segments have been disclosed hereunder.

The above business segments have been identified considering :
a) the nature of products and services

b) the differing risks

c¢) the internal organisation and management structure, and

d) the internal financial reporting systems.

The segment information presented is in accordance with the accounting policies adopted for preparing the
consolidated financial statements of the Company. Segment revenues, expenses and results include inter-
segment transfers. Such transfers are undertaken either at competitive market prices charged to unaffiliated
customers for similar goods or at contracted rates. These transfers are eliminated on consolidation.

b Segment Revenue :

Segment revenue is measured in the same way as in the statement of profit or loss. Revenue and expenses which
relate to the enterprise as a whole and are not allocable to a segment on reasonable basis have been disclosed as
Unallocable.Transactions between segments are eliminated on consolidation. The CODM primarily uses a
measure of profit before tax to assess the performance of the operating segments.



(Rs in Lakhs )

Particulars 2020-21 2019-20
Segment Revenue
End to End Solution 27,768.05 22,425.20
ITES - Assessment Services 12,010.94 15,203.80
39,778.99 37,629.00
Inter-segment revenue
End to End Solution - -
ITES - Assessment Services - -
Revenue from external customers
End to End Solution 27,768.05 22,425.20
ITES - Assessment Services 12,010.94 15,203.80
Total 39,778.99 37,629.00
Segment Results
End to End Solution 4,520.76 2,654.12
ITES - Assessment Services 1,691.93 2,172.04
Total 6,212.69 4,826.17
Less: Unallocable Expenses (Net of income) 1,711.50 2,025.19
Less : Finance cost 976.81 1,031.32
Add: Interest income 377.71 391.36
Profit before Tax 3,902.09 2,161.02
Exceptional item - -
Profit before tax 3,902.09 2,161.02
Less : Income Tax expense
- Current tax 1,136.01 941.00
- Foreign tax 103.67 1.80
- Short / Excess Tax for earlier years 14.82 39.78
- Deferred tax 42.10 (50.73)
Total Tax Expenses 1,296.60 931.85
Net profit after tax 2,605.49 1,229.16

Revenue From External Customers based on geographies

The Parent company is domiciled in India. The amount of Company revenue from external customers broken

down by location of customers.

Particulars 31.03.2021 31.03.2020

India 31,547.15 29,762.93
Outside India 8,231.86 7,866.07
Total 39,778.99 37,629.00




d Segment Assets

Segment assets are measured in the same way as in the balance sheet. These assets are allocated based on the

operations of the segment.

Segments 31.03.2021 31.03.2020

End to End Solution 18,863.14 17,405.23
ITES - Assessment Services 7,534.18 3,300.15
Total Segment Assets 26,397.32 20,705.38
Unallocable Assets 13,461.78 15,572.17
Total Assets 39,859.10 36,277.55

There are no non current assets situated outside the domicile of India.
e Segment Liabilities

Segment Liablities are measured in the same way as in the financial statements. These Liabilites are allocated

based on the operations of the segment.

Segments 31.03.2021 31.03.2020

End to End Solution 14,653.60 12,894.99
ITES - Assessment Services 3,697.10 2,604.36
Total Segment Liabilities 18,350.70 15,499.34
Unallocable Liabilities 2,955.61 4,671.21
Total Liabilities 21,306.31 20,170.55

f Segment Capital Expenditure

Segments 31.03.2021 31.03.2020

End to End Solution 402.83 801.73
ITES - Assessment Services 1,192.66 77.53
Total Segment Capital Expenditure 1,595.49 879.26
Add: Unallocable Capital Expenditure 256.91 223.04
Total Capital Expenditure 1,852.40 1,102.30

g Segment Depreciation / Amortisation

Segments 31.03.2021 31.03.2020

End to End Solution 249.18 236.26
ITES - Assessment Services 1,074.94 806.46
Total Segment Depreciation / Amortisation 1,324.12 1,042.72
Add: Unallocable Depreciation / Amortisation 808.28 625.08
Total Depreciation / Amortisation 2,132.40 1,667.80

Information about major customers:

Company's significant revenue of 0.06 % (previous year 11.13%) being Rs. 22.35 lakhs (previous year Rs.
4189.73 lakhs) is derived from a customer under ITES-Assessement Services Segment. Also, the Company's
significant revenue of 24.72% (previous year 21.84%) is derived from a group of entities under common control,
the total Operating Revenue from such entities amounted to Rs. 9,835.25 lakhs in FY 2020-21 ( End to End
Solutions Rs. 9,413.55 lakhs and ITES-Assessment Service Rs 421.70 lakhs) and Rs. 7889.43 lakhs in FY 2019-
20 ( End to End Solutions Rs. 7308.08 lakhs and ITES-Assessment Service Rs 580.63 lakhs). No other single
customer contributed 10% or more to the Company's revenue for FY 2020-21 and FY 2019-20.
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41 Unquoted Mutual funds at FVPL

(Rs in Lakhs )

. Mkt as at . Mkt as at
Mutual Funds No.of Units 31.03.2021 No.of Units 31.03.2020
Kotak Treasury Advantage Fund - Dir - Growth - - 7,33,065.28 240.84
ICICI Prudential Money Market Fund - Dir- Growth 60,957.22 179.99 60,957.22 170.23
Invesco India Money Market Fund-Direct -Growth 3,523.07 85.00 12,018.07 278.17
Invesco India Liquid Fund - Direct Plan Growth - - 9,357.08 255.29
UTI Liquid Cash Plan - Direct Growth Plan - - 32,711.38 1,063.59
Tata Liquid Fund Direct Plan - Growth - - 8,164.97 255.73
Kotak Money Market Scheme - Dir - Growth - - 15,448.29 511.81
HDFC Low Duration fund-Dir-Growth 11,62,196.09 552.91 11,62,196.09 513.78
ICICI Prudential Savings Fund - Dir - Growth 1,31,297.42 551.04 1,31,297.42 512.55
SBI Savings Fund - Dir - Growth 10,71,915.53 366.55 30,98,252.15 1,002.81
SBI Savings Fund - Dir - Growth - - 31,294.69 10.13
HDFC Money Market Fund - Dir - Growth 12,015.53 537.57 12,015.53 507.04
Total of Investments 2,273.06 5,321.96
Aggregate Book value - Quoted Investments - -
Aggregate Book Value - Unquoted Investments 2,273.06 5,321.96
|Aggregate Market Value of Quoted Investments - -
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42 (a)

42 (b)

Fair Value Measurements

Financial Instruments by category

(Rs in Lakhs)

31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20
Amortised Amortised

Particulars FVPL FVOCI Cost FVPL FVOCI Cost
Financial Assets
Investments
- Mutual Funds 2,273.06 - - 5,321.96 - -
Trade receivables - - 11,917.45 - - 8,058.28
Unbilled receivable - - 3,305.96 - - 1,296.95
Cash and Cash equivalents - - 2,948.15 - - 3,891.68
Bank balances other than Cash and
Cash equivalents - - 3,867.93 - - 2,950.47
Non-Current Bank Balances - - 2,064.95 - - 376.71
Loans - - 643.01 - - 735.92
Other Financial assets - - 85.46 - - 99.21
Total 2,273.06 - 24,832.91 5,321.96 - 17,409.22
Financial Liabilities

Borrowings - - 10,000.00 - - 10,008.38

Trade Payables - - 4,148.84 - - 3,255.35

Other financial liabilities - - 2,789.50 - - 3,633.99
Total - - 16,938.34 - - 16,897.71

Fair Value Measurements

Fair value of the Company’s financial assets that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis

Some of the Company’s financial assets are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period. The following
table gives information about how the fair values of these financial assets are determined.

(Rs in Lakhs )

Financial assets/ . Fair value Valuation technique(s) and key
. el Fair value as at . :
financial liabilities hierarchy input(s)
31-Mar-21 | 31-Mar-20
Investment in mutual 2.273.06 5.321.96 Level 1 NAYV declared by respective Asset

funds

Management Companies.

Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities that are not measured at fair value (but fair value

disclosures are required)

Management considers that the carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recognized in the financial
statements except as per note a above approximate their fair values.
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43 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s business activities expose it to a variety of financial risks, namely liquidity risk, market risks and credit risk. The Group’s senior
management has the overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Group’s risk management framework

The Group has developed a Risk Management Policy in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. It establishes various levels of
accountability and overview within the Group, while vesting identified managers with responsibility for each significant risk. Risk Management policy has
been formulated with an aim to (a) Overseeing the Group's risk management process and controls, risk tolerance (b) Setting strategic plans and
objectives for risk management and review of risk assessment of the Group (c) Review the Group's risk appetite and strategy relating to key risks,
including credit risk, liquidity and funding risk, market risk, product risk and reputational risk as well as the guidelines, policies and processes for
monitoring and mitigating such risks.

Apart from this, the core business & operational risk is managed through cross functional involvement and communication across businesses and as
part of the same, various functional heads submit a compliance certificate covering respective areas of operations to the Group Secretary or Managing
Director and CEO who in turn submits a compliance certificate quarterly to the Audit Committee and the Board of Directors.

The Treasury department activities are designed to:

- protect the Group’s financial results and position from financial risks

- maintain market risks within acceptable parameters, while optimising returns; and

- protect the Group’s financial investments, while maximising returns.

The Treasury department is responsible to maximise the return on companies internally generated funds.

A. MANAGEMENT OF LIQUIDITY RISK

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will face in meeting its obligations associated with its financial liabilities. The Group’s approach to managing
liquidity is to ensure that it will have sufficient funds to meet its liabilities when due without incurring unacceptable losses. In doing this, management
considers both normal and stressed conditions

The Group’s treasury department regularly monitors the rolling forecasts to ensure it has sufficient cash on an on-going basis to meet operational
needs. Any short term surplus cash generated by the operating entities, over and above the amount required for working capital management and other
operational requirements, is retained as cash and cash equivalents (to the extent required) and any excess is invested in mutual funds to optimise the
cash returns on investments while ensuring sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities.

(Rs in Lakhs )

More than
Particulars Carrying amount Less than 12 months 12months Total

As at 31st March 2021

Borrowings 10,000.00 - 10,000.00 | 10,000.00
Trade payables 4,148.84 4,148.84 - 4,148.84
Other financial liabilities-Non Current 971.93 444.44 527.49 971.93
Other financial liabilities-Current 1,817.57 1,817.57 - 1,817.57
As at 31st March 2020

Borrowings 10,008.38 8.38 10,000.00 | 10,008.38
Trade payables 3,255.35 3,255.35 - 3,255.35

Other financial liabilities 3,633.99 3,633.99 - 3,633.99




B MANAGEMENT OF MARKET RISK

The Group’s size and operations result in it being exposed to the following market risks that arise from its use of financial instruments:

« price risk;

The Group’s exposure to, and management of, these risks is explained below.

POTENTIAL IMPACT OF RISK

MANAGEMENT POLICY

SENSITIVITY TO RISK

1. PRICE RISK

The Group is mainly exposed to the
price risk due to its investment in
mutual funds and investments in equity
instruments. The price risk arises due
to uncertainties about the future market
values of these investments. At 31st
March 2021, the exposure to price risk

In order to manage its price risk arising from
investments in mutual funds, the Group
diversifies its portfolio in accordance with the
investments limits set as par the Board
resolution passed

As an estimation of the approximate impact of
price risk, with respect to mutual funds and
investments in equity instruments, the Group
has calculated the impact as follows. For
mutual funds, a 0.25% increase in prices would
have led to approximately Rs 5.68 Lakhs
(Rs.13.30 lakhs) gain in the Statement of Profit
and Loss. A 0.25% decrease in prices. would

due to investment in mutual funds
amounted to Rs. 2,273.06 Lakhs
(March 31, 2020: Rs 5,321.96 lakhs)

have led to an equal but opposite effect.

C : MANAGEMENT OF CREDIT RISK
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer or counter-party fails to meet its contractual obligations.

Concentrations of credit risk with respect to trade receivables are limited, due to the Group’s customer base being large and diverse

Trade receivables

The Group provides for expected credit loss on trade receivables based on a provision matrix. This matrix is a simpified basis of recognition of expected
credit losses in case of trade receivables.The model uses historical credit loss experience for trade receivables.

Reconciliation of loss allowance (ECL) provision for Trade Receivables

Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Balance as at the beginning of the year 172.25 204.25
Add: Provision on trade receivables based on Expected credit loss model 168.09 (32.00)
Balance at end of the year 340.34 172.25

Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Balance as at the beginning of the year 408.94 349.40
Add: Provision for Doubtful Debts 174.05 59.54
Balance at end of the year 582.99 408.94

Other financial assets

The Group maintains exposure in cash and cash equivalents, term deposits with banks, securities, investments in mutual funds. The Group has
diversified portfolio of investment with various number of counter-parties which have secure credit ratings hence the risk is reduced. Individual risk limits
are set for each counter-party based on financial position, credit rating and past experience. Credit limits and concentration of exposures are actively
monitored

Derivative Instruments - Forward Contracts

The Group uses foreign currency forward contracts to hedge its risks associated with foreign currency fluctuations relating to certain payments in
foreign currency. The use of foreign currency forward contracts is governed by the Group’s strategy. The Group does not use forward contracts for
speculative purposes. There were no outstanding Hedging Contracts as at March 31, 2021.
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Market risk - In respect of Aujas Cybersecurity Limited

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates and interest rates and equity prices, which will affect the
Company’s income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market
risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return.

i) Currency risk
The Company is exposed to currency risk to the extent that there is a mismatch between the currencies in which sales and loans are denominated

and the functional currency of the Company. The functional currency of the Company is primarily INR. The currencies in which these transactions
are primarily denominated are USD, AED, SAR, etc.

Management monitors the movement in foreign currency and the Company's exposure in each of the foreign currency. Based on the analyses and
study of movement in foreign currency, the Company decides to exchange its foreign currency.

Exposure to currency risk

The summary quantitative data about the Company’s exposure to currency risk as reported to the management of the Company is as follows:
Amounts are ¥ in lacs

Particulars As at 31 March As at 31 March
2021 2020

As at 31 March 2021
Financial assets
Trade receivables 20.35 357.26
Financial liabilities
Trade payable 29.62 6.24
Net exposure in respect of recognized assets and liabilities (9.27) 351.02

The following significant exchange rates have been applied
Year-end spot rate
As at As at
INR 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
usD 1 73.50 75.39

Sensitivity analysis

A reasonably possible strengthening (weakening) of the USD, SAR, and SGD against INR at 31 March would have affected the measurement of
financial instruments denominated in foreign currency and affected equity and profit or loss by the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes
that all other variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant.

Impact on profit after tax Impact on other components of
equity
As at As at As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
USD sensitivity
INR/USD - Increase by 1% (0.09) 3.51 - -
INR/USD - Decrease by 1% 0.09 (3.51) - -
E: Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.
(a) Liabilities

The Group fixed rate borrowing is not subject to interest rate risk as defined in Ind AS 107, Financial Instruments - Disclosures' since neither the
carrying amount nor the future cash flows will fluctuate due to change in market interest ratess.

The Group variable rate borrowing is subject to interest rate risk. Below is the overall exposure of the borrowing:

As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Fixed rate borrowing - 8.38

(b) Assets
The Group fixed deposits carry a fixed rate of interest and therefore, are not subject to interest rate risk as defined in Ind AS 107, since neither the
carrying amount nor the future cash flows will fluctuate because of a change in market interest rates.

Capital management
The Group objective is to maintain a strong credit rating health capital ratios and establish a capital structure that would maximise the return to
stakeholders through optimum mix of debt and equity.

The management reviews the capital structure regularly and balances the Group overall capital structure through issue of new shares. The overall
strategy remains unchanged from the prior financial year and the Group is not subject to externally imposed capital requirements.

Gearing ratio

The Group monitors its capital using gearing ratio, which is net debt divided to total equity as given below:

As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Borrowings 10,000.00 10,008.38
Less: Cash and cash equivalents 2,948.15 3,891.68
Net debt 7,051.85 6,116.70
Total equity 18,5632.78 16,034.75
Gearing ratio 0.38 0.38

Total equity includes all capital and reserves of the Group that are managed as capital.
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44 Acquisition of Aujas Cybersecurity Ltd. (Aujas), Subsidiary Company

On November 28, 2018, the Holding Company had entered into a Share Purchase and Shareholder's Agreement (“*SPSHA”) for acquisition of Aujas
Cybersecurity Limited (formerly known as Aujas Networks Private Limited), (“Aujas”) for a total consideration of Rs.9750 lakhs (Rs.9345.16 lakhs for
acquisition of 100% equity shareholding and Rs.404.84 lakhs by way of rights issue). In terms of the said SPSHA, on March 22, 2019, the Holding
Company acquired 95.39% of equity shareholding of Aujas for a consideration aggregating to Rs.8408.06 lakhs. During the financial year 2019-20,
the Holding Company paid a sum of Rs. 288.31 Lakhs to the ex-promoters of Aujas for purchase of 37,59,833 equity shares of Aujas of Re 1 each
and invested a sum of Rs. 153.53 Lakhs for 26,68,705 shares by way of subscription to the rights issue. Further during the current year, the Holding
Company paid a sum of Rs. 458.62 Lakhs to the ex-promoters of Aujas for purchase of 65,36,106 equity shares of Aujas of Re 1 and invested a sum
of Rs. 111.69 lakhs for 14,56,594 shares by way of subscription to the rights issue, taking the total investment in Aujas to Rs. 9420.21 lakhs. As on

March 31, 2021, the Holding Company holds 99.29% of equity shareholding of Aujas.

a The assets and liabilities recognised as a result of the acquisition are as follows:

(Rs in Lakhs)

March 31, March 31,
Calculation of Goodwill 2021 2020
Consideration - 8,408.00
Non Controlling Interest acquired - 137.00
Less :- Net Identifiable Assets acquired - (2,962.00)
Goodwill as at - 5,583.00
On account of restatement - 269.53
Goodwill as at 31.03.2019 ( recalculated) * 6,121.51 5,852.53
Reversal on reduction in Shareholding of Non-controling parties 7.02 (26.41)
Adjustment towards equity investment and related share premium (174.79) (146.46)
Cost of Additional acquisition 570.31 441.84
Closing as at balance sheet date 6,524.05 6,121.51
b Movementin Non Controling Interest (Rs in Lakhs)
Particulars 2020-21 2019-20
Opening as at balance sheet date (72.25) (124.00)
Share in losses and total equity (3.84) 24.74
Reversal on reduction in Shareholding of Non-controling parties 56.07 27.01
Closing as at balance sheet date (20.02) (72.25)

45 Derivative instruments and unhedged foreign currency exposure

The Subsidiary, namely Aujas Cybersecurity Limited is not using derivative instruments such as foreign exchange forward contracts to hedge its
exposure to movements in foreign exchange and interest rates. The details of items that are denominated in foreign currency are as follows:

As at 31 March 2021 As at 31 March 2020
. Amount
Particulars Amount in (Rs.in Amount An_lount
usb ( Rs. in lakhs)
lakhs)
Trade receivables 27,794 20.35 4,73,914 357.26
Trade payables 40,446 29.62 8,276.00 6.24
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a7

INTERESTS IN OTHER ENTITIES

Subsidiaries

The Group’s subsidiaries are set out below. Share capital consisting solely of equity shares that are held directly by the Group and the proportion of
ownership interests held equals the voting rights held by the Group. The country of incorporation or registration is also their principal place of

business.
Name of Entity With effect |Place of Owership interest held by Principle
from business / the Group Activity
country of
31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20
NSEIT (US) Inc. 04-12-2006|United States 100 100(IT Services
of America
Aujas Cybersecurity Limited 22-03-2019|India 99.29 96.84|IT Security
Services

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION REQUIRED BY SCHEDULE IlI

Name of the entity in the Net assets (total assets s . Share in other comprehensive Share in total
. L hare in profit or (loss) . Lo
group minus total liabilities) income comprehensive income
As % of |Amount As % of |Amount As % of Amount As % of |Amount
consolidat consolidated consolidated consolidate
ed Net profit or loss other d total
Assets comprehensiv comprehens
e income ive income
Parent Company
NSEIT Limited
31-Mar-21 88.16 16,356.19 87.22 2,272.46 2,450.57 (88.66) 83.93 2,183.80
31-Mar-20 89.30 14,384.12 151.26 1,859.30 74.65 (71.42) 157.73 1,787.89
Indian Subsidiary
Aujas Cybersecurity Ltd
31-Mar-21 15.11 2,802.75 12.89 335.77 (1,907.21) 69.00 15.56 404.77
31-Mar-20 14.19 2,286.24 (45.38) (557.81) (26.90) 25.74 (46.94) (532.08)
Foreign Subsidiary
NSEIT (US) Inc.
31-Mar-21 (3.38) (626.17) (0.23) 6.11) (429.81) 15.55 0.36 9.44
31-Mar-20 (3.95) (635.61) (3.80) (46.76) 53.10 (50.80) (8.61) (97.56)
Non-Controlling Interest in
all subsidiaries
31-Mar-21 0.11 20.02 0.13 3.35 (13.54) 0.49 0.15 3.85
31-Mar-20 0.45 72.25 (2.08) (25.56) (0.85) 0.81 (2.18) (24.74)
Total
31-Mar-21 100.00 18,552.80 100.00 2,605.47 100.00 (3.62) 100.00 2,601.86
31-Mar-20 100.00 16,107.00 100.00 1,229.17 100.00 (95.67) 100.00 1,133.50
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Impact of COVID 19 (Global Pandemic) :

The Coronavirus (COVID-19) outbreak is an unprecedented global situation. World Health Organization (WHO) has declared the COVID-19 virus a
‘Pandemic’. The Government of India and various state governments had put in place several measures including instituting a complete lockdown
w.e.f March 25, 2020 to combat the spread and transmission of the virus. Effective June 8, 2020 the said lockdown has being partially lifted in a
phased manner. Post unlock advisory issued by the Government, COVID-19 continued to impact the business operations and revenue of the
Company in respect of ITES-Assessment Services (On-Line Examination Services).

The Group has taken into account the possible impacts of COVID-19 in preparation of the consolidated financial statements including but not limited
to its assessment of impact on revenues, operating costs and impact on leases. Based on the current indicators of future economic conditions and
the impact of COVID-19 on its operations, the Group has also made an assessment of its liquidity position, recoverability and carrying values of its
assets and ability to pay its liabilities as they become due and is of the view that there is no material impact or adjustments required to be made in
these financial results. The impact assessment of COVID-19 may be different from that presently estimated and the Group will continue to evaluate
any significant changes to its operations and its resultant impact on the financial performance.

The Code on Social Security, 2020 (Code) relating to employee benefits during employment and post-employment benefits has received Presidential
assent on 28th September 2020. The Code has been published in the Gazette of India. However, the date on which the Code comes into effect has
not been notified. The Group will assess the impact of the Code when it comes into effect and will record any related impact in the period the Code
becomes effective.

The Group’s pending litigations comprise of proceedings pending with Tax Authorities. The Group has reviewed all its pending litigations and
proceedings and has made adequate provisions, wherever required and disclosed the contingent liabilities, wherever applicable, in its financial
statements. The Group does not expect the outcome of these proceedings to have a material impact on its financial position (Refer note no. 34 for
details on contingent liabilities).

In accordance with the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the Group did not have any long term contracts as of March 31, 2021 and
March 31, 2020 including derivatives contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses. The Group did not have any derivative
contracts as at March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020.

For the year ended March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020, the Holding Company and Its Subsidiary Company Incorporated in India is not required to
transfer any amount into the Investor Education & Protection Fund as required under relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

During the year ended March 31, 2021, the Holding Company has negotiated with various landlords on the rent reduction / wavier due to COVID 19
pandemic. The Management believes that such reduction/ waiver in rent is short term in nature and also meets the other conditions specified in the
notification issued by the Central Government in consultation with National Financial Reporting Authority dated July 24, 2020 as Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2020 with effect from April 1, 2020. Thus, in accordance with the said notification, the Holding Company
has elected to apply the exemption, as the reduction/ waiver does not necessitate a lease maodification as envisaged in the Standard by recording
the same in the "Other income". Accordingly, during the year, the Holding Company has recognised % 62.82 Lakhs as an extinguishment of lease
liability being lease rent concession on account of COVID 19 pandemic and the same has been disclosed as 'Other Income' in the Statement of
Profit and Loss.).

Previous years figures have been regrouped, rearranged and reclassified wherever necessary to confirm to the current year / period classifications.

As per our report of even date attached

For Khandelwal Jain & Co.
Chartered Accountants
(Reg No : 105049W)

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sd/-
NARENDRA JAIN
Partner

Membership No.048725

Place : Mumbai
Date : April 21, 2021

Sd/-

Prof. S. SADAGOPAN
Chairman
DIN No. 00118285

Sd/-

M. N. HARIHARAN
Chief Financial Officer

Sd/-

N. MURALIDARAN

Managing Director & CEO
DIN No. 06567029

Sd/-

VAIBHHAV KULKARNI
Company Secretary

Sd/-

M.S. SUNDARA RAJAN
Director
DIN No. 00169775



INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Board of Directors of NSEIT (US) INC

Report on the Special Purpose Financial Statements

1.

We have audited the accompanying special purpose financial statements (“special purpose
financial statements”) of NSEIT US INC (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance
Sheet as at March 31, 2021, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other
Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash
Flow for the year then ended, and a summary of the significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information. The accompanying special purpose financial statements
have been prepared by the management in accordance with the generally accepted
accounting principles applicable in India, including Indian Accounting Standards, solely to
enable its holding company, NSEIT Limited ("NSEIT"”) to prepare its consolidated financial
statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Special Purpose Financial Statements

2.

The Management is responsible for the preparation of these special purpose financial
statements to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs (financial position), profit or
loss (financial performance including other comprehensive income), cash flows and
changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards specified in the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records for safeguarding of the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of
the special purpose financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

3.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these special purpose financial statements
based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of the special purpose financial statements in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing and other applicable authoritative pronouncements issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and pronouncements require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the special purpose financial statements are free
from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
the disclosures in the special purpose financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the special purpose financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant
to the Company’s preparation of the special purpose financial statements that give a true
and fair view, in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on whether the Company
has in place an adequate internal financial control system over financial reporting and the
operating effectiveness of such controls. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting
estimates made by the Management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
special purpose financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the special purpose financial statements.

Opinion

7.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us, the aforesaid special purpose financial statements of the Company for the year
ended March 31, 2021 are prepared in all material respects, in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, to enable its holding company, NSEIT to
prepare its consolidated financial statements.

Restriction on distribution and use

8.

This report is addressed to the Board of Directors and provided in connection with the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of NSEIT, the holding company for the year
ended March 31, 2021. These special purpose financial statements are prepared solely to
enable its holding company, NSEIT to prepare its consolidated financial statements. Our
report should not be used, referred to or distributed for any other purpose except with our
prior consent in writing.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

For Khandelwal Jain & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number:105049W

Sd/-

Narendra Jain

Partner

Membership Number: 048725
UDIN: 21048725AAAABG3425

Place: Mumbai
Date: April 21, 2021
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NSEIT (US) INC.
(Formerly known as NSE.IT (US) INC)

BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2021
(Special Purpose Financial Statement)

(Amtin USD) (Rsin Lakhs) (AmtinUSD) (Rs in Lakhs)
As at As at As at As at
Particulars Notes 31.03.2021 31.03.2021 31.03.2020 31.03.2020
ASSETS

1 Non-current assets

a Property, Plant and Equipment - - - -

b Financial Assets

i Other Financials assets
- Security Deposit 2 98 0.07 98 0.07
Total Non-current assets 98 0.07 98 0.07
2 Current assets
a Financial Assets
i Trade receivable 3 2,00,689 147.50 71,809 54.13
i Unbilled Receivable 4 99,720 73.29 - -
ii Cash and Cash equivalents 5 84,005 61.74 4,55,510 343.35
iv. Other Financial assets 6 - - - -

b Other assets 7 8,672 6.37 312 0.24
Total Current assets 3,93,086 288.90 5,27,631 397.72
TOTAL ASSETS 3,93,184 288.97 5,27,729 397.79
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

(A) EQUITY

a Equity Share capital 8 10,00,000 533.69 10,00,000 533.69

b  Other Equity 9 (18,51,900) (1,159.86) (18,43,202) (1,169.30)
Total Equity (8,51,900) (626.17) (8,43,202) (635.61)

(B) LIABILITIES

1 Non-current liabilities

a Financial Liabilities

i Borrowings 10 9,55,000 701.93 12,75,528 961.49
Total Non-current liabilities 9,55,000 701.93 12,75,528 961.49

2 Current liabilities

a Financial Liabilities

i Trade Payables 11

- Total Outstanding dues of micro enterprises

and small enterprises - -

- Total Outstanding dues of creditors other than

micro enterprises and small enterprises 2,54,718 187.22 36,629 27.61
i Other financial liabilities 12 20,686 15.20 53,234 40.13

b Provisions - - - -

b Income Tax Liabilities (net) 13 3,975 2.92 2,800 2.11

¢ Other liabilities 14 10,705 7.87 2,740 2.06
Total Current liabilities 2,90,084 213.21 95,403 71.91
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 3,93,184 288.97 5,27,729 397.79

Summary of significant accounting policies
Notes refer to above form an intergral part of Balance Sheet

This is the Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date

As per our report of even date attached

For Khandelwal Jain & Co.
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Reg No : 105049W)

Sd/-

NARENDRA JAIN
Partner

Membership No.048725
Place : Mumbai

Date : April 21, 2021

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

Sd/-

N. MURALIDARAN

Director



NSEIT (US) INC.
(Formerly known as NSE.IT (US) INC)
STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

(Amt in USD) (Rs in Lakhs) (Amt in USD) (Rs in Lakhs)
For the year For the year For the year For the year

Particulars Notes ended ended ended ended
31.03.2021 31.03.2021 31.03.2020 31.03.2020

Income
Revenue from operations 15 5,23,102 389.07 3,28,190 234.12
Other income 16 - - 769 0.55
Total Income 5,23,102 389.07 3,28,959 234.67
Expenses
Employee benefits expense 17 - - - -
Technical & Sub Contract Charges 19(i) 4,00,482 297.95 2,62,552 187.29
Finance Cost 18 63,999 47.35 94,025 66.91
Other expenses 19(ii) 65,444 48.49 35,222 25.43
Total Expenses 5,29,925 393.79 3,91,799 279.63
Loss before exceptional items and tax (6,823) (4.72) (62,840) (44.96)
Exceptional item - - - -
Loss before tax (6,823) (4.72) (62,840) (44.96)
Less : Income Tax expense

- Current tax 13 1,875 1.39 2,500 1.80

- Short / (Excess) for earlier years 13 - - - -
Total tax expenses 1,875 1.39 2,500 1.80
Loss after tax (A) (8,698) (6.11) (65,340) (46.76)

Other Comprehensive Income / (Loss) (OCI)
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

- Foreign Currency Translation Reserve 15.55 (50.80)
- Remeasurements of post-employment benefit obligations - - - -
Total Other Comprehensive Income / (Loss), net of tax (B) - 15.55 - (50.80)
Total Comprehensive Income /(Loss) (A+B) (8,698) 9.44 (65,340) (97.56)
Earnings per equity share ( FV USD 1 each)
- Basic 20 $-0.01 Rs -0.61 $-0.07 Rs -4.68
- Diluted 20 $-0.01 Rs -0.61 $-0.07 Rs -4.68

Summary of significant accounting policies 1

Notes refer to above form an intergral part of the Statement of Profit & Loss

This is the Statement of Profit & Loss referred to in our report of even date

For Khandelwal Jain & Co. For and on behalf of Board of Directors

Chartered Accountants
(Firm Reg No : 105049W)

Sd/-
Sd/-
NARENDRA JAIN N. MURALIDARAN
Partner Director

Membership N0.048725

Place : Mumbai
Date : April 21, 2021



NSEIT (US) INC.
(Formerly known as NSE.IT (US) INC)
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY MARCH 31, 2021

(A)

(8)

(A)

(8)

Equity Share Capital

Amount in USD

Changes in | Balance at the
Balance at the beginning of the reporting equity share end of the
period capital during reporting
the year period
10,00,000 - 10,00,000
(Rs in Lakhs)
Changes in Balance at the
Balance at the beginning of the reporting equity share end of the
period capital during reporting
the year period
533.69 - 533.69
Other Equity
Amount in USD| (Rs in Lakhs)] Amountin (Rs in Lakhs)| Amountin |(Rs in Lakhs)
usbD usb
Foreign Foreign
Particulars Reta!ned Reta!ned Currem.:y Currenc':y Total Total
Earnings Earnings Translation Translation
Reserve Reserve
:::iao":e at the beginning of the reporting (18,43,202) (1,176.38) ; 708 | (18.43202)|  (1,169.30)
Loss after tax (8,698) (6.11) - (8,698) (6.11)
Other Comprehensive Income / (Loss) 15.55 15.55 15.55
Total Other Equity (18,51,900) (1,182.49) - 22.63 | (18,51,900) (1,159.86)
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY MARCH 31, 2020
Equity Share Capital
Amount in USD
Changes in | Balance at the
Balance at the beginning of the reporting equity share end of the
period capital during reporting
the year period
10,00,000 - 10,00,000
(Rs in Lakhs)
Changes in | Balance at the
Balance at the beginning of the reporting equity share end of the
period capital during reporting
the year period
533.69 - 533.69
Other Equity
Amount in USD| (Rs in Lakhs)] Amountin (Rs in Lakhs)| Amount in |(Rs in Lakhs)
usb usb
Foreign Foreign
Particulars Reta!ned Reta!ned Current.:y Current_:y Total Total
Earnings Earnings Translation Translation
Reserve Reserve
:::?0":" at the beginning of the reporting (17,77.862) (1,129.62) . 57.88 | (17,77.862)|  (1,071.74)
Loss after tax (65,340) (46.76) - (65,340) (46.76)
Other Comprehensive Income / (Loss) (50.80) - (50.80)
Total Other Equity (18,43,202) (1,176.38) - 7.08 | (18,43,202) (1,169.30)

Sd/-

This is the statement of changes in equity refered to in our report of even date

For Khandelwal Jain & Co.
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Reg No : 105049W)

NARENDRA JAIN
Partner
Membership No.048725

Place : Mumbai
Date : April 21, 2021

Sd/-

N. MURALIDARAN

Director

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors




A)

B)

C)

NSEIT (US) INC.

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

CASHFLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

(Formerly known as NSE.IT (US) INC)

(Amt in USD) (Rs in Lakhs)

(Amt in USD)

(Rs in Lakhs)

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2021

March 31, 2020

March 31, 2020

LOSS BEFORE TAX (6,823) (4.72) (62,840) (44.96)
Add: Adjustments for :
~ Interest Expense 63,026 46.63 93,073 66.23
~ Provision for doubtful debts - - - -
Less: Adjustments for :
- Interest income on Bank deposit - - (1) -
OPERATING PROFIT BEFORE WORKING CAPITAL CHANGES 56,203 41.91 30,232 21.27
Adjustments for :
- Trade Receivable and Unbilled Revenue (2,28,600) (166.66) (35,123) (28.76)
- Trade Payable including provisions 2,26,054 165.42 (1,95,110) (132.52)
- Other Assets (8,360) (6.13) 7,62,096 527.12
- Other Liabilities 5,016 3.39 (10,875) (6.55)
CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS 50,313 37.93 5,51,220 380.56
- Direct Taxes paid (Net of Refunds) (700) (0.58) (2,100) (1.35)
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES - Total (A) 49,613 37.35 5,49,120 379.21
CASHFLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
- Increase in Foreign Currency Translation Reserve
- Interest received - - 1 -
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES - Total (B) - - 1 -
CASHFLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Interest payment (1,00,590) (74.95) (75,528) (51.76)
- Borrowings (3,20,528) (259.56) (7,24,472) (421.91)
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) FINANCING ACTIVITIES - Total (C) (4,21,118) (334.51) (8,00,000) (473.67)
Changes in Foreign Currency Translation Reserve - 15.55 - (50.80)
NET INCREASE / (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (A+B+C) (3,71,505) (281.61) (2,50,879) (145.26)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS : OPENING BALANCE 4,55,510 343.35 7,06,389 488.61
CLOSING CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS : CLOSING BALANCE 84,005 61.74 4,55,510 343.35
NET INCREASE / (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT (3,71,505) (281.61) (2,50,879) (145.26)
Notes to Cash Flow Statement :
1 The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the "Indirect Method" as set out in the Ind AS-7 on Statement of Cash Flow.

2 Previous years figures have been regrouped, rearranged and reclassified wherever necessary to confirm to the current period classifications.

The above statement of cash flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

As per our report of even date attached

For Khandelwal Jain & Co.
Chartered Accountants

(Firm Reg No : 105049W)

Sd/-

NARENDRA JAIN
Partner

Membership No.048725

Place : Mumbai
Date : April 21, 2021

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

Sd/-

N. MURALIDARAN

Director



NSEIT (US) INC.
Notes forming integral part of the financial statements

1

a)

b)

Summary of significant accounting policies :

Company Overview

The NSEIT (US) INC. ("the Company") is a Subsidiary of the NSEIT Limited, NSEIT Limited is a global technology firm with a focus on the financial
services industry.The Company is a vertical specialist organization with deep domain expertise and technology focus aligned to the needs of financial
institutions and offering end-to-end technology solutions covering the entire gamut of Application Services, Testing Center of Excellence, Infrastructure
Services, Integrated Security Response Center, Analytics as a Service and IT Enabled Services (e-Assessments and e-Auctions) for BFSI segment.

The Financial Statements are approved for issue by the Company's Board of Directors on April 21, 2021.
Basis of preparation of Financial Statements

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in India (including Ind AS),
solely to enable its holding Company, NSEIT Limited to prepare its consolidated financial statements. The financial statements have been prepared on an
accrual basis and under the historical cost convention.

i) Historical cost convention

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following:

« certain financial instruments that is measured at fair value, and

« defined benefit plans - plan assets measured at fair value.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of
an asset or a liability, the Company takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability which market participants would take into account when
pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the
fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:
Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the measurement date;

Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and
Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

Use of estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make estimates, judgments and assumptions. These
estimates, judgments and assumptions affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosures of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the period. Although these
estimate are based on management’s best knowledge of current events and actions, uncertainity about the assumption and estimates could result in the
outcome requiring material adjustment to the carrying amount of asset and liabilities.

Investments and other financial assets

(i) Classification
The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:

those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income, or through profit or loss), and
those measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded in profit or loss or other comprehensive income. For investments in debt
instruments, this will depend on the business model in which the investment is held. For investments in equity instruments, this will depend on whether the
Company has made an irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition to account for the equity investment at fair value through other comprehensive
income. The Company reclassifies debt investments when and only when its business model for managing those assets changes.

(ii) Measurement

At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss,
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at fair value through
profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss.

Debt instruments :-

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Company’s business model for managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the
asset. There are three measurement categories into which the Company classifies its debt instruments:

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent solely payments of principal and
interest are measured at amortised cost. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently measured at amortised cost and is not part of a hedging
relationship is recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised or impaired. Interest income from these financial assets is included in finance
income using the effective interest rate method.

Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI): Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the financial
assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, are measured at FVOCI. Movements in the carrying amount are
taken through OCI, except for the recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses which are recognised
in profit and loss. When the financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in Other Comphrensive Income (OCI) is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss and recognised in net gain on sale of financial assets measured at FVOCI under other income. Interest income
from these financial assets is included in other income using the effective interest rate method.

Fair value through profit or loss: Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at fair value through profit or loss. A
gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss is recognised in profit or loss and presented net in the
statement of profit and loss in Net fair value gain / (loss) on financial assets mandatorily measured at FVPL under other income in the period in which it
arises. Interest income from these financial assets is included in other income.
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Equity investments (other than investments in subsidiary, associates and joint venture) :-

The Company subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value. Where the Company’s management has elected to present fair value gains and
losses on equity investments in other comprehensive income, there is no subsequent reclassification of fair value gains and losses to profit or loss.
Dividends from such investments continue to be recognised in profit or loss as other income when the Company’s right to receive payments is established.
Changes in the fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are recognised in other gain/ (losses) in the statement of profit and loss.
Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment losses) on equity investments measured at FVOCI are not reported separately from other changes in fair
value.

Equity Investments (in subsidiaries, associates and joint venture)

Investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint venture are carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any. Where an indication of impairment
exists, the carrying amount of the investment is assessed and written down immediately to its recoverable amount. The accounting policy on impairment of
non-financial assets is disclosed in Note (I) below. On disposal of investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint venture, the difference between net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amounts are recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

Acquisition-related costs are costs the acquirer incurs to effect a business combination. Those costs include finder’'s fees; advisory, legal, accounting,
valuation and other professional or consulting fees; general administrative costs, including the costs of maintaining an internal acquisitions department.
The company accounts for acquisition-related costs as expenses in the periods in which the costs are incurred and the services are received.

(iii) Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its assets carried at amortised cost and FVOCI debt
instruments. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables only, the Company applies the simplified approach permitted by Ind AS 109, which requires expected lifetime losses to be
recognised from initial recognition of the receivables.

De-recognition of financial assets :-
A financial asset is de-recognised only when

The Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset or
retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but assumes a contractual obligation to pay the cash flows to one or
more recipients.

Where the Company has transferred an asset, it evaluates whether it has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset.
In such cases, the financial asset is de-recognised. Where the Company has not transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the
financial asset, the financial asset is not de-recognised.

Where the Company has neither transferred a financial asset nor retains substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial
asset is de-recognised if the Company has not retained control of the financial asset. Where the Company retains control of the financial asset, the asset
is continued to be recognised to the extent of continuing involvement in the financial asset.

(iv) Income recognition

Interest income :-

Interest income from debt instruments is recognised using the effective interest rate method. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial assets to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset. When calculating the
effective interest rate, the Company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument but does not
consider the expected credit losses.

Dividends :-

Dividends are recognised in profit and loss only when the right to receive payment is established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated with
the dividend will flow to the Company, and the amount of the dividend can be reliably measured.

Financial liabilities
(i) Classification as debt or equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into
and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

(ii) Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial liabilities are initially
measured at the amortised cost unless at initial recognition, they are classified as fair value through profit and loss.

(iii) Subsequent measurement

Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. Financial liabilities carried at fair value through
profit or loss are measured at fair value with all changes in fair value recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

(iv) Derecognition
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expires.

Transaction costs

Transaction costs are “Incremental costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, issue or disposal of a financial asset or financial liability. An
incremental cost is one that would not have been incurred if the entity had not acquired, issued or disposed of the financial instrument. Transaction costs
include fees and commission paid to agents, advisers, brokers and dealers, levies by regulatory agencies and security exchanges, and transfer taxes and
duties. Under effective interest method, Company amortises transaction costs over the expected life of the financial instrument.
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(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

v)
(vi)

(vii)
(viii)

Derivatives

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured to their fair value at the
end of each reporting period.

Leases
Effective April 1, 2019, the Company has adopted Ind AS 116 Leases and applied to all lease contracts existing on April 1, 2019 using the simplified
approach. The adoption of this standard did not have a material impact on the financial statements for year ended March 31, 2020.

As a lessee

The Companys lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for land and buildings. The Company assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at
inception of the contract. Ind AS 116 defines a lease as a contract, or a part of a contract, that convey as the right of use an asset (the underlying asset)
for a period of time in exchange of consideration. To assess whether as contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Company
assesses whether: (i) the contract involves the use of an identified asset (ii) the Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the
asset through the period of the lease and (iii) the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset and a corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in
which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term of twelve months or less (short term leases) and low value leases. For these short-term and low value
leases, the Company recognizes the lease payments as an operating expenses on a straight line basis over the term of the lease.

The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or
prior to the commencement date of the lease plus any initial direct costs less any lease incentives. They are subsequently measured at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on straight line basis over the shorter
of the lease term and useful life of the underlying assets.

As alessor:

Lease for which the Company is a lessor is classified as finance or operating lease. Whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the lessee, the contract is classified as a finance lease. All other leases are classified as operating leases. For operating leases,
rental income is recognized on straight line basis over the term of the relevant lease

Revenue Recognition

The Company earns revenue primarily from providing end-to-end technology solutions covering the entire gamut of Application Services, Testing Center of
Excellence, Infrastructure Services, Integrated Security Response Center, Analytics as a Service and IT Enabled Services (e-Assessments and e-
Auctions) for BFSI segment.

Revenue is recognised upon transfer of control of promised products or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration which the
Company expects to receive in exchange for those products or services.

Revenue from time and material and job contracts is recognised on output basis measured by units delivered, efforts expended, number of transactions
processed, etc.

Revenue related to fixed price maintenance and support services contracts where the Company is standing ready to provide services is recognised based
on time elapsed mode and revenue is straight lined over the period of performance.

In respect of other fixed-price contracts, revenue is recognised using percentage-of-completion method (‘POC method’) of accounting with contract costs
incurred determining the degree of completion of the performance obligation. The contract costs used in computing the revenues include cost of fulfilling
warranty obligations.

Revenue from Online examination services are recognized on the basis of exams conducted and in cases where there are multiple performance obligation,
revenue is recognised using expected cost plus a margin approach where company forecast its expected costs of satisfying a performance obligation and
then add an appropriate margin for that good or service.

Revenue from the sale of distinct third party hardware is recognised at the point in time when control is transferred to the customer.

The solutions offered by the Company may include supply of third-party equipment or software. In such cases, revenue for supply of such third party
products are recorded at gross or net basis depending on whether the Company is acting as the principal or as an agent of the customer. The Company
recognises revenue in the gross amount of consideration when it is acting as a principal and at net amount of consideration when it is acting as an agent.

Insurance claims are accounted on accrual basis when the claims become due and receivable.

Revenue is measured based on the transaction price, which is the consideration, adjusted for volume discounts, service level credits, performance
bonuses, price concessions and incentives, if any, as specified in the contract with the customer. Revenue also excludes taxes collected from customers

Contract assets are recognised when there is excess of revenue earned over billings on contracts. Contract assets are classified as unbilled receivables
(only act of invoicing is pending) when there is unconditional right to receive cash, and only passage of time is required, as per contractual terms

Unearned and deferred revenue (“contract liability”) is recognised when there is billings in excess of revenues.
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(ii)

(iii)

In accordance with Ind AS 37, the Company recognises an onerous contract provision when the unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations under a
contract exceed the economic benefits to be received

Contracts are subject to modification to account for changes in contract specification and requirements. The Company reviews modification to contract in
conjunction with the original contract, basis which the transaction price could be allocated to a new performance obligation, or transaction price of an
existing obligation could undergo a change. In the event transaction price is revised for existing obligation, a cumulative adjustment is accounted for.

The Company disaggregates revenue from contracts with customers by industry verticals, geography and nature of services.

Use of significant judgements in revenue recognition

The Company’s contracts with customers could include promises to transfer multiple products and services to a customer. The Company assesses the
products / services promised in a contract and identifies distinct performance obligations in the contract. Identification of distinct performance obligation
involves judgement to determine the deliverables and the ability of the customer to benefit independently from such deliverables.

Judgement is also required to determine the transaction price for the contract. The transaction price could be either a fixed amount of customer
consideration or variable consideration with elements such as volume discounts, service level credits, performance bonuses, price concessions and
incentives. The transaction price is also adjusted for the effects of the time value of money if the contract includes a significant financing component. Any
consideration payable to the customer is adjusted to the transaction price, unless it is a payment for a distinct product or service from the customer. The
estimated amount of variable consideration is adjusted in the transaction price only to the extent that it is highly probable that a significant reversal in the
amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur and is reassessed at the end of each reporting period. The Company allocates the elements of
variable considerations to all the performance obligations of the contract unless there is observable evidence that they pertain to one or more distinct
performance obligations.

The Company uses judgement to determine an appropriate standalone selling price for a performance obligation. The Company allocates the transaction
price to each performance obligation on the basis of the relative standalone selling price of each distinct product or service promised in the contract.
Where standalone selling price is not observable, the Company ses the expected cost plus margin approach to allocate the transaction price to each
distinct performance obligation.

The Company exercises judgement in determining whether the performance obligation is satisfied at a point in time or over a period of time. The Company
considers indicators such as how customer consumes benefits as services are rendered or who controls the asset as it is being created or existence of
enforceable right to payment for performance to date and alternate use of such product or service, transfer of significant risks and rewards to the
customer, acceptance of delivery by the customer, etc.

Revenue for fixed-price contract is recognised using percentage-of-completion method. The Company uses judgement to estimate the future cost-to-
completion of the contracts which is used to determine the degree of completion of the performance obligation

Contract fulfilment costs are generally expensed as incurred except for certain software licence costs which meet the criteria for capitalisation. The
assessment of this criteria requires the application of judgement, in particular when considering if costs generate or enhance resources to be used to
satisfy future performance obligations and whether costs are expected to be recovered.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost of acquisition less accumulated depreciation/amortization and impairment loss, if any. The cost is
inclusive of freight, installation cost, duties, taxes, borrowing cost and other incidental expenses for bringing the asset to its working conditions for its
intended use but net of CENVAT and Value Added Tax, wherever input credit is claimed.

When significant parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced in intervals, the Company recognizes such parts as separate
component of assets with specific useful lives and provides depreciation over their useful life.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

All other repair and maintenance costs are recognized in Income statement as incurred.

Depreciation

Depreciation on tangible fixed assets is provided on Straight Line Method as per the useful life in line with holding company.
- Fixed Furniture and fixtures, Electrical installation and Office equipment including civil improvements at lease hold premises are depreciated over the
lease period.

The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at each year end, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted
for on a prospective basis.

Depreciation on assets purchased / disposed off during the year is provided on pro rata basis with reference to the date of additions / deductions.

The gain or loss arising on disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds
and the carrying amounts of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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Intangible assets

Intangible assets comprising of software are recorded at acquisition cost and are amortized over the estimated useful life on straight line basis. Software
products/ licenses purchased/ acquired for internal use of the Company which have expected longer life are capitalised and depreciated over a period of 3
years on Straight Line Method.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.Costs associated with maintaining software
programs are recognised as an expense as and when incurred.

Development costs
Development expenditures on an individual project are recognised as an intangible asset when the Company can demonstrate:

- The technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that the asset will be available for use

- Its intention to complete and its ability and intention to use the asset

- How the asset will generate future economic benefits

- The ability to measure reliably the expenditure during development

- Adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the development and to use or sell the software are available

Following initial recognition of the development expenditure as an asset, the asset is carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses. Amortisation of the asset begins when development is complete and the asset is available for use. It is amortised over the period of
expected future benefit. Amortisation expense is recognised in the statement of profit and loss unless such expenditure forms part of carrying value of
another asset.

During the period of development, the asset is tested for impairment annually.

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets excluding goodwill

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for impairment, or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that they might be impaired. Other assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds
its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes of
assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely independent of the
cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible
reversal of the impairment at the end of each reporting period.

Inventory :
The Inventory is valued at cost or net realizable value whichever is lower.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and Cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held at call with financial institutions, other short-term, highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.
These do not include bank balances earmarked/restricted for specific purposes.

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit for the period is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any
deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash
flows. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated.

Foreign currency

(i) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of the Company are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates ('the functional currency'). The functional currency of the Company is USD.

The financial statements are presented in Indian currency (INR), which is the Company's presentation currency, to enable its holding company, NSEIT
Limited to prepare its consolidated Ind AS financial statements. Further, the Company also presented its accounts in functional currency which is USD.
(i) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the presentation currency using the exchange rates at the dates of transactions.Foreign exchange gains
and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and liablilites denominated in foreign currencies
at the period end exchange rates are recognised in profit or loss.

Non monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
determined.Translation differences on assets and liablities carried at fair value are reported as a part of the fair value gain or loss. For example,
translation differences on non monetary assets and liablities such as equity instruments held at fair value through profit or loss are recognised in profit or
loss as part of the fair value gain or loss and translation differences on non monetary assets such as equity investments classified as FVOCI are
recognised in othe comprehensive income.

(iii) Translation to the presentation currency

The financial statements are translated from functional currency to presentation currency by using the following procedures:

(a) assets and liablities for each balance sheet presented (ie including comparatives) shall be transalated at the closing rate at the date of that balance
sheet;

(b) income and expenses for each statement of profit and loss presented (ie including comparatives) shall be translated at monthly exchange rate; and
(c) all resulting exchange differences shall be recognised in other comprehnsive income.
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Employee benefits

Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in
which the employees render the related service are the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. Short term employee benefits are
recognised in statement of profit and loss in the period in which the related service is rendered. The liabilities are presented as current employee benefit
obligations in the balance sheet.

Income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Contributed equity
Equity shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net
of tax, from the proceeds.

Provisions, Contingent liabilities and Contingent assets

A provision is recognised when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past event and it is probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation, in respect of which reliable estimate can be made. Provisions (excluding retirement benefits) are discounted to its present
value and are determined based on best estimate required to settle the obligation at the balance sheet date. These are reviewed at each balance sheet
date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates. Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the financial statements. A contingent asset is neither
recognised nor disclosed in the financial statements.

Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to the end of financial period which are unpaid. Trade and other
payables are presented as current liabilities unless payment is not due within 12 months after the reporting period. They are recognised initially at their fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification.

An asset is treated as current when it is:

- Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

- Held primarily for the purpose of trading

- Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

- Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period
All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:

- Itis expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

- Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading

- Itis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

- There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period

all other liabilities as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents. The Company has
identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

Dividends
Final dividends on shares are recorded as a liability on the date of approval by shareholders and interim dividends are recorded as a liability on the date of
declaration by the Company’s Board of Directors.

Trade receivables

Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less provision for
impairment.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet where there is a legally enforceable right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable
right must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or
bankruptcy of the Company or the counterparty.

Earnings per share

Basic and diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit attributable to equity shareholders for the year, by weighted average number of
equity shares outstanding during the year.

(i) Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:

« the profit attributable to owners of the company

* by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year, adjusted for bonus elements in equity shares issued during the
year.

(ii) Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per share to take into account:

« the after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive potential equity shares, and

« the weighted average number of additional equity shares that would have been outstanding assuming the conversion of all dilutive potential equity
shares.
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Critical accounting estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements requires the use of accounting estimates which, by definition, will seldom equal the actual results. This note
provides an overview of the areas that involved a higher degree of judgment or complexity, and of items which are more likely to be materially adjusted
due to estimates and assumptions turning out to be different than those originally assessed. Detailed information about each of these estimates and
judgments is included in relevant notes together with information about the basis of calculation for each affected line item in the financial statements.
The areas involving critical estimates or judgements are:

Use of significant judgements in revenue recognition [ Note-i (ix) ]

Estimation of useful life of tangible asset and intangible asset

Estimation of contingent liabilities and commitments (Note -27)

Impairment of Assets [Note - 1 (m) ]

Recoverability of Trade Receivables [Note -24 (B) ]

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated. They are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that
may have a financial impact on the Company and that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

Recent Pronouncement

On March 24, 2021, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") through a notification, amended Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013. The amendments
revise Division |, Il and Il of Schedule Il and are applicable from April 1, 2021. Key amendments relating to Division Il which relate to companies whose
financial statements are required to comply with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015 are:

Balance Sheet:

* Lease liabilities should be separately disclosed under the head ‘financial liabilities’, duly distinguished as current or non-current.

« Certain additional disclosures in the statement of changes in equity such as changes in equity share capital due to prior period errors and restated
balances at the beginning of the current reporting period.

* Specified format for disclosure of shareholding of promoters.
« Specified format for ageing schedule of trade receivables, trade payables, capital work-in-progress and intangible asset under development.

« If a company has not used funds for the specific purpose for which it was borrowed from banks and financial institutions, then disclosure of details of
where it has been used.

+ Specific disclosure under ‘additional regulatory requirement’ such as compliance with approved schemes of arrangements, compliance with number of
layers of companies, title deeds of immovable property not held in name of company, loans and advances to promoters, directors, key managerial
personnel (KMP) and related parties, details of benami property held etc.

Statement of profit and loss:
« Additional disclosures relating to Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR), undisclosed income and crypto or virtual currency specified under the head
‘additional information’ in the notes forming part of the standalone financial statements.

The amendments are extensive and the Company will evaluate the same to give effect to them as required by law.

Rounding of amounts
All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest USD and INR in Lakhs.
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Other Financial Assets

Loan

Security deposit

Total

Trade receivables

Trade Receivables

Less : Loss Allowances

Breakup of security details

Trade Receivables considered good -Secured
Trade Receivables considered good -Unsecured
Trade Receivables which have significant increase in credit risk

Trade Receivables credit impaired

Loss allowances

Total

Unbilled Receivable

Unbilled Receivable

Cash and Cash equivalents
Balances with banks

- In Current Accounts

- In Savings Accounts
Total

Other Financial Assets

Others
Total

Other assets

Advance to Creditors (unsecured, considered good)
Prepaid expenses

Non-current

Non-current

31.03.2021 31.03.2021 31.03.2020 31.03.2020
(Amt in USD) (Rs in Lakhs) (Amt in USD) (Rs in Lakhs)
98 0.07 98 0.07
98 0.07 98 0.07
Current Current
31.03.2021 31.03.2021 31.03.2020 31.03.2020
(Amt in USD) (Rs in Lakhs) (Amt in USD) (Rs in Lakhs)
2,00,689 147.50 71,809 54.13
2,00,689 147.50 71,809 54.13
2,00,689 147.50 71,809 54.13
2,00,689 147.50 71,809 54.13
2,00,689 147.50 71,809 54.13
Current Current
31.03.2021 31.03.2021 31.03.2020 31.03.2020
(Amt in USD) (Rs in Lakhs) (Amt in USD) (Rs in Lakhs)
99,720 73.29 - -
99,720 73.29 - -
Current Current
31.03.2021 31.03.2021 31.03.2020 31.03.2020
(Amt in USD) (Rs in Lakhs) (Amt in USD) (Rs in Lakhs)
80,008 58.80 4,51,513 340.34
3,997 2.94 3,997 3.01
84,005 61.74 4,55,510 343.35
Current Current
31.03.2021 31.03.2021 31.03.2020 31.03.2020
(Amt in USD) (" in Lakhs) (Amt in USD) (" in Lakhs)
Current Current
31.03.2021 31.03.2021 31.03.2020 31.03.2020
(Amt in USD) ( in Lakhs) (Amt in USD) (" in Lakhs)
8,672 6.37 312 0.24
8,672 6.37 312 0.24
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Equity Share Capital 31.03.2021 31.03.2021 31.03.2020 31.03.2020
(Amt in USD) (" in Lakhs) (Amt in USD) (" in Lakhs)

Authorised

10,00,000 (P.Y. 10,00,000) Equity Shares of USD 1/- each 10,00,000 533.69 10,00,000 533.69

Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up

10,00,000 (P.Y. 10,00,000) Equity shares of USD 1/- each fully 10,00,000 533.69 10,00,000 533.69

paid up
There is no movement either in the number of shares or in amount between previous year and current year.

Terms and rights attached to equity shares

The company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of USD 1/- per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote
per share. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General
Meeting. In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the company,
after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

Details of shareholders holding more than 5% share in the company

31.03.2021 31.03.2020
No. % holding No. % holding
Equity shares of USD 1/- each fully paid
NSEIT Limited (Holding Company) 10,00,000 100% 10,00,000 100%
Other Equity 31.03.2021 31.03.2021 31.03.2020 31.03.2020
(Amt in USD) (" in Lakhs) (Amt in USD) (" in Lakhs)
Surplus/(deficit) in the statement of profit and loss
As per last balance sheet (18,43,202) (1,176.38) (17,77,862) (1,129.62)
Add : Profit / (Loss) for the year (8,698) (6.11) (65,340) (46.76)
(18,51,900) (1,182.49) (18,43,202) (1,176.38)
Foreign Currency Translation Reserve
As per last balance sheet 7.08 57.88
Add: Foreign Currency Translation Reserve 15.55 (50.80)
22.63 7.08
Total Other Equity (18,51,900) (1,159.86) (18,43,202) (1,169.30)
Other Financial Liabilities Non-current Non-current
31.03.2021 31.03.2021 31.03.2020 31.03.2020
(Amt in USD) (" in Lakhs) (Amt in USD) (" in Lakhs)
Borrowings 9,55,000 701.93 12,75,528 961.49
9,55,000 701.93 12,75,528 961.49
Borrowings taken from Parent Company is unsecured.
Interest payable on the above borrowings is @ Libor (as on September 30, 2019) plus 300 basis point i.e 5.0365%
Borrowings is for tenure of 5 years from the date of borrowing taken.
Trade Payables Current Current
31.03.2021 31.03.2021 31.03.2020 31.03.2020
(Amt in USD) (Rs in Lakhs) (Amt in USD) (Rs in Lakhs)

Trade payables to micro and small enterprises - - - -
Trade payables to other 492 0.36 492 0.37
Trade payables to related Party (NSEIT Limited) 2,54,226 186.86 36,137 27.24

2,54,718 187.22 36,629 27.61
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12 Other Financial Liabilities Current Current
31.03.2021 31.03.2021 31.03.2020 31.03.2020
(Amt in USD) (Rs in Lakhs) (Amt in USD) (Rs in Lakhs)
Interest Payable to related party (NSEIT Limited) - - 37,564 28.32
Liabilities for Expenses 20,686 15.20 15,670 11.81
20,686 15.20 53,234 40.13
13 Income Taxes
(A) The major components of income tax expense are as follows:
Profit or loss section
Parti 31.03.2021 31.03.2021 31.03.2020 31.03.2020
articulars
(Amt in USD) (Rs in Lakhs) (Amt in USD) (Rs in Lakhs)
Current taxes 1,875 1.39 2,500 1.80
Short / (Excess) for earlier years - - - -
Deferred taxes movement of Asset - - - -
Deferred taxes movement of Liability - - - -
Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit or loss 1,875 1.39 2,500 1.80
(B) Reconciliation of the Income Tax provision to the amount computed by applying the statutory income tax rate to the income before income
taxes
Particulars Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
31.03.2021 31.03.2021 31.03.2020 31.03.2020
(Amt in USD) (Rs in Lakhs) (Amt in USD) (Rs in Lakhs)
Profit before income tax expense (6,823) (4.72) (62,840) (44.96)
Current tax 1,875 1.39 2,500 1.80
Short / (Excess) for earlier years - - - -
Tax expense for the year 1,875 1.39 2,500 1.80
(C) The movement in the current income tax asset/ (liability) is as follows:
Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
Particulars 31.03.2021 31.03.2021 31.03.2020 31.03.2020
(Amt in USD) (Rs in Lakhs) (Amt in USD) (Rs in Lakhs)
Net current income tax asset/(liability) at the beginning (2,800) (2.11) (2,400) (1.66)
Income tax paid ( including TDS and net of refund) 700 0.58 2,100 1.35
Current income tax expense (1,875) (1.39) (2,500) (1.80)
Income tax on other comprehensive income - - - -
Net current income tax asset/(liability) at the end (3,975) (2.92) (2,800) (2.11)
13 Income Tax Liabilities / Assets
Current Current
31.03.2021 31.03.2021 31.03.2020 31.03.2020
(Amt in USD) (Rs in Lakhs) (Amt in USD) (Rs in Lakhs)
Income Tax Liabilities (net) 3,975 2.92 2,800 2.11
3,975 2.92 2,800 2.1
14 Other liabilities
Current Current
31.03.2021 31.03.2021 31.03.2020 31.03.2020
(Amt in USD) (Rs in Lakhs) (Amt in USD) (Rs in Lakhs)
Statutory dues payable 9,454 6.95 - -
Advance received from customers 1,251 0.92 2,740 2.06
Total 10,705 7.87 2,740 2.06
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Revenue from operations

Sale of Services :

- Application Development & Maintenance Services
- ITES - Assessment Services

Total

Disaggregate revenue information

For the year

For the year

For the year

For the year

ended ended ended ended
31.03.2021 31.03.2021 31.03.2020 31.03.2020
(Amt in USD) (Rs in Lakhs) (Amt in USD) (Rs in Lakhs)
5,10,602 379.76 2,51,398 178.84
12,500 9.31 76,792 55.28
5,23,102 389.07 3,28,190 234.12

The table below presents disaggregated revenues from contracts with customers for the year ended March 31,2021 by contract-type .The
Company believe that this disaggregation best depicts how the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of our revenues and cashflows are

affected by industry, market and other economic factors.

Particulars For the year For the year For the year For the year
ended ended ended ended
31.03.2021 31.03.2021 31.03.2020 31.03.2020
(Amt in USD) (Rs in Lakhs) (Amt in USD) (Rs in Lakhs)
Revenues by contract type
Fixed Price 12,500 9.31 76,792 55.28
Time & Materials 5,10,602 379.76 2,51,398 178.84
Total 5,23,102 389.07 3,28,190 234.12

Performance obligations and remaining performance obligations

The remaining performance obligation disclosure provides the aggregate amount of the transaction price yet to be recognized as at the end of
the reporting period and an explanation as to when the Company expects to recognize these amounts in revenue. Applying the practical
expedient as given in Ind AS 115, the Company has not disclosed the remaining performance obligation related disclosures for contracts
where the revenue recognized corresponds directly with the value to the customer of the entity's performance completed to date, typically
those contracts where invoicing is on time and material basis. Remaining performance obligation estimates are subject to change and are
affected by several factors, including terminations, changes in the scope of contracts, periodic revalidations, adjustment for revenue that has

not materialized and adjustments for currency.

Revenue disaggregation by geography is as follows:

Entire revenue from operations is derived from One Country (US)

Information about major customers: (Refer Note 22)

Changes in Contract assets are as follows: 31.03.2021 31.03.2021 31.03.2020 31.03.2020
(Amt in USD) (Rs in Lakhs) (Amt in USD) (Rs in Lakhs)
Balance at the beginning of the year - - - -
Invoices raised during the year - - - -
Contract assets reversed - - - -
Revenue recognised during the year 99,720 73.29 - -
Balance at the end of the year 99,720 73.29 - -
Changes in advance received from customer are as follows: 31.03.2021 31.03.2021 31.03.2020 31.03.2020
(Amt in USD) (Rs in Lakhs) (Amt in USD) (Rs in Lakhs)
Balance at the beginning of the year 2,740 2.06 1,844 1.28
Revenue recognised that was included in the unearned and - - - -
deferred revenue at the beginning of the year
Increase due to invoicing during the year, excluding amounts (11,595) (8.61) (29,712) (22.29)
recognised as revenue during the year
Advance adjusted against trade receivables - - - -
Advance received during the year 10,107 7.47 30,607 23.07
Balance at the end of the year 1,251 (0.92) 2,740 2.06
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16 Other income

For the year

For the year

For the year

For the year

ended ended ended ended
31.03.2021 31.03.2021 31.03.2020 31.03.2020
(Amt in USD) (Rs in Lakhs) (Amt in USD) (Rs in Lakhs)
Interest Income
- On Bank Deposits - - 1 -
Miscellaneous Income - - 768 0.55
Total - - 769 0.55
17 Employee benefits expenses For the year For the year For the year For the year
ended ended ended ended
31.03.2021 31.03.2021 31.03.2020 31.03.2020
(Amt in USD) (Rs in Lakhs) (Amt in USD) (Rs in Lakhs)
Salaries, wages and allowances - - - -
Total - - - -
18 Finance Cost For the year For the year For the year For the year
ended ended ended ended
31.03.2021 31.03.2021 31.03.2020 31.03.2020
(Amt in USD) (Rs in Lakhs) (Amt in USD) (Rs in Lakhs)
Bank Charges 973 0.72 952 0.68
Interest Expense 63,026 46.63 93,073 66.23
63,999 47.35 94,025 66.91
19 i Technical & Sub Contract Charges 4,00,482 297.95 2,62,552 187.29
ii Other expenses
Rent 1,416 1.05 1,396 0.99
Insurance 58,628 43.43 18,140 12.90
Professional Fees 3,600 2.67 4,597 3.25
GST on Technical & Sub Contract Charges 1,800 1.34 11,058 8.26
Miscellaneous expenses - - 31 0.03
Total 65,444 48.49 35,222 25.43
20 In accordance with Indian Accounting Standard - 33 “Earning per Share”
Earning per share
Particulars Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
31.03.2021 31.03.2021 31.03.2020 31.03.2020
Net Profit attributable to Shareholders (Amt in USD) (Rs in Lakhs) (Amt in USD) (Rs in Lakhs)
Loss after tax (8,698) (6.11) (65,340) (46.76)
Weighted Average number of equity shares issued ( in nos) 10,00,000 10,00,000 10,00,000 10,00,000
Basic earnings per share of $ 1/- each
Basic $-0.01 Rs -0.61 $-0.07 Rs -4.68
Diluted $-0.01 Rs -0.61 $-0.07 Rs -4.68

The Company does not have any outstanding dilutive potential equity shares. Consequently, the basic and diluted earning per share of the

Company remain the same.
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In compliance with Ind AS 24 - “Related Party Disclosures”, as notified under Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015 and Companies ( Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016, the required disclosures are given in the table below :

Names of the related parties and related party relationship

o Related Party Nature of Relationship
1 |National Stock Exchange of India Limited Ultimate Holding Company
2 NSE Investments Limited (formerly known as NSE Strategic Holding Company's Holding Company
Investment Corporation Limited)
3 [NSEIT Limited Holding Company
4 NSE Clearing Limited (formerly known as National Securities Fellow Subsidiary of Holding Company's Holding
Clearing Corporation Limited) Company
5 [NSE IFSC Limited Fellow Subsidiary of Holding Company's Holding
6 |National Securities Depository Limited Ultimate Holding Company's Associate
7 |NSDL Database Management Limited Ultimate Holding Co.'s Associate Co's Subsidiary
NSDL e-Governance Infrastructure Limited Associate Company of Holding Company's Holding
8 Company
Power Exchange India Limited Associate Company of Holding Company's Holding
9 Company
NSE Data & Analytics Limited (formerly known as DotEx Fellow Subsidiary of Holding Company
10 |nternational Limited)
11 [NSE Infotech Services Limited Fellow Subsidiary of Holding Company
NSE Indices Limited (formerly known as India Index Services & Fellow Subsidiary of Holding Company
12| products Limited)
13 |[NSE Academy Limited Fellow Subsidiary of Holding Company
14 |[NSE IFSC CLEARING Corporation Limited Subsidiary of Holding Company's Fellow Subsidiary
TalentSprint Private Limited (w.e.f. 10th November 2020) Holding Company's Fellow Subsidiary's Subsidiary
15 Company
Cogencis Information Services Limited (w.e.f. 21st January 2021) Holding Company's Fellow Subsidiary's Subsidiary
16 Company
Indian Gas Exchange Limited (w.e.f. 16th March 2021) Holding Company's Holding Company's Associate
17 Company
Capital Quant Solutions Private Limited (w.e.f. 3rd March 2021) Holding Company's Fellow Subsidiary's Subsidiary
18 Company
19 |National Stock Exchange Investor Protection Fund Trust Ultimate Holding Co.'s Trust
NSE Foundation (w.e.f 5th March 2018) Fellow Subsidiary of Holding Company's Holding
20 Company
Aujas Cybersecurity Limited (Formerly known as Aujas Networks Fellow subsidiary Company
21 [Limited / Aujas Networks Private Ltd)
22 |Dr. N. Muralidaran - Director Key Management Personnel

(b) Details of transactions (including GST/service tax wherever levied) with related parties are as follows :

Nature of Transactions Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
31.03.2021 31.03.2021 31.03.2020 31.03.2020
(Amt in USD) [ (Rs in Lakhs) (Amt in USD) | (Rs in Lakhs)
Name of the Related Party -NSEIT Limited
Application Development and Maintenance Services 3,90,482 290.50 2,01,118 143.07
ITES - Assessment Services 10,000 7.45 61,433 44 .22
Taxes recovered 1,800 1.34 - -
Loan taken - - - -
Loan Repaid (3,20,528) (232.69) (7,24,472) (512.64)
Interest on Loan 63,026 46.63 93,073 66.23
Interest paid on Loan (1,00,590) (74.93) (75,527) (53.44)
Closing Balance - Loan taken including interest accrued (9,55,000) (701.93) (13,13,092) (989.81)
Closing Balance - Dr./ (Cr.) (1,74,450) (128.22) (36,137) (27.24)
Closing Balance - Provision for expenses (79,776) (58.64) - -
Name of the Related Party -Aujas Cybersecurity Limited
Application Development and Maintenance Services 60,000 44 .35 - -
Closing Balance - Dr./ (Cr.) 25,000 18.38 - -

All related parties transaction entered during the year were in ordinary course of business. Outstanding balances as at the year end are unsecured
and settlement occurs in cash. There have been no guarantee provided or received for any related parties receivables or payables as of March
31, 2021 and March 31, 2020. The Company has not recorded any impairment of receivables relating to amount owed by related parties.
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Segment Reporting:
Description of segments and principal activities

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Chief Operating Decision Maker (“CODM”) of
the Company. The CODM, who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments, has been
identified by the management of the Company. The Company has identified two segments i.e. “End to End solutions” and “ITES - Assessment
Services” as reporting segments based on the information reviewed by CODM.

Reportable business segment viz. offering “End to End solutions” includes revenues from sale and maintenance of software products, software
consultancy services, custom software development, information technology infrastructure services provided predominantly to market
participants in the securities and commodity markets and “ITES - Assessment Services” includes sale and maintenance of ITES-Assessment
Services software products, online education and examination services and other incidental services as its primary segments. This takes into
consideration the commonality in the risks and rewards of the products/ solutions and related services offered nature of services, type / class of
customers for the products / services, management structure and system of financial reporting. Accordingly, the results of the said segments
have been disclosed hereunder.

The above business segments have been identified considering :
a) the nature of products and services

b) the differing risks

c) the internal organisation and management structure, and

d) the internal financial reporting systems.

The segment information presented is in accordance with the accounting policies adopted for preparing the consolidated financial statements of
the Company. Segment revenues, expenses and results include inter-segment transfers. Such transfers are undertaken either at competitive
market prices charged to unaffiliated customers for similar goods or at contracted rates. These transfers are eliminated on consolidation.

Segment Revenue :

Segment revenue is measured in the same way as in the statement of profit or loss. Revenue and expenses which relate to the enterprise as a
whole and are not allocable to a segment on reasonable basis have been disclosed as Unallocable.Transactions between segments are
eliminated on consolidation. The CODM primarily uses a measure of profit before tax to assess the performance of the operating segments.

(Amtin USD) | (RsinLakhs)  (Amtin USD) | (Rs in Lakhs)

Particulars 2020-21 2020-21 2019-20 2019-20

Segment Revenue

End to End Solution 5,10,602 379.76 2,51,398 178.84

ITES - Assessment Services 12,500 9.31 76,792 55.28
5,23,102 389.07 3,28,190 234.12

Inter-segment revenue
End to End Solution - - - -
ITES - Assessment Services - - - -

Revenue from external customers

End to End Solution 5,10,602 379.76 2,51,398 178.84
ITES - Assessment Services 12,500 9.31 76,792 55.28
Total 5,23,102 389.07 3,28,190 234.12

Segment Results

End to End Solution 1,20,120 89.26 50,280 35.77
ITES - Assessment Services 700 0.52 4,299 2.80
Total 1,20,820 89.78 54,579 38.57
Less: Unallocable Expenses (Net of income) 1,27,643 94.50 1,17,420 83.53
Add: Interest income - - 1 -
Profit before Tax (6,823) (4.72) (62,840) (44.96)
Exceptional item - - - -
Profit before tax (6,823) (4.72) (62,840) (44.96)
Less : Income Tax expense

- Current tax 1,875 1.39 2,500 1.80

- Short / Excess Tax for earlier years - - - -
- Deferred tax - - -
Total Tax Expenses 1,875 1.39 2,500 1.80
Net profit after tax (8,698) (6.11) (65,340) (46.76)
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Note :

Revenue From External Customers based on geographies
The Parent company is domiciled in India. The amount of Company revenue from external customers broken down by location of customers.

(Amt in USD) | (Rs in Lakhs) (Amt in USD) (Rs in Lakhs)
Particulars 2020-21 2020-21 2019-20 2019-20
India - - - -
Outside India 5,23,102 389.07 3,28,190 234.12
Total 5,23,102 389.07 3,28,190 234.12

Segment Assets

Segment assets are measured in the same way as in the balance sheet. These assets are allocated based on the operations of the segment.

(Amt in USD) |[(Rs in Lakhs) (Amt in USD) (Rs in Lakhs)
Segments 2020-21 2020-21 2019-20 2019-20
End to End Solution 2,99,899 220.42 68,964 51.99
ITES - Assessment Services 510 0.37 2,845 2.14
Total Segment Assets 3,00,409 220.79 71,809 54.13
Unallocable Assets 92,775 68.18 4,55,920 343.66
Total Assets 3,93,184 288.97 5,27,729 397.79

The non current assets are situated outside the domicile of India.

Segment Liabilities

Segment Liablities are measured in the same way as in the financial statements. These Liabilites are allocated based on the operations of the

segment.

(Amt in USD) |[(Rs in Lakhs) (Amt in USD) (Rs in Lakhs)
Segments 2020-21 2020-21 2019-20 2019-20
End to End Solution 2,52,504 185.60 18,400 14.06
ITES - Assessment Services 1,722 1.27 17,738 13.55
Total Segment Liabilities 2,54,226 186.86 36,138 27.61
Unallocable Liabilities 9,90,858 728.28 13,34,793 1,005.79
Total Liabilities 12,45,084 915.14 13,70,931 1,033.40
Segment Capital Expenditure

(Amt in USD) |(Rs in Lakhs) (Amt in USD) (Rs in Lakhs)
Segments 2020-21 2020-21 2019-20 2019-20
End to End Solution - - - -
ITES - Assessment Services - - - -
Total Segment Capital Expenditure - - - -
Add: Unallocable Capital Expenditure - - - -
Total Capital Expenditure - - - -
Segment Depreciation / Amortisation

(Amt in USD) |(Rs in Lakhs) (Amt in USD) (Rs in Lakhs)
Segments 2020-21 2020-21 2019-20 2019-20

End to End Solution
ITES - Assessment Services

Total Segment Depreciation / Amortisation

Add: Unallocable Depreciation / Amortisation

Total Depreciation / Amortisation

Information about major customers
Company's significant revenues have been dervied from 3 no. customers (Previous year 2 no. customers). Details of the same are given as under:

2020-21 2019-20
Customer [Forming part of segment . . % of revenue . (Rsin |% of revenue
(Amt in USD) (Rs in Lakhs) From Operation (Amt in USD) Lakhs) From Operation
End to End Solutions - Customer 3 (Previous
3|year Customer 2 4,83,794 359.78 92.47 2,51,398 178.84 76.39
ITES-Assessment Services -(Previous year
0|Customer 1) - - - 47,080 33.57 14.34

No other single customer contributed 10% or more to the Company's revenue for FY 2020-21 and FY 2019-20.
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a) Financial Instruments by category

(Amt in USD) (Rs in Lakhs) (Amt in USD) (Rs in Lakhs)
31-Mar-21 31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-20
Amortised Amortised Amortised Amortised

Particulars FVPL| FVOCI Cost FVPL| FVOCI Cost FVPL| FVOCI Cost FVPL| FVOCI Cost
Financial Assets
Investments
Trade receivables - - 2,00,689 - - 14750 | - - 71,809 - - 54.13
Unbilled Revenue - - 99,720 - - 73.29 - - - - - -
Cash and Cash equivalents - - 84,005 - - 61.74 | - - 4,55,510 - - 343.35
Other Financial assets - - 98 - - 0.07 - - 98 - - 0.07
Total - - 3,84,512 - - 282.60 | - - 5,27,417 - - 397.55
Financial Liabilities - - -

Borrowings - - 9,55,000 - - 70193 | - - 12,75,528 - - 961.49

Trade Payables - - 2,54,718 - - 187.22 | - - 36,629 - - 27.61

Other financial liabilities - - 20,686 - - 15.20 | - - 53,234 - - 40.13
Total - - 12,30,404 - - 904.35 | - - 13,65,391 - - 1,029.23

b) Fair Value Measurements

Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities that are not measured at fair value (but fair value disclosures are required)

Management considers that the carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recognized in the financial statements at approximate their fair
values.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company’s business activities expose it to a variety of financial risks, namely liquidity risk, market risks and credit risk. The Company’s senior
management has the overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company’s risk management framework

The Company has developed a Risk Management Policy. It establishes various levels of accountability and overview within the Company, while
vesting identified managers with responsibility for each significant risk. Risk Management policy has been formulated with an aim to (a) Overseeing the
Company's risk management process and controls, risk tolerance (b) Setting strategic plans and objectives for risk management and review of risk
assessment of the Company (c) Review the Company's risk appetite and strategy relating to key risks, including credit risk, liquidity and funding risk,
market risk, product risk and reputational risk as well as the guidelines, policies and processes for monitoring and mitigating such risks.

The core business & operational risk is managed through cross functional involvement and communication across businesses.

The Finance department activities are designed to:

- protect the Company’s financial results and position from financial risks
- maintain market risks within acceptable parameters, while optimising returns; and
- protect the Company’s financial investments, while maximising returns.

A. MANAGEMENT OF LIQUIDITY RISK

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will face in meeting its obligations associated with its financial liabilities. The Company’s approachto
managing liquidity is to ensure that it will have sufficient funds to meet its liabilities when due without incurring unacceptable losses. In doing this,
management considers both normal and stressed conditions

The Company’s treasury department regularly monitors the rolling forecasts to ensure it has sufficient cash on an on-going basis to meet operational
needs. Any short term surplus cash generated by the operating entities, over and above the amount required for working capital management and
other operational requirements, is retained as cash and cash equivalents (to the extent required) and any excess is invested in mutual funds to
optimise the cash returns on investments while ensuring sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities.

(Amt in USD) (Rs in Lakhs)
. Carrying Less than More than Carrying | Less than | More than

Particulars amount 12 months 12months Total amount |12 months| 12months Total
As at 31st March 2021

Borrowings 9,55,000 9,55,000 9,55,000 701.93 701.93 701.93
Trade payables 2,54,718 2,54,718 - 2,54,718 187.22 187.22 - 187.22
Other financial liabilities 20,686 20,686 - 20,686 15.20 15.20 - 15.20
As at 31st March 2020

Borrowings 12,75,528 12,75,528 | 12,75,528 961.49 961.49 961.49
Trade payables 36,629 36,629 - 36,629 27.61 27.61 - 27.61
Other financial liabilities 53,234 53,234 - 53,234 40.13 40.13 - 40.13

B : MANAGEMENT OF CREDIT RISK
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counter-party fails to meet its contractual obligations.

Concentrations of credit risk with respect to trade receivables is high, due to the Company’s customer base being small.

Trade receivables

All trade receivables are reviewed and assessed for default on a quarterly basis.
Basesd on historical experience of collecting receivables, supported by the level of default, our assessment of credit risk is low.

Capital and other commitments - NIL

The company has incurred losses during the year amounting to USD 8,698 (Rs.6.11 lakhs), it has accumulated losses of USD 18,51,900 (Rs.1159.86
lakhs) and has negative net worth of USD 851,900 (Rs.626.17 lakhs) as at March 31, 2021. Considering long term and strategic nature of the business
and future business plans, the accounts of the company has been prepared on a going concern basis.
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Contingent liability - NIL
Expenditure in foreign currency (accrual basis) - NIL
Earnings in foreign currency (accrual basis) - NIL

In the opinion of the Board, current assets, loans and advances are approximately of the value stated, if realised in the ordinary course of business.

Impact of COVID 19 (Global Pandemic) :

Impact of COVID 19 (Global Pandemic) :

The Coronavirus (COVID-19) outbreak is an unprecedented global situation. World Health Organization (WHO) has declared the COVID-19 virus a
‘Pandemic’. The Government of India and various state governments had put in place several measures including instituting a complete lockdown
w.e.f March 25, 2020 to combat the spread and transmission of the virus. Effective June 8, 2020 the said lockdown has being partially lifted in a
phased manner. Post unlock advisory issued by the Government, COVID-19 continued to impact the business operations and revenue of the Company
in respect of ITES-Assessment Services (On-Line Examination Services).

The Company has taken into account the possible impacts of COVID-19 in preparation of the standalone financial statements including but not limited
to its assessment of impact on revenues, operating costs and impact on leases. Based on the current indicators of future economic conditions and the
impact of COVID-19 on its operations, the Company has also made an assessment of its liquidity position, recoverability and carrying values of its
assets and ability to pay its liabilities as they become due and is of the view that there is no material impact or adjustments required to be made in
these financial results. The impact assessment of COVID-19 may be different from that presently estimated and the Company will continue to evaluate
any significant changes to its operations and its resultant impact on the financial performance.

Previous years figures have been regrouped, rearranged and reclassified wherever necessary to confirm to the current year / period classifications.

As per our report of even date attached

For Khandelwal Jain & Co.

Chartered Accountants For and on behalf of Board of Directors
(Firm Reg No : 105049W)

Sd/- Sd/-

NARENDRA JAIN N. MURALIDARAN
Partner Director
Membership No.048725 DIN No. 06567029

Place : Mumbai
Date : April 21, 2021
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
To the Members of NSE IFSC Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of NSE IFSC Limited (“the
Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2021, the Statement of
Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in
Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended on that date, and a summary
of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter
referred to as “the financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our infermation and according to the explanations given
to us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in
conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act
read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind
AS™) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of
the Company as at March 31, 2021, the loss and total comprehensive loss, changes in
equity and its cash fiows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India (ICAI) together with the independence requirements that are relevant to our audit of
the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder,
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the
financial statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other
information. The other information comprises the information included in the Board’s
Report including Annexures to Board’s Report, but does not include the financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion nn tha financial gtatements does not cover the other information and we do
not expres irance conclusion thereon.

Page 1 of 10



HARIBHAKTI & CO. LLP

Charlered Accountants
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of NSE IFSC Clearing Corporation Limited
Report on the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of NSE IFSC Clearing Corporation
Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2021, the Statement of
Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the
Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the Ind AS financial statements
including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter
referred to as “Ind AS financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the
Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India including the Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind AS”) prescribed
under section 133 of the Act, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2021, its loss
(including other comprehensive income), changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on
that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to
our audit of the Ind AS financial statements under the provisions of the Act and Rules thereunder, and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the
Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion on the Ind AS financial statements.

Other Information

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Board’s Report and annexures thereto, but does not
include the Ind AS financial statements, and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the Ind AS financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Ind AS Financial
Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view of
the financial position, financial performance (including other comprehensive income), changes in
equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, including Ind AS prescribed under section 133 of the Act, read with the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also includes maintenance
of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls,
that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial statements that give a
true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the
Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of this Ind AS financial statements. As part of an audit in
accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness
of such controls.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.
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Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the Ind AS financial statements or,
if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Ind AS financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the Ind AS financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

(1) As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure 1”, a statement
on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

)

As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a.

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so

far as it appears from our examination of those books;

. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income),

the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this report
are in agreement with the books of account

. In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Ind AS prescribed
under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015, as amended;

. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2021,

and taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March
31, 2021 from being appointed as a director in terms of section 164(2) of the Act;

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial

statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate report in “Annexure 2”;
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g. With respect to the other matter to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
no managerial remuneration has been paid / provided by the Company to its directors during
the year. Accordingly, the provisions of section 197 of the Act are not applicable to the
Company;

h. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us:

(i) The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial
position;

iil) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts. Hence,
the question of any material foreseeable losses does not arise; and

iii) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

For Haribhakti & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No.103523W / W100048

Sumant Sakhardande

Membership No.: 034828
UDIN: 21034828AAAAC09580

Place: Mumbai
Date: April 30, 2021
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ANNEXURE 1 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section
in the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of NSE IFSC Clearing
Corporation Limited on the Ind AS financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021.

Based on the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting a true and fair view on the Ind
AS financial statements of the Company and taking into consideration the information and
explanations given to us and the books of account and other records examined by us in the normal
course of audit, we report that:

(U]

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

(vii)

(a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of fixed assets.

(b) During the year, the fixed assets of the Company have been physically verified by the
management and no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification. In our opinion,
the frequency of verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the
nature of its assets.

(c) The Company does not hold any immovable property during the year. Accordingly, the
provisions of clause 3(i)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company is in the business of providing services and does not have any physical inventories.
Accordingly, clause 3(ii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited
Liability Partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the
Act. Accordingly, clause 3(iii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not granted any loan, made any investment or provided any guarantee or
security to the parties covered under section 185 and 186 of the Act. Accordingly, clause 3(iv) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion, the Company has not accepted any deposits from the public within the provisions
of sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the rules framed there under. Accordingly, the provisions of
clause 3(v) of the Order are not applicable.

The Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records for any of the
products of the Company under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Act and the rules framed
there under.

(a) The Company is regular in depositing with appropriate authorities, undisputed statutory dues
including provident fund, income tax, goods and services tax (GST), customs duty, cess and
any other material statutory dues applicable to it. During the year 2017-18, sales tax, value
added tax, service tax and duty of excise subsumed in GST and are accordingly reported
under GST.

No undisputed amounts payable in respect of provident fund, employees’ state insurance,
income tax, GST, customs duty, cess and any other material statutory dues applicable to it,
were outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more than six months from the date they
became payable.
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(ix)

(x)

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)
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(b) There are no dues with respect to income tax, sales tax, service tax, value added tax, GST,
customs duty, excise duty which have not been deposited on account of any dispute.

During the year, the Company has not taken any loans or borrowings from any financial
institution, bank or government nor has it issued any debentures. Accordingly, clause 3(viii) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer, further public offer
(including debt instruments) or term loans during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(ix) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the
information and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any instance of fraud by
the Company or any fraud on the Company by its officers or employees, noticed or reported
during the year, nor have we been informed of any such instance by the management.

No managerial remuneration has been paid / provided for the year by the Company. Accordingly,
clause 3(xi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore, clause 3(xii) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

All transactions entered into by the Company with the related parties are in compliance with
sections 177 and 188 of Act, where applicable, and the details have been disclosed in the Ind AS
financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or
partly convertible debentures during the year. Therefore, clause 3(xiv) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected
with them during the year and hence provisions of section 192 of the Act are not applicable.

The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934,

For Haribhakti & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No. 103523W / W100048

Sumant Sakhardande

Partne

mbership No.: 034828

UDIN: 21034828AAAAC09580
Place: Mumbai
Date: April 30, 2021
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ANNEXURE 2 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

[Referred to in paragraph 2(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section in
our Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of NSE IFSC Clearing Corporation
Limited (“the Company”) on the Ind AS Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021]

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements under clause (i)
of sub-section 3 of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of the
Company as of March 31, 2021 in conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements of the
Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control with reference to financial statements criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”). These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors,
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable
financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note and the Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all
material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness.

Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk
that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal controls based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis

for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements

A company’'s internal financial control with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements includes
those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2)
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts
and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets
that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods
are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2021, based on the internal control with
reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal controls stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAl.

For Haribhakti & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAIl Firm Registration No.103523W / W100048

Sumant Sakhardande
-
/eartner
Membership No.: 034828
UDIN: 21034828AAAAC09580
Place: Mumbai

Date: April 30, 2021
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NSE IFSC CLEARING CORPORATION LIMITED

BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2021

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars Notes As at 31.03.2021 As at 31.03.2020
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 2 161.85 52.13
Right-Of-Use Assets (ROU) 2 93.92 105.06
Other intangible assets 3 287.12 410.50
Intangible assets under development 3 39.59 -
Financial assets
- Other financial assets
Non-current bank balances 4 4,704.30 150.77
Others 4 11.70 14.77
Income tax assets (net) 18.85 14.29
Total non-current assets 5,317.33 747.52
Investments - Core Settlement Guarantee Fund 5 1,027.66 933.76
Current assets
Financial assets
- Cash and cash equivalents 6 982.14 1,204.97
- Bank balances other than cash and cash 7 485.13 4,793.04
equivalents
- Other financial assets 8 15.71 7.76
Other current assets 9 46.48 1.89
Total current assets 1,529.46 6,007.66
TOTAL ASSETS 7,874.45 7,688.94
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
Equity Share capital 10a 9,000.00 8,000.00
Other Equity 10b (3,590.10) (2,416.92)
TOTAL EQUITY 5,409.90 5,583.08
Core Settlement Guarantee Fund (Core SGF) 11 1,027.66 933.76
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
- Lease Liability 105.19 110.74
Provisions 12 1.54 0.87
Total non-current liabilities 106.73 111.61
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
- Lease Liability 2.14 1.44
- Trade payables 13
(i) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and 0.19 -
small enterprises
(ii) total outstanding dues of creditors other than 177.22 245.70
micro enterprises and small enterprises
- Deposits 14 477.85 426.01
- Other financial liabilities 15 634.42 358.26
Provisions 16 4.13 2.55
Other current liabilities 17 34.20 26.55
Total current liabilities 1,330.15 1,060.49
TOTAL LIABILITIES 2,464.54 2,105.86
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 7,874.45 7,688.94
Summary of significant accounting policies 1

Notes refer to above form an integral part of the Balance Sheet

As per our report of even date attached

For Haribhakti & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No. 103523W / W100048

Sumant Sakhardande
Partner
Membership No.: 034828

Place : Mumbai
Date : April 30, 2021

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Samir K Barua
Director
[DIN:00211077]

Mukesh Agarwal
Director
[ DIN:03054853 ]

Nitin Bhadre
Chief Financial Officer
Place : Mumbai

Date : April 30, 2021 29

Vivek Singhvi
Chief Executive Officer

Chirag Nagda
Company Secretary
[ACS:23491]



NSE IFSC CLEARING CORPORATION LIMITED

STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

(Rs. in lakhs)
Particulars Notes For the year For the year
ended 31.03.2021 ended 31.03.2020

Income
Revenue from operations - -
Other income 18 90.78 109.27
Total Income 90.78 109.27
Expenses
Employee benefits expense 19 161.46 149.17
Finance cost 9.56 9.09
Depreciation and amortisation expense 2&3 184.70 141.91
Other expenses 20 657.63 449.26
Total Expenses 1,013.35 749.43
Profit /(Loss) before tax (922.57) (640.16)
Less : Tax expense

Current tax - -

Deferred tax - -
Total tax expenses - h
Profit / (Loss) for the period (A) (922.57) (640.16)
Other Comprehensive Income
Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss
Changes in foreign currency translation reserve (150.36) 476.95
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurements of post-employment benefit (0.19) 0.12
obligations
Total Other Comprehensive Income for the period (150.55) 477.07
(Net of Taxes) (B)
Total Comprehensive Income for the period (A+B) (1,073.12) (163.09)
Earnings per equity share ( Face Value Rs. 10 each)
- Basic & Diluted (Rs.) 21 (1.08) (0.82)
Summary of significant accounting policies 1
Notes refer to above form an integral part of the Statement of Profit & Loss
As per our report of even date attached
For Haribhakti & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No. 103523W / W100048

Samir K Barua Mukesh Agarwal Vivek Singhvi

Sumant Sakhardande Director Director Chief Executive Officer
Partner [DIN:00211077] [ DIN:03054853 ]

Membership No.: 034828

Place : Mumbai Nitin Bhadre
Date : April 30, 2021 Chief Financial Officer
Place: M3fbai

Date : April 30, 2021

Chirag Nagda
Company Secretary
[ACS:23491]



NSE IFSC CLEARING CORPORATION LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

(A)  Equity Share Capital
( Rs.in Lakhs)

Balance as at 01.04.2019 7,500
Changes in equity share capital during the period 500
Balance as at 31.03.2020 8,000
Balance as at 01.04.2020 8,000
Changes in equity share capital during the period 1,000
Balance as at 31.03.2021 9,000
(B) Other Equity (Rs. in Lakhs)
Reserves and Surplus
Particulars Retained Earnings Foreign Currency Other Comprehensive Total
Translation Reserve Income

Balance as at April 1, 2019 (2,396.66) 195.20 (1.97) (2,203.43)
Profit /(Loss)for the period (640.16) - - (640.16)
Changes in Foreign Currency Translation Reserve - 476.95 - 476.95
through Other Comprehensive Income
Contribution to Core SGF (49.87) - - (49.87)
Share issue expenses (0.53) - - (0.53)
Other Comprehensive Income - - 0.12 0.12
Balance as at March 31, 2020 (3,087.22) 672.15 (1.85) (2,416.92)
Balance as at April 1, 2020 (3,087.22) 672.15 (1.85) (2,416.92)
Profit /(Loss)for the period (922.57) - - (922.57)
Changes in Foreign Currency Translation Reserve - (150.36) - (150.36)
through Other Comprehensive Income
Contribution to Core SGF (99.54) - - (99.54)
Share issue expenses (0.52) - - (0.52)
Other Comprehensive Income - - (0.19) (0.19)
Balance as at March 31, 2021 (4,109.85) 521.79 (2.04) (3,590.10)
As per our report of even date attached
For Haribhakti & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No. 103523W / W100048

Samir K Barua Mukesh Agarwal Vivek Singhvi
Sumant Sakhardande Director Director Chief Executive Officer
Partner [DIN:00211077] [ DIN:03054853 ]
Membership No.: 034828
Place : Mumbai
Date : April 30, 2021 Nitin Bhadre Chirag Nagda

Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Place : Mumbai [ACS:23491]

Date : April 30, 2021
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NSE IFSC CLEARING CORPORATION LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars Notes

For the year
ended 31.03.2021

For the year
ended 31.03.2020

A) CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

NET PROFIT BEFORE TAX

Add: Adjustments for :
Depreciation & Amortization Expenses 2&3
Re-measurement of defined benefits plans
Finance Cost
Less: Adjustments for:
Interest income on bank deposits 18

OPERATING PROFIT BEFORE WORKING CAPITAL CHANGES

Adjustments for :

Proceed of Deposit from Trading member / applicant 14
Trade Payables 13
Other financial liabilities 15
Other financial assets 4
Other current assets 9
Current Liabilities & Provisions 16 & 17

CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS
Direct Taxes paid (Net of Refunds)

NET CASH FROM (USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES - Total (A)

B) CASHFLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of Fixed Assets 2&3
Investment in fixed deposits 4&7
Interest received 18

NET CASH FROM (USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES - Total (B)

C) CASHFLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from Issue of Equity Shares 10a
Share Issue Expense 10b
Increase in Core SGF 10b
Payment of Lease Liability

NET CASH FROM (USED IN) FINANCING ACTIVITIES - Total (C)

Changes on account of conversion of balances from functional

currency to presentation currency

NET INCREASE / (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (A+B+C)

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE BEGINNING OF THE PERIOD 6

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE PERIOD 6

NET INCREASE / (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents as per the cash flow statement

Cash and cash equivalents as per above comprise of the following

Cash and cash equivalents 6
Bank overdrafts

Balances per statement of cash flows

Notes to Statement of Cash Flows:

(922.57) (640.16)
184.70 141.91
(0.19) 0.12
9.56 7.12
(90.78) (109.26)
(819.28) (600.27)
51.85 93.91
(68.29) (920.39)
276.16 (416.85)
(1.02) 1.35
(44.58) 0.13
10.09 (39.94)
(595.07) (1,882.05)
(4.56) (14.07)
(599.63) (1,896.12)
(208.98) (76.62)
(245.62) (338.22)
88.80 110.03
(365.80) (304.81)
1,000.00 500.00
(0.52) (0.53)
(95.57) (49.87)
(10.95) (10.43)
892.96 439.16
(150.36) 476.95
(222.83) (1,284.82)
1,204.97 2,489.79
982.14 1,204.97
(222.83) (1,284.82)
982.14 1,204.97
982.14 1,204.97

1  The above Statement has been prepared under the "Indirect Method" as set out in the Ind AS - 7 on Statement of Cash Flows.

2 Previous year's figures have been regrouped/ reclassified wherever necessary to correspond with the current period classification /

disclosure.
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NSE IFSC CLEARING CORPORATION LIMITED
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
1. Background and Summary of significant accounting policies:

The NSE IFSC Clearing Corporation Ltd. (NICCL or the Company), a wholly owned subsidiary of NSE
Clearing Limited (Formerly known as National Securities Clearing Corporation Ltd. (NSCCL)), was
incorporated in December 2, 2016. It is set up to operate a clearing corporation as a unit in an
International Financial Service Centre (IFSC) in India.

During the FY 2020-21, the Government of India has notified International Financial Services Centres
Authority (IFSCA) as a unified authority for the development and regulation of financial products,
financial services and financial institutions in the International Financial Services Centre (IFSC) in India.
Accordingly, w.e.f October 1, 2020 the operations of the Company will be governed by the regulations
issued by IFSCA from time to time.

Summary of significant accounting policies:

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of Indian
Accounting Standard (Ind AS) financial statements ("Ind AS financial statements"). These policies have
been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

a) Basis of preparation

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS),
under the historical cost convention on the accrual basis except for certain financial instruments which
are measured at fair values, and the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act) (to the extent
notified). The Ind AS are prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with Rule 3 of the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Amendment Rules. Accounting policies have been
consistently applied and are consistent with those used in the previous year except where a newly
issued accounting standard is initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires
a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use.

The financial statements were authorised for issuance by the Company's Board of Directors on April
30, 2021.

Historical cost convention:

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following:
- certain financial assets and liabilities that is measured at fair value, and

- defined benefit plans - plan assets measured at fair value

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is
directly observable or estimated using another valuation technigue. In estimating the fair value of an
asset or a liability, the Company considers the characteristics of the asset or liability which market
participants would take into account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or

3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the
significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:
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- Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that
the entity can access at the measurement date;

- Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

- Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

b) Foreign currency translation and transactions

(i) Functional and presentation currency:

Items included in the financial statements of the Company are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates (‘the functional currency’). The functional
currency of the Company is USD.

The financial statements are presented in Indian currency (INR), which is the Company’s presentation
currency.

(i) Transactions and balances:

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates at
the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies at the period end exchange rates are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined. Translation differences on assets and
liabilities carried at fair value are reported as part of the fair value gain or loss. For example, translation
differences on non-monetary assets and liabilities such as equity instruments held at fair value through
profit or loss are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss as part of the fair value gain or loss and
translation differences on non-monetary assets such as equity investments classified as FVOCI are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

(i) Translation to the presentation currency:

The financial statements are translated from functional currency to presentation currency by using the
following procedures:

(a) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented (i.e. including comparatives) shall be
translated at the closing rate at the date of that balance sheet;

(b) income and expenses for each Statement of Profit and Loss presented (i.e. including comparatives)
shall be translated at exchange rates at the dates of the transactions; and

(c) all resulting exchange differences shall be recognised in other comprehensive income.

c) Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Amounts disclosed
as revenue are net of allowances, incentives, taxes and amounts collected on behalf of third parties.

The Company recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable
that future economic benefits will flow to the entity and specific criteria have been met for each of the
Company'’s activities as described below. The Company bases its estimates on historical results, taking
into consideration the type of customer, the type of transaction and the specifics of each arrangement.

Revenue is recognised in the period when the service is provided as per arrangements/agreements
with the customers. The sources of revenue are:



(i) Clearing and Settlement charges, IT & support charges and processing charges are recognized on
accrual basis as and when the services are rendered.;
(i) Income excludes applicable taxes and other levies.

In respect of members who have been declared as defaulters by the Company all amounts (dues)
remaining to be recovered, net of available security and insurance cover available if any, till the date of
being declared as defaulters are written off as bad debts. All subsequent recoveries are accounted
when received.

Penal charges in respect of shortages due from the respective member is recognised in the Statement
Profit and Loss as part of other revenue to the extent such charges are recoverable in the period of
declaration of default.

Insurance claims are accounted on accrual basis when the claims become due and payable.

The Company considers the terms of the contract in determining the transaction price. The transaction
price is based upon the amount the Company expects to be entitled to in exchange for transferring of
promised services to the customer after deducting allowances and discounts etc. Revenue excludes
any taxes and duties collected on behalf of the government.

The Company is not recognising any revenue as of now as there is waiver of transaction charges in
IFSC exchange on which Clearing & Settlement charges are levied.

d) Income taxes

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period’s taxable income
based on the applicable income tax rate adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities
attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax losses, if any.

The current income tax charge is calculated based on the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at
the end of the reporting period. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with
respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate based on amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the balance sheet approach, on deductible and taxable
temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts
in the financial statements. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been
enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period and are expected to apply when the
related deferred income tax asset is realised, or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax asset is recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilized. Deferred income tax liabilities are recognized for all
taxable temporary differences.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and are

recognised only if it is probable that future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those temporary
differences and losses.
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Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current
tax assets and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority.
Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset
and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss, except to the extent that it
relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is
also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised as of now as there is tax exemption for ten years
to IFSC companies.

e) Impairment of assets

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation and are tested
annually for impairment, or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that they
might be impaired. Other assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is
recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. For
the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets
or groups of assets (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets that suffered an impairment are
reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at the end of each reporting period.

An impairment loss is recognized as an expense immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried at a
revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease. Where an
impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognized for the
asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognized as income immediately, unless the
relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is
treated as a revaluation increase.

f) Cash Flow Statements & Cash and cash equivalents

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit / (loss) before extraordinary items
and tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of
past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing
activities of the Company are segregated based on the available information.

Cash and Cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held at call with financial institutions, other
short-term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.
These do not include bank balances earmarked/restricted for specific purposes.

g) Trade receivables
Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently allowances for receivables and

unbilled revenues with no significant financing component is measured at an amount equal to lifetime
expected credit loss (ECL) where there is significant increase in credit risk.
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h) Investments and other financial assets

(i) Classification:

The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:

- those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income, or
through profit or loss), and

- those measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses Will either be recorded in profit or loss or other
comprehensive income. For investments in debt instruments, this will depend on the business model in
which the investment is held. For investments in equity instruments, this will depend on whether the
Company has made an irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition to account for the equity
investment at fair value through other comprehensive income. The Company reclassifies debt
investments when and only when its business model for managing those assets changes.

(i) Measurement:

At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a
financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at fair value through
profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss.

Debt instruments:

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Company’s business model for
managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are three measurement
categories into which the company classifies its debt instruments:

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest are measured at amortised cost. A gain or loss on
a debt investment that is subsequently measured at amortised cost and is not part of a hedging
relationship is recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised or impaired. Interest income
from these financial assets is included in finance income using the effective interest rate method.

Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI): Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where the assets’' cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest, are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
(FVOCI). Movements in the carrying amount are taken through OCI, except for the recognition of
impairment gains or losses, interest revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses which are
recognised in profit and loss. When the financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss
previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from equity to profit or loss and recognised in other gains/
(losses). Interest income from these financial assets is included in other income using the effective
interest rate method.

Fair value through profit or loss: Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVOCI are
measured at fair value through profit or loss. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently
measured at fair value through profit or loss is recognised in profit or loss and presented net in the
statement of profit and loss within other gains/(losses) in the period in which it arises. Interest income
from these financial assets is included in other income.



Equity investments (other than Investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint venture):

The Company subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value. Where the Company's
management has elected to present fair value gains and losses on equity investments in other
comprehensive income, there is no subsequent reclassification of fair value gains and losses to profit
or loss. Dividends from such investments continue to be recognised in profit or loss as other income
when the Company's right to receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are recognised in other
gain/ (losses) in the statement of profit and loss. Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment losses)
on equity investments measured at FVOCI are not reported separately from other changes in fair value.

Equity Investments (in subsidiaries, associates and joint venture):

Investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint venture are carried at cost less accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Where an indication of impairment exists, the carrying amount of the
investment is assessed and written down immediately to its recoverable amount. The accounting policy
on impairment of non-financial assets is disclosed in Note e above. On disposal of investments in
subsidiaries, associates and joint venture, the difference between net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amounts are recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

(iii) Impairment of financial assets:

The Company assesses on a forward-looking basis the expected credit loss associated with its assets
carried at amortised cost and FVOCI debt instruments. The impairment methodology applied depends
on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables only, the Company applies the simplified approach permitted by Ind AS 109,
which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial recognition of the receivables.

(iv) De-recognition of financial assets:

A financial asset is de-recognised only when

- The Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset; or

- The Company retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but
assumes a contractual obligation to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients.

Where the company has transferred an asset, it evaluates whether it has transferred substantially all
risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset. In such cases, the financial asset is de-
recognised. Where the company has not transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of
the financial asset, the financial asset is not de-recognised.

Where the Company has neither transferred a financial asset nor retains substantially all risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is de-recognised if the Company has not
retained control of the financial asset. Where the Company retains control of the financial asset, the
asset is continued to be recognised to the extent of continuing involvement in the financial asset.

(v) Income recognition:

Interest income

Interest income from debt instruments is recognised using the effective interest rate method. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial assets to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset. When calculating
the effective interest rate, the Company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the
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contractual terms of the financial instrument but does not consider the expected credit losses.

Dividends

Dividends are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss only when the right to receive payment is
established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the
Company, and the amount of the dividend can be reliably measured.

i) Financial liabilities

(i) Classification as debt or equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified according to the
substance of the contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and an
equity instrument.

(ii) Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument. Financial liabilities are initially measured at the amortised cost unless at initial
recognition, they are classified as fair value through profit and loss.

(iii) Subsequent measurement

Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate
method. Financial liabilities carried at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair value with all
changes in fair value recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

(iv) Derecognition
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled
or expires.

j) Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset, and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet where
there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle
on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right
must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and
in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company or the counterparty.

k) Property, plant and equipment (including CWIP)

All items of property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less depreciation. Historical cost
includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component
accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance
are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value:

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their cost, net of their residual
values, over their estimated useful lives as follows:
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Assets Management Estimate
of Useful Life in years
Computer systems office automation 3 years
Computer systems — others 4 years
Furniture and Fixtures 5 years
Electrical equipment 10 years
Office equipment 4 to 5 years
Clearing and Settlement Systems 4 years
Telecommunication systems 4 years

The property, plant and equipment is depreciated over the asset's useful life.

The useful lives have been determined based on technical evaluation done by the management's expert
which are higher than those specified by Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013, in order to reflect the
actual usage of the assets. The residual values are not more than 5% of the original cost of the asset.
The asset's residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted on a prospective basis if
appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

An asset's carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset's carrying
amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount and are
included in Statement of Profit and Loss.

Depreciation on assets purchased / disposed off during the year is provided on pro rata basis with
reference to the date of additions / deductions.

Fixed assets whose aggregate cost is Rs. 5,000 or less are depreciated fully in the year of acquisition.
1) Intangible assets

Costs associated with maintaining software programmes are recognised as an expense as incurred.
Development costs that are directly attributable to the design and testing of identifiable and unique
software products controlled by the Company are recognised as intangible assets when the following
criteria are met:

- it is technically feasible to complete the software so that it will be available for use

- management intends to complete the software and use or sell it

- there is an ability to use or sell the software

- it can be demonstrated how the software will generate probable future economic benefits

- adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the development and to use or sell the
software are available, and

- the expenditure attributable to the software during its development can be reliably measured.

Directly attributable costs are capitalised as part of the software.

Capitalised development costs are recorded as intangible assets and amortised from the point at which
the asset is available for use.

Computer software is amortised over a period of 4 years.
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m) Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to the end of
financial period which are unpaid. Trade and other payables are presented as current liabilities unless
payment is not due within 12 months after the reporting period. They are recognised initially at their fair
value and de-recognised when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or
expires.

n) Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result
of past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and the
amount can be reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

Provisions are measured at the present value of management's best estimate of the expenditure
required to settle the present obligation to be settled at a future date. The discount rate used to
determine the present value is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the liability. The increase in the provision due to the passage of time
is recognised as interest expense.

o) Contingent Liabilities and contingent assets

Contingent liabilities are disclosed in notes when there is a possible obligation arising from past events,
the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company or a present obligation that arises
from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle
the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made.

Contingent assets are not recognized in the financial statements. If the inflow of economic benefits is
probable, then it is disclosed in the financial statements.

p) Contributed equity
Equity shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity as a
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

q) Dividends

Provision is made for any dividend declared including dividend distribution tax, being appropriately
authorised and no longer at the discretion of the entity, on or before the end of the reporting period but
not distributed at the end of the reporting period.

r) Earnings per share

(i) Basic earnings per share:

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:

- the profit attributable to owners of the company

- by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year, adjusted for
bonus elements in equity shares issued during the year.
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(i) Diluted Earnings per share:

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per share to
consider:

- the after-income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive potential equity
shares, and

- the weighted average number of additional equity shares that would have been outstanding assuming
the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

s) Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards incidental to ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating
leases.

As a lessee

The Company's lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for land and buildings. The Company
assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of the contract. Ind AS 116 defines a lease
as a contract, or a part of a contract, that conveys the right of use an asset (the underlying asset) for a
period in exchange of consideration. To assess whether as contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset, the Company assesses whether:; (i) the contract involves the use of an identified
asset (ii) the Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the
period of the lease and (iii) the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a
term of twelve months or less (short term leases) and low value leases. For these short-term and low
value leases, the Company recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight line
basis over the term of the lease.

The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease
liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease plus
any initial direct costs less any lease incentives. They are subsequently measured at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the
commencement date on straight line basis over the shorter of the lease term and useful life of the
underlying assets.

As a lessor

Lease for which the Company is a lessor is classified as finance or operating lease. Whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee, the contract is
classified as a finance lease. All other leases are classified as operating leases. For operating leases,
rental income is recognized on straight line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

t) Employee Benefits

(i) Provident Fund: The Company registered with Regional Provident Fund Office, Ahmedabad, and
both the employee and the employer make monthly contribution equal to 12% of the employee’s basic
salary respectively.

(i) Gratuity: Provisions are made for the defined benefit with respect to gratuity liability based on the
present value of defined benefit obligation as per the actuarial valuation calculation. The present value
is calculated using the projected unit credit method. Actuarial gains or losses are recognized in full in
the other comprehensive income for the period in which they occur.
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(iii) Leave Encashment: Liability on account of Leave encashment is provided based on Actuarial
Valuation at Balance Sheet date using the projected unit credit method.

(iv) Short term employee benefits are charged to revenue in the year in which the related service is
rendered.

u) Current versus Non-current classification and operating cycle

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/non- current
classification.

An asset is treated as current when it is:

- Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle i.e. 12 months;
- Held primarily for purpose of trading;

- Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period; or

- Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least
twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:

- It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle i.e. 12 months;

- Itis held primarily for purpose of trading;

- It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or

- There is no unconditional right to defer the settiement of the liability for at least twelve months after
the reporting period.

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

Based on the nature of products / activities of the Company and the normal time between acquisition
of assets and their realisation in cash or cash equivalents, the Company has determined its operating
cycle as 12 months for the purpose of classification of its assets and liabilities as current and non-
current.

v) Rounding of Amounts:

All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest lakhs
as per the requirement of Schedule I, unless otherwise stated.

w) Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements

The preparation of financial statements requires the use of accounting estimates which, by definition,
will seldom equal the actual results. This note provides an overview of the areas that involved a higher
degree of judgement or complexity, and of items which are more likely to be materially adjusted due to
estimates and assumptions turning out to be different than those originally assessed. Detailed
information about each of these estimates and judgements is included in relevant notes together with
information about the basis of calculation for each affected line item in the financial statements.

The areas involving critical estimates or judgements are:
Estimation of useful life of intangible asset refer Note 3
Estimation of contingent liabilities refer Note 31
Estimation of Impairment of Assets
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Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated. They are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that may have a financial impact on the Company and
that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

x) Core SGF Fund:

As per SEBI IFSC guidelines, ref no. SEBI/HO/MRD/DSA/ CIR / P/2016/125 dated November 28, 2016,
Clearing corporations in IFSC shall establish and maintain a Fund to guarantee the settlement of trades
executed in the stock exchanges in IFSC. First Clearing corporations shall evolve a detailed framework
for the Fund, subject to approval of SEBI. To begin with, such Fund shall have a corpus equivalent
to at least 10% of the net worth of the clearing corporation. Accordingly, Company has created
Core SGF in January 2017 by transferring 10% of Equity Share contribution received from Holding
company to Core SGF fund in order to comply with SEBI norms. In the event of a clearing / Custodian
member (s) failing to honour settlement commitments, the Core SGF shall be used to fulfil the
obligations of that member and complete the settlement without affecting the normal settiement
process. The entire corpus of the Core SGF has been contributed by NSE IFSC Clearing Corporation
Ltd. This fund is represented by earmarked Core SGF investments. The income earned on such
investments (net of TDS, bank charges, etc.) is credited to the Core SGF. Penalties and fines levied by
the Clearing Corporation are transferred to Core SGF as Other Contributions.

y) Recent accounting pronouncements:

On March 24, 2021, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") through a notification, amended Schedule
Il of the Companies Act, 2013. The amendments revise Division |, || and Ill of Schedule Ill and are
applicable from April 1, 2021. Key amendments relating to Division Il which relate to companies whose
financial statements are required to comply with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015
are:

Balance Sheet:

o Lease liabilities should be separately disclosed under the head ‘financial liabilities’, duly
distinguished as current or non-current.

o Certain additional disclosures in the statement of changes in equity such as changes in equity
share capital due to prior period errors and restated balances at the beginning of the current
reporting period

¢ Specified format for disclosure of shareholding of promoters.

e Specified format for ageing schedule of trade receivables, trade payables, capital work-in-
progress and intangible asset under development.

o |fa company has not used funds for the specific purpose for which it was borrowed from banks
and financial institutions, then disclosure of details of where it has been used.

¢ Specific disclosure under ‘additional regulatory requirement’ such as compliance with approved
schemes of arrangements, compliance with number of layers of companies, title deeds of
immovable property not held in name of company, loans and advances to promoters, directors,
key managerial personnel (KMP) and related parties, details of benami property held etc.

Statement of Profit and Loss:
e Additional disclosures relating to Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR), undisclosed income
and crypto or virtual currency specified under the head ‘additional information’ in the notes
forming part of the standalone financial statements.

The amendments are extensive, and the Company will evaluate the same to give effect to them as
required by law.
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NSE IFSC CLEARING CORPORATION LIMITED
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

Note 2 : Property, plant and equipment

Rs in Lakhs
. Office Electrical Furniture Computer Capital Work Right-Of-Use
Particulars . . . R System TOTAL Assets
equipments installations and fixtures In Progress o
Others Building
Gross carrying amount
Opening as at 01.04.2019 14.02 9.87 45.54 - 69.43 - -
Additions - - - - - - 112.37
Disposals - - - - - - -
Transfers - - - - - . -
Currency Fluctuation 1.17 0.82 3.80 - 5.80 - 0.19
Closing gross carrying amount 15.19 10.69 49.35 - 75.23 - 112.56
Accumulated depreciation
Opening as at 01.04.2019 1.95 1.89 4.75 - 8.60 - -
Depreciation charge during the period 3.31 0.93 8.61 - 12.86 - 7.50
Disposals - - - - - - -
Currency Fluctuation 0.40 0.21 1.02 - 1.64 -
Closing accumulated depreciation 5.67 3.04 14.39 - 23.10 - 7.50
Net carrying amount as at 31.03.2020 9.52 7.65 34.96 - 52.13 - 105.06
Gross carrying amount
Opening as at 01.04.2020 15.19 10.69 49.35 - 75.23 - 112.56
Additions - - - 150.88 150.88 - -
Disposals - - - - - - -
Transfers - - - - - - -
Currency Fluctuation (1.44) (1.01) (4.68) (2.90) (10.03) - (2.58)
Closing gross carrying amount 13.75 9.68 44.67 147.97 216.07 - 109.98
Accumulated depreciation
Opening as at 01.04.2020 5.67 3.04 14.39 - 23.10 - 7.50
Depreciation charge during the period 3.52 0.99 9.15 19.32 32.99 - 7.97
Disposals - - - - - - -
Currency Fluctuation (0.30) (0.13) (0.78) (0.65) (1.87) - 0.59
Closing accumulated depreciation 8.88 3.90 22.77 18.67 54.22 - 16.06
Net carrying amount as at 31.03.2021 4.87 5.78 21.90 129.31 161.85 - 93.92

45




NSE IFSC CLEARING CORPORATION LIMITED

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

Note 3 : Other intangible assets

(Rs in Lakhs)

Clearing and Intangible Assets
Particulars Settlement under TOTAL
System development
Gross carrying amount
Opening as at 01.04.2019 499.87 9.61 509.48
Additions 51.31 - 51.31
Disposals - - -
Transfers - (9.61) (9.61)
Currency Fluctuation 46.02 - 46.02
Closing gross carrying amount 597.20 - 597.20
Accumulated amortisation
Opening as at 01.04.2019 52.82 - 52.82
Amortisation charge during the period 121.55 - 121.55
Disposals - - -
Currency Fluctuation 12.33 - 12.33
Closing accumulated amortisation 186.70 - 186.70
Net carrying amount as at 31.03.2020 410.50 - 410.50
Gross carrying amount
Opening as at 01.04.2020 597.20 - 597.20
Additions 67.76 39.81 107.57
Disposals - - -
Transfers - - -
Currency Fluctuation (57.93) (0.22) (58.15)
Closing gross carrying amount 607.04 39.59 646.62
Accumulated amortisation
Opening as at 01.04.2020 186.70 - 186.70
Amortisation charge during the period 143.74 - 143.74
Disposals - - -
Currency Fluctuation (10.53) (10.53)
Closing accumulated amortisation 319.91 - 319.91
Net carrying amount as at 31.03.2021 287.12 39.59 326.71

Note : 3.1 - for Capital and other Contractual commitment, Refer note 30

Significant estimate: Useful life of intangible assets

The Company has completed the development / procurement of software that is used in its various business
processes. As at 31 March 2021, the net carrying amount of this software was X 287.12 lakhs (31 March 2020:
X 410.50 lakhs). The Company estimates the useful life of the software to be 4 years based on the expected
technical obsolescence of such assets. However, the actual useful life may be shorter or longer than 4 years,
depending on technical innovations."
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

(Rs in Lakhs)

4 Other financial assets (non-current)

As at 31.03.2021

As at 31.03.2020

Non Current bank balances

Fixed deposits with maturity for more than 12 months 4,704.30 150.77
4,704.30 150.77
Others
Security deposit for utilities and premises 8.14 9.16
Interest Accrued on Bank Deposits 3.56 5.61
11.70 14.77
Total 4,716.00 165.54
5 Investment -Core Settlement Guarantee Fund As at 31.03.2021 As at 31.03.2020

(Refer Note No. 11)

Current accounts with Bank 10.29 0.20
Fixed Deposits with Bank 976.14 906.89
Accrued interest on CSGF FD 41.23 26.66
Total 1,027.66 933.76
6 Cash and cash equivalents As at 31.03.2021 As at 31.03.2020

Balances with banks :

Current accounts 982.14 1,026.31
Fixed Deposit with less than 3 month maturity - 178.66
Total 982.14 1,204.97
7 Bank balances other than Cash and Cash As at 31.03.2021 As at 31.03.2020
equivalents
Fixed deposits with maturity for less than 12 months 485.13 4,793.04
Total 485.13 4,793.04
8 Other financial assets (Current) As at 31.03.2021 As at 31.03.2020
Others
Interest Accrued on Bank Deposits 15.71 7.76
Total 15.71 7.76
9 Other Current Assets As at 31.03.2021 As at 31.03.2020
Prepaid Expenses 34.09 0.51
Other Advance recoverable # 8.30 -
Balance with Government Authorities 4.09 1.39
Total 46.48 1.89

#represents receivable from National Stock Exchange of India Limited

10 a) Share Capital

As at 31.03.2021

As at 31.03.2020

Authorised
10,00,00,000 (Previous year: 10,00,00,000) Equity
Shares of Rs 10 each

10,000.00

10,000.00

10,000.00

10,000.00

Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up
9,00,00,000 (Previous year: 8,00,00,000) Equity
Shares of Rs 10 each

9,000.00

8,000.00

Total

9,000.00

8,000.00

Equity Shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs.10/- per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share.
The dividend proposed by the Board of Director is subject to the approval of the shareholder in the ensuing Annual General Meeting except in the case of
interim dividend.

In the event of liquidation of the company, the holder of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all
preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholder.

Shares in respect of each class in the Company held by its holding company or its ultimate holding company including shares held by or by subsidiaries or
associates of the holding company or the ultimate holding company in aggregate:

%



Equity Shares

Name of the Company

As at 31.03.2021

As at 31.03.2020

No. of Shares % holding No. of Shares % holding
NSE Clearing Limited & its nominees 9,00,00,000 100.00% 8,00,00,000 100.00%
Total 9,00,00,000 100.00% 8,00,00,000 100.00%

Details o_Equity Shareholder holding more than 5% share in the Company (No. of Shares):

Name of the Company

As at 31.03.2021

As at 31.03.2020

No. of Shares % holding No. of Shares % holding
NSE Clearing Limited & its nominees 9,00,00,000 100.00% 8,00,00,000 100.00%
Total 9,00,00,000 100.00% 8,00,00,000 100.00%

Aggregate number of bonus shares issued, shares issued for consideration other than cash & shares bought back during the period
of five years immediately preceding the reporting date - Nil

Reconciliation of number of shares

Particulars 31-03-2021 31-03-2020
No. of Shares No. of Shares
Outstanding at the beginning of the Year 8,00,00,000 7,50,00,000
Issued during the Year 1,00,00,000 50,00,000
Outstanding at the end of the Year 9,00,00,000 8,00,00,000

Company has not reserved any shares for issue under options and contract or commitments for sale of shares or disinvestments.

There are no unpaid calls from any Director or Officers.

Under amended Clause 5 (2) of SEBI (IFSC) Guidelines, 2015, Recognised Corporations Clearing operating in IFSC are required to
maintain Risk-based capital and networth requirements with a minimum networth of Rs. 50 crores equivalent initially which needs
to be enhanced, over a period of three years from commencement of operations, to higher of Rs. 100 crores equivalent or capital
required as per risk-based capital requirements. However, the Company has taken a relaxation period of one year from IFSCA to
meet those networth criteria. IFSCA has given relaxation to NICCL from maintaining the net worth of Rs. 100 crore or risk-based
capital whichever is higher to Rs. 50 crore or risk-based capital whichever is higher for a period of one year i.e. till June 05, 2022.

Other Equity

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Reserves and Surplus
Particulars Retained Earnings  Foreign Currency Other Total
Translation Reserve| Comprehensive
Balance as at April 1, 2019 (2,396.66) 195.20 (1.97) (2,203.43)
Profit /(Loss)for the period (640.16) - - (640.16)
Changes in Foreign Currency Translation - 476.95 - 476.95
Reserve through OCI
Contribution to Core SGF (49.87) - (49.87)
Share issue expenses (0.53) - - (0.53)
Other Comprehensive income - - 0.12 0.12
Balance as at 31.03.2020 (3,087.22) 672.15 (1.85) (2,416.92)
Reserves and Surplus
Particulars Retained Earnings | Foreign Currency Other Total
Translation Reserve| Comprehensive

Balance as at 01.04.2020 (3,087.22) 672.15 (1.85) (2,416.92)
Profit /(Loss)for the period (922.57) - - (922.57)
Changes in Foreign Currency Translation - (150.36) - (150.36)
Reserve through OCI
Contribution to Core SGF (99.54) - (99.54)
Share issue expenses (0.52) - - (0.52)
Other Comprehensive Income - - (0.19) (0.19)
Balance as at 31.03.2021 (4,109.85) 521.79 (2.04) (3,590.10)

SEBI vide circular no. SEBI/HO/MRD/DSA/ CIR / P/2016/125 dated November 28, 2016 has issued norms for set up of fund and
minimum corpus of fund to guarantee the settlement of trades executed in the stock exchanges in IFSC.

Details of Core SGF are as follows :

Company's Own contribution*
Penalty collected from members
Accrued interest on CSGF FD
Total

(Rs. in Lakhs )

As at 31.03.2021

As at 31.03.2020

983.83 904.92
2.60 2.18
41.23 26.66
1,027.66 933.76

* Company's own contribution includes contributions of Rs. 99.54 Lakhs made during current year (Rs. 49.87 Lakhs made during
previous year 2019-20), Interest received on Core SGF FDs of Rs 1.56 lakhs (Rs. Nil in previous year 2019-20) and balance movement

is on account of currency fluctuation.
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13

14

15

16

17

18

19

Provision (Non Current)
Employee benefits obligation
Provision for Gratuity

Total

Trade Payable

Trade Payable to Micro and Small Enterprises
(Refer Note No. 26)

Trade Payable to other than Micro and Small
Enterprises

Trade Payable to Related Party (Refer Note No.
25)

Total

Deposits (Unsecured- Current)

Security Deposit from Clearing Members
Total

Other Financial Liabilities (Current)

Margins From Members
Other liabilities
Total

Provision (Current)

Provisions for Leave encashment

Provision for Gratuity

Provision for variable pay and other allowances
Bonus Payable

Total

Other Current liabilities

Statutory Dues Payable
Total

Other Income

Interest income on bank deposits
Interest on Income Tax Refund
Miscellaneous Receipts

Total

Employee benefits expense

Salaries, wages and bonus (Refer Note No. 23)
Contribution to provident and other fund
Staff welfare Expenditure

Total
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As at 31.03.2021

1.54

(Rs. In lakhs)

As at 31.03.2020

0.87

1.54

0.87

As at 31.03.2021

As at 31.03.2020

0.19

74.74

102.48

177.41

128.10

117.60

245.70

As at 31.03.2021

As at 31.03.2020

477.85
477.85

As at 31.03.2021

426.01
426.01

As at 31.03.2020

634.26 358.08
0.16 0.17
634.42 358.26

As at 31.03.2021

As at 31.03.2020

0.95 0.50
0.09 0.00
1.79 0.98
1.30 1.07
4.13 2.55

As at 31.03.2021

As at 31.03.2020

34.20

26.55

34.20

26.55

For the year ended

For the year ended

31.03.2021 31.03.2020
90.78 109.26
0.01
0.00 0.00
90.78 109.27

For the year ended

For the year ended

31.03.2021 31.03.2020
157.45 141.24
1.02 4.22
2.99 3.72
161.46 149.17
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21

22

Other expenses

Repairs & Maintenance - Computer systems
Software expenses

Repairs & Maintenance - Building
Professional Fees

Fees and Subscription

Electricity expenses

Director Sitting Fees

Travelling Expense

Profit / Loss of Exchange Fluctuation
Payment to auditor (Refer note below)
Other Expenses

Total

Note :

Payment to Auditor

As Auditor

Statutory audit

Limited review for quarterly result
In other Capacity

Certification Matters

Cyber Security Audit Fees

Total

Earnings per share

(Rs. In lakhs)
For the year ended For the year ended

31.03.2021 31.03.2020
294.66 276.50
191.61 108.29

10.18 8.87
34.05 19.32
78.40 6.83
7.75 4.09
10.98 2.27
8.73 8.97
14.07 1.34
2.76 5.07
4.44 7.71
657.63 449.26
1.76 1.50
0.75 0.75
0.25 1.05
1.77

2.76 5.07

Basic earnings per share are computed by dividing profit or loss attributable to equity shareholders of the
Company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.

For the year
ended 31.03.2021

Particulars

Profit attributable to the equity holders of the

Profit Before Tax (922.57)
Tax on above -
Profit for the period (Rs. in Lakhs ) (922.57)
Weighted average number of equity shares 8,53,97,260
used as the denominator in calculating basic

and diluted earnings per share

Earnings per equity share (basic and diluted) (1.08)

I(Rs.)

For the year
ended 31.03.2020

(640.16)

(640.16)
7,78,41,530

(0.82)

The Company does not have any outstanding dilutive potential equity shares. Consequently, the basic and

diluted earning per share of the Company remain the same.

Deputed Personal Cost

Salaries, Wages & Allowances also includes the deputation expenses in respect of the employees of National
Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSEIL) and NSE Clearing Limited, ultimate holding company and holding

company respectively of the Company.
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NSE IFSC Clearing Corporation Limited

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

Note 23:

(i)

(i)

(iii)
(iv)

(v)

a)

b)

(i)

(ii)

Employee Benefits

Provident Fund: In current year, the Company is registered with Regional Provident Fund Office, Ahmedabad, and both the employee and the employer make
monthly contribution equal to 12% of the employee’s basic salary respectively.

Gratuity: Provisions are made for the defined benefit with respect to gratuity liability based on the present value of defined benefit obligation as per the
actuarial valuation calculation.

Leave Encashment : Liability on account of Leave encashment is provided based on Acturial Valuation at Balance Sheet date.
Short term employee benefits are charged to revenue in the year in which the related service is rendered.

Amounts disclosed below are excluding currency fluctuation impact.

Long - term Short - term
31.03.2021 31.03.2020 31.03.2021  31.03.2020

(Rs. In lakhs) (Rs. In lakhs)

Provision for employee benefits

Provision for Leave Travel allowance 0.30 0.29
Provision for gratuity 1.56 0.82 0.09 0.00
Provision for Leave encashment 0.96 0.46
1.56 0.82 1.35 0.75

Disclosure under Indian Accounting Standard 19 (Ind As 19) on Employee Benefit as notified under Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016.

Defined Benefit Plan :

Provident Fund: The Company has contributed Rs. 0.47 lakhs (previous year Rs 0.37 lakhs) towards Provident Fund during the year ended March 31, 2021 to
Employee Provident Fund Organisation.

Gratuity: The company provides for gratuity for employees as per Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Employees who are in continuous service for a period of S
years are eligible for gratuity. The amount of Gratuity is payable on retirement/termination of the emplyee's last drawn basic salary per month multiplied for
the number of vears of service. The eratuitv olan is a non funded olan and the comoanv makes orovision on the basis of Actuarial Valuation.

Compensated Absences
The increase in provision for compensated absences for the year is Rs. 0.49 Lakhs (PY increased by Rs. 0.06 Lakhs).

Balance Sheet

(Rs. In lakhs)
The amounts recognised in the consolidated balance sheet and the movements in the net defined benefit
obligation over the year are as follows:

Current Year Previous Year
31.03.2021 31.03.2020

Liability at the beginning of the year 0.82 0.55
Interest cost 0.05 0.04
Current Service Cost 0.59 0.35

Liability transferred

Benefits Paid

Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Obligations - Due to Change in Demographic -
lAcs imntinnc

Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Obligations - Due to Change in Financial Assumptions 0.02 0.19
Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Obligations - Due to Experience 0.17 (0.31)
Liability at the end of the year 1.65 0.82

The amounts recognised in the balance sheet and the movements in the fair value of plan assets over the year
are as follows:

Current Year | Previous Year
31.03.2021 31.03.2020

Fair Value of plan assets at the beginning of the vear hd

Interest Income -
Expected return on plan assets - N
Contributions -

Transfer from other company -
Benefits paid
Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Obligations - Due to Change in Financial Assumptions -
Fair Value of plan assets at the end of the year
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NSE IFSC Clearing Corporation Limited

(1)

(iv)

()

(i)

. The net liability disclosed above relates to funded plans are as follows

Fair value of plan assets as at the end of the year
Liability as at the end of the year
Net (liability) / asset

Balance Sheet Reconciliation

Opening Net Liability

Expenses Recognized in Statement of Profit or Loss
Expenses Recognized in OCI

Net (Liability)/Asset Transfer in

Employers Contribution

Amount recognised in the Balance Sheet

Statement of Profit & Loss

Net Interest Cost for Current Period

Interest Cost
Interest Income
Net Interest Cost for Current Period

Expenses recognised In the Statement of Profit & Loss
Current Service cost

Net Interest Cost

Expenses recognised in the Statement of Profit & Loss
Expenses recognised in the Other Comprehensive Income
Expected return on plan assets

Actuarial (Gain) or Loss
Net (Income)/Expense for the Period Recognized in OCI

Fair value of plan assets at the Balance Sheet Date for defined benefit

Insurer Managed Funds

Current Year
31.03.2021

(1.65)
(1.65)

Current Year

31.03.2021
0.82
0.64
0.19

1.65

Current Year
31.03.2021
0.05

0.05

Current Year

(Rs In lakhs)

Previous Year
31.03.2020

(0.82)
{0.82)

Previous Year

31.03.2020
0.55
0.39
(0.12)

0.82

Previous Year
31.03.2020
0.04

0.04

Previous Year

Current Year
31.03.2021

0.19
0.19

obligations
Current Year
31.03.2021

31.03.2021 31.03.2021
0.59 0.35
0.05 0.04
0.64 039

Previous Year
31.03.2020

(0.12)
(0.12)

Previous Year
31.03.2020

Total

Sensitivity Analysis

Current Year

Previous Year

31.03.2021 31.03.2020
Projected Benefit Obligation on Current Assumptions 1.65 0.82
Delta Effect of +1% Change in Rate of Discounting (0.15) (0.08)
Delta Effect of -1% Change in Rate of Discounting 0.17 0.09
Delta Effect of +1% Change in Rate of Salary Increase 0.16 0.09
Delta Effect of -1% Change in Rate of Salary Increase (0.14) (0.07)
Delta Effect of +1% Change in Rate of Employee Turnover (0.06) (0.03)
Delta Effect of +1% Change in Rate of Employee Turnover 0.07 0.04
Significant actuarial pti are as foll

Current Year Previous Year

31.03.2021 31.03.2020
Discount Rate 6.49% 6.59%
Rate of Return on Plan Assets N.A. N.A.
Salary Escalation 10.00% 10.00%
Attrition Rate 12.00% 12.00%

Maturity analysis of the Benefit Payments

Current Year

Previous Year

31.03.2021 31.03.2020
1st Following Year 0.09 0.00
2nd Following Year 0.09 0.06
3rd Following Year 0.08 0.06
4th Following Year 0.16 0.06
Sth Following Year 0.15 0.08
0.70 0.37

Sum of 6th to 10th Year
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25

Segment Reporting

Operating segments are reported in 3 manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Chief Operating Decision Maker
{"CODM") of the Company. The CODM, who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating

segments, has been identified as the CEO of the Coi
comprise of only facilitating Clearing & Settlement

mpany. The Company operates only in one Business Segment i.e. operations
in securities and the activities incidental thereto within India or global, hence does

not have any reportable Segments as per Indian Accounting Standard 108 "Operating Segments".

Related Party

In compliance with Ind AS 24 - "Related Party Disclosures”, as notified under Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and
Amendment Rules required disclosures are given in the table below:

(a) Names of the related parties and related party relationship

Sr. No. Related Partv
1 National Stock Exchange of India Limited
NSE Clearing Limited
NSE IFSC Limited
NSEIT Limited
NSE Data & Analytics Limited

b (w(n

6 NSE Indices Limited

7 NSE Infotech Services Limited

®

NSE.IT (US) Inc.
9 NSE Academy Limited

10 NSE Foundation
11 National Securities Denositorv Limited
12 NSDL Database Management Limited

13 BFSI Sector Skill Council of India
14 Power Exchange India Limited

15 NSDL e-Governance Infrastructure Limited
16 Market Simplified India Limited
17 Receivables Exchange Of india Limited

Nature of Relationship
The Uitimate Holding Comoany
Holding Company
Subsidiary of Ultimate Holding comoany
Fellow Subsidiary of Holding Companv

Holding y's Fellow Subsidiary's Subsidiary Ci Y
Holding y's Fellow Subsidiary's Subsidiary C Y
Holding y's Fellow Subsidiary's Subsidiary Company
Holding y's Fellow Subsidiary's Subsidiary Company
Ultimate Holding ¢ y Subsidiary's Subsidiary Company

Subsidiary of Ultimate Holding comoanv
Ultimate Holding Company's Associate
Subsidiary of Associate of the Ultimate Holding Company

Ultimate Holding Companv's Associate
Associate of Subsidiary of Ultimate Holding company

Associate of Subsidiary of Uitimate Holding company
Associate of Subsidiary of Ultimate Holding company

Associate of Subsidiary of Ultimate Holding company

18 Aujas Cybersecurity Limited (Formerly known as Aujas Networks Subsidiary of Fellow Subsidiary of Holding Company

Limited/Aujas Networks Private Limited)

19 NSE Investments Ltd

Subsidiary Company of Ultimate Holding Company

20 Talentsprint Private Limited (w.e.f. November 10, 2020) Ultimate  Holding y Subsidiary's Subsidiary's
Subsidiary Company
21 Indian Gas Exchange Limited {w.e.f. March 16, 2021) Ultimate Holding y Subsidiary's A:
22 Cogencis Information Services Limited (w.e.f. January 21, 2021) Holding pany's Fellow Subsidiary's Subsidiary' Subsidiary
L Company
23 Capital Quants Solutions Private Limited (w.e.f. February 26, 2021) Holding company's Fellow Subsidiary's Subsidiary' A:
Company
24 Prof. Samir K Barua Key Managerial Personnel
25  |Mr. Mukesh Agarwal Kev Managerial Personnel
26 Mr. Natarajan Ramasamv Kev Managerial Personnel
27 [Mr Vivek Singhvi - Chief Executive Officer Kev Managerial Personnel
(b) Details of transaction with parties are as follows : (Rs in lakhs)
Name of the Related Party Nature of Transactions For the year ended For year ended
31.03.2021 31.03.2020
NSE Clearing Limited Contribution towards Equitv Share Capital 1,000.00 500.00
Reimbursement of expenses for staff on deputation paid / 115.02 89.27
| pavable
Reimbursement for other expenses incurred (including 87.28
taxes)
Outstanding balance included in Trade Payables 30.22 54.79
National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSEIL) Reimbursement of expenses for staff on deputation paid / 13.58 35.04
payable
Reimbursement for other expenses incurred 0.84 0.71
Outstanding balance included in advance paid for FY 2020- 8.30 2161
21 (previous year included as trade payable)
NSE IFSC Limited Reimbursement for other expenses incurred 20.41 13.34
SEBI turnover fees collected on behalf of NSE IFSC Limited 0.57 0.38
SEBI turnover fees collected payable 1.01 0.46
Outstanding balance included in Trade Payables 14.95 18.13
NSE IT Limited IPavment for services 141.18 84.75
Outstanding balance included in Trade Payables 56.30 23.07
NSDL Database Management Limited Payment for services L 0.10 1.53
Outstanding balance included in Trade Payables
[prof. Samir K Barua Isining fees 5.00 I z.zs]
[Mr. Natarajan Ramasamy Sitting fees 6.00 I

Note : Amounts discl eﬁfﬁﬁateaﬁaa.r,gv transactions above

are excluding currency fiuctuation impact.
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Trade payables include outstanding amounts of Rs. 0.19 lakhs (Previous Year: Rs. NiL) (including interest of Rs. Nil, (Previous Year Rs. Nil)
payable to Micro, Small & Medium Enterprises. Total outstanding dues to Micro, Small & Medium Enterprises have been determined to
the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information available with the Company.

As at March 31, 2021 the Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position.

a) In accordance with relevant provisions of Companies Act, 2013, the Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative

contracts as at March 31, 2021.
b) There is Rs. Nil (PY Rs. Nil) Loans, Guarantees, Investments under section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013.

For theyear 2020-21 the company is not required to transfer any amount into the Investor Education & Protection Fund as required under
relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

Capital and other commitments

31.03.2021 31.03.2020
(Rs. in Lakhs )

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital
account (net of advances) and not provided

Other Commitments on revenue account 279.82 145.99
279.82 145.99
Contingent liability 31.03.2021 31.03.2020

(Rs. in Lakhs )

Contingent Liabilities

The company's tax jurisdiction is India. Income of the company is fully exempt from the Income tax for initial period of ten years (i.e. FY
2017- 18 to FY 2026-27). Deferred tax asset is recognised based on reasonable certainty.

Lease :

The Company has measured the Right of use asset and lease liability based on the remaining lease period and payments discounted using
the incremental borrowing rate as on the date of initial application as per Ind AS 116 Leases.

(i) Amounts recognised in balance sheet

(Rs. In lakhs)
Particulars Amount (Rs.) Amount (Rs.)
31.03.2021 31.03.2020
Right-of-use-assets
Buildings 93.92 105.06
Total 93.92 105.06
Particulars Amount (Rs.) Amount (Rs.)
31.03.2021 31.03.2020
Lease liabilities
Current 2.14 1.44
Non Current 105.19 110.74
Total 107.33 112.18

(ii) Amounts recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss

(Rs. In lakhs)

Particulars Amount (Rs.) Amount (Rs.)

31.03.2021 31.03.2020
Depreciation charge of Right-of-use assets
Buildings 7.97 7.93
Total 7.97 7.93
Particulars Amount (Rs.) Amount (Rs.)

31.03.2021 31.03.2020
Interest expenses 9.56 9.09
Total 9.56 9.09
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Financial Risk Management

The Company'’s business activities expose it to a variety of financial risks, namely liquidity risk, market risks and credit risk. The Company's senior
management has the overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company's risk management framework. The Company's risk
management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls and to monitor
risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company's
activities.

Treasury department that provides assurance that the Company's financial risk activities are governed by appropriate policies and procedures and that
financial risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the Company's policies and risk objectives. The Treasury department activities
are designed to:

- protect the Company's financial results and position from financial risks

- maintain market risks within acceptable parameters, while optimising returns; and

- protect the Company’s financial investments, while maximising returns.

The Treasury department is responsible to maximise the return on companies internally generated funds.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
(Rs. In Lakhs)

31-03-2021 31-03-2020
FVTPL FVOCI Amortised Cost FVTPL FVOCI Amortised

As at March 31, 2021
Financial Assets

Fixed Deposits with Banks - - 6,226.07 - - 5,890.73

Cash and Cash equivalents - - 982.14 - - 1,204.97

Securitv deposits - - 8.14 - - 9.16
Total Financial Assets - - 7 216.36 - - 7 104.86
Financial Liabilities

Trade payables - - 177.41 - - 245.70

Deposits - - 477.85 - - 426.01

Other liablities - - 634.26 - - 358.08
Total Financial Liabilities - - 1289.53 - - 1029.79

MANAGEMENT OF LIQUIDITY RISK

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will face difficulty in meeting its obligations associated with its financial liabilities. The Company’s approach to
managing liquidity is to ensure that it will have sufficient funds to meet its liabilities when due without incurring unacceptable losses. In doing this,
management considers both normal and stressed conditions.

The Company maintains a conservative funding and investment strategy, with a positive cash balance during the year ended March 31, 2021.
The Company's treasury department regularly monitors the rolling forecasts to ensure it has sufficient cash on an on-going basis to meet operational

needs. Any short term surplus cash generated by the operating entities, over and above the amount required for working capital management and other
operational requirements, is retained as cash equivalents (to the extent required), and excess is invested in interest bearing term deposits.

(Rs in lakhs)
Particulars Carrying Payable on Less than 12 More than 12
amount demand Month months
As at March 31, 2021
Trade payables 177.41 - 177.41 -
Deposits 477.85 477.85 - -
Margins From Members 634.26 634.26 - -
Lease liabilities 107.33 - 2.14 105.19
Other financial & current liabilities 0.16 - 0.16 -
Particulars Carrying Payable on Less than 12 More than 12
amount demand Month months
As at March 31, 2020
Trade payables 245.70 - 245.70 -
Deposits 426.01 426.01 - -
Margins From Members 358.08 358.08 - -
Lease liabilities 112.18 - 1.44 110.74
Other financial & current liabilities 0.17 - 0.17 -
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C. MANAGEMENT OF MARKET RISK
The Company’s size and operations result in it being exposed to the following market risks that arise from its use of financial instruments:
* price risk;
o foreign exchange risk and
e interest rate risk
The above risks may affect the Company’s income and expenses, or the value of its financial instruments. The objective of the Company’s management of market risk
is to maintain this risk within acceptable parameters, while optimising returns.

D. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT
The Company considers the following components of its Balance Sheet to be managed capital:
Total equity (as shown in the balance sheet) — retained profit, share capital.

The Company manages its capital so as to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern and to optimise returns to our shareholders. The capital structure of the
Company is based on management’s judgement of the appropriate balance of key elements in order to meet its strategic and day-to-day needs. We consider the
amount of capital in proportion to risk and manage the capital structure in light of changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying
assets. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue
new shares.

The Company aims to translate profitable growth to superior cash generation through efficient capital management. The Company's policy is to maintain a stable and
strong capital structure with a focus on total equity so as to maintain investor, creditors and market confidence and to sustain future development and growth of its
business. The Company's focus is on keeping strong total equity base to ensure independence, security, as well as a high financial flexibility for potential future
borrowings, if required, without impacting the risk profile of the Company. The Company will take appropriate steps in order to maintain, or if necessary adjust, its
capital structure. The Company is not subject to financial covenants in any of its significant financing agreements.

The management monitors the return on capital as well as the level of dividends to shareholders. The Company is required to maintain the minimum networth of Rs.
50 crores or risk based capital whichever is higher to operate an clearing corporation as per SEBI guidelines till June 05, 2022.

35 COVID-19 Risk Assessment
Based on the Company’s current assessment, the impact of coronavirus on its operations and the resultant financial performance is not likely to be significant. The
Company has also made an assessment of its liquidity position for a period of at least one year from the balance sheet date, of the recoverability and carrying values
of its assets and ability to pay its liabilities as they become due and effectiveness of internal financial controls as at the balance sheet date and is of the view that
there is no material impact or adjustments required to be made in these financial statements. The impact assessment of COVID-19 may be different from that
presently estimated and the Company will continue to evaluate any significant changes to its operations and its resultant impact on the financial performance.

36 On February 28, 2019, the Honorable Supreme Court of India delivered a judgement in the case of "Vivekananda Vidyamandir and Others Vs The Regional Provident
Fund Commissioner (Il) West Bengal’ in relation to non-exclusion of certain allowances from the definition of "basic wages" of the relevant employees for the
purposes of determining contribution to provident fund under the Employees' Provident Funds & Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952. The Employees’ Provident Fund
Organisation also issued a circular (Circular No. C-1/1(33)2019/Vivekananda Vidyamandir/284) dated March 20, 2019 in relation to aforesaid matter. In Company’s
assessment, the above judgement is not likely to have a significant impact and therefore presently no provision has been made in the financial statements. The
Company will continue to monitor the developments in this matter.

37 The Indian Parliament has approved the Code on Social Security, 2020 which would impact the contributions by the Company towards Provident Fund and Gratuity.
The Ministry of Labour and Employment has released draft rules for the Code on Social Security, 2020 on November 13, 2020, and has invited suggestions from
stakeholders which are under active consideration by the Ministry. The Company will assess the impact and its valuation once the subject rules are notified and will
give appropriate impact in its financial statements in the period in which, the Code becomes effective and the reiated rules to determine the financial impact are
published.

38 Previous year figures have been regrouped / reclassified wherever necessary to confirm to current year presentation.

As per our report of even date attached

For Haribhakti & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No. 103523W / W 100048

Samir K Barua Mukesh Agarwal Vivek Singhvi
Sumant Sakhardande Director Director Chief Executive Officer

wartner [DIN:00211077] [DIN:03054853]
W.: 034828
(e
Place : Mumbai Nitin Bhadre irag Nagda

Date : April 30, 2021 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Place : Mumbai [ACS:23491]
Date : April 30, 2021
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In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowiedge obtained during the course of
our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the
Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5)
of the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true
and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, total comprehensive income,
changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act
for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and
other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively
for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements,
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As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

« (Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section
143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether
the Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the
operating effectiveness of such controls.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the
related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to medify our opinion. Cur conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually
or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work
and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii} to evaluate the effect of any identified
misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1,

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued
by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013, we give in the Annexure ‘A’, a statement on the matters
specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

a)

b)

c)

d)

f)

9)

h)

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by
the Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other
Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of
Cash Flow deait with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of
account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies
{Accounts) Rules, 2014.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on
March 31, 2021 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors
is disqualified as on March 31, 2021 from being appointed as a director in terms
of Section 164(2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer
to our separate Report in Annexure *B’. Our report expresses an unmeodified
opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal
financial controls over financial reporting.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in
accordance with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

In terms of Notification No G.S.R. 08(E) dated January 4, 2017 issued by the
Ministry of Corporate Affairs under section 462 of the Act, the provisions of
section 197(16) in respect of the remuneration paid by the Company to its
directors during the year are not applicable to the Company.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as
amended in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us:

i. As at March 31, 2021, the company did not have any pending litigations

which would impact its financial position - Refer Note 39 to the financial
statements.
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ii. The Company did not have any long term contracts including derivatives
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses - Refer Note
40 to the financial statements.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company during the year
ended March 31, 2021 - Refer Note 41 to the financial statements.

For Khandelwal Jain & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number:105049W

Narendra Jain
Partner
Membership Number: 048725

UDIN: 2lcugtrs ARAARM9C43

Place: Mumbai
Date: April 26, 2021
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Website: www kjco.net ® E-mail: kico@kjco.r

6-B&C, Pil Court, 6th Floor, 12-B, Baldota Bhaven, 5th Floor,
111, M. Karve Road, Churchgate, 117, M. Karve Road, Churchgate,
Mumbai - 400 020 Mumbai - 400 020,
Tel: (+91-22) 4311 5000 Tel.: {(+91-22) 4311 6000
Fax . 4311 5050 Fax : 4311 6060

ANNEXURE A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF NSE IFSC LIMITED

The Annexure referred to in Independent Auditors’ Report to the members of the Company
on the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021. We report that:

i) a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including
quantitative details and situation of Fixed Assets.

b) The Company has physically verified the fixed assets in accordance with a program
of verification which in our opinion provides for physical verification of all fixed
assets at reasonable intervals. We have been informed that no material
discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

¢) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company does not hold any
immovable property in its name.

i) The Company is in the business of rending services, and consequently, does not hold
any inventory. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(ii} of Companies (Auditor’s
Report) Order, 2016 are not applicable to the Company.

i) The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies,
firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or other parties covered in the register
maintained under Section 189 of the Act. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(iii) of
Companies {Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 are not applicable to the Company.

iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there
are no loans, investments, guarantees and securities given in respect of which
provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act 2013 are applicable.
Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(iv) of Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order,
2016 are not applicable to the Company.

v) The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public.

vi) We are informed that the Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance
of cost records under Section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013.

vii)a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of
records examined by us, the Company is generally regular in depositing with
appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues Iincluding Provident Fund,
Employees’ State Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Goods and Service Tax, Duty of
Custom, Duty of Excise, Value Added Tax, Cess and any other statutory dues,
wherever applicable. According to the records of the Company, there were no
undisputed amounts payable in respect of Provident Fund, Employees’ State
Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Goods and Service Tax, Duty of
Custom, Duty of Excise, Value Added Tax, Cess and any other statutory dues in
arrears as at March 31, 2021 for a period of more than six months from the date
they became payable.
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b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there were no dues of

viii)

X)

xi)

Xii)

Xiii}

Xiv)

Xv)

Income Tax, Sales Tax, Goods and Service Tax, Duty of Custom, Duty of Excise and
Value Added Tax which have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on
account of any dispute.

The Company has not taken any loan from banks, financial institutions or
government and the Company has not issued any debentures. Therefore, the
provisions of clause 3(viii) of Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 are not
applicable to the Company.

The Company has not taken any term loans and has not raised moneys by way of
initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) during the
year, Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(ix) of Companies (Auditor's Report)
Order, 2016 are not applicable to the Company.

Based upon the audit procedures performed and information and explanations given
to us, we report that no fraud by the Company or on the Company by its officers or
employees has been noticed or reported during the course of our audit.

In terms of Notification No G.S.R. 08(E) dated January 4, 2017 issued by the
Ministry of Corporate Affairs under section 462 of the Act, the provisions of section
197 in respect of payment of managerial remuneration are not applicable to the
Company. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(xi) of Companies (Auditor's Report)
Order, 2016 are not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(xii} of
Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 are not applicable to the Company.

In terms of Notification No G.S.R. 08(E} dated January 4, 2017 issued by the
Ministry of Corporate Affairs under section 462 of the Act, the provisions of section
177 are not applicable to the Company. To the best of our knowledge and according
to the information and explanation given to us, the Company is in compliance with
Section 188 of the Act, as applicable, for transactions with the related parties and
details of such transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as
required by the applicable Indian Accounting Standards.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any
preferential aliotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible
debentures during the year. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(xiv) of Companies
(Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 are not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not entered into non-
cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him. Therefore, the
provisions of clause 3(xv) of Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 are not
applicable to the Company.
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xvi}) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not
required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

For Khandelwal Jain & Co
Chartered Accountants
—_____F. W . _"T_ 1 __ a*_ __ | N . ol s ‘?W

(Narendra Jain)
Partner
Membership No. 048725

UDIN: 210yg 72 S ABAABMA 5

Place : Mumbai
Date : April 26, 2021

Page 8 of 10



Website: www.kjco.net ® E-mail: kjco@kjco.t
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111, M. Karve Road, Churchgate, 117, M. Kaorve Road, Churchgate,
Mumbai - 400 020, Mumbai - 400 020.
Tel.: {+91-22) 4311 5000 Tel - (+91-22) 4311 6000
Fax : 4311 5050 Fax : 4317 6060

ANNEXURE B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF NSE IFSC LIMITED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of NSE IFSC
LIMITED (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2021 in conjunction with our audit of the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate intemal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to company’s policies, the safeqguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the
Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be
prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to
an audit of intemal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial
Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate
internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if
such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

QOur audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of
the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misste incial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system
over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reascnable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of
the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of
any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods
are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance
with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial
reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2021, based on the internal control
over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Khandelwal Jain & Co
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Reqistration No. 105049W

—_—

(Narendra Jain)
Partner
Membership No. 048725

UDIN:2 toUR 725 AARABMO LS 4

Place : Mumbai
Date : April 26, 2021
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NSE IFSC LMITED
BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2021

Partlculars Notes Asat 31.03.2021 As 2t 3103.2021 As at 31.03.2020 A3 at 31.03.2020
[As. Lakhs} {usD Lakhs) [Rs. Lakhs} {USD Lakhs)
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and aquipment 3a 1,698.56 2311 2,083.88 27.64
Capital wark-in-progress 3a 142.06 1.93 3.50 [1X:53
Other intangible assets 3b 136.62 1.86 110.05 146
Intangible assets under development 3h 4133 057 - -
Right-Of-Use Assets 3b 568.11 1.73 633.24 B.40
Investments accounted for using the equity method - - - -
Financial assets
- Invastments - - - -
- Other financial assets
Nen-current bank balances 4 - - 37693 5.00
Others ] 74.66 o7 55.05 1.26
Income tax assets {net) 5.69 0.08 2.47 0.03
Other non-current assets 5 243 0.03 23.83 0.26
Total non-current assets 2,673.46 36.38 3,328.95 44,10
Investor Protection Fund - Bank Balance 3 1103 0.15 11.31 0.15
Current assets
Financial assets

- Investments - - - -

- Trade receivables [ 10.89 0.15 4.54 0.06

- Cash and cash equivalents 7 781.45 10.63 3,126.497 4147

- Bank balanees other than cash and cash equivalents a 2,793.18 38.00 - -

- Other financial assets 9 31.21 0.42 - -
Other current assats 10 B9.57 1.22 119.02 1.63
Total current assets 3,706.30 50.42 3,250.03 43.16
TOTAL ASSETS £3%0.79 86.95 6,590.29 87.41
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
Equity Share capital 11a 16,500.00 237.03 12,500.00 182.96
Cther Equity 11b {12,716.31) {185.38) {B,548.28} [130.55)
TOTAL EQUITY 3,721.69 50.65 3,951.72 5241
Investor Protection Fund 34 1103 0.15 1131 0.15
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilitles
Other financial fabilities 12 637.60 B.6?7 £67.60 .86
Provisions 13 23.43 0,32 9.54 0.11
Defarred tax liabilities [net) - - - -
Other nan-current liabilities - - - -
Total non-current liabilitles 661.03 8.99 677.54 .97

Current liablllties
Financial liabilities
Daposits. 14 980.10 13.33 833.18 11.12
Trade payables
- Total Outstanding dues of micre enterprises and small
enterprises i5 - - - -
- Total Qutstanding dues of creditars other than micro

. 15 373.00 5.07 469.15 6,22
entarprises and smal enterprises
Cther financial liakilities 16 521.27 7.10 532,58 7.06
Pravisiens 17 41.12 0.56 2171 0.31
Income tax lisbifities {net} - - - -
Othar eurrant liabilitias 18 79.55 110 RA.10 117
Total current liabilities 1,995.04 27.16 1,548.72 25.58
TOTAL LIABILITIES 2,656.07 2615 2,627.25 34.85
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 5,350.79 B86.95 g,;sso.zs 87.41
Summary of significant accounting policies 2
Notes refer to above form an integral part of the Balance sheet
As per our report of even date attached
.
For Khandelwal Jain & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors L !
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Director [—— Director
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Dare - Aprl 28, 2011 Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer LOmpany seurenry
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NSE IFSC UMITED

STATEMENT OF PROFIT 5 LO55 FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

Far the year ended For the year ended For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars Nates 31.03.2021 31.03.2021 31.03.2020 31.03.2020
{Rs. Lakhs) [USD Lakhs} {As. Lakhs} {USD Lakhs}

Income
Revenue from cperations 19 51,38 0.69 36.95 0.52
Other income 20 52.32 0.70 101.19 1.4z
Total Income 103.70 1.39 138.14 1.94
Eupenses
Employes benefits expense 21 404,02 5.45 34118 4.80
Depreciation and amortisathon expense 3a & 3b 1061.32 14,33 921.80 12.97
Liquidity Enhanacement Scheme Incentive {Refer Note 11b) 1,078.77 14.57 918.69 12.93
IT Managerment & Cansuttancy Charges 81281 11.10 663.74 9.34
Cther expenses 22 £69.49 11.74 663.78 9.34
Total Expenses 4236.41 52.19 3,509.19 49.38
Profit before tax [#,132.71) {55.80) 13,3705} {47.44)
Less : Tax expense

Current tax - - - -

Deferred tax - - - -
Tota) tax expenses - - . -
Profit / (Loas) for the year (A} {4132.71) 55.50! {3371.05) [47.44)
Other Comprehenslve Income
Iterns that will be reclassified to profit of joss - - - .
Iterns that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurerments of post-amployment benefit ohligations 29 (z.14) {0.03) [1.74} 0.02)
Changes in foreign currency transiation reserve 11b (93,18} - 320.47 -
Total Other Comprehensive Income for the year
(Net of Taes) (B) {95.32) {0.03) 318.73 (0.02}
Total Comprehenzive Income for the year (A+B) (4,11&3} (55.83) 13.052.32 (47.46)
Earnings per equity share { Face Value Rs.10 each) 3
- Basic [ Rs.) {1.03) {0.09) [3.31) {0.05)
- Diluted { Rs.) {2.53) (0.04} 331} {0.05)

Summary of significant accounting policies 2

Notes refer to above form an integral part of the Statement of Profit & loss

As per our report of even date attached

Enr Mhandalural lain B s

Place : Mumbai
Date : April 26, 2021

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

kst

Venkatesh Panchapagesan
Director
{DIN:07942333)

b

Exacutive Officer

lﬁlﬁ 7662795]

r
Chief Finanelal Officer

L

Ravl Varanasi
Director
[D{N:06573046]

Company Sacretary




NSE IFSC LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

Equlty Share Caphtal {Rs. Lakhs) {USD Lakhs}
Balance as at April 1, 2019 9,000.00 133.74
Changes in equity share capital during the year 3,500.00 49.22
Balance as at March 31, 2020 12,500.00 182.96
Changes in equity share capital during the year 4,000.00 54.07
Balance as at March 31, 2021 16,500.00 237.03
Other Equity
Particulars Retained Eamings Uquidity Enhancement Scheme Incentive Reserve Forelgn Cu;r:;;cr:::mnslatlnn Total
(Rs. Lakhs} {USD Lakhs) {Rs. Lakhs] {USD Lakhs; (Rs. Lakhs) {Rs. takis {USD Lakhs|
Balance as at April 1, 2019 [5,813.87) {85.26) 150.00 2.17 167.91 {5,495.96) (83.09)
Profit / {Loss) for the vear ended March 31, 2020 {3,371.05) {47.44) - - - {3,371.05) {47.44)
Other Camprehensive income (1.74} {p.02 - - - (1.74) {0.02)
Liguidity Enhancement Scheme Incentive Reserve [893.69) {12.42) 893.69 12.42 - - -
Uguidity Enhancement Seherne (ncentive paid / payable 918.69 12.93 {918.69) {12.93) - - -
Suring the year
Changes in Foreign Currency Translation Reserve through - - - - 32047 320.47 -
Other Comprehensive Incorme
|Balance a5 at March 31, 2020 {9,161.66) {132.21) 125.00 1.66 48837 (8,548.28) {130.55)
Balance as at April 1, 2020 {9,161.66} {132.21) 125.00 1.66 488.37 (8,548.28} {130.55)
Profit / (Less) for the year ended March 31, 2021 {4,132.71} (55.80) - - - {4,132.71) {55.80)
Other Comprehensive Income [2.14) (0.03) - - - (2.14) {0.03)
Liguidity Enhancement Scheme Incentive Reserve (1,053.77} {14.27) 1,053.77 14.27 - - -
Liquidity Enhancerment Scheme Incentive paid / payable 1,078.77 14.57 {1,07B.77) {14.57) - - -
during the year
Changes in Foreign Currency Translation Reserve through - - - - {93.18) (93.18) -
Other Comprehensive Income
Balance as at March 31, 2021 {13,271.51) {187.74} 100.00 1.36 395.19 {12,776.31) {186.38)
As per our report of even date attached
For Khandehwat Jain & Ca, For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Charntered Accountants
Firm Raoletratlan Ma < 1NRASGAS Bt
| ‘ ( gt
U‘\m o g
-/.'\-’
Venkatesh Panchapagesan Ravi Varanas!
Director Director Director
[DIN:07942333] [DIN:07662795] [DIN:06573046]
Place : Mumbal
Date : Aprii 26, 2021 Sandip Mehta Ir
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary




NSE IFSC LIMITED
CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

For the year ended For the year ended For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars
31.03.2021 31.03,2021 31.03.2020 31.03.2020
{Rs. Lakhs) {USD Lakhs) (Rs. Lakhs) {USD Lakhs)
A} CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
NET PROFIT BEFORE TAX {4,132.73) (55.80) {3.371.05) {a7.44}
Adjustments for :
Deprediation & Amortization Expenses 1,061.32 14.33 921.80 12.97
Interest Income {20.26) {0.27) [12.05} {0.17)
Interest on Lease Liability 59.60 0.80 54.95 0.77
Sundry balances written back {31.94) {0.42) - -
Shara lssue Expensas 0.20 Q.00 115.90 163
OPERATING PROFIT BEFORE WORKING CAPITAL CHANGES 13,063.79) 41.36) {2,290,45) 132.24)
Adjustments for :
Trade Fayables {96.15) [1.15) 62.33 0.34
Trade Receivablas {€.35) [0.09) (4.54] {0.06)
Proceads from Member Deposits 141.92 222 132.22 091
Current Liabilities & Provisions 24.1% 0.54 {1,144.87) {17.29)
Loans & Ad and other 20.18 Q.20 46.15 0.93
Investor Protection Fund - Bank Balance 0.28 - {0.93) -
CASH GENERATED FROM DPERATIONS [1,979.76} (39.64) {3,200.09) 47.41)
Direct Taxes paid (Net of Refunds) {3.21) {0.04} {0.67) {001}
NET CASH FROM [USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVATIES - Total (A) {2,982.97) (39.68) (%,200.78) (47.42)
B} CASHFLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of Fived Assets {B18.66) {1177} {580.86) 16,10}
Investment in Fixed Deposits {2,416.25) {33.00} (31.07) -
Interest Income 36.12 0.47 1.06 0.03
NET CASH FAOM (USED [N} INVESTING ACTIVITIES - Total (B} {3,198.79) (44.30) {610.87} {6.07)
<) CASHFLOW FROM FINANONG ACTIVITIES
Proceads from issue of Equity Shares 4,0600.00 54.07 3,500.00 49.22
Share lssue Expense {o.20} (0.00) {115.90) {1.63)
Payment of Lease Liability {69.88) {093} (52.19) {0.20}
NET CASH FROM {USED IN) FINANCING ACTIVITIES - Total {C) 3,929.92 53.14 3,326.91 47.39
Thanges in Cash and cash equivalents on account of conversion of functianal currency to {93.18) . 120.47 _
presentatlon currency
NET INCREASE f (DECREASE} IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (A+B+C) [2,345.02} {30.84) {164.24} |6.10}
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS : OPENING BALANCE 3,126.47 41.47 3,290,71 47.57
CLOSING CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS : {LOSING BALANCE 731.45 10.63 3,126.497 41.47
NET INCREASE / (DECREASE} IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT (2,345.02) {30.84) {164.24} 6.10)
Motes to Cash Flow Statement :
1 Cash and cash equivalent represant cash and bank balancas.
2 The above Cash Flow Statement has baen preparsd under the "Indiract Mathad" as set out in the Ind A% - 7 on Stetament of Cash Flow.
3 Previous period / year's figures have been regrouped/ reclassified wherever necessary to correspond with the current pariod classification / disclosure.
—
As per our report of even date attached l
L

For Khandelwal lain & Co.

Place : Mumbal
Date : April 26, 2021

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Yenkatesh Panchapagesan
Director
IDiN:07942333]

[DIN:07662795]

Sandiff Mehta
Chief Executive Officer

\

Ravl Varanasi
Director
IDIN:DGS73046]



NSE IFSC LIMITED
NOTES TO ANANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

a

b}

c}

Background of the Company

The NSE {F5C Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of National Stock Exchange of india Limited, was incarporated on Novemnber 29, 2016. It is set up to render services of stock exchange
in GIFT IFSC s specified in SER| Guldelines. The exchange deals in equity shares of companies outside India, depasitory receipt debt securities by eligible Issuers, eurrency and interest
rate derivatives, index based derivatives, commadity dersivatives, ete, as approved by the Regulator from time to time,

During the FY 2020-21, The Government of India has notified Internationat Financial Services Centres Authority {IFSCA) as 2 unifled authority for the development and regulation of
financial products, financial services and financial institutions in the International Financial Services Centre (iF5C} in India. Accordingly, w.e.f October 1, 2020 the aperations of the
campany will be governed by the regulations issued by IFSCA from time to time.

Summary of significant accounting policies :

This note provides a list of the significant accounting poiicies adopted in preparation of Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) finsncial statements {"tnd AS financial statements"}, These
pollcies have been consistently applied to all the years / periods presented, untess otherwise stated.

Basts of preparation

These financlal statermnents are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards {Ind A5) under the historical cost convention on the accrual basis except for certain financial
instruments which are measured at fair values, the provislons of the Companies Act , 2013 {"Act’) (to the extent notifled). The Ind AS are prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read
with Rule 3 of the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies [ Indian Accounting Standards} Amandment Rules, 2016.

The financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021 has been approved by the Boand of directors of the Company in their meeting held on April 26, 2021.

Histarical cost conveation
The financlal statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following:
- certain financial assets and llabilities that is measured at fair value, and
- defined benefit plans - plan assets measured at fair value

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid ko transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price Is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an asiet or @ liability, the Company takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability which market participants would take Inta account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are
observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

Level 1 inputs are quoted prices {unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities thak the entity can atcess at the measurernent date;
Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and
Leval 3 inputs are unabservable inputs for the asset or fiability.

Forelgn currency translation and transactions

{ij Functiono! and presentation currency

[tems included in the financial statements of the Company are measured using the currency of the primary aconsmic environment in which the entity operates {‘the functional currency’}. The
company operates in GThe functional currency of the Company is LISD.

The financial statemants are presented in Indian currency (INR), which Is the Company’s presentation currency, It is necessary for the results and fi 1 ion of each individual entity
ineluded in the reporting entity to be translated inko the currency in which the reporiing entity presents its financlal statements, As the reporting entity p its A ial ts in INR,
the Company's financial staternents are translated into INR.

fii} Tronsactions and bolances
Foreign curmency tr ions are t lzted into the p tation curtancy using the exchange rates at the dates of the tr 1s. Forelgn exch gains and Ipsses resulting from the
satlerment of such transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and liabilitlas dencminated in foreign currencies at the pariod end exchange ratas are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-manetary tems that are measurad at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dale when the fair value was determined. Translation differences on
assets and liabilities carried at fair value are reported as part af the falr value gain or loss. For example, transiation differences on non-manetary assets and Fabilities such as equity instruments
held @t fair value through profit or loss are recognised in profit or foss as part of the fair valum gain or loss and translation differences on non-monetary assets such a5 equity investments
classified as FYOCl are ised in other comprehensive income.

[iii) Translation to the presentation currency

The fi ial are translated frem functional curmency to presentation curtency by using the following procedures:

(a} assets and Habilities for each sheet d {ie including comparatives) shall be translated at the closing rate at the date of that balance sheet;
{b) incoma and expenses for each statemant of proftt and loss presented [ie including comparatives) shall be translated at exchange rates at the dates of the ransactions; and
{¢) all resulting exchange differences shall be ised in other comprehensive income.

The company has adepted Appendix B to ind AS 21- Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration which clarifies the date of transaction for the purpose of delermining the
exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the ralated asset, axpense or income whan an entity has received or paid advance consideration in a foreign currency. The effect on account of
adoptlon of this amendment was insignificant.

Revenue recognition

The Company recognices its revenue in accordance with IND AS 115- Revenue from customers,

Revenus is recogrised upon transfer of coptrol of pramised services o customers in an amount that reflects the consideration which the Company expects to receive in exchange for those
services.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Amounts disclosed as revenue are net of allowances, incentives, service mxes and amounts collected on
bahalf of third partles.

The Company recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured and ft is probable that future econemie benefits will flow to the entity.

Revenua is recognised in the pericd when the service is provided as per arrangements/agreements with the customars. The scurces of revanus are;
{i) Trensactlon ch IT & support charges and pi ing charges are recognized on accrual basls as and when the services are rendered.;
{ii} Others - All other revenue is recognised in the peried in which the servica is provided




NSE IFSC LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

&}

4]

Income taxes
The income tax expense or credit far tha period is the tan payabke on the current period's taxable income based on the applicable income tax rate adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets
and liahilities attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax losses, Ifany.

The current income tax charge is calcuiated on the basis of the tax laws d ar sub fvely d at the end of the reporting period. periodically eval positions taken
in @x retumns with respect to situations in which applicable tax r 1 Es subject to interp jan. it blishes provisians where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to
the tax autharities.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the lability method, on temporary differencas arising between the tax bases of assats and llabilitbes and their carrylng amounts in the financial
statafments. Deferred Income tax [s determined using tax rates {and laws) that hawe been enacted or substantlally enacted by the end of the reparting period and are expected to apply when
the related deferred Income tax asset is rezlised or the deferred income tax liabilhy is settled.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets are raviawad at the end of each reporting period and are recognisad anly if it is probable that future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those
temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax asets are ot recognised for temparary differances between the carrying amount and tax bases of investments in subsidiaries, associates and interest in joint arrangements where
it is mot probable that the differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will not be available against which the temparary difference can be utilised.

Deferred tan assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and liabilities and when the deferred tax balences relate to the same takation
autharity. Current tax assets and tax lizbilities are offset where the entity has 2 legally enforceabie right to offsar and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneoushy.

Current and deferred tax Is recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to itemns gnised in other camprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax js ajso
recagnised in other comprehensive income ar diractly in equity, respectively.

Impairment of assets

intangible assets that have an indefinite usaful life are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for impairment, or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate thay
they might be impaired. Other assets are tested for impairment whenever events or ch in girct indi that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. &n Impairment loss is

recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its necoverable amount. The recoverabke amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less corts of disposal and value in
use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levets for which there are separately identifiable cash Inflows which are largely independent of the cash inflows
from other assets or groups of assers (cash-generating unjts). Non-financial assets that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at the end of each reporting
period,

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and Cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held at call with inancial institutions, other short-term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less that
are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subiect 1o an insignificant risk of changes in value. These do not include bank balances earmarked/restricted for specific
purpases.

| ond cther fi | agyets
{il Classification
The Company classifies its financiat assets [n the following measurement categories:
- thase to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income, or through profit or loss}, and
- those measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity's business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assels measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded in profit or loss or other comprehensive incorpe. For investments in debt instruments, this will depend on the business
rrode) in which the investment is held. For investments in equity instruments, this will depend on whether the Company has made an irmevocable election at the time of inltial recognition to
account for the equity investmant at fair valua through other comprehensive income. The Company reclassifies debt investments when and only when its business model for managing those
assets changes.

fii} Meosurement

At intial recognition, the Company measures a inancial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or ioss, transaclion costs that are diteetly
attributable to the acquisition of the financlal asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at fair value thraugh profit of loss are mpensed in profit or boss.

Debt instrupmepts
Subsaquent measurement of debt instruments depends on the C s busil model forr ing the asset and the cash Aow characteristics of the asset. There are three measurement
categories into which the company classifles its debt instruments:

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash Aows where thase cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest ae measured ¥t amortised cost. A gain
or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently measured at amortlsed cost and is not part of o hedging relatlonship is recognised in profit or loss when the assat is derecognised or impaired.
Interest income from these finantial assats s included in finance incorme using the effiective interest rate method.

Fair yalue gh other income [F¥OQ): Assets thet sre held for collection of contractual cash Rows and for selling the financial assew, where the assets’ cash fows reprassnt
solely payments of principal and interest, are measured at fair value through other comprehenstve Income (FYOG), Movements in the carrying amount are taken thmugh 0OCl, except for the
recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest and foreign h gains and losses which are recognised in profit and koss. When the fi ial asset is d gnised, the
cumulative gain or koss previously recognised in OC) is reclassified from equity o prafit or loss and reeagnised in ather gains/ {losses). Interest income from these financial assets is included in
other Income using the effective interest rate method.

Fair value through profit or less: Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FYOCI are measured at fair value through profit or loss. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is
subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss Is recognised in profit or toss and presented net in the statement of profit and loss within ather gains/{losses) in the period in which it
arises, nterest income from these financial assets Is inchuded In other income.

Equity investments {ather than Investments in subsidiaries, associotes and joint venture)

The Company subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value. Where the Company’s managemant has elected to present falr value galns and losses on equity investments in other
comprehenshve income, Lthere is no subsequent reclassification of fair value gains and losses w0 profit or loss. Dividends from such investments continue to be recognésed in profit or boss as
other income when the Company’s right 1o receive payments is estabfished.

Changes in the fair value of financial assers at fair value through profit or loss are recognised in other gain/ (losses] in the statement of profit and loss. Impairrment losses {and reversal of
impairment losses) on equity investments measured at FYOC are nat reported separately from other changes in fair value,




NSE IFSC LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

h)

Fquity s {in subsidiaries, i ond joint venture)

Investments inn subsidiarmes, associates and joint venture ana carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any, Where an indication of impairment exists, the carrying amount of the
Investment is assessed and written down immediately to its ble amount, The ing rolicy on impairment of non-fi ial assets js disclosed in Note e. On dizposal of investments
in subsidiaries, associates and joint venture, the difference between net disposal proceeds and the carrying amounts are recognized in the statement of prafit and loss.

{iif) impairment of finoncial assets
The Company assessas on a forward looking basis the d credit losses iated with ity assels carried at amortised cost and FYOC] debt instryments. The impairment methodology
apphed depends an whether there has been a significant increase in credtt risk,

For trede receivables only, the C y applies the simpiified appraach parmitted by Ind AS 109, which requires axpected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial recognition of the
receivatiles,

{iv} De-recognition of finonciof assets
A financial asset is de-recognised only when

- The Company has transferred the rights ta recelve cash fiows from the financial asset or
- retains the contractual rights to receiva the cash flows of the financial asset, but assumes a contractual oblgation to pay the cash
flows Lo one or more reciplkents,

Where the company has transferred an asset, it evaluates whether it has translerred substantially afl risks and rewands of ownership of the financial asset. In such cases, the financial
assat Is de-recognised. Whera the company has not transferred substantially ali risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the Anancial asset is pol de-recognised.

Where the Company has neither transfarred a financial asset nor retains substantially alt risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is de-recognised if the
Company has not retained control of the financial asset. Where the Company retains control of the financial asset, the asset is continued to be recognised to the extent of continuing
involvement in the financial asset.

fv) Income recognition
tnterest income

Interest income from debt instruments is recognlsed using the effective interest rate method. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future eash
receipts through the expected life of the financial assets to the gross camying amount of a financial asset. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Company estimates the
expected cash Alows by considering all the sal terms of the Fi ial instrument but does not conskder the expected credit losses.

{vi) Dividends

Dividends are recognised in profit and loss only when the right to receive payment is established, it is probalile that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will Row ta the
Company, and the amount of the dividend can be reliably measured.

Financlat liabilities

{il Classification os debt or equity
Financial liabilities and equity instruments Issued by the Company are classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered inte and the definitions of a financlal
liability and an equity instrument.

{ii) Initici recognition and measurement
Financlal liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial iabilities are inltially measured at the amortised cost unkess at
inittal recognition, they are classified as fair value through profit and loss.

fifi}) Subsequent measurement
Financtal liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. Financial liabilities carried at fair vatue thraugh profit or loss are measured at fair value
with all changes in fair value recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

(] Derecognition
A Financial liability is derecognised when the obiigation specified in the is disch d lled or eapires.

Offsetting financlal instrumeants

Financlal assets and liabiiities are offset and the nat amount is reparted in the balance sheet whare there is a legally enforceable right to offsat the recognised amounts and there is an intention
to settle an a net basis ar realise the asset and settie the llabilty simuitaneously. The legally enforeeable right must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal
course of business and |n the event of default, insolvency or banknuptry of the Company or the counterparty.

Property, plant and equipment (including OWIP)
All items of propeyrty, plart and equipment are stated at hystorical cost less depreciation. Historical cost Inctudes expenditure that is directly attributable ta the acquisition of the tems.

t costs are in the asset's carrying amount or necognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic bensfits associated with the item
will flow ta the Compeny and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any companent accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised when replaced. All other
repairs and maintsnance are charged to profit or loss during tha reporting period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation methads, estimated usefu! fives and residuol value
Capraciation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their cost, net of their residual values, aver their estimated useful lives as follows:

Assets Management Estimate
of Useful
Life In years
Computer systems office automation 3 years
|Computer systems — others 4 ye;'
Telecommunication systems 4 years

Eifectrical Equipments * 10 years
|Drﬁce Equi * S years
IEleclrical installations® 1C Y'EEI
Furniture & Flxures * 10 year
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*Fixed Furnitiure & Fixtures, Electrical Installations & Equipments and Office Equipments including civil improvements at Lease Hold premises are depreciated over the lzase period.

The usoful lives have bean determined based on technical evalustion done by the management’s expert which are higher than thase specified by Schedule i to the Companies Act, 2013, in
order to reflect the actual usage of the assets, The residual values are not more than 5% of the original cost of the asset. The asset’s residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted
ona pective basis f apprapriate, at the end of each reporting pericd.

An asset's carmying amount is written down immediately to iy recoverable amount If the asset's carrying amount Is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and lossas on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount and are in¢luded in profit or lass.

Depreciation en assets purchased / disposed off during the year is provided on pro rata basis with reference to the date of additions / deductions.

Fized assets whose aggregate cost is Rs. 5,000 or less are depreciated fully in the year of acquisition.

Intangible assets
Costs associated with maintaining software programmes are recognised as an enpense as incurred, Development costs that are directly attributable to tha design 2nd tasting of identiflable and
unique software products controllad by the Company are recognised as intangible assets when the following criteria are met:

- It is technlically feasible to complete the software so that it will be available for use

- intends to plete the software and use or sell it

- there is an ability 1o use or sall the software

-t can be demonstrated how the software will generate probable future economic benefits

- adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the development and ta uss or sell the softwars are available, and

- the edpenditure attributable to the softwane during s development can be reliably measured.

Directly attributable costs that are capitalised as part of the software inchude ampioyes costs and an appropriate portion of relevant overheads.
Capitalised development costs are recorded as intangible assets and amortised from the point at which the asset is available for use.
Computer software is amortised aver a period of 4 years.

Trade and other payables

Thase amounts represent liabillties for goods and services provided to the Compeny prior to the end of financial pericd which are unpeid. Trade and other payables are presented as current
liabilities unless peyment is not due within 12 menths after the reporting period. They are recognised initially at their fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cast using the effective
interest method.

Provisions
Pravisions for legal claims and discounts/incentives are recognised when the Compeny has a present legal or constructive obligation 335 a result of past events, it is probable that an autflow of
resaurces will be required (o settke the obligation and the amount ean be relizbly estimated. Pravisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

At the end of each reporting perlod, provisions are measured at the present value of management’s bast estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at a future date. .
The discount rate used to determine the presant value is a pre-tax rate that reflects currant market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liabilfty. The increase in
the provision due b the passage of time is r ised as Interest

Contingent Liabilitles

Contingent Jiabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation ardsing from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more uncertain future avents not wholly within the control of the Company or a present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable that an outffow of resources will
be required to settle the obligation or a refiable estimate of the amount cannot be made.

Dividends
Pravision is made for the amount of any dividend declared including dividend distribution tax, being appropriately authorised and no longer at the discretion of the entity, on or before the end
of the reporting period but not distributed at the end of the reporting period.

Eamning= per thare

{i) Basic earnings per share
Basic earnings per shara is calculated by dividing:
- the profit atiributable to owners of the compeny
~ by the weighted average number of aquity shares cutstanding during the financial year, adjusted for bonus elements in
equity shares issued during the year.

{ii) Diluted Eornings per share
Dituted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the detarmination of basic earnings per share to take into account:
- the after incoma tax effect of interest and other financing costs iated with difutive ial aquity shares, and
- the waighted age number of additional equity shares that would have been outstanding assuming the conversion of ail
dilutwe patential equity shares.

Leases

Effective April 1, 2019, the Company has adopted Ind AS 116 “Leases” and applied to all leass contracts existing on April 1, 2019 using the simplified approach.

Az a lessea

The Company’'s lease asset classes primarily consist of leasas for land and buildings. The Company assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at incaption of the contract. Ind AS 116 definesa
lease as a contract, or a part of a contract, that conveyas the right of use an asset (the undertying asset) for a period of time in exchange of consideration. To assess whether as contract comveys
the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Company sssesses whether: {i) the contract invalves the usa of an identified asset (i} the Company has substankially all of the etonomic
benefits from use of the astet through the period of the fease and ([ii) the Company has the dght to direct the use of the asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-usa asset and a cormsponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which 1t is a lessee, except for jeases
with a term of twaive months or less (shart berm leasas) and low value leases. For these short-term and low value leasas, the Company recognizes the lsase payments as an operalting expenses
on a straight line basis over the term of the lease,

The right-of-use assets are initlally recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or pricr to the commencement date of
the lease plus any inftial direct costs less any lease incentives. They are subsequently measured at cost kess accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Right-of-use assets are depreciated
from the commenticernant date on straight lina basis over the shorter of the lease 1erm and useful fife of the uhdarlying assets.

As a lessor

Lease for which the Company is a kessor is classified as finance or operating lease. Whenever the terms of the Jease trapsfer substantially alt the risks and rewards of ownership Lo the lessee, the
contract is classified as a finance lease. All other leases are classifled as cperating leases. For operating leases, rental income is recagnized on straight line basis over the term of the relevant
leasa,

Rounding of amounts

All amounts disclosed in the Fi tal nts and notes have been rounded off to the nearest lakhs, as per the requirement of schedule W, unless stated otherwise.
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u)

Employee Benefits

{1} Prevident Fund: During the current year the company is registared with Regional Provident Fund Qffice, Bandra, Mumbai, and both the employee and the employer make monthiy
contribution equal to 12% of the emphoyea’s basic salary respectivaly.

{ii) Superannuation: Superannuation banefits for employees d ed as chief s and above are coverad by group policies with the Life Insurance Corporation of India maintained by
the Hodlding Company. The contribution for the year is reimbursed to the halding company is charged to revanue. There are no other obligations ather than the annual coptribution payable.

{ili} Gratuity: Provisions are made for the deflned benefit with respect to gratuity liability based on the present value of defined benefit obligation as reduced by the fir value of plan assats as
per tha actuarial valuation calculation.

{iv) Leave Ei i 1t : Liability on of Leave encashment is provided based on Acturlal Valuatlon at Bajahce Sheet date,

{v) Short tarm employee benefits are charged to revenue in the year in which the related service is rendered

Critical Acc And Jud
The prep ien of fi ial quires the use of accounting estimales which, by dafinition, will seldom equal the actual results. This note provides an ovenview of the areas that
imvolved a higher degree of judgement cr complexity, and of items which are mare likely to be jaily adji d due to st and assumptions turming out to be different than those

originally assessed. Detailed information about each of thase estimates and judgements is ineluded in relevant notes together with information about the basis of calculation for each affected
line item in the financial statemenits.

The areas invoiving critical estimates of judgements are:
Tax expense refer Note 32

Estimation of useful life of intangible asset refer Note 3b
Estimation of contingent lizbilities refer Note 31
Estimatian of Impairment of Assets

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated. They are based on historical experience and ather factors, including expectations of future events that may have a Anancial impactan the
Company and that are believed to be ble under the circur

Recent pronouncements

On March 24, 2021, the Ministry of Corporate Affalrs ("MCA"} through a natification, amended Schedule Il of tha Campanies Act, 2013, The amendments revise Division |, [l and Il of Schedule
Il and are applicable from April 1, 2021, Key amendments relating to Division |l which relate to companies whose financial statements are required to comply with Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules 2015 are:

Balance Sheet:

= Liase liabilities should be separately disclosed under the head ‘financial liabilities', duly distingulshed as current or non-current.

+ Certain additional dise) in the state af ch in equity such as changes in equity share capital due to prior period errors and restated balances at the beginning af the current
reporting period.

+ Specified format for disciosure of shareholding of p s,

v Specified format for ageing schedule of trade receiables, trade blas, capital work-in-progress and i ible asset under d

« if 3 company has not used funds for the specific purpose for which it was kormowed from banks and financial institutions, then disclosure of details of where it has been used.

» Specific disclosure under ‘additional regulatory requi t' such as ec i with approved sehemes of arrangements, compliance with number of layers of companies, title deeds of

tmmovable proparty not held in name of company, loans and advances to promoters, directors, key managerial personne! (KMP) and related parties, details of benami property hald atc.

Saternent of profit and loss;
+ Additional disclosures ralating to Corporata Sacial ihitity (CSR), updisclased income and crypto or virtual currency specified urdert the head ‘additional information’ in the notas
forming part of the dalone fi iah s

The amendments are extensive and the Company will evaluate the same to give effect to them as required by law.
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Note3a: Property, plant and equipment

{Rs. Lakhs)
Electrical . Telecom Computer Systems - Elactrical Capital Work In
Computer Others Equipments Offlce Equipments Installations Office Autormation Installations Furniture & Fixtures Tomat Progress
Gross carrying amount
Opening a5 at 01.04.2019 1,956.55 102.63 380.10 484.67 17.47 187.54 154.19 3,283.15 10.73
Additions 69.63 - 0.63 23.11 6.93 - - 100.35 3.50
Dispasals . B - - - - - . -
Transfers 10.73 - - - - - - 10.73 {10.73)
Currency Fluctuation 183.14 9.22 34.19 45.01 2.26 16.85 13.85 304.52 -
Closing gross carrylng amaunt 2,220.05 111.85 414,92 552.78 26.72 204.39 168.04 3,698.76 3.50
Accumulated depreciation
Opening as at 01.04.2019 509.88 9.50 47.06 104.42 7.18 10.43 20.01 708.48 -
Depreciation charge during the year 518.02 10.57 7837 128.72 7.64 18.32 3177 794.41 -
Disposals - - - . - - - - -
Currency Fluctuation 77.32 1.5 9.00 17.21 111 2,11 3.73 111.98 -
Closing accumulated depreciation 1,105.22 21,57 134.42 250.36 15.94 31.86 55.50 1,614.87 -
Net carrying amount as at 31.03.2020 1,114.83 90,29 280.50 302.42 10.78 17253 112.54 2,083.88 3.50
Gross carrying amount
Opening as at 01.04,2020 2,220.05 111.85 414.92 552.78 26.72 204.39 168.04 3,698.76 3.50
Additions 217,43 - - 336.23 4,83 - - 558.48 142.05
Disposals - - - - - . . .
Transfers - - - 3.50 - - - 3.50 (3.50)
Currency Fluctuation 155.40) (2.79) [10.35) {13.75} [0.67) {5.10) [4.19) {92.30) -
Closing gross carrying amount 2,382.07 109.06 A404.57 878.72 30.88 159.29 163.85 4,168.44 142.06
Accumulated depreciation
Opening as at 01.04,2020 1,105.22 21.57 134.42 250,36 1594 31.86 §5.50 1,614.87 -
Depreciation charge during the year 563.36 10.959 81.53 185.07 8.07 20,08 33.02 902.12 -
Disposals - - . - - - - - .
Currency Fluctuation {31.83) (0.62) {3.97} {7.64) [0.46} {0.95) {1.63) {47.11) -
Closing accumulated depreciation 1,636.75 31.93 211,98 427.78 23.55 51.00 86.89 2,469.88 -
Net carrying amount as at 31.03.2021 74532 77,13 192.59 450.94 733 148.2% 76.96 1,698,56 142.06
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Notes to Financial Statements For the year ended March 31, 2021
Note 3a: Property, plant and equipment

{USD Lakhs)
Electrical . Telecom Computer Systems - Electrical N ) Capital Work In
Computer Others Equipments Office Equipments InstaBatlons Office Automation Instailations Furniture & Fixtures TOTAL Progress

Gross carrying amount

QOpening as at 01.04.2019 3.9 148 5.50 7.01 0.25 271 2.3 47.46 0.16
Additions 1.00 - 0.01 0.33 0.10 - - 1.44 0.05
Disposals - -
Transfers 0.16 - - - - - - 0.16 {0.16}
[Closing gross carrying amount 25.45 1.48 5.50 7.33 0.35 271 2,23 49.06 0.05 |
Accumulated depreciation

QOpening as at 01.04.201% 7.37 0.14 0.68 1.51 0.10 0.15 0.29 10.24 -
Depreciation charge during the year 129 0.15 110 181 0.11 0.27 0.45 11.18 -
Disposals . - - - - - . - .
ICIosing accumulated depreciation 14.66 0.29 1,78 132 0.21 0.42 0.74 21.42 - |
Net carrylng amount as at 31.03.2020 14.79 1.20 3.72 4,01 0.14 2.29 1.49 27.64 .05
Gross carrying amount

QOpening as at 01.04.2020 29.45 148 5.50 7.33 0.35 271 223 49.08 0.05
Additions 295 - - 4.57 0.07 - - 7.59 153
Disposals - - - - - - - - -
Transfers - - - 0,08 - - - 0.05 [0.05}
|Closing gross carrying amount 32.41 148 5.50 11.95 0.42 2.71 2.23 56.71 1.53 |
Accumulated depreciation

Opening as at 01.04.2020 14.66 0.29 1.78 3.32 0.21 042 0.74 2142 -
Depreciation charge during the year 7.61 0.15 110 2.50 0.11 0.27 0.45 12.18 -
Disposals - - - - . - . - -
|Closing accumulated depregiation 22.27 0.43 2.88 5,82 0.32 0.69 1.18 33.60 - |
I&nrwing amount as at 31.03.2021 10.14 1.05 2.62 6.13 0.10 2.02 1.05 23.11 1.93J
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Note 3b ; Other intangible assets and right-of-use assets

{Rs. Lakhs)
Computer Software  _0/PRUer software TOTAL Right-Of-Use Assets
under development
Gross carrying amount
Opening as at 01.04.2019 318.22 - 318.22 -
Additions 0.42 - 0.42 67857
Disposals - - - -
Transfers - - - -
Currency Fluctuation 28.62 - 28.62 -
Closing gross camying amount 347.26 - 347.26 678.57
Accumuiated amortisation
Opening as at 01.04.2019 137.79 - 137.79 -
Amortisation charge during the year 82.05 - 82.05 45.33
Disposals - - - -
Currency Fluctuation 17.37 - 17.37 -
Closing accumulated depreciation 237.21 - 237.21 45.33
Net carrying amount as at 31.03.2020 110.05 - 110.05 633.24
Gross carrying amount
Opening as at 01.04,2020 347.26 - 347.26 678.57
Additions 138.03 4133 179.36 -
Disposals - - - -
Transfers - - - -
Currency Fluctuation {8.67} - {8.67) {14.27)
Closing gross carrying amount 476.62 41.33 517.96 664.30
Accumulated amortisation
Dpening as at 01.04.2020 237.21 - 237.21 45.33
Amortisation charge during the year 109.53 - 109.53 49.67
Disposals - - - -
Currency Fluctuation {6.75) - {6.75) 118
Closing accumulated depreciation 340.00 - 340.00 96.18
Net carrying amount as at 31.03.2021 136.62 41.33 177.96 568.11

y2-







NSE 1FSC LMITED
NOTES TO AINANCLAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

a

Other finandal assats { non - anrent]

Non - Curraent bank balances
Fixed depasits with original maturity for more than 12 months
Total {a)

Othara

security deposit for utilities and premises
Acorued interest on Flixed Deposit

Tatal (b}

Othar Non-Curmemt Aasels

Prepaid Expenses
Total

Trede recehvables

Trade receivahles
Less : Loss Allowance

Break up of security details

Trade Receivables cansidered good - Secured

Trade Receivables conshdered good - Unsecured

Trade Receivables which have significantincrease in eredit risk
Trade Receivables - credit impaired

Total

Loss allowance

Total Trade recelvables

Cash and cash equivabenta

Balances with banks :
I curTent accounts

- In USD Accaunts

- In INR Accounts
Total

Bark hatances othwer than cash and cash squivalenta

Fixed deposit with original maturity for more than 3 months but Jess than 12
months
Fixed deposit with maturity of less than 12 months at the balance sheet date

Total

Other finandal assets {Current)

Others
Aocrued interest on Deposits
Total

rher Current Assets

Prepaid Expenses

Oeferred Lease Rent

Balance with G5T Authorities
Receivables from Related Party

Receivables from Employees
Total

Racahable from Ralated Party
MSE IFSC Clearing Corporation Lud

As at 31.03,202] Asat31.03.2021 As ot 31.03.2020 Asat 31.03.2020
(Rs. Laiths) USD Lakths ]Rs. Lakhs) |I.IHJ Lakhs}
- - 376.93 5.00
- - 376.93 5.00
78.66 1.07 7.9 1.05
- - 15.87 0.21
107 95,05 1.26
2L
As at 31.03.2021 As at 31.03.2023 As 8t 31.02.2020 As ot 31.03.2020
{Rs. Lakhs) {USD Lakhs} (M. Lakhs) {USD Lakhs)
243 ¢.03 23.83 0.26
.43 0.03 23.83 0.265
— = =222 i
As at 31.03.202% Ag ot 31.03.2021 As at 31.03.2020 As at 31,03,2020
{Rs. Lakhs) {USD Lakhs) . Lakths| USD Lairhs|
10.29 015 454 0.06
10.88 .15 4.54 0.06
= =2 S
1089 0.15 4354 096
10.89 0.15 4.54 008
10.29 2.15 4.54 0.06
=3 e L
As at 31.03.2021 As ot 31.02.2021 As at 31.03.2020 As ot 31.03.2020
{Rs. Lakhs} {USD Lakhs) {Rs. Lok} {usD Lakhs)
685.26 9.32 3,105.76 4120
96.19 1.31 20.71 G.27
F8LA45 10.53 3!125.47 AL.47
As ut 31.03.2021 As w1 31.03.2021 As at 31.03.2020 As at 31.03.2020
[Rs. Lakhs| {USD Lakha} {Ra. Ladrhs) USD Lakhs)
955.56 13.00 - -
1,837.62 25.00 - -
2‘?93.18 34.00 - - N
As at 31.03.2021 As ot I1.03.1021 As ot 31.03. 2020 -J-l i
(A Lakhs) {USD Lakhs) {Rs. Lakhs) {USE Lukhs)
31.21 Q.42 -
31.21 0.42 - -
Az at 31.03.2021 As @t 31.03.2021 As at 3L.03. 3020 As a1 31.03.2020
{Rs. Lakhs) {UsD Lakhs) {Rs. Lakhs) (usD Lakhs)
6401 0.87 67.40 0.95
arz 0.01 2.20 0.02
a.85 0.12 25.42 o34
1599 022 23.97 0.32
0. .00 0.02 0.00
A8.57 133
= = c
15.99 0.22 23.97 a.B5
15.99 0.22 23.97 0.85
=L —
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B)

Share Capltal As at 31.03.2021 As at 31.03.2021 As at 31.03.2020 As at 31.03.2020

{Rs. Lakhs} {USD Lakhs) [Rs. Lakhs) {USD Lakhs}
_Authorised
25,00,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs 10 each 25,000 NA 25,000 NA
{Previous Year : 25,00,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs 10
each)

EM NA 25,000 NA

Issued, Subsaibed and Paid-up
16,50,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs 10 each, fully paid up 16,500 237.03 12,500 182.%6
{Previous Year : 12,50,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs 10
each, fully paid up)
Total 5200 237.03 12,500 182.96
Equity Shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs.10/- par share, Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. The dividend proposed by the
Board of Diractar is subject to the approval of the sharehalder in the ensulng Annual General Meeting except in the case of interim dividend.

In the event of liquidation of tha company, the holder of equity shares will be entitied tw recelve remaining assets of the company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The
distribution will be in proportion te the number of equity shares held by the shareholder.

A reconciliation of the number of Equity Shares gutstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting peviod

As at 31.03.2021 As at 31.03.2020
Nos. {Rs.]) Nos. {Rs.)
|at the beginning of the year 12,50,00,000 1,25,00,00,000 9,00,00,000 90,00,00,000
|Add: |ssued during the year 4,00,00,000 40,00,00,000 3,50,00,000 35,00,00,000
At the end of the year 16,50,00,000 1,65,00,00,000 12,50,00,000 1,25,00,00,000

During the year, the cempany has allotbed 1,50,00,000 fully paid up equity shares Rs.10 each on August 30, 2020 and 2,59,00,000 fully paid up equity shares Rs.10 each on December 14,

2023 on right basis to the existing shareholder.

Shares in respect of each dass in the company held by its holding company

Equity Shares :
Name of the Company As at 31.03,2021 As at 31.03.2020
Nos., % holding Nos. % holding
Natienal Stock Exchange of India Lirnfted & its nominees 16,50,00,000 100.00% 12,50,00,000 100.00%
Total 16,50,00,000 100.00% 12,50,00,000 100.00%
Details of Equity Shareholder halding maore than 5% share in the Company [No of Sharas)
MName of the Company 31.03.2021 31.03.2020
No.of Shares % holdi No.of Shares % holding
MNational Stack Exchange of tndia Limited & its nominees 16,50,00,000 100.00% 12,50,00,000 100,060%
Tatal 16,50,00,000 00.00% . _._)000 100.00%
Other aquity As a3t 31.03.2021 As at 31.03.2021 As at 31.03.2020 As at 31.03.2020
{Rs. Lakhs) {USD Lakhs) {Rs. Lakhs} {USD Lakhs)
Uguidity Ent Schems R e
Openlng Balance 125.00 1.66 150.00 2.17
Transfer from Surplus/Deficit in Statement of Profit and 1,053.75 14.27 893.69 12.42
Loss
Liguidity Enhancenent Scheme Incentive paid/payable {1,078.77) {14.57) {918.69} {12.93)
during the year
Closing Balance [A) 99.99 1.36 125.00 1.66
Foreign Currency Translation Reserve
Opening Balance 488.37 - 167.91 -
Changes During the perlod {93.18) - 320.47 -
Closing Balance [B) 395.19 - 488.37 -
Surplus / {Deficit] in the Statement of Profit and Loss
Opening Balance 19,161.66) (132.21) (5,813.87) [85.25)
Profit / {Loss} for tha period (4,132.71) {55.80) (3.371.05) {47.44)
Cthar Comprehensive Income (2.14) {0.03) (1.724) (0.02)
Transfer to Liquidity Enhancement Scheme Incentive (1,053.75) {14.27) {893.69) {12.42)
Reserve
Reversal of Liguidity Enhancement Scheme Incentive 1078.77 14.57 918.69 1293
paid during the year
Closing Balance [C}) [13,271.49) {187.74} 19,161.66) {132.21)
Tota) reserves and surplus {A+B+C) [12,776.32) (186.38) {8,548.29) {130.55}

* SEBI vide its circular dabed August 10,2017 has perrnitted exchages in GIFT IFSC to imtroduce Liquidity Enhancement Scheme to enhance liquidity. Considering, the nascent stage of
business SEB| has granted exemption to comply with the conditions of giving the incentive out of accumutated free reserves of the exchange.Further, SEB has advised exchanges to
create a reserve specifically to meet Liquidity Enhancement Scheme Incentive and the same would not be included in the networth calculation of the exchange.

During the current year exchange has credited amount equivalent to Rs.1,053.76 lakhs (USD 14.27 Lakhs) (Previous Year : Rs.893.63 lakhs {USD 12.42 Lakhs)) to LES Incentive reserve and
Rs. 1,078.77 Lakhs (USD 14.57 Lakhs) (P ° " Toomemsm bt memm 42,93 Lakhs)) was spent as incentive paid/payable to the trading r 0 Lakhs
[USD 1.36 Lakhs) {Previous Year : Rs.12% itive reserve as at March 31, 2021 Based on the past trend, the m balance
in LES reserye as at March 31, 2021 is 5u out for tha foltowing month.
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Other Financlal Liabilitles (Mo - Current}

Lease Lability

Provisions - Mon Camemt

Provision for gratuity(Reter Note 29)
Provision for leave encashment

Deposit- Current

Depasits from trading members

Trade Payable

Trade Payable {Refer note No.28)

Trade Payable to Related Party (Refer note No_28}

Payable to Related Party
NSE Indices Limited
NSEIT Limited

Gther Financial Lishiiites { Current}

Others

Liability for Expense (Refer note No.28)
Lease Liabitity

Credhtar for Caphtal Expenditure

Total

Payable to Related Party
Natlanal Stock Exchange of India Limited

Provislans - Current

Provision for leave encashment
Provisicn for gratuity
Prowision for varlable pay and zllowance

Other Cyrrent liabilities

Statutory Dues Payable
Income Received In Advance
Crher Liabilfies

Total

A3 ar31.03.2021 A2 231.03.2021 A3 at 31.03.2000 As 41 31.03.2020
{fs. Lakhs) {USD Lakhs} {Rs. Lakhs) {USD Lakhs)
637.60 a.67 667.60 8.86
637.60 8.67 567.60 836
CELE IR, 58
As a131.03.2021 Asat 31.02.2021 s at 31.03.2020 fn at 31.03.2000
{Rs. Lakhs) {USD Lakhs) {Rs. Lukhs) {USD Lakths)
1880 0.26 699 0.08
483 0.06 295 oz
23.43 0.32 9.94 041
= =t 22
As v 31.03.2021 As at 31.03.2011 A5 3t31.03.2020 As 2131.03.2020
{Rs. Lakhs) {USD Lakhs} {Rx. Lakhs) {USD Lakhs)
980.10 13.33 £33.18 11.12
980.10 13.33 338,18 11,12
24 ==L e
s at 31.03.2021 s at 31.03.2021 As at 31.03.2020 As 1 31.03.2020
[Rs. Lakhs) (USD Laiths) {PRa. Lakhs) {USD Lakhs}
8525 116 105.24 140
28775 391 363.91 483
372.00 5.07 468,15 622
22300 20 =i
331 0.05 EETS 004
28444 .86 36055 479
287.75 3.91 363.91 483
28 22 =2 108
As 2131.03.2021 fa 6t 31.03.2021 s at31.03.2020 As at 31.03.2020
{Rx. Lalrh) {USD Lakhs} (Rs. Lakhs) {USD Lakhe)
47385 645 503.35 668
13.00 0.18 873 0.12
3462 047 2050 0.26
52127 7.10 532.58 7.06
Lt L8 CEEE L
57.50 078 73254 3.08
n 232.54 z.08
— - i
s 0t 31.03.2021 Asat 31.03.2021 s at31.02.2020 As @1 31.02.2020
{Rs. Lakhs} {LSD Lakhs} (. Lakhs} {USD Lakh}
602 0.08 213 005
1.2 b.o2 - -
EELTY 045 19.58 0.26
4112 0.56 2171 0.31
= .58
Asgr31.03.2021 s at31.03.2021 A2 31032020 fa at 31032070
(Rs. Lakhs) [USD Lakhs) {Fa. Lakhs) {USD Lakhs)
68.85 084 20,93 107
508 0.07 5.09 0.07
564 0.09 208 0.03
7955 1.10 89.10 117
= = 228

18
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Aevenue from Oparation For the year ended For the year ended For the year endexd For the year ended
31.03.2021 31.03.2m21 1.3, 2020 31.03.2020
{Rs. Lakhs} {USD Lalhs) {Rs Lakhs) {USD Lakhs)
Conneclivity Charges 10.84 0.1% B.62 012
Annual Membership Fees 30,54 054 2837 n4a
Total 51.38 0.5 36,95 0.52
= = == ———
Other Income For the ysar saded For the year ended For U Year ended For the year #nded
3103121 31.03.2021 31032020 31.03.2020
(R Lakchs) {USD Laiths) {Rs. Ladhs) {USD Lakhs)
Interest Income from financial axseis at amartised cost 15.12 Q.20 9.93 014
Imerest Mhers 5.13 0.07 111 D.G3
Profit on Foreign Exchange Fluctuation (met) - - 89.12 125
Sundry balances written back 1M 0.42 - -
Gther Income 013 0.01 Q.03 0.00
Total 5237 0. 70 101.19 1.42
Emplayes benefits eapense For the year ended For the year ended For the year ended For the year ended
31.03.2011 31.03.2021 31.03. 2020 31.03.2020
(B, Lakhs) {USD Lalkhs) {Rs. Lakhs} (50 Lakhs)
Salary, Wages & Allowances 189.45 154 133.72 1.88
Contribution to provident and other fund 5.60 Q.08 469 0.07
Gratuity {Refer Note 29) 3.68 005 2.25 0.a3
Deputed Personnel Cost (Reder Note 35) 206.09 279 00,52 2.82
Total A0l .07 5.45 _l-ll.ll I.=
Other expamses
For the year ended For the year ended For the year ended For the year ended
31032021 31.083.201 31.03.020 31.63. 2020
{Rs. Lakhs) (USD Lakhs) {Rs. Lakhs) {USD Lakhs)
Lease Line Charges 183.99 2.48 157.35 v
Software Expenses 10.28 D14 7.9 011
Power and DG Backup Charges 49,06 D.6&5 15.48 0.36
Repairs & Maintemance - Building & others 55.95 0.76 5358 0.75
Air Conditioning Charges 457 0.06 4.45 0.06
Security Charges 4.93 0.07 4.76 D.07
Legal and Professionsl Fees 18412 .49 60,60 0.85
Director Stiting Fees. 3.00 0.04 150 ooz
Payment to Auditor { Refer Wote Below] 558 0.08 4,74 o7
Fees & Subscription 13493 1.82 15.49 022
Licensing Fees 358 o 352 X3
Now Usage Charges 5.02 o.o? 515 0.07
Application & Hegistration Fees - - aos 0.00
Travedling Expenses 14.92 0.20 22.92 a3z
Lodging and Boarding Expense 330 0.04 419 0.06
Dffice Expensas 693 0.09 591 nod
Pantry & Refreshments 552 0.07 5.32 o007
Printing and Stationery D48 Q.01 170 0.02
Conveyance Eapenses 1.60 0.02 1.15 D02
Telephone & Internet Charges 1.42 0.02 1n 0.02
Insurance Exp. .88 004 1.44 o0.o2
Business Promation: Expense - - D.1% Q.00
Regulatory fees 114.21 15 .59 133
Interest on Lease Liability 59.60 D.80 54.95 Q77
Stamp Duly on l15ue of Shares 0.20 0,00 115.90 1.63
Shifting Expense D.38 .01 -
Loss on Foreign Fxchange Auctuation {net) 9.75 013 - -
Other Expenses 330 0.o4 9.83 Q.14
Total 11.74 563.78 L
Note -
Paymaent to Auditor
As Auditor
Audit Fees 175 D.o2 150 0.02
Umited Review Fees .75 0.01 ors 0.01
In other Capacity
Certification Matters D50 ool 0.98 D01
Tawation Matters 57 0.0 150 n.02
Out of Packet Expenses [1 X131 a1 0.01 0.00
Total .58 0.08 L_?-! m
Earmings pes share
Particclars Year ended 35.03.2021 Yoar ended 31.03.2020
I — — Rs. Lakhs {UISD Lakhs} (Rs. Lakhs) USD Lakh
Profit attributal quity tthero n calculating basic
ws per share and diluted eamings per share
Profit/(Loss) for the year (41327 {55.80) {3,371.05) 147.44]
Waighted average number of aquity shares used as the denominator in ¢ ing 4,11,91,78 14,11,9%,781 10,18,71,584.70 10,18.71,584.70
basic eamings per share |
{Earnings per equity share {basic and diluted) (Rs.] 2.99) [0.04) [3.31} [0.05

The Company does not have any outsianding dilutive pelential equity shares. Consequently. the basic and diluted earning per share of the Compary remain the same.

e
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24 Lewse - Operating Leass

The Company has taken cerfain premises under non-canceRable operating lease. Cs far lease payments on und d bask in relation o

non-cancellable operating leases are payable as fallows:

Particulars Year ended 31.03.2021 Year ended 31.03.2021 Year esrcled 31.03.2020 | Year ended 31.03.2020

{Rs-In Lakhs} {USD Lakhs) {ReIn Lakhs) (USD Lakhs)

- Paid during the year 66.43 490 63.26 089

- Not Later than one year £3.75 .94 56.43 .93

- Later than one year and not later than 315.65 4.26 300.62 4.23

- Later than five years 744.82 10.06 819.60 11.67

Total Lease Payment 1,130.22 15.26 1,196.65 16.84
25 Deputed Personnel Cost

Deputed Personnal Cost represents the deputation expenses in respect of the employees of National Stack Exch af India Limled {NSEIL) deputed Lo the company.

26 Segment Reporting
Operating segments are reported in 3 manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Chief Operating Decisien Maker ['CODM") of the Company. The CODM, who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
perfarmance of the operating segments, has been identified as the CEQ of the Company. The carnpanv operaus only in one Business Segment i.e.facilitating trading of securibes and the activities incidental thereta within india or
global, hemce does not have any repartable Segments as per Indian Actounting dard 108 "0,

7 Relsted Party
In compliance with Ind A5 24 - “Related Party Disclosures”, as notified under Rule 3 of The Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and € ies (Indian i ] Rules, 2016 the required
dischorsures are glven in the table below:

Names of the related les and related relatlonsh

5¢. (Related Party Nature of Relationship
No
1 _|Natianal Stock Exchange of India Uimited Holding Company
2 |NSE Geaning iimited {formerly known as National Securities ng Corparation Uimited) Fellow Subsidiary Cnmpagy
| 3 |MSE Investrnents bimited {formerly known as NSE Strategic Investment Corporation Limited) Fellow Subsidiary ¢
| 4 |NSE IFSC Clearing Corporation Umited Fellaw Subsidiary's Subsidiary Company 3
5 |NSEIT Limited Fellcm5uhsidia 's Subsidiary Compan
| & |MSE Data & Analytics Limited {formery kmawn as DotEx International Limited} Fellow idiary's Subsidiary C
7 [Cogencis Information Services UGmited (w.e.f. January 21, 2021) Feltow Subsidiary's Subsidianys Subsidiary Company
& |Capital Quants Solutions Private Limited {w.e.f. March 03, 2021} Fellow Subsidiary's Subsidiary's Subsidiary C
9 _|NSE ihdices Limited {formerly known as India Index Services & Products Uimited Feflow Subsidiary's Subsidiary Company
10 |NSE Infotech Services Limited Fellow Subsidiary's Subsidiary Cormpany
11 {NSE.IT (U} Inc. Fellow Subsidiary's Subsidiary’s Subsidiary C y
| 12 [NSE Academy Limited (Formerly known as NSE Education Facilities Limited] Fellow Subsidiary's Subsidiary Company |
13 |Talentsprint Private Limited {w.e.f. November 14, 2020} Fellow Subsidiary's Subsidiary’s Subsidiary Company
14 |NSE Foundation Fellow Sulmduan: paﬂ\v
15 |Aujas Cybersecurity Limited [Formerly known as Aujas Networks Limited/Aujas Networks Private Limited) Fellow Subsidiary's Sub ¥'s Subsidiary Company
| 16 |National Securities Depositary Limited Holding Company's Asscciate
17 |BFSI Sector Skill Council of India Holding Company's Assnuate
Fellow Subsidiary's
Fallow Subsidiany’s Associate
Fellow Subsidiarys Joint Ventare |
Fallow Subsidiary’s Associate
Fellow Subsidiary's Assed:
Personnel
Managemant Personnek

25 Mf Yatrik Vin -Directar
26 |Mr. Ravi Varanasi fYrectar

Key Management Personnet
Key Management Personnet

27 |Mr. Mukesh Agarwal - Director Txey B Personnel
Mame of the Related Party Nature of Transactions Year ended 31.03.2021 | Year ended 31.03.2021 Year ended 31.03.2020 Year ended 31.03.2020
{Rs. Laiths) {USD Lakhs) {Rs. Lakhs] {USD Lakhs}
Maticnal Stock Exchange of India Limited {NSEIL) |Centril d towards Equity Share Capital 4,000.60 54.07 3,500.01 49.22
Usage Charges paid 5000 0.66 50.00 0.66
Purchase of Fixed Assets 3666 0.50 - -
Reimbursement of expenses for staff on deputation paid / payable 206.09 275 20052 2.82
Reimbursement for capital and revenue expenses incurred {including 21232 2.6 303.69 4.29
taxes, if any)
Outstanding balance Dr / {Cr) (5750} [0.73)] (232,54} {3.08}/
|N$EI‘I’ Limitad IT Management and Consultancy Cha: aid | 657.35 | 8.97] ] 489.84 | s.al|
Outstanding halance Dr / {Cr} | [284.44)] 13.88)] | {360.55} (4.7}
NSE Data & Analytics Limited (formerly known |NOW usage Charges paid | | -1 .15 | 0.07]
as DotEx International Limnited) [e] ng balance Dr { {Cr] [ A] -[I -] -]
NSE IFSC Clearing Corporation Limited A 1t collerted from members on behaif of the 057 0.01 0.38 0.0
Reimbursement of Expenses 16.16 0.2 1755 0.24
Dumanding balance Dr / [Cr) 15.99 0.22, 2397 0.32]




NSE IFSC UMTTED
NOTES TO FINANCAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

MSE Indices Lmited {formerty known as India | Licensing Fees | 358] 0,05 | 3.52] 0.05]

Index Services & Products Limived) {outstanding balanga Dr /{Cr) | {3.31) foos)[ | 13.38)| {0.04)
Mr. Sandip Mehta [short-term employee benefits { 77.41] 104f] 7172] 1.01 ]
[Post-employment benefits # | 5.03] a7 | 474] 0,07

# As the liabilities for define benefit plan are provided on actuarial basks for the Company as a whole, the amount pertaining to key managesial persons are not induded.

|Mr- Venkatesh Panchapagesan [pirector sitting Fees Paid | 3.00 0.04f] 1.50 | .02 |
|committee Sitting Fees 1 250 003 ] 0.75] 001

18 There ks no Micro enterprise & Small enterprise 10 which the campany awes dues as at March 31, 2021. This infi ion a5 req i to be disdosed under Micro, 5Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act 2006 has been datermined

to the extent such parties have been identified on the basls of ink

29 Employee Benefits
@ Provident & Penslon Fund: Company has contributed Rs. 5.80 lakhs {USD 0.08 Lakhs) {previcus year: 4.6% lakhs {USD 0,07 Lakhs}}) towards Provident Fund during the year ended March 31, 2021 to

M Gratuity
Gratity: The company provides fer gratuity for employees a5 per Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Empk
redremeny/termination of the emplyee's last drawn basic salary per month muitiplied for the number of years of service, The gratuity plan is @ pon funded plan and the company makes provisian on the basds of Acuarial Yaluation,

lable with th

who arein c

The amounts recognised In the balanca sheet and the movements in the net defined benefit obligation over the year are as follows:
Year ended 31.03.2021 Year anded 31.03.2021 Year ended 31.03.2020 | Year ended 31.03.2020
{Rs, Lakhs) (USKr Lakhs) {Re. Lakhs) {USD Lakhs)
Liability at the nning of the year
beginning = &99 0.05 3.00 o0.04
.46 0.01 0.22 0.00
3.22 0.04 2.03 0.03
4.24 Q.10 - -
|Actuarial (Galns)/Losses on Obligations -
Due to Change in Demographic - - . _
Assumpticns
Actuarisl (Gains}/Losses on Obligations -
Due to Change in Finandal Assumptions 0.16 0.00 1.60 0.02
Actuarial {Gains)/Losses on Obligations -
Due to Experience 1.98 0.03 013 2.00
Liabllity at the end of the year
20,08 0.27 693 0.03
The amounts recognised in the balance sheet and the movements in the fair vatue of plan assets over the year ara as follows:
Year ended 31.03.2021 Year ended 31.03.2011 Year ended 31.03.202¢ | Yes :d 31.03.2020
(R, Lakhs) {UsD Lakkrs) (R, Lakhs) {UsSD Lakhs)
Falr Value of plen assets at the beginning - - .
of the year
Interest Income - - -
|EEmd return on plan assets - - -
Contributions. - . B N
Transter from other company - - - -
Benefits paid - - - -
Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Obligations - - - - -
Due to Change in Finandal Assumptions
Fair Value of plan assets at the end of the - - - -
vear
The net Hability disd above relates 1o fund=d plans are as follows:
Year ended 31.03.2021 Year ended 31.03.2021 Year ended 31.03.2020 | Year andad 31.03.2020
(R3. Lakhs} {USD Lakhs} {R3. Lakba} {USD Lakhs)
Fair value of plan assets as at the end of - - - _
the year
Liability as a1 the end of the year (20.08) {0.27) 5.5 0.09]
Met (Ilability} / assat {20.08} [0.27) {6.99) [ .W)l
Halance Shest Reconcillation
Year endad 31.03.2021 ¥aar anded 31.03.2021 Yaar anded 31.03.2030 | Year anded 31.03.2020
(Rs. Lakhs} (USD Lakhs) {Rs. Lakhs} {USD Lakhs}
Opening Nat LiabHity 6.09 0.09 3.00 0.04
ized in of Profit 3.68 0.05 235 0.03
or Loss
nses Recognized in OCI 214 .03 1.74 0.02
Nat {Liability)/Asset Transfer in 7.28 0.10 - -
Employers Contribution - - - -
Amount recognisad in the Balance Shest 20.08 0.z8 5.99 0.09
Statement of Profit & Loss
Net Interest Cost for Current Period
Year ended 31.03.2021 Year ended 31.03.2021 Year ended 31.03.202¢ | Year ended 31.03.2020
(Rs, Lakhs) {USD Lakhs) (Rs. Lakhs} {USD Lukha)
Interest Cast 0.45 0.01 0.22 0.00
llnterest Incorne - - -

Fund Or

service for a period of 5 years are aliglble for gratuity, The amount of Gratuity is payable on
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[rm Interest Cost for Curremt Period 046 0.01 0.22 0.00
IE&MMMMSMMFM&M
Year anded 31.03.2021 Year ended 31.03.2021 Year ended 31.03.2020 | Yaar endad 31.03.2020
{Rs. Lakhs) (UsSD Lakhs) {fes, Lakhs) USD Lakchs}
Current Service cost 3.22 0.04 2.03 ¢.03
Net Interest Cost 0.46 001 0.22 a0a
f in the of 3.68 0.05 2325 003
Profit & Loss
Expenses In the Other Comprehensive Income
Year ended 21,03.2071 Year ended 31.03.2021 Year ended 31.03.2020 | Year ended 31.03.2020
{R>. Lukirs) {USD Lakks) {Rs. Lakhs) (UsD Lakhs)
ected return on plan assets - - - -
Actuarial (Gain) or Loss 2.14 a.03 1.74 Q.02
Net [Income}/Expense for the Period 214 0.c3 174 0.02
Recognized In OO
Fair value of assets at the Balance Sheet Date for defined benefit
Year ended 31.03.2021 Year ended 31.03.2021 Year ended 31.83,2020 | Year ended 31.03.2020
(Rs. Lakhs]) {USD Lakhs} IRs. Lakhs} {U3D Lakhs)
Insurer Manay Funds - - - -
[Total - - B _
S Anal
Year ended 31.03.2021 Year ended 31.03.2021 Year ended 31.03.2020 | Year ended 31.03.2020
[Rs. Lafchs) (USD Lakhs} {Rs. Lakhs) {USD Lalkchs)
Prok —
rojected Benefit Obligation on Current 20,08 027 6.99 0.09
Assumptions
Delta Effect of +1% Change in Rate of (153) (062} {0.64) {o.01)
Discounting ) ' ) )
Delta Eﬁ;a:t of -1% Change in Rale of 178 0.02 6.75 001
Discounting
Detta Effect of +1% Change in Rate of Salary, 170 0.02 0.72 201
Increase
Dehta Effect of -1% Change in Rate of Salary (150) (0.02) (0.63) (001
Flncrease
TDelta Effect of +1% Change in Rate of
Employee {0.49) (c.01} (0.28 {0.00)
Turnover
Delta Effect af -1% Change in Rate of
Employee Q.55 0,01 0.31 0.00
Turnover
ificant actuarial assumptions are o3 follows:
Year ended 31.03.2021 Year ended 31.03.2020
5.49% 5.59%
Rate of Return on Plan Assets NLA. N.A.
Salary Excal 10.00% 10.00%
1Amillon Rate 12.00% 12.00%
3103.20 31.03.2021 31.03.2020 31.03.2020
30 Capital snd othet commitrents {Rs, Lakhs) {USD Lakhs) {Rs. Lakhs} {USD Lakhsj
E amount of T ining to be d on capital aceount {net of advances) and not provided 97.79 133 24.11 032
Cther commitments 140.91 192 54.76 0.73
a7 3.25 78.87 1.05
21 Cormtingant llabilty: 31.03.2021 -1.03.2021 31.03.2020 31.03.2020

Contingent Liabilities -

32 The company's tax jurisdiction is Indiz. Income of the company is fully exempt from the Income tax for initial period of five years (Le. FY 2017- 18 to FY 2021-22} and 50% exemp? for subsequent five years (i.e. FY 2022- 23 to FY 2026-27}.
Deferred 1ax asset is revognised based on ressonable cerainty.
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Finanelal Rish Management
The Company's business activities expose It 1o a varlety of Anancial risks, namety liquidity risk, market risks and credit rigk, The Compary's senigr management has the overall ibifity for the igh and ight of the

Company's risk management framework. The Company's risk policies are blished to identify and analyse the rigks faced by the Company, to set appropiate risk limits and contrals and to monitor risks and adherence to

Iimits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company's acttvities.

Treasury depactment that provides sasurance that the Campany's fimancial risk ities are g d by jate policies and and that financial risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the Company's
poficies and risk abjectives. The Treasury d ivities are By  to: .

- protect the Company's financial results and position from financlal sisks

- mainlain market risks wathin b 5, while optimisiag returns; and

- protect the Company's Anancial imvestments, while maximising rétumns.

The Treasury di isr [ dmise the return on ies internally genereted Funds.

MANAGEMENT OF LIQUIDITY RISK

Liquidity risk s the risk that the Company will face in meeting its ohtigations associated with its financial liabifities. The Compamy’s approach to managing Jiquidity is ti ensure that it wiil have sufficient funds to meet its liabilities when due

without incurring unacceplable losses. in daing this, management considers both narmal and stressed conditions.

The Company maintains a Funding and strategy, with a positive cash balance during the year ended 31st March, 2021

The Company's treasuty departrment regularly monkors the rolling forecasts to ensure it has sufficient cash on an on-going basis to meet operational needs, Any shart term surplus cash generated by the operating entities, over and zbove

the amount required for working capital and other ional requiremnants, is retained as cash equivalens (1o the extent required) , other highlv Iquid investments and excess is invested in interest bearing term deposits
and other highty marketable debe i Ath i ities to optimise the retums on while ensuring suFficlent liquidity to meet itz liabilities.
(Rs. Lakhs}
Carrying smount Less Than 12 Month Mora than 17 months Totat
As at March 31, 2021
Trade payakles 373.00 371.00 - 373.00
Depasits 98010 380.10 - 980.10
Creditor for capital goods 34.62 4,52 - 34.62
Qther liatlities 1,124.24 486.65 837.680 1,124.24
{USD Lakhs}
Casrying amount Luss Than 12 Month More than 12 months Total
As at March 31, 2021
Trade payabkes 5.07 5407 - 5.07
Deposits 13.33 1333 - 13.33
Creditar for capital goods 047 047 - 0.47
Other liablities 15.30 5.63 B.57 15.30
{Rs. Lakhs)
Carrying amount Less Than 12X Month More than 12 months Total
As st March 31, 2020
Trade payables 469.15 459.15 - 469.15
Deposits 838.18 833.18 - H38.18
Creditor far capital gogds 2050 2050 - 2050
Other liablities 1,179.68 512.08 667.60 1,179.68
(USD Lakhs)
Carrylng amount Lass Than 12 Month More than 12 months Total
As ot March 31, 2020
Trade payables 622 522 - 6.22
Deposits 11.12 11.12 - 11.12
Creditor for capital goods. 0.26 0.26 - 0.26
Other biablities 15.66 6.EG 8.86 15.66
MANAGEMENT OF PAARKET RISK
The Comnpamny’s size and operations result in it being exposed ta the following market risks that arise from its use of financial instruments.
= price risk;

« foreigh exchange risk and

» inrerest rate risk

The abawe risks may affect the Comgany’s income and expenses, or the value of its Anancial instruments. The cbjective of the Company's management of market risk is 1o maintain this risk within
retums.

par, while:

2\
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CAPITAL MANAGEMENT
The Company i the ing of its Balance Sheet to be managed capitl:
Total equity (a5 shown in the balance sheet). — retained profit, thara capital.

The Company manages Its capltal 50 as 1o safeguard its sbility 1o continue as a going concem and Io optimise returns to our sharehald The capital of the Company is based on management’s judgement of the appropriate
balance of key elerments in order to meet its sirategic and day-to-day needs. We consider the amount of capital in proportion to risk and manage the capital structure in light of changes in ecenomic cenditians and the risk characteristics of
the underlying assets  In order o maintain or adjust the capital structure, the group may adjust the amount of dhidends paid to shareholders, return capital 1o shareholders or issue new shares.

The Company aims to transiate prefitable growth to superior cash generation through efficient capital management. The Company's policy is to maintain a stabte and strong capital structure with a focus on tatal equity so as ta maintain

investar, creditors and market confidence and to sustain fulure development and growth of its business. The Comnpany's focus is on keeping strong total equity base to ensure independence, security, as well as a high financial flexibility For

potential Future barrowings, if required, without impacting the risk profle of the Company, The Company will take appropriate sieps in arder to maintain, or if necessary adjust, its capital siructure. The Company is not subject to financial
i ary of its fi [

The managerment monitors the neturn on capital as well as the tevel of dividerrds to sharehold: The is required to majntain the minimurs networth of Rs,25 crores and enhance it to Rs,100 crores at the end of third year from
the date of approval, L.e. May 28, 2017, o operate an exchange as per SEBI guidelines. SEBI has granted relaxalion for 1 year and aflowed exchange to maintas h of 25 crores till May 28, 2021. Further,Intematioral
Financial Services Centres Authority has issued International Financial services Centres Authority [Market Infrastructure Institutions} Regulations, 2021 en April 12, 2021 . Regulatian 14 of international Financial Services Centres Authority
(Market infrasteucture Institutions) Regulations, 2021 requines the company ta have net worth af at teast LUSD 3 milion at all times. The company is in compliance of the sama,

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

{Rz. Lakhs}
31-03-2021 31-03-2020
VoL Fvoq Amortised Cost FVPL Woa Amortised Cost
As at March 31, 2021
Financial Assets
Fised Deposits with Banks - - 2,793.18 - - 392.79
Trade recetvables 10.89 454
Cash and Cash equivalents - - 781.45 - - 3,126.47
Security depoaits - - Ta.66 - - 79.19
Other Financial Assets - - 3101 -
Tatal Flnanciat Assets - - 3,695.38 - - 3,602.99
Finandial Lishilities
Trade paysbles - - 371.00 - - 15915
Depslts - - 980.10 - - 83818
Other iablities - - 1,158.85 - - 1,200.18
[Totad Finandal Liabilities - - 2,511.96 - - 2,507.50
{USD Lakhs)
3N-03-2021 31-03-2020
FYFL woQ Amortised Cost F¥PL Aea Amortised Cosi
As at March 31, 2021
Financial Assats
Flred Deposits with Banks - - 38.00 - - 5.21
Trade receivables 015 0.06
Cazh and Cash equivalents - - 10.63 - - 4147
Securtly depasits - - 1.07 - - 106
Other Financial Assets 0.42 -
Total Finahdal Asvets - - SO.27 - - 4179
Financial Liahilities
Trade payabkes - - 5.07 - - &.22
Depasits - - 13.33 - - 1112
Other liablities - - 15.78 - - 1592
Tatal Hnanclal Liabliities - - 3418 - - 33.26
During the F.Y. 2018-19, Exchange has transferred amaunt of USD 15000 to separate bank account towards Investar Protection Fund pursuant to Chaptes X of Byelaws of the exchange.
The G irys (COVID-19} isan @lobal si ion, declared as a ‘pi i’ by World Heaith Organisauion. Based on the Company’s current assessment, the impact of COYID-19 on its operations and the resultant
financial performance is not likely ko be significant. The Company has alsa made an assessment as at March 31, 2021 af its liquidivy position, recoverability and carrying values of its assats and ability to pay its Fabilities as they hecome due
and is of the view that there is no material impact of adjustments required to be made in thele financial statements. the impact assessment of COVID-19 may be dJif; from that { d and the Company will continue ta

evaluate amy significant changes to its operations and its resultant impact on the financial perfermance.

Quring the year, National Stock Exchange {NSf) and Singapore Stock Exchange [SGX} have enterad inta a agreement to cement the key terms for cperationalising the NSE iF5£-86% Connect which will bring togethar international and
Gujazat International Finance Tec City (GIFT) participants to create s bigger iquidity pocl for Nifty Products in Gift City and to develop the infrastructure far the connect and ensure member readi prior Lo its impl

The exchange has intreduced trading of Currency Futures and Options contract on kndian Rupes w.e.f. May 08, 2020,
The exchange has introducad listing and dealing in Depoitory Receipts on the exchange w.e.f. December 09, 2020,

As at March 31, 2021, the Company does niot have any pending litigations which would impact Bs financial pesition.

Ir: accordance with relevant providors of Companies Act, 2013, the Comparniy did net have any leng—term induding derivati as at March 31, 2021

For the year ended March 31,2021, the company is not required to transfer any amount inte the nvestor Education & Protection Fund as required under relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013

Prewious Year's figures have heen reclassified/regrouped whenever necessary.

As par our repart of even date attached

Coin Al s il i B For and on behalf of the Bosrd of Directors

~ il
) /-'
Venkatash Panchapagesan Ravi Varanas|
Director Directot - Director
[DIN:07942333] [DIN:DT7662795) {DIN:DES 73045]
Place : Mumbal -
Durte : April 26, 71 5a) Mehita J
Thief Executive Offlcer Clllefanlmhl Officer Lompany yecrewry
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